IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEEN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

IN RE: THE ESTATE OF CASE NO. 302012CP004391XXXXSB
SIMON BERNSTEIN, HON. JUDGE MARTIN H COLIN
Deceased

ELIOT IVAN BERNSTEIN, PRO SE
PETITIONER,

V.

TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A., (AND ALL PARTNERS,
ASSOCIATES AND OF COUNSEL):

ROBERT L. SPALLINA, ESQ., PERSONALLY:

ROBERT L. SPALLINA, ESQ.. PROFESSIONALLY:

DONALD R. TESCHER. ESQ.. PERSONALLY;

DONALD R. TESCHER, ESQ., PROFESSIONALLY;
THEODORE STUART BERNSTEIN, INDIVIDUALLY:
THEODORE STUART BERNSTEIN, AS ALLEGED PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE:

THEODORE STUART BERNSTEIN, AS ALLEGED TRUSTEE
AND SUCCESSOR TRUSTEE PERSONALLY;

THEODORE STUART BERNSTEIN, AS ALLEGED TRUSTEE
AND SUCCESSOR TRUSTEE. PROFESSIONALLY;
THEODORE STUART BERNSTEIN, AS TRUSTEE FOR HIS
CHILDREN;

LISA SUE FRIEDSTEIN, INDIVIDUALLY AS A BENEFICIARY:
LISA SUE FRIEDSTEIN, AS TRUSTEE FOR HER CHILDREN;
JILL MARLA TANTONT, INDIVIDUALLY AS A BENEFICIARY;
JILL MARLA TANTONI, AS TRUSTEE FOR HER CHILDREN;
PAMELA BETH SIMON, INDIVIDUALLY:

PAMELA BETH SIMON, AS TRUSTEE FOR HER CHILDREN:
MARK MANCERI, ESQ., PERSONALLY;

MARK MANCERL ESQ., PROFESSIONALLY:

MARK R. MANCERL P.A. (AND ALL PARTNERS,
ASSOCIATES AND OF COUNSEL);

JOSHUA ENNIO ZANDER BERNSTEIN (ELIOT

MINOR CHILD):

JACOB NOAH ARCHIE BERNSTEIN (ELIOT

MINOR CHILD);

DANIEL ELIJSHA ABE OTTOMO BERNSTEIN

(ELIOT MINOR CHILD);

ALEXANDRA BERNSTEIN (TED ADULT € ™

ERIC BERNSTEIN (TED ADULT CHILD);

MICHAEL BERNSTEIN (TED ADULT CHIL
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MATTHEW LOGAN (TED’S SPOUSE ADULT
CHILD):;

MOLLY NORAH SIMON (PAMELA ADULT
CHILD):

JULIA IANTONI — JILL MTNOR CHILD:

MAX FRIEDSTEIN — LISA MINOR CHILD;
CARLY FRIEDSTEIN - LISA MINOR CHILD:
PAGE, MRACHEK, FITZGERALD & ROSE, P.A.
(AND ALL PARTNERS, ASSOCIATES AND OF
COUNSEL);

ALAN B. ROSE, ESQ. - PERSONALLY:

ALAN B. ROSE, ESQ. — PROFESSIONALLY:
PANKAUSKT LAW FIRM PLLC, (AND ALL
PARTNERS, ASSOCIATES AND OF COUNSEL);
JOHN J. PANKAUSKI, ESQ. - PERSONALLY:
JOHN J, PANKAUSKL ESQ. - PROFESSIONALLY:
KIMBERLY FRANCIS MORAN — PERSONALLY:
KIMBERLY FRANCIS MORAN
PROFESSIONALLY;

LINDSAY BAXLEY AKA LINDSAY GILES —
PERSONALLY:

LINDSAY BAXLEY AKA LINDSAY GILES -
PROFESSIONALLY,

THE ALLEGED “SIMON L. BERNSTEIN AMENDED
AND RESTATED TRUST AGREEMENT” DATED
JULY 25,2012;

JOHN AND JANE DOE'S (1-5000).

URGENT MOTION TO RESCHEDULE HEARING SET FOR SEPTEMBER
15,2014 FOR MEDICAL REASONS AND FAILURE OF OPPOSING
COUNSEL TO COOPERATE AND LACK OF STANDING TO REPRESENT
THE ESTATE

COMES NOW, FEliot lvan Bemstein (“Eliot”™), PRO SE, as Beneficiary and Interested
Party both for himsell personally and Guardian for his three minor children (who may also be
Beneficiaries and Interested Parties of the Estates and Trusts of Simon Bernstein (“Simon™)

and Shirley Bernstein (“Shirlev™)), and hereby files this “URGENT MOTION TO

RESCHEDULE HEARING SET FOR SEPTEMBER 15, 2014 FOR MEDICAL

REASONS AND FAILURE OF OPPO; =~ 777 77LTO COOPERATE AND LACK
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OF STANDING TO REPRESENT THE ESTATE™ and in support thereof states, on

information and belief, as follows:

That Eliot is not sure why Alan Rose is filing actions to harass Eliot in the Estate of Simon on behalf
of his client TED who is acting as alleged Successor Trustee' of Simon’s trusts when filing the
pleading, when factually he is not involved in the Estate of Simon at all. Therefore, what right does
Alan Rose have to file actions against Eliot on behalf of the Estate on behalf of an alleged Successor
Trustee of a trust?

The Court has officially appointed and prepared Letters for the new PR, Brian O’Connell, Esq. and
not Ted to represent the Estate and he appears the only legally qualified fiduciary that can represent
the Estate in actions. Ted and his counsel Alan are not authorized 1o file on behalf of the Estate and
represent the Estate in legal actions, as Ted is not a fiduciary and Alan is not counsel to Bnan
O’Connell as PR.

That Alan Rose states in signing the pleading that Ted has {iled the instant pleading (and many other
before this one) as the alleged Successor Trustee to Simon’s Trust, not as the PR of Simon’s Estate,
which he is not and therefore all of these pleadings of Ted filed by Alan under this capacity in
Simon’s estate are legally prohibited and thus must be stricken from the record, of course, with any
rulings made upon such improper filings.

That Alan Rose. Esq. has filed for a hearing in the Estate acting as Ted’s counsel in the Simon Trust
and this 1s not a qualified legal capacity to act under in the Estate.

This question makes one wonder if any of the pleadings filed by Alan Rose, Esq. are legally [iled in

"It is believed Ted is acting as Successor Trustee illegally as the dispositive document he operates under, which has
heen shown to be improperly notarized by the Governor Rick Scott’s Notary Public Division for failure to identify if

Simon was present at the signing and the fact that Ted is not narmed as a Successor and is strictly prohibited by the
language of the document from acting in any
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the Estate of Simon and if not they should all be instantly withdrawn from this case, along with
any/all rulings made on these legally improper filings and Ted and Alan should be sanctioned for
filing TOXIC, VEXATIOUS, KNOWINGLY IMPROPER, HARASSING and COSTLY pleadings.
Pleadings that have wasted countless hours of evervone’s time and hundreds of thousands of dollars
1n expenses dealing with them and all their hearings they have scheduled while having no basis to file
in the Estate of Simon Bemstein anything at all as the alleged Successor Trustee of a Simon trust.
That 1t is hard to believe that this lack of standing has gone unnoticed by this Court and Eliot this
long but things are so screwed up in these matiers already, in part caused by TED and Alan Rose, and
due to all the frauds already committed by Ted’s former counsel and others that little things like this
go unnoficed until much time, money and effort of everyone’s has been wasted.

In fact, it appears that this was intentionally done to have Ted file actions in the Estate, which he
could bill the Simon Trust for by filing them as alleged Successor Trustee of the Simon Trust, instead
of filing actions for his pleadings in a separate irust action where he may, but probably will not have
standing. ‘There are motions to remove Ted, next up to be heard by Your Honor where he may be
removed from his alleged fiducial roles as alleged Successor Trustee and all other fiducial capacities
he 1s acting under for a host of legally sound reasons, including the language of the document for
example in the Simon Trust precludes him from being a Successor and make him unfit for any
fiducial role in the Estates and Trusts of both Simon and Shirley due to his continued reckless
behavior and his involvement in the prior fraudulent activity that benefited him primarily committed
by his former Attorneys at Law and fiduciaries in Simon’s Estate, Tescher and Spallina.

That this filing by Ted without legal standing is similar to what has occurred in the Illinois Insurance

Litigation, regarding a life insurance pol’ o ™Mat Ted filed on behalf of a legally non-
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existent trust. Ted claims never to seen the trust and yet, against the advice of counsel according to
the insurance carriers original Answer and Counter Complaint, filed a federal lawsuit as “Trustee”™ of
the lost trust, which for over a year he has been unable to produce even an executed copy of for that
Court.

This filing wath fack of standing might be understandable from a Pro Se’r like Eliot but when this
occurs by a team of Attorneys at Law, Alan B. Rose, Esq. and John J. Pankauski, Esq., there can be
no excuse of ignorance as Eliot might have for filing pleadings with no standing. Where there is no
accounting to beneficiaries of their endless legal fees billed up in the Estates and Trusts of Simon and
Shirley thus far, it can only be presumed that this was done to further bilk the Estates and Trusts of
monies to defend Ted and others from being prosecuted for their crimes against the Estates and
Trusts. Ted’s legal assault on Eliot in Simon’s Estate appears to be done with no legal basis to file
and may have been paid [or by the victims of the felony crimes that have already occurred and been
proven against Ted's former counsel and fiduciaries of Simon’s Estate and Trusts, Tescher and
Spallina. Further, monies are now being expended for Ted to protect himself and his former
attomeys at law from the additional litany of {elony crimes alleged in these matters against Ted, Alan
Rose and others. These crimes continue with Ted as a fiduciary replacing his former counsel in an
illegal transfer of trusteeship and where it is alleged already that abusive legal fees already may have
bitked the Estates and Trusts of over a million dollars.

Legal fees have already been hilled to commit and then defend crimes Ted, his former Allorneys at
Law and other have committed and this appears the bulk of the legal costs in these matters and where

part of the money billed by the Attorne "~ " lucianes, alt acting as Officers of this Court,

was for ime used to,
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11.

12.

1. forge and fraudulently notarize dispositive documents,

i, file fraudulent documents in Shirley’s Estate,

il admttedly fraudulently alter trust documents,

iv.  comnut fraud on the Court in numerous instances, and,

v.  delend their crimes in Court with a pack of lies initially until finally confessing and more.
That to move on to the mstant motion, if it is necessary due to the lack of standing in the filing by
Ted. Eliot has repeatedly informed Alan Rose, Esq. and this Court that he is undergoing medical
treatments at this time involving having to take both a narcotic analgesic (Vicodin ES) and a muscle
relaxer (Flexenl). Eliot has informed Alan and the Court repeatedly that during this time he cannot
take a deposition or attend hearings Alan demands that are not urgent and that he would be happy to
do all of these things when the procedures are over. Eliot has notified Alan of all changes to the
projected medical treatment schedule as they have occurred and informed him that October 10, 2014
was the new projected due date by his Doctor almost two weeks ago. Eliot gave Alan and the Court
the Doctor’s information to contact to confirm.
That despite knowing Eliot is under medical care and medicated, Alan since leaming of this over two
months ago has continuously and abusivelv bombarded Eliot with numerous vexatious and frivolous
pleadings in the Estate of Simon where Ted has no standing to file, include but are not limited to,

1. requiring Answers and Counter Complaints within 20 days,

it.  scheduling depositions that were never conferred with Eliot in choosing the time and then

withdrawing the depositions when Eliot petitioned the Court regarding the harassments,

1. an endless [lurry of harassing emails trving to accuse Eliot of this or that and demanding

he attend this or that he: v “hdrawing those and more,
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13.

14.

15.

16.

iv.  scheduling and cancelling numerous hearings, and,
all in efforts to build some sort of case against Eliot being uncooperative and all filed WITHOUT
STANDING.
That Alan informed Eliot of a hearing that was scheduled on September 15, 2014 that Eliot believed
Alan had cancelled and rescheduled until after the procedures were through, as the pleading is not of
an urgent nature that would require Eliot to reschedule and his Doclor and that it can wait until after
October 10, 2014 to hear.
That Eliot then asked Alan too kindly reschedule the hearing due to his medical treatments and Alan
refused stating he would not consider changing this hearing despite knowing Eliot’s medical
condition.
That Eliot 1s now seeking the Court to intervene and move this hearing to a date more conducive to
Eliot being cognizant and alert and not medicated as his health and wellbeing are essential as he is
defending himself Pro Se and this proceeding is a contempt proceeding and believed to be an
evidentiary hearing as well. Eliot will in no way be able to stop medication between now and the
15™ as he is in severe pain.
That Eliot was apprised by the Court that there was a half day open on September 24, 2014 thal Your
Honor could kindly afford to hear the next thing up on the Court’s schedule, which is the Motion to
Remove Ted that was delayed after the July 11" hearing where Ted withdrew his pleading to become
Successor PR of the Simon Estate after Alan wasled everyone’s time coming to Court and preparing,
only to turn away and abandon his toxic, vexatious, frivolous and costly plea to have TED appointed

PR at the podium before Your Honor. This withdrawal coming after Your Honor advised him if he

did not withdraw his pleading and losth™ """ uld be “hell to pay™ or words to that effect
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17.

18.

and he would be charged for wasting everyone, including the Court’s time.

That due to the serious allegations contained in the Petition and Motions to remove TED as fiduciary
that arc next up to be heard by Your Honor, Eliot took the Sepiember 24, 2014 date and made
arrangements 1o delay further his treatments after his scheduled appointment on September 16, 2014
of four hours, so that he could recover and stop medications until alter that hearing on September 24,
2014, The allegations in the Petitions to remove Ted, include possible theft of mitlions of dollars of
personal assels that appear missing from the Estate of Simon that were by Court Order dated June 19,
2014 demanded to be re-invenioried to prove their existence, since TED and his counsel Alan Rose
appeared to not know at the heaning where the assets were and stated they had been moved.

That since that hearing where the assets were said 1o have moved to another location, Donald
Tescher, Esq. in a deposition conducted by Alan Rose, then made statements that the assets were sold
and not moved to another location contradicting their prior statements Lo the Court,. Now, since they
are evading the Court Order and there appears no need to inventory what is alleged to have been sold
but unaccounted for, this Court should demand a full accounting and inventorying of all personal
properties and other assets of Simon and Shirley as this sale represents further Grand Theft and more,
(see Exhibit 1 - Tescher Deposition Statements ). There 1s no accounting of a move or sale of the
eslate assets that were under the custody of TED and his former counselors at law, TESCHER and
SPALLINA, who have been removed from these proceedings, amidst a flurry of frauds that they
have admitled to involvement in and more. Anyway, Eliot thought the hearing to remove Ted was
urgent and necessilated a delay in treatments to be sharp and prepared at the September 24, 2014

hearing.

19. Then Alan hearing that Eliot had takenthe C =~ " 77 »stember 24, 2014 decided to attempt to
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20,

21.

22,

23.

schedule a flurry of proceedings to precede Eliot’s hearing, dunng the weeks leading up to that
hearing knowing Eliot was not well for any of them. He then apparently backed off all those
proceedings but then just a day or two ago claimed he would not change a September 15, 2014
hearing he had scheduled that Eliot thought he cancelled with the other items he cancelled. Eliot
explammed politely to him that he could not attend as he would still be medicated at this time and
undergoing a 4 hour treatment on the sixteenth to permanently implant the top row of his teeth and
was 1n tremendous pain leading up to that procedure.

These forceful and aggressive tactics of legal abuse to Eliot during his medical treatments have
interfered already with Eliot’s recovery and delayed and stvmied treatments already.

That the remainder of this filing the Court may be familiar with as it is the same pleading filed a few
weeks ago that similarly addressed Alan trying to harass Eliot and schedule depositions when he
knew Eliot was under treatment and then Alan withdrew that deposition after wasting everyone and
this Court’s time,

That Alan has continued to harass Eliot and attempts to put things on the docket to be heard prior to
the Court hearing what it wants next as staled repeatedly, the Motion to Remove Ted to see if Alan’s
client Ted is qualified now or ever has been to be a fiduciary in the Estates and Trusts of both Simon
and Shirley. A host of reasons for Ted’s removal are stated in Eliot’s recent “PETITION TO
REMOVE TED BERNSTEIN AS ALLEGED SUCCESSOR TRUSTEE OF THE ALLEGED
SIMON BERNSTEIN REVOCABLE TRUST” filed in the Simon Estate case and fully incorporated
by reference herein.

The procedures involve putting in dental implants that have been delayed due to the fact that the prior

removed PR’s and Trustees of the Esta —~ * " Robert Spallina, Esq. and Donald Tescher,
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25.

206.

Esq. refused to pay the balance to the doclors when Simon died, despite that the payments were made
under contract by Simon and Shirley Bemstein for five years prior and a small balance remained to
get this very complicated procedure finalized causing a two year delay and great pain and discomfort
to Eliot throughout this time.

Finally, despite Eliot’s inability to pay down the balance, the Doctor’s understood the Estate frauds
that have occurred that precluded his getting payment and that it was not Eliot’s fault and so had
great empathy and compassion and did this out of his own pocket to help Eliot.

That the treatments would have been done two years ago accept for the refusal of Tescher and
Spallina to pay this debt of Simon’s, again this done by OFFICERS OF THIS COURT and
fiduciaries that committed FRAUD and more. The work requires approximately 15 more hours of
time in the dentist’s office over the next several weeks, with the next 4 hour appointment on
September 16, 2014 while the top teeth are finally implanted permanently. Leading up to this next
appointment, Eliot is in extreme pain and is heavily medicated and constantly bombarded with Alan
trying to harass during this ime. During this procedure, Eliot has been in severe pain with extreme
headaches as the teeth are adjusting each time and it causes severe pains and severe discomfort
similar to TMJ but far worse and requiring heavy medication.

That Eliot has repeatedly informed Alan that he was undergoing these procedures and that 1t would
take several weeks and Eliot sent him months ago the Motion for Extension for time in the
Oppenheimer v. Eliot and Candice Bemsiein approved by this Court, which provided the same
reason and the doctor’s office phone number to call and confirm if necessary. Alan appeared at first

to understand but then began a campaign to make this Court think Eliot was uncooperative by

continuously requesting depositions and i Tt this time,
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27.

28,

29,

30.

What the procedure involves is removing implants and reinserting new ones for the new teeth and
then putting it all back together while adjustments are made and each time having {o remove and

reinsert the implants as illustrated below.

That Alan, in his attempt to smear, harass, defame and harangue Eliot and having adopted a strategy
according to the alleged Trustee Theodore under Oath in these proceedings, of “FORCEFULNESS
AND AGGRESSION” in dealing with Eliot has certainly proved that what thev conspired to do in
the privileged letter and according to Ted’s statements under oath regarding the treatment of Eliot 1s
being executed upon.

The strategy of legal abuse was detailed in an email sent to Eliot by Theodore that contained a letter
Theodore wrote to Alan that claimed they intended on using a strategy of force and aggression
against Eliot and all those who were helping him too. This letter was ruled to be Privileged by this
Court and so Ehol is forced not to Exhibit it here. Yet, Theodore under Oath in the hearing clearly
stated that he acting as a Fiduciary had stated such strategy of force and aggression against Eliot to
Alan and his use or more aptly misuse of trust funds to so effectuate this immoral and illegal legal
strategy.

Alan, despite knowing that Eliot 1s infirm at this time instead has forced Eliot into responding to new

lawsuits, attempted repeatedly to force Eliot to a deposition and has stepped up the pressure on Eliot,

knowing that Eliot is undergoing this prc  ° 7 7 ae and is not well, which shows that they
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31.

32.

intend on using such strategies as Theodore stated on the record to harass Eliot through force and
agression.

Eliot has told Alan that the procedure has not been completed repeatedly and Alan tries to build a
record to this Court every time that Eliot is being uncooperative and not following a Court order,
which is not the case. Yet, Alan must trv to twist this around, as he 1s aware now that he and his firm
are being counter sued in the Oppenheimer lawsuit as Counter Defendants, counter sued in the trust
lawsuit Ted and Alan instigated and that he and his firm are Respondents in these matters too. This
sets up classic conflicts of interest and adverse interests and has no manifested and metastasized led
to retaliation not only against Eliot but his three minor children by the alleged Trustee Theodore and
his counsel Alan, two of the main parties in all of the criminal and civil actions ongoing in these
matters relating 1o the massive frauds already commitied and those ongoing.

Alan and Theodore are being accused of aiding and abetiing the prior frauds committed and admitted
in part by Theodore’s former counsel in these matters Tescher and Spallina that include, proven
Fraudulent Notarizations {including one Post Mortem for Simon), admitted Forgeries {(including one
Post Mortem for Simon), admitted Altered trust documents (Post Mortem for Shirley), proven
improper notarization of a Will and Amended and Restated Trust of Simon, ILLEGAL distributions
made by the alleged Trustee that benefited his famuly personally to the detriment of other
beneficiaries against the Advice of Counsel, proven Fraud on the Court and Beneficiaries when the
prior OFFICERS OF THIS COURT, PR’S, TRUSTEES and COUNSEL used a deceased Simon
acting as a living PR to close his deceased wife’s Estate leading to the reopening of Shirley’s Estate
and more. Now thev have instigated vel another lawsuit to further waste time and assets to in efforts

.t 1. 11

to construct the Shirley trust that was fraudu’ Ted's previous counsel for Ted’s
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33.

34

35.

36.

benefit to trv and make it fit the crimes commutted, aimost surrealistically.

That the Court will remember that in a September 13, 2013 hearing, Your Honor stated that you had
enough evidence at the time of the frauds to read Theodore, Spallina, Tescher and Mark Mancen
their Miranda Rights but failed to read them and instead allow Theodore and his new counsel to
continue to act as OFFICERS OF THIS COURT, which defies logic and based on the mountains of
evidence against Theodore presented to the Court defies law.

That this Court, despite knowing that a Trustee has the stated intent of using a forceful and
aggressive strategy against Eliot and his three minor children, who is having him investigated in
multiple ongoing criminal complaints and state and federal civil actions has allowed this farce to
continue and allowed Alan and Theodore to continue a campaign against Eliot that defies the
definition of trustee, which is to be impartial and fair to beneficiaries and only act in the best interests
ol the beneficianes.

That Eliot’s treatments will last most likely through the third week in September, as the procedure
was delayed due 1o the need to send the implants back to the lab for adjustments that took longer than
expected due to the complexity of the case. Eliot has had his face broken many years ago and this
procedure involved removing ALL Eliot’s teeth due to infections that were nearing the brain and full
and total implant of new teeth both top and bottom. The procedure has been going on [or almost five
years and this is the final part and when this is complete Eliot will be [ree of pain and pain medicines
and able to take a proper deposition,

That as [or uncooperative this Court should note that Alan and Theodore have refused to Waive

Service/Process on the Counter Complaint sent to them in the Oppenheimer v. Eliot and Candice

Bemstein lawsuit before Your Honor. They ~ ’ " to Waive Service in a counter
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38.

39,

complaint [iled against them in their own lawsuit action that thev are now named Counter
Defendants. Both Ted and Alan have been formally served process in both lawsuits as of this 9™ day
of September. This refusal has now force indigent Pro Se Eliot Lo waste more time and money to

send a Marshal service to serve them.

. That Alan has refused to tell Eliot who his or his firm and partners counsel will be in these probate

and trust actions of Simon and Shitley’s that they are named Respondents in and who will be their
counsel in the Trust lawsuit counter complaint and the Oppenheimer lawsuit they are Counter
Defendants in.

That according 1o Your Honor, next up on the docket to be heard in these matters are motions filed
by Eliot to have Your Honor on your own inmtiative REMOVE THEODORE AS A FIDUCIARY
all capacities, this after vour honor found him unfit to become the Curator and urged him strongly 1o
withdraw his plea to become PR of the Estate of Simon for good and just cause, even threatening
sanctions if they brought the plea forward and lost. Alan and John Pankauski then urged their client
Theodore to withdraw and they did withdraw the plea at the podium after wasting evervone’s time
coming to the Court.

That thuis Court has been motioned to Remove Theodore as a fiduciary in the Bernstein family
maiters before the Court on its own initiative under FL Stat. 736 of the probate code on its own
initiative due to countless reasons that make Theodore legally unqualified as a fiduciary at this time
but Eliot is uncertain if thal has been ruled on by this Court at this time. The removal is now urgent
as TED 1s not legally qualified to act {urther as a fiduciary and further this continuing and ongoing

harassment of Eliot. Further, these pleadings are merely an attempt to pepper the record with crazed

claims in pleadings to make Eliot out = ~ © s and the bad guy and all these pleadings
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40.

(like the other four attormeys that have been removed that were Ted’s counsel and resigned as his
counsel for irreconcilable differences before Alan) will all be stricken or left to rot unheard when Ted
1s found unfit in the Estates and Trusts to act as a fiduciary. The Court has already denied Ted one
bid to become the Curator of the Estate of Simon and the court strongly urged him 1o withdraw his
pleading to become Successor PR of the Estate ol Simon, again because he was unfit at this time due
to all the problems alleged against him by Eliot and the creditor Stansbury.
Theodore is also acting as alleged Trustee in Simon’s Estate, despite clear language in the alleged
dispositive document that preclude his acting in any capacity as he is considered PREDECEASED
for all purposes of the trust and the distnbutions made thereunder. Yet this Court has allowed
Theodore to continue to waste evervone’s time and money allowing him to continue 1o act recklessly,
despite having PRIMA FACIE evidence that Theodore is precluded from acting as Successor in the
dispositive documents already presented by both Eliot and the Creditor Stansbury to this Court.
‘Wheretore, Eliot prays for an Order from this Court to,
i.  cancel the hearing that 1s scheduled for September 15, 2014 due to Alan Rose’s
refusal to schedule despite knowing of Eliot’s medical treatments during that time;
ii.,  make the rescheduling of the hearing for September 15, 2014 for afier October 10,
2014, unless there are changes 1o the estimated treatment plan by Eliot’s Doctor;
ii.  determine if Ted and Alan have standing to file actions on behalf of the Estate of
Simon and if not instantly remove all filings made and rulings upon the legally
deficient filings made with no legal standing and sanclion Ted and Alan for this
abuse of process, and,

iv.  any other relief this Court [in "
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RESPONDENT PERSONALLY,
PROFESSIONALLY, AS A
GUARDIAN AND TRUSTEE FOR
MINOR/ADULT CHILDREN, AS
AN ALLEGED TRUSTEE AND
ALLEGED PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE

Thecdore Stuart Bernstein
Life Insurance Concepty
%50 Peninsula Corporate Circle,

Sujte 3010
Racn Batan Flarda 11487

RESPONDENT
INDIVIDUALLY,
PROFESSIONALLY AND
LAW FIRM and COUNSEL
TO THEODORE
BERNSTEIN IN VARIOUS
CAPACITIES

Alan B. Rose, Esq.

Page, Mrachek, Fitzgerald &
Raose, P.A.

505 South Flagler Drive,
Sujte 600

West Palm Beach, Florida
33401

1Y 35 5-A0Q1

AN

RESPONDENT
INDIVIDUALLY,
PROFESSIONALLY AND LAW
FIRM and COUNSEL TO
THEODORE BERNSTEIN IN
VARIOUS CAPACITIES

John J. Pankauski. Esq.
Pankauski Law Firm PLLC
120 South Olive Avenue
7th Floor

West Palm Beach, FI.L 33401
5411 514-0000

RESPONDENT
INDIVIDUALLY,
PROFESSIONALLY AND
LAW I'IRM AND AS
FORMER COUNSEL TO
THEODORE BERNSTEIN
IN VARIOUS
CAPACITIES

Robert L. Spallina, Esq.,
Tescher & Spallina, P.A.
Boca Village Corporate
Center |

4855 Techmology Way

Suite 720
Rrca Ratan F1 23431

RESPONDENT INDIVIDUALLY
AND AS GUARDIAN AND
TRUSTEE OF HER MINOR
CHILD

Pamela Beth Simon

950 N. Michigan Avenue
Apartment 2603
Chicagon. 1. 60611

COUNSEL FOR LIMITED
APPEARANCE representing
Mr. Tescher in connection
with his Petition for
Designation and

Discharge as Co-Personal
Representative of the Estate
of Simeon L. Bemstein,
deceased.

irwin J. Block, Fsq.

The Law Office of Irwin J.
Black PL.

700 Souih Federal Highway
Suite 200

Roea Raton Florida 33432

URGENT MOTION TO RESCHEDULE HEARING !
FAILURE OF OPPOSING COUNSEL TO COOPEI

Woednesda
f

RIESPONDENT
INDIVIDUALLY,
PROFESSIONALLY AND [.AW
FIRM and FORMER
WITHDRAWN COUNSEL TO
THEODORLE BERNSTEIN IN
VARIOUS CAPACITIES, NO
NOTICES OF APPEARANCES

Mark R. Manceri, I'sq., and
Mark R. Manceri, P.A.,

2929 East Commercial Boulevard
Suite 702

Fart T anderdale FT. 33308

RESPONDENT
INDIVIDUALLY,
PROFESSIONALLY AND
LAW FIRM AND AS
FORMER COUNSEL TO
THEODORE BERNSTEIN
IN VARIOUS
CAPACITIES

Donald Tescher, Fisq.,
Tescher & Spallina, P.A.
Boca Village Corporate
Center |

4855 Technology Way

Suite 720
Rovea Ratan BT 33471
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RESPONDENT INDIVIDUALLY
AND AS GUARDIAN AND
TRUSTEE OF HER MINOR
CHILD

&l Ianloni
2107 Magnolia Lanc
Highland Parlk 1T. 60033

COUNSEL TO CREDITOR
WILLIAM STANSBURY

Peter Feaman, Esquire
Peter M. Fecaman, P.A.

3615 Boynton Beach Blvd.
Rewmton Reach FT. 33436

COURT APPROVED CURATOR
TO REPLACE THE REMOVED
FORMER PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVES/CO-
TRUSTEES/COUNSEL TO
THEMSELVES AS
FIDUCIARIES TESCIHER AND
SPALLINA

Benjamin Brown, Esq.,
Thormton I3 Henrv. Esq., and
Peter Matwiczyk
Matwiczyk & Brown, LLP
625 No. Flagler Drive

Suite 401
Wect Palm Rearh FT 33401

COUNSEL FOR JILL
IANTONI and LISA
FRIEDSTEIN

‘Witliam M. Pearson, Esq.

P.O. Box 1076
Miami BT 22149

RESPONDENT INDIVIDUALLY
AND AS GUARDIAN AND
TRUSTEE OF HER MINOR
CHILD

I.isa Friedstein
2142 Churchill Lane
Hightand Park, IL 60035

T ica/mimedsteing com

URGENT MOTION T
FAILURE OF OPPO!

COUNSEL FOR JILL
IANTONI and LISA
FRIEDSTEIN

William H. Glasko. Esq.
Golden Cowan, P.A.

1734 South Dixie Highway
Palmatte Ba BT 22157

RESPONDENT - ADULT
CHILD

Alexandra Bemstein

3000 Washington Blvd, Apt 424
Adinmtan VA 79701

RESPONDENT/ARRESTE
1D AND CONVICTED OF
FRAUD AND ADMITTTD
TOFORGERY OF SiX
SIGNATURES,
INCILUDING POST
MORTEM FOR
SIMON/HAS HAD
NOTARY PUBLIC
LICENSE REVOKED BY
FLORIDA GOVERMNOR
RICK SCOTT NOTARY
PUBLIC DIVISION. *See
notes

Kimhaork: Maoran

JEPTEMEBER 15, 2014 FOR MEDICAL REASONS AND
} LACK OF STANDING TO REPRESENT THE ESTATE

mber 10, 2014
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RESPONDENT - ADULT CHILD

Eric Bemnstein

2231 Bloods Grove Circle
Melrasr Raash BT 33445

RESPONDENT -
INITFALLY MINOR CHILD
AND NOW ADULT CHILD

Michael Bemslein

2231 Bloods Grove Circle
Datrayv Reach FT.33445

RESPONDENT - ADULT
STEPSON TO THEODORE

Matt Logan
2231 Bloods Grove Circle
Trelrayv Rearh TT 13445

RESPONDENT/REPRIMANDIED
BY FLORIDA GOVERNOR RICK
SCOTT NOTARY PUBLIC
DIVISION FOR FAILING TO
NOTARIZE AN ALLEGED 2012
WILL AND TRUST OF SIMON
AND SIGNING NOTARY UNDER
FALSE NAME

T indeav Raxlew aka Tindsav Giles

RESPONDENTS MINGR
CHILREN OF PETITIONER
Joshua, Jacob and Danicl
Bemstein, Minors

¢/o Eliot and Candice
Bemstein,

Parents and Natural
Guardians

2753 NW 34ih Street
Ronora Raton TT 33434

RESPONDLNT — MINOR
CHILD

Julia [anton. 2 Minor
c/o Guy and Jili Tantom,
Her Parents and Nateral
Guardians

216 T Magnolia Tanc
Hichland Rade 1T 407735

COUNSEL TO
ALEXANDRA_ ERIC AND
MICHAEL BERNSTEIN
AND MOLLY SIMON

John P Morrissey. Esq.

John P. Morrissey. P.A.

330 Clematis Streel

Suite 213

Weet Palm Reach FI 3340

rEsrunuen g vuNOR

CHILDREN

Carley & Max Friedstein,
Minors

c/o Jeffrey and Lisa
Friedstein

Parents and Naturai
(Guardians

2142 Churchill Lane
Highland Park, II. 6003
Lisa@triedsteins. com
lisa.friedstci

URGENT MOTION TO RESCHEDL
FAILURE OF OPPOSING COUNS

RESPONDENT - MINOR
CHILD INJTIALLY NOW
ADULT CITELD

Molly Simon

1731 N. Qld Pueblo Drive
Tureon A7 R3745

R SEPTEMBER 15, 2014 FOR MEDICAL REASONS AND
ND LACK OF STANDING TO REPRESENT THE ESTATE
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EXHIBIT 1

DONALD R. TESCHER, ESQ. DEPOSITION STATEMENTS
REGARDING SALE OF PERSONAL PROPERTIES

URGENT MOTION TO RESCHEDULE HE? 3ER 15, 2014 FOR MEDICAL REASONS AND
FAILURE OF OPPOSING COUNSELTO ( JF STANDING TO REPRESENT THE ESTATE
Wec 0, 2014
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL
CIRCUIT IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA
NO. 502012CP004391XXXXSB

CP - Probate

IN RE: )

ESTATE OF SIMON L. BERNSTEIN )

TELEPHONIC DEPOSITION of DONALD R.
TESCHER, called as a witness by and on behalf of
Ted S. Bernstein, pursuant to the applicable
provisions of the Florida Rules of Civil Procedure,
before P. Jodi Ohnemus, RPR, RMR, CRR, CA-CSR
#13192, NH-LCR #91, MA-CSR #123193, and Notary
Public, within and for the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts, at the Hampton Inn & Suites, 10
Plaza Way, Plymouth, Massachusetts, on Wednesday, 9

July, 2014, commencing at 2:38 p.m.
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APPEARANCES:

(Via Telephone)

PETER M. FEAMAN, P.A.

BY: Peter M. Feaman, Esq.
3695 West Boynton Beach Blvd.
Boynton Beach, FL 33436

561 734-5552
Pfeaman@feamanlaw.com

For William Stansbury

(Via Telephone)

MRACHEK, FITZGERALD, ROSE,
KONOPKA, THOMAS & WEISS, P.A.
BY: Alan B. Rose, Esqg.

505 South Flagler Drive
Suite 600

West Palm Beach, FL 33401
561 655-2250
Arose@mrachek-law.com

For Ted S. Bernstein
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APPEARANCES:

(CONT'D)

(Via Telephone)

Irwin J. Block, Esq.

700 South Federal Highway
Suite 200

Boca Raton, FL 33432

561 910-3071
Ijblijblegal.com

For the Deponent

(Via Telephone)

John P. Morrissey, Esq.
330 Clematis Street

Suite 213

West Palm Beach, FL 33401
561 833-0766
John@jmorrisseylaw.com

For Molly Simon, Alexandra
Bernstein, Eric Bernstein,

Michael Bernstein
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APPEARANCES:

ALSO PRESENT:

(CONT'D)

(Via Telephone)

TESCHER & SPALLINA

BY: Robert Spallina, Esq.
Wells Fargo Plaza

925 South Federal Highway
Suite 500

Boca Raton, FL 33432

561 997-7008

Rspallina@tescherspallina.com

Eliot I. Bernstein, Pro Se
2753 N.W. 34th Street

Boca Raton, FL 33434

561 245-8588

Iviewit@iviewit.tv

Jill Iantoni
Mimi McAndrews
Eliot Bernstein

LLisa Friedstein
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I NDEX

TESTIMONY OF':

DONALD R. TESCHER

(By Mr. Rose)

(By Mr. Feaman)

(By Mr. Eliot Bernstein)

PAGE

13
31
106
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EXHIBIT

Tescher

Tescher

Tescher

Tescher

Tescher

Tescher

Tescher

Tescher

Tescher

Tescher

Tescher

10

11-A

EXHIBTITS

DESCRIPTION PAGE

Simon L. Bernstein Amended
and Restated Trust Agreement
three-page web printout
two-page letter, 1/14/2014
four-page email, 1/30/13
Will of Simon L. Bernstein
Florida Department of State,
Detail by Entity Name,
Bernstein Family Realty, LLC
Articles of Organization,
Bernstein Holdings, LLC
Certificate of Limited
Partnership, Bernstein
Family Investments, LLP
Articles of Incorporation,
Shirley Bernstein Family
Foundation, Inc.

Florida Department of State,
Detail by Entity Name, Two
Oaks Consulting, LLC
Reconciliation Detail,

period ending 9/29/2006

o O o o o
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Tescher

Tescher

Tescher

Tescher

Tescher

Tescher

Tescher

11-B

11-C

12

13

14

15

Reconciliation Detail,
period ending 11/30/2006
Reconciliation Detail,
period ending 1/31/2007
Declaratory Action to
Establish a Lost Trust and
Appoint a Successor Trustee
TS 001359-367, Will of Simon
Bernstein

four-page document,
12/6/2012

Florida Department of State,
Detail by Entity Name, T&S
Registered Agents, LLC
Affidavit of Donald R.

Tescher

14
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(Tescher 1, Simon L. Bernstein Amended and
Restated Trust Agreement.)

(Tescher 2, three-page web printout.)
(Tescher 3, two-page letter, 1/14/2014.)
(Tescher 4, four-page email, 1/30/13.)
(Tescher 5, Will of Simon L. Bernstein.)
(Tescher 6, Florida Department of State,
Detail by Entity Name, Bernstein Family
Realty, LLC.)

(Tescher 7, Articles of Organization,
Bernstein Holdings, LLC.)

(Tescher 8, Certificate of Limited
Partnership, Bernstein Family
Investments, LLP.)

(Tescher 9, Articles of Incorporation,
Shirley Bernstein Family Foundation, Inc.)
(Tescher 10, Florida Department of State,
Detail by Entity Name, Two Oaks
Consulting, LLC.)

(Tescher 11-A, Reconciliation Detail,
Period ending 9/29/2006.)

(Tescher 11-B, Reconciliation Detail,
period ending 11/30/2006.)

(Tescher 11-C, Reconciliation Detail,

period ending 1/31/2007.)
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(Tescher 12, Declaratory Action to
Establish a Lost Trust and Appoint a
Successor Trustee.)

(Tescher 13, TS 001359-367,

Will of Simon Bernstein.)

(Tescher 14, four-page document,

12/6/2012.)

(Tescher 15, Florida Department of State,

Detail by Entity Name, T&S Registered

Agents, LLC.)

MR. FEAMAN: Alan, you're taking this
deposition for the purpose of using it at the
hearings that are going to take place on Friday
before Judge Colin; and I'd like to stipulate that
by this deposition today, I am not waiving -- I
assume none of the other parties are waiving their
right to take the deposition of Mr. Tescher at some
point in the future concerning any issues that are
not before the court on Friday.

MR. BLOCK: What's before the court on
Friday?

MR. FEAMAN: Before the court on Friday,
according to an order entered by Judge Colin --

MR. BLOCK: What date is Friday?

MR. FEAMAN: Friday is the 11lth.

WWW . USLEGALSUPPORT . COM
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MR. BLOCK: Okay. Good enough.

MR. FEAMAN: And the four things that this
deposition -- I understand -- is being taken for
is, No. 1, Elliot Bernstein's motion to disqualify
Alan Rose and the Mrachek law firm and John
Pankauski and the Pankauski law firm; No. 2, the
various motions/petitions filed in connection with
an appointment of a successor personal
representative for the estate of Simon Bernstein;
No. 3, the various motions and petitions filed in
connection with the removal of Ted Bernstein as
trustee of the Simon Bernstein Revocable Trust; and
the determination of the applicability of the
attorney/client privilege regarding an email sent
by Ted Bernstein to Eliot Bernstein; and that, by
our asking questions of Mr. Tescher today, we do
not waive the right to take Mr. Tescher's
deposition, if necessary, at some point in the
future concerning any other issues that may or may
not arise in connection with these matters.

MR. ROSE: I have no objection to your
stipulation. 1In fact, I think it's wvery obvious
that this deposition should be limited to four very
narrow issues. One of them has nothing to do with

Mr. Tescher -- which will be the privileged email.
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I agree wholeheartedly.

I would actually express in advance some
concern that your exhibits would seem to go far
afield of those issues. But subject to that, I am
fine with your stipulation. And I would like to --
I think the witness should be sworn in.

MR. MORRISSEY: This is John Morrissey.
The only addition that I would have to the
stipulation is Mr. Feaman made a couple of
references to the use of this deposition only at
the hearing on the 11th.

My understanding is we have a kind of a
pour-over hearing on the 16th. So I would add to
that stipulation that this deposition could be used
on the 16th to the extent necessary as well.

MR. FEAMAN: Well, my stipulation doesn't
involve use. It involves a waiver on the part of
my client to -- i1if -- that somehow he would not be
allowed or anybody else would be allowed to take
Mr. Tescher's deposition again because it's already
been taken. And the point is, there may be issues
that arise in the future in which Mr. Tescher is
involved -- either as a witness or in some other
capacity -- and, therefore, today's deposition

would not be a waiver of any parties' right to take
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his deposition in the future for other matters.

MR. ROSE: Let me take over for a second.
This is Alan Rose. Mr. Block, as counsel for Don
Tescher, do you agree he can be deposed again in
the future?

MR. BLOCK: Well --

MR. FEAMAN: Subject to the limitation and
nobody would ask him the same questions we're going
to ask him today.

MR. BLOCK: What I agreed to is the
stipulation decided by Peter, with the additional
of the date of the 16th by John Morrissey. That's
what I agree to.

MR. ROSE: And for the record, the
deposition is going to be used for whatever
purposes a deposition can be used under the Florida
Rules of Civil Procedure with no limitation.

You can swear in the witness.

DONALD R. TESCHER, having

satisfactorily been identified by

the production of a driver's license,

and being first duly sworn by the Notary

Public, was examined and testified as

follows to interrogatories

BY MR. ROSE:

WWW . USLEGALSUPPORT . COM
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Q. Would you state your full name for the
recovered?

A. Donald R. Tescher.

Q. And are you an attorney licensed to

practice law in the State of Florida; currently a
partner of the law firm Tescher & Spallina?
A. Yes; and yes.

Q. Where are you physically located today?

A. Right now I'm sitting in Plymouth,
Massachusetts.

Q. Is your plan to spend the summer in
Massachusetts?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you have plans to be in Palm Beach

county or July 11lth or July 16th of this year?

A. No.

Q. Is -- is your current location more than
100 miles from the courthouse?

A. Your courthouse; right -- or our

courthouse, I should say, in Florida --

Q. Is your --
A. -—- certainly it's about 1,500 miles.
Q. Is your location more than 100 miles from

the Palm Beach County courthouses?

A. Yes, sir.

WWW . USLEGALSUPPORT . COM
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Q. Okay. You have in front of you something
called "Affidavit of Donald Tescher"?
A. I don't. (Witness reviews documents.)
I do.
MR. ROSE: 1I'd like to mark that as
Exhibit 1 to your deposition.
(Discussion off the record.)

(Tescher A, Affidavit of Donald R.

Tescher.)
Q. Are you familiar with Exhibit A, Mr.
Tescher?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Is this an affidavit you prepared some

time ago?

Yes.

And signed under oath on March 4th, 20147
Yes.

Have you reviewed the affidavit recently?

> 0o = 10 ¥

Yes.

Q. And had you reviewed the affidavit and had
a role in editing it prior to the time that you
signed it in March of 20147

A. Yes, I did.

Q. If T asked you questions that would elicit

the information that you put in your affidavit in

WWW . USLEGALSUPPORT . COM
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March, would you give me the same answers today as
you wrote in your affidavit?

A. I believe so.

Q. Now, attached to the affidavit there are
five documents that have been marked in the

affidavit as A, B, C, D, and E.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you have those in front of you?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. The first document -- which is Exhibit A

to your affidavit -- is entitled "Will of Shirley
Bernstein."

Are you familiar with the will of Shirley

Bernstein?
A. This is the will that was executed on May
20, 2008.

Q. And the original of this will was held in
your safe deposit box and ultimately was filed with
the court?

A. That 1is correct.

Q. Exhibit B is the Shirley Bernstein Trust
Agreement, also dated May 20, 2008.

Are you familiar with that document?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was your law firm responsible for drafting

WWW . USLEGALSUPPORT . COM
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the will and the trust for Shirley Bernstein?

A. Yes, 1t was.

Q. If you look at Exhibit C, there's a
document called "First Amendment to Shirley
Bernstein Trust Agreement."

Are you familiar with that document?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is Exhibit C a true and accurate copy of
the first amendment to the Shirley Bernstein Trust
Agreement?

A. The only thing that's unusual about the
copy I'm looking at here is there's no date
inserted on the top of the first page; and I
believe that document, as I recall, was -- was
dated. It's dated, obviously, on the page 2.

Q. As far as you know, is the document
attached to the affidavit an accurate copy of what
would have been signed by Shirley Bernstein on or
about November 18, 20082

A. Yes.

Q. Other than the three documents -- A, B,
and C -- are you aware of any other operative
documents that would have -- that would have been
signed by Shirley Bernstein while she was alive?

A. No.

WWW . USLEGALSUPPORT . COM
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MR. FEAMAN: Objection to the form.

Q. I'll ask a different question: As far as
you know, are Exhibits A, B, and C, the will, and
the trust, and the amendment and -- the only
amendment that you're aware of to the Shirley

Bernstein Trust?

A. Yes.
Q. Now, Exhibit D is the will of Simon
Bernstein.

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And this is a -- not original document,
but it appears to be dated on July 25, 2012.

A. It appears to be a conformed copy of a
will that was executed, apparently, on that date.

Q. And this will would have been held in your
safe deposit box in the original files with the
court upon Mr. Bernstein's death?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And as far as you know, is this the last
will of Simon L. Bernstein?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. The last exhibit, Exhibit E, is the Simon
L. Bernstein Amended and Restated Trust Agreement,

which is dated July 25, 2012.
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Are you familiar with this document?

A. Yes.
Q. As far as you know, is this the final
version of a -- or the last version of any trust

document that Simon Bernstein signed prior to his

death?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Are you familiar with the prior versions

of Simon's will and trust from 2008?

A. Generally.

Q. In the 2012 document, were you and Robert
Spallina designated as the successor cotrustees
upon the death of Simon Bernstein?

A. Yes, we were.

Q. And do you recall who had been listed as a

successor cotrustee in the 2008 wversion?

A. My -- my recollection -- and I don't
specifically recall -- that it might have been Mr.
Stansbury.

Q. And are you aware of a decision by Simon

Bernstein to remove Mr. Stansbury as a successor
trustee under his 2012 trust?

A. Yes, indirectly.

Q. Did you have any discussions with Simon

about that decision?
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A. I did not have discussions directly with
Simon regarding that decision.

Q. Upon Mr. Spallina's resignation as
trustee, at some point in time you were the sole
remaining trustee of the Simon L. Bernstein Amended
and Restated Trust Agreement; is that correct?

A. Yes, sir, for one day.

Q. And did the trust document give you any
powers with regard to deciding who would be your
successor?

A. The provision of the trust document
provides first that if there is none named, that
the last surviving trustee can designate the
successor trustee.

Q. And did you make a decision in your
position who should be the successor to you?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. And who did you select?

A. I selected Theodore.

Q. And could you tell the court why you
selected Mr. Bernstein -- Mr. Ted Bernstein?

A. I concluded that he was the logical choice
for a variety of reasons, including the fact that
he -- among all of the children, probably had the

most knowledge of his -- his mother and father's
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matters. He was then serving as successor --
personal representative and successor trustee for
Shirley after Simon had died. He had, you know,
direct knowledge of the litigation that was ongoing
with William Stansbury. He's not a beneficiary
under any of those documents, other than dividing
up tangible personal property; and I believe him to
be a competent person and a competent businessman.

Q. Did you give any consideration to
selecting Eliot Bernstein for that role?

A. Not at all.

Q. Do you think that Simon Bernstein would
want Eliot Bernstein to have any fiduciary role in
connection with his will or his trust?

A. I do not.

Q. And can you tell us why?

A. There has been --

MR. FEAMAN: Objection to the form.

Q. You can answer, sir.

A. Over —-- over the years it was made
apparent to us by members of the Bernstein family
that Eliot -- Eliot suffers from certain
impediments and impairments that would affect his
Jjudgment and ability to act in an impartial fashion

and to handle the affairs that would be necessary
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to be handled.

Eliot and his family -- particularly his
siblings -- did not enjoy a -- a wonderful
relationship. It's my understanding that he, at
times, threatened -- I'm not sure if he actually
sued -- but he certainly threatened to sue certain
members of the family.

In fact, my recollection is that there is
an agreement that Si Bernstein had Eliot and his
wife execute regarding his ceasing that activity,
in exchange for which -- I believe that there were
payments to be made to Eliot Bernstein in
connection with helping to support him.

Q. Now, do you recall Mr. Stansbury also
being named as the successor personal
representative under Simon's 2008 document?

A. I don't specifically recall, but I think
that was the case.

Q. And in the documents that were signed July
25th, Mr. Stansbury is not named in any capacity;
is that correct?

A. That 1is correct.

Q. Do you know what happened between or
around July of 2012 that would have caused Simon

Bernstein to want to remove William Stansbury from
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having any role or say in his affairs?

MR. FEAMAN: Objection to the form.

A. Well, T -- I believe -- although I'm not a
hundred percent certain -- that litigation had
already commenced by Mr. Stansbury against Mr.
Bernstein -- Simon Bernstein -- as well as the Life
Insurance Concepts and other entities around that
time.

Q. Did you have personal knowledge of Simon's
reaction to being sued by William Stansbury?

A. Unfortunately, no, I do not.

Q. Okay. That's fine.

Now, in connection with the estate
planning, did Simon take any extra precautions or
special arraignments in dealing with assets that
were being provided to or set aside for Eliot
Bernstein?

A. Yeah. And, again, this was not -- this
was not a matter that our firm was involved in
creating or structuring.

Simon Bernstein had trusts created for
Eliot Bernstein's three children. He had those
trusts become the members -- sole members of a
limited liability company. He provided the

financing and the monies to acquire their current
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residence, which is owned in that limited liability
company; and, 1in essence, owned by those three
trusts for Eliot Bernstein's children.

Q. And were those elaborate estate plans
designed and created so that Eliot would not have

any assets in his individual name or control?

A. I believe that that was part of the
rationale.
Q. Prior to the time that you resigned, Ted

was not playing any role in the Simon estate or the

Simon trust; is that accurate?

A. I'm sorry? Who wasn't?

Q. Ted was not involved --

A. Ted?

Q. -- in a fiduciary capacity for the Simon

estate or for the Simon trust prior to your
resignation; is that accurate?
A. That 1is correct.
MR. FEAMAN: Objection to form.
MR. ROSE: What's the objection?
MR. FEAMAN: No predicate. Overly broad.
Q. Now, was Ted at that same time serving in
a fiduciary capacity as the successor trustee of
the Shirley Bernstein Trust and the successor PR of

the Shirley Bernstein estate?
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. And was your law firm representing him in
his capacity as a fiduciary on the Shirley side?

A. Yes, we were.

Q. During the time that Ted was being

represented by you, did there come -- from time to
time -- situations where you would give advice of
what -- what action should be taken in a given
circumstance?

A. Our firm did; yes.

Q. Did Ted generally follow your advice?

A. Yes.

Q. Were there any times when Ted specifically

refused to follow your advice?

A. No.

Q. Now, there was -- this is on the Shirley
side --

A. Well, I take that --

Q. -- not especially relevant, but it relates

to Ted's ability and capacity to serve as a
fiduciary on the Simon side -- but was there a time
when there was a sale of a large asset on the
Shirley side?

A. Yes. One of the --

MR. FEAMAN: Objection.
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A. -— one of the residences was sold.

Q. And were there discussions concerning
whether to make an interim distribution at that
time?

A. Yes, there were.

Q. And at the end of the -- at the end of the
day, after whatever discussions occurred, did your
firm ever advise Ted that it would be improper for
him, as trustee, to make an interim distribution?

A. We never advised him that it was improper.
We advised him to be cautious about making
distributions, because at that time the Shirley
trust was a named defendant in the Stansbury
litigation.

Q. And with respect to that -- so long as
there was sufficient funds left over to cover
whatever claim there was, there would be no problem
with an interim distribution; is that accurate?

A. Assumedly.

MR. FEAMAN: Objection to form.

Q. Now, Stansbury's claim has been against
the estate of Shirley Bernstein or the Shirley
Bernstein Trust have been dismissed with prejudice;
are you aware of that?

A. Yes.
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Q. Back at the time when an interim
distribution was being considered, what were your
thoughts as to the merits of the lawsuit by Mr.
Stansbury against the Shirley Bernstein estate or
the Shirley Bernstein Trust?

MR. FEAMAN: Objection to the form.

A. I thought it was ludicrous, frankly.

They continued to keep naming Mr. Spallina

and myself as the trustees of that trust, which we

never were in -- in all of the pleadings.
That trust had -- Shirley never owned any
interest in the business. And I could see no

reason why Mr. Stansbury was attempting to reach
into that trust, other than the fact that it had
some assets.

Q. Now, there is an issue -- there is an
issue on the Shirley side about whether the
distribution should have been made to all 10
grandchildren or to only six.

Were you aware at the time of the interim
distribution that there was a question about
distributions to six versus 107?

A. Not at that time; no.

Q. As far as you know, was Ted aware of the

issue of six versus 107
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MR. FEAMAN: Objection to the form.
A. To the best of my knowledge, I don't think
he was at that time.
Q. One second, please.
Do you recall when the Shirley Bernstein
Trust sold the condominium that, among the contents
of the condominium would be property that would
have then been owned by the estate of Simon
Bernstein?

A. Well, under -- under Shirley's documents,
all the tangible personal property passed to Simon.
Q. I thought -- at the time that Shirley's
condo was sold, whatever contents were in it would

have been owned by Simon's estate.

A. Correct.

Q. At the time you were the personal
representative or copersonal representative of

Simon's estate; is that correct?

A. At the time that the sale occurred; vyes.
Q. Did you and the other copersonal
representative agree that the -- that the property

should be sold with the condominium; and that if
there was ever a time in the future when there
needed to be some allocation, it could be handled

in the future, rather than either interfering with
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the sale of the condo, or requiring the furniture
to be to be removed from the condo?
MR. FEAMAN: Objection to the form.

A. I don't recall if T was directly involved
in that discussion.

Q. Does it make sense to you that if the
beneficiaries of the Shirley trust are the same as
the beneficiaries of the Simon estate should not
undergo an expense to move furniture or undertake

an allocation if the money is going to the same

people?
A. Correct.
Q. And if at some later point in time it

makes a difference, couldn't somebody then go back
and allocate some portion of the purchase price
from the Shirley condo and give the money to the
Simon estate for the value of the -- of his

personal property that was included in the sale?

A. Yes, 1t could true up.
Q. Does that make more sense to you, that an
estate with limited resources -- to true it up at

the end, if it matters, rather than undertake that
expense at the time of the sale?
MR. FEAMAN: Form.

A. From a practical standpoint, given the
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fact that these estates were not going to be
subject to federal estate tax liabilities; vyes.

Q. As you sit here today, do you have any
reason you would advise Judge Colin or any
hesitancy in suggesting that Ted would be a proper
candidate and could -- and competent and capable of
doing the job if the judge were to appoint Ted as
the successor personal representative of his
father's estate?

MR. FEAMAN: Objection to the form.

A. I would have no object -- I would have no
problem in recommending Mr. Ted Bernstein to serve
in the fiduciary capacity requested.

MR. ROSE: That's the end of my
examination. I'd like mine ordered on an expedited
basis. And I have no further questions; and turn
him over to cross-examination by whomever wishes to
do so.

MR. FEAMAN: Okay 1f I go next with
everybody?

THE WITNESS: Is that Peter?

MR. FEAMAN: Yeah.

THE WITNESS: All right. Let me just get
the other set of exhibits there.

MR. FEAMAN: Alan Rose, I'm going to
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object to the admission of the affidavit. So I
want to give you the opportunity to ask more
questions concerning what's contained in the
affidavit so you don't feel like I am sandbagging
you in any way.

So i1f you have further questions
concerning what's contained in the affidavit of
this witness, I want to give you the opportunity to
ask.

MR. ROSE: That's fine.

My -- and just for the record, I believe
that once the affidavit is tendered by the witness
during a deposition and is subject to
cross—-examination by all parties, that the
affidavit is fully admissible, regardless of
whether I asked him every question. But I will
also go through -- while you're questioning him --
and decide i1f there are any other questions I wish
to ask as a protective measure.

MR. FEAMAN: Okay. Very good.

MR. MORRISSEY: This is John Morrissey.
Just for the record, by allowing Mr. Feaman to ask
questions today, I'm certainly not agreeing and --
and don't waive any objection to -- to a standing

argument.
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That is to say, his standing to make
argument at the upcoming hearings.

MR. ROSE: This is Alan Rose. I concur in
that, but I also think we need to let him get
moving.

MR. MORRISSEY: Sure. I just want to make
that point or argument for the record.

EXAMINATION
BY MR. FEAMAN:

Q. All right. Mr. Tescher, this is Peter
Feaman on behalf of William Stansbury.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I'd first like to draw your attention to
one of the exhibits to the affidavit; and I believe
that it was Exhibit E that you discussed in direct
examination for Mr. Rose, which is the Simon

Bernstein Amended and Restated Trust Agreement?

A. Yes, sir.

Q Can you --

A. I have that in front of me.

Q -- have that in front of you. Okay.

I'd like to -- now, you said that you
appointed or exercised the power of appointment of
a successor trustee under this document; and you

appointed Ted Bernstein.
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Can you find that provision in the trust
which allows you to do that?
A. Page 16, paragraph 3 -- subparagraph 2 --
no, subparagraph 3 (a).
Q. Okay. And is it fair to say that under
paragraph (b) (1) on page 15, the bottom of page 15,

you and Mr. Spallina were the successor

cotrustees --

A. That's correct.

Q. -- before you have exercised your power of
appointment?

A. That's correct.

Q. And when did Mr. Spallina resign as

successor cotrustee?
A. The day before me.

Q. Did he do that in the form of a letter --

A. He executed --

Q. -—- or how did he do that?

A. He executed a resignation form, as I
recall.

Q. All right. Do you know what day that --
what the date of that was?

A. I don't have any of those documents in
front of me. I can't tell you.

Q. Okay. And do you have a copy of the
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resignation form?

A. I believe it exists; and I believe it's
included somewhere in all the discovery that, you
know, you all have from our files.

Q. So then you do have it in your files at

some point?

A. I believe that we do. I know it exists.
I saw 1it.
Q. Did you excise -- or excuse me -- execute

a resignation?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. Do you recall the date of your
resignation?

A. No. I do not, other than to reference it

the day after Mr. Spallina's resignation.

Q. All right. Now, in your exercise of what
you term your "appointment of a successor trustee,"”
what form did that exercise take?

Did you write a letter? Or what did you
do?

A. It's a written form. It's "Resignation as
Successor Trustee and Appointment of Successor," I
believe.

Again, I don't have the benefit of having

the document in front of me, sir, so I'm at a
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little bit of a loss.

But it was a standard document that we
would use in our office to have somebody resign and
appoint a successor.

Q. Okay, 'cause I have not seen such a
document that you describe.

MR. ROSE: I think they've been produced.
If you want me to email you a copy, Peter, I'll be
glad to do it.

MR. FEAMAN: Sure. That will be fine.

MR. ROSE: Okay.

Q. All right. Now, the -- I'd like to draw
your attention to the paragraph that you brought me
to, which is paragraph 3 on page 16.

A. Yes.

Q. It says that -- it's the last paragraph of
page 16 -- "A trustee appointed under this
paragraph shall not be a related or subordinate
party of the trust."

Do you see that?

A. Yeah, but I --

Q. Okay .

A. Go ahead. I'm sorry.

Q. Is Mr. Bernstein -- Ted Bernstein -- a

related or subordinate party of the trust?
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A. Not for purposes of paragraph 3(b) -- not
for purposes of paragraph 3(a).

For purposes of paragraph 3(b), he would
be.

Q. And where does 3(a) start?

A. "The remaining trustees, if any."

Q. All right. And did you not tell me that
you exercised your power of appointment pursuant to
the sentence that is actually two lines above that?

A. Well, you probably didn't -- what I said
to you was that, if the remaining trustee is the
one who's making the appointment, the "flush"
language dealing with "related or subordinate
party" is not material.

It's only material if a beneficiary of the
trust picks a related or subordinate person to
serve as their trustee.

Q. Let me draw your attention, if I could, to
the definitional section of this document, which is

-- I believe begins at page 5, paragraph E.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Would you go there, please?

A. Okay.

Q. And this is the definitional section of

the trust; is that correct?
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A. This is a definition provision.
Q. All right. And under paragraph E, let me

call your attention to paragraph 7, which appears

on page 7.

A. Correct.

Q. It says "A related or subordinate party to
a trust describes --" could you read that into the
record?

A. Yes, sir. 7: "Related or subordinate

party: A related or subordinate party to a trust
describes a beneficiary of the subject trust or a
related or subordinate party to a beneficiary of
the trust as the terms 'related or subordinate
party' are defined under code section 672 (c)."

Q. And have you reviewed the code section
referred to there as to how it's defined?

A. I'm generally familiar with 672 (c),
although I don't have in front of me.

Q. And does it define a related or
subordinate party as a child or issue of a grantor?

A. I would not want to comment without having
the code provision in front of me.

Q. Okay. So as you sit here today, you don't
-- you don't know one way or the other whether a

related party under that code section would include
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a child of the grantor; is that correct?

A. They would be related to the grantor.

Q. Is the grantor in this case under this
trust Simon Bernstein?

A. He was the grantor. He died.

Q. And is it your understanding that Ted
Bernstein is an issue of the grantor --

A. He certainly is.

Q. -- as used in the code section referred to
in your document 6727

A. Yes.

Q. I also want to direct your attention to --
under the definition section, (e) (1).

Do you see where it says '"Children, Lineal
Decedents"?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. Now, that definition paragraph
bleeds over on the top of page 6.

Could you turn there?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. All right. Could you read the last
sentence of paragraph (e) (1), beginning with
"Notwithstanding."

A. "Notwithstanding the foregoing, for all

purposes of this trust and the dispositions made

WWW . USLEGALSUPPORT . COM
1-888-311-4240




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

38

hereunder, my children, Ted S. Bernstein, Pamela B.
Simon, Eliot Bernstein, Jill Iantoni, and Lisa S.
Friedstein shall be deemed to have predeceased me,
as I have adequately provided for them during my
lifetime."

Q. All right. Does -- does that provision
apply, in your opinion, to the appointment of a
successor trustee?

A. No. "Dispositions hereunder," sir.

Q. Okay. Now, it says "Notwithstanding the
foregoing," it says "for all purposes of this
trust."

Are you limiting "for all purposes of this
trust" to answer that question?

A. Am I limiting the "Notwithstanding the
foregoing"?

Q. Yeah. What does "for all purposes of this
trust" mean if it doesn't also include the children
as eligible to be appointed as a successor trustee?

A. This definition is intended solely for
purposes of determining whether they are
beneficiaries under the trust.

Q. So when you said, "for all purposes of
this trust," you didn't really mean all purposes of

this trust; is that what you're saying?
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A. I think you have to read it in context of
the entire document.

Q. And "for all purposes of this trust," you
wrote that the children of the grantor are
predeceased. So for all purposes of this trust, if
the children have predeceased, then wouldn't that
mean that Ted Bernstein, as one of the children,
would not then be eligible to be appointed by you
as a successor trustee?

A. One could make that tortured argument, if
you'd like.

Q. Okay. All right. Now, I wanted to ask

you a question about your affidavit.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I want to draw your attention to paragraph
5.

A. Yes.

Q. You state in the second sentence of

paragraph 5, quote, "None of the five children were
involved in the estate planning process, nor did

any of them attend any meetings with myself as

counsel."
Did I read that correctly?
A. You read it correctly.
Q. When you refer to "estate planning
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process," are you talking about the 2008 estate
planning process that you did for the Bernsteins or
the 2012 estate planning process that you allegedly
did for Simon Bernstein?

A. Well, I clearly was referring first to the
2008 process.

With regard to the subsequent process, I

did not attend any meetings as counsel in

connection with the 2012 planning.

Q. So you then have no personal knowledge as
to --

A. Just my understanding; that's correct.

Q. -- the intent -- if I could finish my
question -- you then have no personal knowledge as

to the intent of Simon Bernstein when he allegedly

changed his trust and will in 2012; is that

correct?
A. I believe that I did not have direct
knowledge -- hearing it from his lips; that would

be correct.

Q. Now, I want to turn to some of the
exhibits that I sent to the court reporter in
advance.

A. Yes, sir.

MR. FEAMAN: Alan, I believe you have
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these as well. I apologize to the others on this
call, but due to the nature of this deposition, I
wasn't able to provide copies for everybody.

Q. Can you please take a look at what's been

premarked as Exhibit 2 --

A. Yes, sir.

Q -- to this deposition.

A. Yes, sir.

Q Does this appear to be a true and correct

copy of the three pages of your website for Tescher
& Spallina, PA?

A. To be honest with you, I haven't looked at
that in so long, I'm not sure. But...

Q. All right. Well, let's see if we can
verify some of the information contained on it.

A. Sure.

Q. It shows the address of Tescher & Spallina
as 925 South Federal Highway, Suite 500; is that

correct?
A. That is correct.
Q. How long has Tescher & Spallina been

located at that address?
A. March 1, 2014.
Q. All right. So then this was at least

updated within the last couple of months; is that
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fair to say?
Yeah, obviously.
Okay .

At least the address was updated, sir.

o = 10 ¥

All right. And you represent there in
your website that your attorneys -- which I assume
would include you -- have extensive expertise in
certain areas, including "Wealth transfer planning
for high-net-worth individuals and families"; is

that correct?

A. That 1is correct.

Q. "Business succession planning"; is that
correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. "Life insurance planning"; is that
correct?

A. Yes.

Q. "Probate administration"; is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. Now, assisting you, it shows --

there's a picture of you on the second page, Mr.

Spallina, and then, on the third page, Ms.

Galvani --
A. Correct.
Q. -- is that correct?
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A. Yes.
Q. Are you the managing partner of the firm?
A. I don't know if I still am.

I guess I am right now; yes.

Q. Okay. And for how long have you been
managing partner of Tescher & Spallina?

A. Since its inception in -- would be a
little over six years.

Q. So you began Tescher & Spallina in 2008;
is that correct?

A. We began January 1, 2008; yes. January 1,
2008.

Q. Okay. And what firm were you with before
that?

A. Tescher, Gutter, Chaves, Josepher, Rubin,
Ruffin & Forman, PA.

Q. How long were you with that firm?

A. From its inception, going back to 1990.
The name changed --

Q. By the way, I forgot to ask you a question
concerning the Amended and Restated Trust
Agreement. Could you go back to that document for
a second?

A. Yes, sir. 1I've got it.

Q. Okay. It appears that the -- this was
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dated July 25th, 2012; is that correct?

A. July 25, 2012 is the date I see on it.

Q. Okay. And if it was signed by Mr.
Bernstein, it would have -- can it be assumed then
that it was signed by him on that day?

A. One could assume that. I think there's a
related will that was signed on the same day also.

Q. Okay. That would be July 25th, 2012°?

A. I believe that's correct.

Q. It's witnessed by Mr. Spallina and Ms.
Moran?

A. That's correct.

Q. You were not present when this was signed;

is that correct?

A. I was not present when that was signed. I
was ensconced on Cape Cod.

Q. Now, do you know when that lawsuit that
you referred to in your direct examination was
filed by Mr. Stansbury?

A. I said I wasn't sure whether it was before
or after that date.

Q. So then, when you testified that you
believe the litigation had been filed at the time
that these new documents were executed, you don't

really know if that's true or not; do you?
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A. I'm not certain as to whether, in fact,
litigation had commenced.

Q. Okay. Now, on your web page you show
support staff of Kimberly Moran; correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. And what is her position at the

firm -- or was her position at the firm?
A. She is a legal secretary.
Q. Does she still work there?
A. She still works there.
Q. Okay. And was she recently accused and

pled guilty to a crime in connection with work she
performed while at your firm involving the

Bernstein estate?

A. Yes.
Q. And what was that crime?
A. She misused her notary seal in notarizing

certain documents regarding the Shirley Bernstein
estate.

Q. Do you know the statute that she was
accused of violating and whether it was a felony or
a misdemeanor?

A. I don't -—- I don't know precisely how it
ended. I know that she did not and has not served

time in jail; that she is apparently currently on
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probation. And that's all I know.

Q. Is she still a notary?
A. No.
Q. And what document was she accused of

notarizing falsely?

A. In the Shirley Bernstein estate, when it
came time to basically close the probate
administration, she sent out to the five children
-—- and I think to -- to Simon at that time too --
waivers, consents, and Jjoinders to the petition for
distribution and discharge; and they all came back;
everybody signed off -- including Eliot Bernstein;
those documents were then filed in the court; and
the clerk's office bounced those documents because
Judge Colin's division requires that that
particular document be signed and notarized; and
they had not been notarized.

Q. Okay. And so did she subsequently
notarize them?

A. She subsequently prepared new ones, and
signed them, and notarized them.

Q. And when she prepared the new ones, that
included a form signed by Simon Bernstein; correct?

A. I believe that's correct.

Q. And Simon --
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MR. ROSE: Just for the record -- this 1is
Alan Rose -- I could -- there's no issue for Friday
with regard to the document.

MR. FEAMAN: Yeah, there is. Yeah, there
is.

MR. ROSE: There's no issue.

MR. FEAMAN: I'm going to tie it in in a
minute if you let me finish.

MR. ROSE: There's also no issue in the
case that the document wasn't properly —-- was not
properly —--

MR. FEAMAN: Wait a minute. Wait a
minute. Wait a minute. Unless you object to my
question, okay, this -- this statement on your part
is improper in the middle of my examination.

MR. ROSE: Well, I'm not -- the witness
answered the question. I'm putting on the record I
think this is an irrelevant line of questioning and
you are wasting our time on --

MR. FEAMAN: And you have no right to
interrupt the spontaneity of my examination by
making a statement like this at this time. And I
would respectfully request that you not do that.
And I'd like to finish this line of questioning.

I'm almost done.
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Q. My question, isn't it true that Ms. -- is
it Morin or Moran?

A. Moran.

Q. -- that Ms. Moran notarized Simon
Bernstein's signature at a time after he had, in
fact, passed away; is that correct?

A. In connection with the Shirley Bernstein

estate closing.

Q. Okay.
A. I believe I --
Q. And at that time the successor personal

representative of the Shirley Bernstein estate was
Ted Bernstein; is that correct?

A. I believe that's correct.

Q. Okay. And at that time the successor
trustee to the Shirley Bernstein Trust was Ted
Bernstein; is that correct?

A. That would be correct.

Q. All right. Now, Diane Dustin, what does

she do at the firm? 1Is she still there?

A. She 1s still with me. She is a legal
assistant.

Q. And then there's Sue Anne Tescher?

A. Yes.

Q. Is that a relative of yours?
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A. Happens to be a very close relative of
mine. She's my wife.

Q. All right. And what does she do at the
firm?

A. She manages the firm accounts and books,
pays the bills.

Q. Kind of like a -- in the bookkeeper side
of the office?

A. In the bookkeeper side of the office. She
has nothing to do with the legal side of the
office.

Q. So she oversees the checks that come into
the firm; is that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. All right.

Now, how long, Mr. Tescher, have you known

the Bernstein family -- either professionally or
personally?
A. I think -- my recollection would be 2007.

And when you say "The Bernstein family," that would
have -- that would be Ted Bernstein, Simon
Bernstein, and Shirley Bernstein.

I don't think that I had contact with the
other Bernstein family members until subsequent to

that.
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Q. All right. Oh, I forgot.

Now, when it came to light that Ms. Moran
had notarized a signature of a deceased person --
namely Simon Bernstein -- did you at that time
resign as the copersonal representative of the
Simon Bernstein estate?

A. Not at that time.

What we did was we filed -- because --
because the court proceedings were tainted in terms
of the documents that had been -- in fact, the
estate had been closed. And we -- we moved to have
the estate reopened so that the record could be
cleaned. And we petitioned the court to reopen the
estate, allow us to obtain correct, untainted

waivers from those who could give them, and

attempted to expunge the -- what were tainted
documents.
Q. And when were those documents -- was it

just one document that was criminally notarized, or

were there others?

A. There was one —-- to the best of my
recollection, there was one document -- one form
document -- the waiver -- I think the waiver,

consent, and joinder, if I'm not mistaken; and I

think that only related to the five children and no
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one else. I don't think that -- I mean, Si was the
personal —-- you know, had been the personal
representative of the estate.

Q. And how did this come to light?

A. My recollection is that Eliot Bernstein
apparently found the discrepancy -- or what he
thought appeared to be a discrepancy in the court
documents when he reviewed the court files --
again, this is supposition on my part; I don't
know, you know, for a fact that that was the case.

He filed a complaint with the governor's
office which administers notary publics in the
State of Florida. And apparently they filed --
they sent Ms. Moran a -- an inquiry letter asking
for, you know, an explanation, etcetera, of what

had occurred.

Q. And do you know when -- about -- that was?

A I don't recall exact dates.

Q. Was that in the year 20137

A. I believe that it was in the year 2013.

Q Okay. Was it in the summer of 20137

A. It might have been -- 'cause in the summer
-— i1f it was the summer, I was not in town. I

would have been up here on Cape Cod.

Q. Certainly you didn't bring it to light,
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nor did Mr. Spallina bring it to the attention of
anybody; is that --

A. We couldn't, because we weren't aware of
it.

Q. Okay. And when you became aware of it in
2013, did you think it appropriate at that time to
resign as copersonal representative from the estate

of Simon Bernstein?

A. No.
Q. Now, did there come a time, however, when
you did resign -- you and Mr. Spallina -- as

copersonal representatives of the Simon Bernstein
estate; correct?

A. That 1is correct.

Q. Do you recall when that was?

A. January of 2014.

Q. And what was the incident at that time
that then caused you to resign as copersonal
representatives of the estate of Simon Bernstein?

A. It came to light -- it was brought to my
attention that the -- there was an amendment --
there was an altered document altering the
amendment to Shirley Bernstein's revocable trust,
which document had been forwarded to Christine

Yates, who was then serving as counsel to Eliot
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Bernstein's children; and that document added a
provision.

Q. All right. And how did that document come
to light -- the altered document?

A. It was brought to my attention by someone
in my office.

Q. Okay. Now, the -- you identified the
altered document as what again -- the Shirley
Bernstein Trust?

A. The Amendment to Shirley Bernstein's
Revocable Trust Agreement.

Q. Okay. And who in your office brought that

to your attention?

A. Our associate.

Q. And who is that?

A. Lauren Galvani.

Q. And when did that take place?
A. January 2013.

Q. Okay. And there is a document that's
attached to your affidavit, which is the -- I
believe an amendment to the Shirley Bernstein
Trust; is that correct?

A. Hold on one moment. Let me get to that.

Q. Is that Exhibit C?

A. I believe that's C, if I'm not mistaken.
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Hold on one moment.
(Witness reviews document.) Yeah. That's
Exhibit C.
Q. Okay. All right.
Now, Exhibit C, is that the altered
document or the unaltered document?
A. That is the unaltered document.
Q. And what did the altered first amendment

to the Shirley Bernstein trust say?

A. I don't have it in front of me, but
essentially what it did was there was a -- you see
how it's numbered now 1 and 3? There were -- you

know, somebody had messed up when it had been
originally prepared, and it got numbered --
paragraph No. 1, paragraph No. 3.

A paragraph No. 2 was inserted between 1
and 3.

Q. And when did that take place?

A. I don't know.

Q. Was it -- did it take place sometime in
20127

A. I don't know.

Q. Did it take -- well, how did your
associate suddenly come across it in January of

20147
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A. You'll have to ask her.

Q. Did you ever ask her how she came across
it that then subsequently caused you to resign as
copersonal representative?

A. She noticed that the amendment that had
been included in the letter to Christine Yates was
different than Exhibit -- the exhibit that's here
attached to my affidavit.

Q. And in that letter to Christine Yates,
what was the date of that letter?

A. I think it was January of 2013 -- I think.

Q. Okay. And so that was after the death of
Simon Bernstein; correct?

A. Yes, 1t was.

Q. So then that altered document contained in
a document dated January 11, 2013 could very well
have been prepared while Ted Bernstein was the
successor personal representative and successor

trustee to the Shirley Bernstein estate and trust;

correct?
A. No. Probably -- well...
Probably -- I'm not sure, to be honest,
Peter. I'm not a hundred percent certain on the
timing.

Q. Okay. And how did a year go by between
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the time of the January 11th, 2013 letter in which
the altered document was produced to the attorneys
for Eliot Bernstein and then the discovery that it
was, in fact, an altered document? What happened
in that 12-month time that caused you, or your
associate, or your office to discover that, in
fact, what had been supplied to counsel for Eliot
Bernstein was, in fact, a forged document or
altered document?

A. I can't answer that question, actually --
'cause I don't know.

Q. All right. And -- and who in your firm
would be in the best position to know that -- if
it's not the general manager -- the managing
partner of the firm?

A. Mr. Spallina or Ms. Galvani.

Q. You were the managing partner at that time
still; correct?

A. I was the president.

Q. Okay. And what did the altered document
say in paragraph 2°?

A. I told you that I don't have that in front
of me.

Q. And the one attached to your affidavit?

A. I told you that I don't have that in front
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of me.
Q. I apologize if I'm being repetitive on
that score.

Yeah, I don't have --

Your best recollection.

A. Yeah. Peter, I don't have it here.

It dealt with the definition of children
and lineals.

MR. ROSE: Peter, I don't want to ruin
your momentum that you're building up, but I need
to take a bathroom break. Could we take -- we've
been going at it for a little more than an hour.
Can we take like a five-minute break?

MR. FEAMAN: Sure. I'm moving on to the
next item anyway.

MR. ROSE: ©No more than five -- maybe as
little as two minutes. 1I'll be right back.

MR. FEAMAN: No problem.

(Recess was taken.)

Q. Mr. Tescher, I'd like you to take a look
at what's been premarked as Exhibit 3.

MR. FEAMAN: Madam Court Reporter, would
you hand that to the witness.

COURT REPORTER: Okay.

MR. FEAMAN: Thank you.
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Q. Now, Jjust to have closure on the subject
we were talking about about the altered Shirley
Bernstein Trust, Exhibit 3 appears to be a true and
correct -- is it a true and correct copy of the
letter you wrote on January 14th, 2014 to Ted
Bernstein, Eliot Bernstein, Lisa Friedstein, Jill
Iantoni, and Pam Simon announcing your resignation

as personal representative of the estate of Simon

Bernstein?
A. Announcing our intent to resign; yes, sir.
Q. Your intent to resign.

And at that point had -- well, let me back
up and lay a predicate.

You hired Mr. Manceri as an attorney to
represent the Simon Bernstein estate; correct?

A. Mr. Manceri was hired -- was brought in by
Ted Bernstein -- no, we hired him -- we hired him
to assist with regard to the litigation with
Stansbury as it related to the estate of Simon
Bernstein.

Q. All right. And now, as -- do you recall
as of January 14th, 2014, whether Mr. Manceri had
withdrawn as attorney for the estate in that
litigation at this point?

A. I do not recall when he specifically
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withdrew.

Q. I guess we'd have to refer to the court
records for that; is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

MR. ROSE: Peter, we're here trying to get
to the truth. Why don't we just agree it was
probably Friday, January the 11th, 2014 when Mr.
Manceri filed papers -- that you and I both
received -- withdrawing from the case; and ask your
next question.

MR. FEAMAN: Okay. Good. Thank you for
that.

Q. I assume that representation is correct?
A. I have no knowledge.

MR. ROSE: To the best of my knowledge,
that's correct.

MR. FEAMAN: Okay. Very well.

MR. ROSE: Because shortly after that, I

got a phone call that -- that Mr. Tescher had
spoken with Ted Bernstein. So that's my frame of
reference.

MR. FEAMAN: Okay.
Q. And up until now, had you recommended Ted
Bernstein to be successor personal representative?

A. I don't recall when I recommended anything
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to anybody --
Q. Okay .
A. -—- after -- after January 14th.
Q. All right. Now, the -- the documents --

subsequent to your resignation, you turned over
documents to Mr. Brown, the administrator ad litem
-- or I should say the curator appointed by the

court; is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And Mr. Brown received about -- what --
700 pages of documents -- or thousands?

A. I have no idea how many pages he received.

I know that we completely copied onto disks all of
our files.

Q. All right. Did you keep copies of what
you produced to Mr. Brown?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. Do you have originals of any
documents in your possession?

A. I'm not sure if we have originals of any
wills and trusts, for example. Those would have
been all turned over or filed in the court.

Q. 'Cause I have a copy of the Simon
Bernstein last will and testament that appoints Mr.

Stansbury as a copersonal representative after
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Shirley or successor personal representative after
Shirley, but I don't have a copy of the original or
the original -- nor have I seen one -- I only have
a conformed copy.
Do you have the original of that document?

A. The original will is sitting in the court.

Q. No, 2008.

A. Oh. I'm sorry. I thought you were
referring to the current document.

Q. I'm sorry if I was not clear.

A. Yeah. I don't know that we had it. If it
was there, it got copied.

Q. Right. But do you have the original of

the 2008 will and trust of Mr. Simon Bernstein?

A. If it was there -- I -- I don't know.

Q. Okay .

A. I don't have my —--

Q. Do you keep those in a safe deposit box or
a vault?

A. Not if they're old documents that have

been superseded.

Q. Okay. And one more question on this, and
then I'm going to move on: When Mr. Bernstein
allegedly executed his 2012 documents, was that in

your office; if you know?
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A. No, sir; it was not.

Q. Where did that execution take place?

A. In Simon Bernstein's office.

Q. Okay. And have you been told -- since you
obviously weren't there -- who was present when

those documents were executed?

A. Well, the only -- the only thing that I
know who was present -- and there may have been
others present -- is by the executions on the will
and trust that were signed that day. And
present —-

Q. Right. But you don't know anything more
than I might know by looking at the documents; is
that correct?

A. That 1is correct.

Q. Okay. Now, you said that you first met
some members of the Bernstein family in 2007.

Who did you meet first, Ted or Si?

A. I think I met Ted before 2007; and we had
-- we've had dealings over the years with mutual
clients. I think that our first dealings with Ted
Bernstein also involved his sister's company up in
Chicago. They were doing a -- a life insurance
arbitrage program that was kind of interesting; and

we —-—- we had some mutual clients there.
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Q. So you had a professional relationship
with Mr. Ted Bernstein before you did with Mr.
Simon Bernstein; is that correct?

A. I think so.

Q. Okay. Did you also have a business

relationship with Mr. Ted Bernstein?

A. In what sense?

Q. In any sense.

A. Well, tell me what businesses. I mean, we
had -- we had mutual clients.

There were clients who I brought to Ted
Bernstein for life insurance needs. There were
clients that Ted Bernstein referred to us.

Q. Okay. Were there any businesses in which
you and Ted were both owners?

A. No.

Q. All right. 1I'd like to draw your

attention to Exhibit 6, if I could.

A. Okay. Hold on a moment. (Witness reviews
documents.)
Okay.
Q. Now, Exhibit 6 is a copy of a printout we

got from the Florida Department of State, Division
of Corporations. This makes reference to a

"Bernstein Family Realty, LLC."
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Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, it shows the registered agent as "T &
S Registered Agents."

Are you familiar with that company?

A. Yes.

Q. What is that company?

A. That is a shell company that we typically
use to serve as registered agent for entities that
we form for clients.

Q. Okay. And the address of T & S Registered
Agents, is that 925 South Federal Highway, Suite
5007

A. It is now. It was the address that's on
the Exhibit 6 up until March.

Q. Right. That's your law firm?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was your law firm at 4855 Technology Way,
Suite 7207

A. 7 -- yes, 1t was.

Q. Okay. Now, it shows that the mailing
address of the Bernstein Family Realty, LLC was
changed -- it looks like -- in 2013 to the
Oppenheimer Trust Company.

Do you see that on Exhibit 67
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A. (Witness reviews document.) I see

Oppenheimer listed there; yeah.

Q. And what was your involvement in the
change?

A. I didn't have any involvement in the
change.

Q. Okay. And did you organize the Bernstein

Family Realty, LLC, as the attorney?
A. I didn't -- as the attorney.

Q. You did or you did not?

A. I might have filed the articles of
organization. I don't recall. I think I was
originally named as the registered agent. This was

done back in February of '08. At that time it --
when I -- when I first withdrew from my prior firm,
Peter, we actually shared office space for a year
with my former partners -- just, you know, we just
continued using our office. It was a friendly --
friendly division.

And when this company was formed, it was
formed February of '08, which would have been
roughly a month after -- a little over a month
after Robert Spallina and I had set up Tescher &
Spallina. We probably didn't even have a new

registered agent entity set up yet.

WWW . USLEGALSUPPORT . COM
1-888-311-4240




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

66

Q. All right. And the documents on Exhibit 6
shows that the previous mailing address in 2012 was
950 Peninsula Corporate Circle, Suite 3010.

What address is that?

A. I think that was LIC's office.

Q. All right. And LIC was the business owned
by Simon Bernstein and Ted Bernstein by majority?

A. Correct.

Q. All right. And if you look at the third

A. Yes.
Q. -- it shows that the managing member was

Simon Bernstein.

A. Correct.

Q. As of January 2012; correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Now, you are knowledgeable in trust and

estates and succession planning, like you said and
shown on your website.
Once Mr. Bernstein passes away, does the
estate then become the managing member?
A. No, the estate does not become the
managing member.
Q. Okay. Well, who then would have been

responsible for changing the mailing address of the
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Bernstein Family Realty, LLC from the offices of
LIC -- LIC to Oppenheimer, if it wasn't somebody
acting on behalf of the estate?

A. I can't answer that question.

Q. All right. And is Bernstein Family Realty

listed as an asset of the Simon Bernstein estate?

A. No. He didn't own any equity interest in
it, other than a mortgage -- a note and mortgage.
Q. Okay. And so normally, as an expert in

this field, if a person is the only member of an
LLC, and that person passes away, what is your
standard operating procedure as to how the
operations of that LLC are carried out after the
passing of the only manager?
A. Mr. Feaman --
MR. ROSE: Objection to form.
A. Mr. Feaman, I'm assuming you meant to say,
"manager" and not "member"?
Do you want to restate your question?
Q. No, because the electronic signature of
page 3 of Exhibit 6 is signed by Simon Bernstein,

as the managing member manager?

A. No, "manager," not "managing member."
"Manager," sir.
Q. Okay. Do you know -- as the registered
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agent, do you know where the books and records of

the Bernstein Family Realty, LLC are maintained?

A. I personally don't know.

Q. Has your office ever maintained them?

A. I don't think so. Remember that the
members -- the members of this entity, sir, are

three trusts, of which Oppenheimer until recently

-—- or maybe still is; I don't know -- was the
Lrustee.
Q. And what -- what are those three trusts?
A. They are trusts -- irrevocable trusts

created in 2006 by Simon Bernstein for the benefit

of Eliot Bernstein's three children.

Q. Okay. Did you create those trusts?

A. No, we did not.

Q. Who did-?

A. I don't —— I don't know.

Q. All right.

A. Their prior counsel obviously, not us.

Q. And as copersonal representative of the
estate of Simon Bernstein, would you have any
fiduciary responsibility to carry out the intent of
Mr. Simon Bernstein with regard to the management
of Bernstein Family Realty?

A. I don't believe so.
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Q. Who were the trustees of those three

trusts that you mentioned that owned it?

A. Oppenheimer.

Q. And who were the trustees before
Oppenheimer?

A. Stanford.

Q. Stanford?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And where are those trusts --
copies of those trusts located?

A. I don't know.

Q Do you have possession of the original?

A. Why would I?

Q I don't know.

MR. ROSE: And I object to this line of
questioning as completely irrelevant and
immaterial, since the estate has no interest in
this, other than the mortgage, which has been
unpaid and for which Mr. Eliot Bernstein has been
living in the residence without paying any rent, or
mortgage, or interest for two years.

But other than that, I think this whole
line of questioning is wholly irrelevant; and
you're wasting valuable time.

Q. Let me ask a follow-up question: What
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conversations have you had with Ted Bernstein
concerning the Bernstein Family Realty, LLC, since
the passing of Simon Bernstein?

MR. BLOCK: Well, I ask a question as to
whether or not there's a privilege. I have no idea
of what you're talking, but just want to throw that
out.

THE WITNESS: Well, I'm mulling that in my
head, Irwin, as to whether it is a privilege issue.

Q. Okay. Let me --

MR. ROSE: The question is, have you had a
discussion? And if the -- the answer is either yes
or no; and then we can deal with the privilege
issue.

MR. FEAMAN: Yeah. Right.

A. Yeah. I think tangentially there has been
-—- there had been discussion regarding Bernstein

Family Realty.

Q. Between you and Mr. Ted Bernstein; is that
correct?
A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. And has there been email traffic
between you and Mr. Ted Bernstein concerning
Bernstein Family Realty, LLC?

A. Not me, I don't believe.
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Q. I mean, to your knowledge, on paper Mr.
Ted Bernstein has no involvement with Bernstein

Family Realty, LLC; correct?

A. Well, he has no direct involvement in
Bernstein Family Realty, LLC. He does have -- or
potentially has involvement vis-a-vis -- no, he

does not have involvement; that's correct.

Q. Okay. And so --

A. That I'm aware of.

Q. Therefore, what would the nature of any --
why would you be having any correspondence or
conversation with Mr. Ted Bernstein concerning
Bernstein Family Realty if he has no apparent
involvement in that entity?

A. Well, Bernstein Family Realty -- if I'm
not mistaken -- was also named as a defendant in

the Stansbury litigation.

Q. Okay .
A. And certainly in that regard there was
discussion.

Q. Okay. Is Bernstein Family Realty still a
defendant in the Stansbury litigation?

A. Is it still? I don't know. I -- those
are issues that I'm not necessarily privy to.

Q. All right. Let me draw your attention to
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premarked Exhibit 7 --

A. Yes, sir.

Q -- for the deposition --
A. Yes, sir.

Q -- which is a --

MR. ROSE: 1Is it still a defendant in the
lawsuit, Peter, since it's your lawsuit?
MR. FEAMAN: Yes, it is.

Q. Marked as Exhibit 7 is a copy of Articles

of Incorporation for Bernstein Holdings, LLC.
Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You are shown as the registered agent of
Bernstein Holdings, LLC; is that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. All right. And the manager is shown as
Simon Bernstein under article 5 on page 2; correct?

A. That 1is correct.

Q. Now, the -- this looks like a different
address altogether than the ones we identified
before under article 4. It shows an address for
you of 2101 Corporate Boulevard, Suite 107.

Do you know what was located at that
address at that time?

A. Yes. That was in the first year of our --
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of our firm. Starting January 1 of '08, that was
our office address.

Q. Okay. Very good.

And it shows a manager as Simon Bernstein;
is that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. There's also a signature of a member,
Robert Spallina.

Do you know what his involvement in the
corporation was or is?

A. He didn't sign as a member. He signed as
an authorized representative of a member.

MR. ROSE: Object to form.

Q. All right. Well, let me draw your
attention to page 3 of Exhibit 7, document dated by
the Secretary of State April 12th, 2013. It shows
the manager as Robert Spallina.

That would be your law partner; correct?

A. That is -- yes, he is my law partner.

Q. Okay. And how did your law partner, Mr.
Spallina, come to be the manager of Bernstein

Holdings, LLC?

A. The manager died.
Q. Okay.
A. The interest in this entity was owned by,
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I believe, the Shirley Bernstein Trust and the
Simon Bernstein Trust. They owned a majority
interest -- those two trusts -- in Bernstein
Holdings, LLC, which was the general partner of a
limited partnership.

Q. All right. So the manager died. And
somehow Robert Spallina became manager.

But you told me with regard to Bernstein
Family Realty, Exhibit 6, we identified Simon
Bernstein as the manager. But then you said nobody
became the manager after that as far as you knew.

How did Mr. Spallina become the manager of
Bernstein Holdings, LLC?

A. I don't recall.

Q. Who are the members -- did you say -- of
Bernstein Holdings, LLC?

A. I don't have those documents in front of
me, Peter. But I believe that it would have been
the Simon Bernstein Trust and the Shirley Bernstein
Trust; and there may have been some minor interest
held for other family members. I'm not certain.

Q. Which trusts would you be referring to --
'cause we've identified a number of trusts here
today?

A. The 2012 -- July 25, 2012 Simon Bernstein
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Amended and Restated Trust Agreement and —--

Q. Okay. And that's -- go ahead.

A. -- and assumedly the family trust under --
that was established for the benefit of Simon after
Shirley's death under the Shirley Bernstein Trust
Agreement from '08.

Q. Okay. And the members designated you, as
the managing member --

A. They didn't designate me, Peter.

Q. I mean -- sorry -- designated Mr. Spallina
as the managing member. And the members were
acting through Ted Bernstein as the successor
trustee; is that right?

MR. ROSE: Object to the form.

A. I —-

Q. Do you remember --

A. I have no personal knowledge.

Q. Okay. Who would know?

A. Mr. Spallina --

Q. Okay .

A. -— or perhaps Mr. Bernstein. I don't
know.

Q. Let's take a look at Exhibit 8, if we
could.

A. Okay. Yes, sir.

WWW . USLEGALSUPPORT . COM
1-888-311-4240




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

76

Q. Exhibit 8 is a copy of a Certificate of
Limited Partnership for the Bernstein Family
Investments, LLLP.

Do you see that?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Now, you're shown as the registered agent

for that entity; is that correct?

A. Yes. Again, February of 2008; that's
correct.
Q. Okay. And the general partner is shown as

Bernstein Holdings, LLC.
Is that the entity we just identified --

A. Yes, sir.

Q. -- that Mr. Spallina is now the managing
partner of?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. And your shell company that you
created is now the registered agent for that
company rather than you individually; is that
correct?

A. Yes, sir. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. And 950 Peninsula Corporate Circle,
Suite 3010, what's located at that address?

A. I presume that to be what was Simon

Bernstein's office.
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Q. And now I guess Ted Bernstein's office;
right?
A. I guess; yes.

Q. Okay. All right.

Let's take a look at Exhibit 9, if we

could.
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Now, this is a copy of Articles of

Incorporation for the Shirley Bernstein Family

Foundation, Inc.?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. You're shown as, again, the
registered agent. Did you -- are you the one that

created this entity?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And what is the purpose or the business of
the Shirley Bernstein Family Foundation, Inc.?

A. It has no purpose today. It's an inactive
entity, as far as I know.

It was formed back in 2008 at a time when

Shirley had -- Bernstein had expressed an interest
in setting up a foundation to carry on some of her

charitable desires.
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Q. All right. Let me draw your attention to
Exhibit 10.
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Exhibit 10 is a printout from the Florida
Department of State Division of Corporation for an
entity known as "Two Oaks --"

MR. FEAMAN: That's O-a-k-s, Madam Court
Reporter, T-w-o, Oaks -- oh, you have it there in
front of you —--

Q. "-- Consulting, LLC."

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. It shows it's currently inactive,
but it was apparently active from 2006 through
2011.

What is your understanding of what Two
Oaks Consulting, LLC is?

A. Geeze. I'm trying to remember now.

I set this up for -- principally for my
wife and I to use for purposes of trying to develop
some additional consulting business on our own.

Q. What kind of consulting?

A. All types of business consulting.

She is a pretty good bookkeeper. You

know, we could provide -- looking to provide, like,
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bookkeeping services and office administration
services.

Q. All right. And 2600 Whispering Oaks Lane,
is that your home address?

A. Yes, it is, sir.

Q. All right. And your wife Sue Anne, that's
-- she's shown -- is she the only -- was she the
only manager?

A. She was the manager.

Q. Okay. And did Two Oaks Consulting do any
business for any entities owned or controlled by
the Bernsteins?

A. I believe that it might have. I don't
recall. I'm looking at your Exhibit 11-A for the
first time. So obviously there were some payments
that were made to Two Oaks.

Q. Okay. Let's take a look at Exhibit 11-A.
It's a copy of a reconciliation detail report for
Arbitrage International Management, LLC.

First, what is your understanding of what
Arbitrage International Management, LLC is?

A. I'm not 100 percent certain. It was one
-- i1t was part of the overall insurance business of
the Bernsteins.

Q. So is it fair to say, though, you do
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understand that this company is -- was or is owned

and controlled by majority by Simon and Ted

Bernstein?
A. I believe I do understand that.
Q. Okay. Now, Simon's ownership interest in

Arbitrage International Management, LLC, did that
exist at the time of Mr. Bernstein's death in 20127?

A. I don't recall.

Q. Do you know if his ownership interest in
this company is shown on the inventory of the
estate?

A. I don't recall it being listed on the
inventory of the estate, because if it were owned
still, it might have been owned through his trust
and not through his -- him individually.

Q. Okay. I guess we have to do further
discovery on that. But you would agree that both
Ted and Simon Bernstein controlled that entity;
correct?

A. My knowledge —-- to the best of my
knowledge.

Q. Yeah. That's all I can ask is to the best
of your knowledge. Yeah. Yeah.

Okay. Let me draw your attention to page

1 of Exhibit 11-A, to about two-thirds of the way
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down the page.

There's a check that's listed there dated
11/1/2006, No. 2047.

Do you see that, sir?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And it's a check payable to Two Oaks
Consulting for $55,000.

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. And what work was performed by Two
Oaks Consulting that caused a delivery of that
payment from Arbitrage International Management to
Two Oaks for $55,000 at or around October or
November of 20067

A. This is seven-and-a-half years ago. To be
honest with you, I don't know, without going back
and trying to find out.

I don't have any immediate knowledge.

Q. All right. Then just below that is an
entry for 11/1/2006 --

A. Yes, sir.

Q. -- check No. 2046 for Tescher Gutter.

That's your firm before Tescher &
Spallina; correct?

A. That is correct, sir.
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Q. That's the Chaves firm I guess you
referred to.
Now, there's a check for $45,000 on the
same day, which totaled a payment of $100,000 on
November 1lst, 2006.

Do you recall what that was for?

A. Again, no, I'm not a hundred percent
certain. But, obviously, if it's paid -- the
payment -- I'm -- no, I do not know without
checking.

Q. All right. Well, let me draw your
attention to the next page --

A. Yes, sir.

Q. -- which is a reconciliation detail.

And about a quarter of the way down --
also on 11/1/2006 -- this is marked as Exhibit
11-B, by the way --

A. Yes, sir.

Q. There's a check by -- a different check
number, 2045, payable to Two Oaks Consulting for
the same amount, $55,000.

Do you know what that was for?

A. No. This looks like a duplication of
11-A, frankly. I mean, I —--

Q. Yeah. That's what I thought too, except
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that it's a different check number.

A. Yeah, I can't explain it. Obviously, it's
not my reconciliation. But it certainly looks like
the same things here.

Q. Yeah. Okay. And then, finally, on page
11-C --

A. Yes, sir.

Q. -- there's a check in 2007 -- January
22nd, 2007 -- payable to your wife's company from
Arbitrage International Management for $30,000 --
check No. 2247.

Do you know what that was for?

A. No, sir, not without, you know, trying to
go back and see if I can find it -- find out what
it was.

Q. As you sit here today, any idea
whatsoever?

A. No.

Q. All right, sir.
Now, the -- when you do estate planning
documents for clients, I assume that you also ask

them about life insurance?

A. Generally, we would ask them about --
Q. As part of your due diligence; is that
correct?

WWW . USLEGALSUPPORT . COM
1-888-311-4240




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

84

A. Yes, we would generally ask them about
life insurance. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. And when you did your estate
planning for Simon Bernstein and Shirley Bernstein
in 2008, I assume then you asked them about life
insurance; is that correct?

A. I would presume that we did.

Q. Okay. And are you aware that there's
presently pending in Chicago litigation concerning
a life insurance trust?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And are you aware that the litigation

makes reference to a lost life insurance trust

instrument?

A. Yes. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. Have you ever seen it -- or a copy
of it?

A. No, sir.

Q. Ever?

A. No, sir.

Q. All right. Do you know if Shirley
Bernstein was ever a trustee of that document that
you've never seen?

A. It's my understanding but -- at some point

that she was, but I -- I could not tell you for
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sure.

Q. All right. And do you know who would be
the alleged trustee of the alleged trust is today?

A. I believe that -- that it is Ted
Bernstein.

Q. Okay. And --

A. Now, you --

Q. And what's the basis of your belief that
Ted Bernstein is the trustee of the trust that you
have never seen?

A. Just, you know, information related to us,
either from Pam Simon, or her husband, or Ted
Bernstein, or the insurance companies.

Q. So —-

A. And you understand -- you understand that

the policy itself was owned by Simon Bernstein.

Q. Yes.

A. The alleged trust was only the alleged
beneficiary.

Q. Okay. Now, I'm not an expert in this

area, but if Simon Bernstein was the owner of the
trust --

A. Owner of the policy, sir.

Q. I mean -- of the policy -- would that make

that a potential asset of the estate if the
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beneficiary can't be located?

A. You're -- you're mixing -- you're mixing
ownership and beneficiary.

Q. Right.

A. The fact that he was an owner only means
that, at least for federal estate tax purposes, the
life insurance proceeds would be includable as part
of his federal gross estate.

Q. Okay. Now, other than what Pam might have
told you or Pam's husband, do you have any other
reason why you say you believe that Mr. Ted
Bernstein is currently the successor trustee?

A. My recollection -- and, again, this 1is
without the benefit of looking at documents -- at
one point in time the -- Simon and Shirley

Bernstein were being represented by the Proskauer

firm in Boca. And Al Gortz, in that firm --
G-o-r-t-z -- was doing some legal work for them;
and I believe he prepared -- it may be a 2000

trust; I don't remember precisely.

He had prepared a new life -- irrevocable
life insurance trust, I believe. And I think -- I
think my understanding is -- and I could be wrong
-— was that he was —-- he had prepared that to have

Simon transfer the ownership of the policy into
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this trust so as to keep it out of his estate for
estate tax purposes.

I don't know that to be 100 percent. You
know, that's just what my understandings are. And
I don't have specific knowledge. But that would --
would make some sense and —--

Q. To your knowledge, that was never done;
correct?

A. That was never done as far as I know. And
we —-—

Q. Now, did your law partner, Mr. Spallina,
represent that, in fact, he was the cotrustee -- I
mean, successor trustee of that trust at one point?

A. I —-— I find that -- I can't -- I saw some
document somewhere in all of the minutia of
paperwork that has occurred in the last six months
here where supposedly he signed something as a
Lrustee.

I don't think he ever represented himself
to anybody really as being a trustee of a trust
that was to receive the proceeds of that $1.6
million policy.

Q. Well, take a look at Exhibit 14, if you
would.

A. Yeah. No. I said there is a document
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floating around; and I didn't know what -- what
documents you -- I hadn't seen these in advance, so

I wasn't sure.

Q. Okay .

A. Okay. I'm looking at 14 now.

Q. Yeah. 1It's a composite exhibit?
A. Right.

Q. And it's a letter dated under your
letterhead of Tescher & Spallina dated December 6,
2012.

Do you see that?

A. Yes.

Q. And it's directed to the claims department
of Heritage Union Life Insurance Company; is that
correct?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. He states that he wants -- under the fifth
bullet point -- the proceeds from the policy
released so that, quote, "We can make distributions
amongst the five Bernstein children," unquote.

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. Have you ever seen the Heritage
policy itself?

A. I'm not a hundred percent certain that I
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have.

Q. Do you know if it exists?

A. I have no direct knowledge. I presume it
exists. Somebody paid 1.6 million into the
registry of the court. So there's some life

insurance policy that existed.

Q. Well, maybe they should have paid 2.6

million.
A. Well...
Q. Has a request ever been made, to your

knowledge -- either on behalf of the state or

otherwise -- to get a copy of the policy?
A. I'm not aware.
Q. Did you and Mr. Spallina have discussions

at or about the time that this letter dated
December 6, 2012, marked as Exhibit 14 was written
about under what authority Mr. Spallina made the
demands that the proceeds should be paid to the
five Bernstein children?

A. It doesn't really read like a demand.
But, you know, if you want to characterize it that
Way...

I'm seeing this letter for the first time.
Q. Did you have discussions with Mr. Spallina

concerning the request made by him that he would
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like the distributions amongst the five Bernstein
children?

A. Well, my conversations with Robert
Spallina included relating conversations he had had
with Simon Bernstein regarding the policy and the
overall plan that Simon Bernstein wished to have
occur upon his demise.

Q. Are there emails between Mr. Bernstein --
Simon -- and your office concerning any expressions
of intent about the distribution of insurance

proceeds upon his demise?

A. I'm not certain. Again, we provided all
of that documentation to everybody. There may have
been notes. There may have been file notes.

MR. ROSE: For the record, Peter, before
you ask your next question -- and I hate to break
your momentum -- but it's 4:30 p.m.

There are a number of other people that
might have questions. And you are, in my view,
taking discovery in a case that you're not involved
in that Mr. Stansbury has counsel, and is
representing, as administrator ad litem, the
interests of the estate in unrelated litigation;
and I think this is far afield of the issues we

have Friday. And I think you're being a little
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unfair to the other participants.

MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: Perfectly fine.
This is Eliot Bernstein; and it's relevant to the
matters at hand as to the qualifications of Ted and
the qualifications of Mr. Tescher.

Q. Did Mr. Spallina, to your knowledge, have
the consent of Mr. Eliot Bernstein to request that
the distributions of the life insurance policy be
made to him instead of the estate?

A. I don't know.

Q. Okay. Do you recall that there were two
other life insurance policies that were, in fact,
paid to the Simon Bernstein estate?

A. Yes, I believe so. I don't recall. They
were relatively modest policies, if I'm not
mistaken.

Q. Would you agree with me that, if the lost
trust instrument cannot be established, that the
proceeds of the insurance policy would be then
payable to the estate of Simon Bernstein?

MR. ROSE: Objection. Calls for a legal
conclusion. Beyond the witness's knowledge, scope,
information. Irrelevant. Immaterial. And
improper question for the purposes of this

deposition.
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MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: Are you representing
Don Tescher?

MR. ROSE: No. He's representing Ted
Bernstein.

MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: Are you putting that
objection on for Ted or...

MR. FEAMAN: Don Tescher is represented
by --

THE WITNESS: Irwin Block.

MR. FEAMAN: -- Mr. Irwin Block, a very
well-respected attorney here in Palm Beach County.

MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: Okay. Is he making
the objections for Mr. Tescher?

MR. ROSE: No. He's making the objections
on behalf of Mr. Ted Bernstein, which he has the
right to do.

Q. Okay. So you can answer.
A. Could you repeat the question, please?
I'm sorry.

MR. FEAMAN: Sure. I would ask the court
reporter to read it back.

THE WITNESS: Sure.

(Question read: Question: "Would you

agree with me that, if the lost trust

instrument cannot be established, that the

WWW . USLEGALSUPPORT . COM
1-888-311-4240




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

93

proceeds of the insurance policy would be

then payable to the estate of Simon

Bernstein?")
A. I think it may depend upon the terms and
conditions contained in the insurance policy. So

can't say absolutely that that would be the case.
Q. Okay. But it seems nobody can find the
insurance policy. So in a default provision,

wouldn't it, in fact, then go to the estate --

A. I —-

Q. -- the -- Bernstein as the owner of the
policy?

A I - I --

MR. ROSE: Objection to the form. Calls
for a legal conclusion. Beyond the scope of the
witness's knowledge.

A. I don't have an answer.

Q. All right. Well, as the copersonal
representative, what effort did you take to
ascertain whether the proceeds of this policy
should, in fact, be payable to the estate?

A. Well, the first -- what we attempted to
first do was to go into court in Palm Beach County
and have a declaratory action to establish a lost

trust and appoint a successor trustee, which is a

I
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-- you know, not an uncommon proceeding.

We, in fact, had drafted a pleading, which
is your Exhibit 12.

The family, for whatever reasons -- and
I'm not certain what all the reasons were --
decided that they wanted to remove the action to
Federal District Court in Illinois. So the matter
was removed to federal district court in Illinois.

Q. And --

A. We are not a party any longer in that
proceeding and have not been involved in that for
quite some time.

Q. Well as a PR, did you think you had any
fiduciary obligations to creditors -- interested
persons of the estate to marshall the assets of the
estate for the benefit of not only the
beneficiaries but the creditors too?

A. The best information that was given to us
that we acted upon was to attempt to see if the '95
trust could either be located or reestablished
through -- through appropriate testimony.

Q. All right. Let's get back, if we could,
to Exhibit 14, and then we'll get to my Exhibit 12.

A. Okay. I've got 14. Okay.

Q. So you can identify the letter written by
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Mr. Spallina; is that correct?

A. It is a letter that appears to have been
written by Mr. Spallina.

Q. Now, let me draw your attention to the
claimant's statement that is on page 2 of Exhibit
14 --

A. Yes, sir.

-- do you see that?
Do you know who filled that out?

A. It looks to me like it is Mr. Spallina's
signature for sure.

Q. Pardon me-?

A. It looks to me like it is Mr. Spallina's

signature for sure; that would be his signature.

Q. Okay.

A. And apparently he wrote "Personal rep and
trustee."

Q. Did you and Mr. Spallina have discussion

about this document at any time?

A. No, sir.

Q. Is it your understanding that he's
representing himself to be the trustee of the lost
insurance trust?

A. No. It's my understanding that he was

representing himself to be the trustee of Simon's
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trust and also personal representative of Simon's
estate.

Q. Well, let's go to the next page, which is
Bates stamped No. JCK 001273.

A. Yeah, I see it.

Q. Do you see that where it says "Name of
Trust: Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance
Trust," dated 6/1/95. And it looks like "Printed
name of trustee: Robert Spallina."

Do you see that?

A. I see that.

Q. Did you have any discussions with Mr.
Spallina concerning his authority to represent
himself to the insurance company as the trustee of
the 1995 revocable trust?

A. No, sir. I'm seeing this document
probably for the first time.

Q. Okay .

MR. ROSE: Object to the form of the last

one.
Q. And then you mentioned the action that was
then filed --
A. I didn't say it was filed. I said it was

contemplated to be filed.

Q. No, in Illinois?
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A. Oh. I'm sorry. Go ahead.

Q. Okay. Now, there -- are you aware that
the trustee of the lost trust -- that Mr. Ted
Bernstein represents himself as the successor
trustee?

Are you aware of that?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. Do you know by what authority Mr.
Bernstein represented himself as successor trustee?

A. No.

Q. Are you aware that there were discussions
and email traffic between your office and counsel
in Chicago concerning whether an action should be
filed in Palm Beach County -- as you mentioned --
or in Illinois?

A. I believe there was correspondence back
and forth; and there were also telephone
discussions.

Q. Are you aware that in that correspondence
Mr. Spallina represented to counsel in Chicago that
the life insurance proceeds were, in fact, an asset
of the Simon Bernstein estate; therefore, it should
be litigated in Palm Beach County?

MR. ROSE: Object to the form.

A. I don't recall.
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Q. All right. And now, take a look at

Exhibit 12.
A. Yes, sir.
Q. That's a draft of a complaint; correct?
A. Yes.
Q. Was that prepared in your office?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Okay. And who prepared it?
A. I believe that I did.

Q. And this is a draft of a complaint
prepared by you entitled "Declaratory Action to
Establish a Lost Trust and Appoint a Successor
Trustee'"; correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You prepared that on behalf of Ted

Bernstein; is that correct?

A. "Comes now Ted Bernstein, son of Simon
Bernstein"; that's correct.
Q. Okay. So -- now, then you said earlier in

your testimony that the family -- quote, "the

family," close quote -- decided that it should be

-- this action should be filed in Chicago?

Was Eliot Bernstein a member of the family

that you referred to?

A. Eliot Bernstein is a member of the family.
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As to whether Eliot Bernstein's opinion was
elicited, I would seriously doubt.

Q. Okay. And, in fact, Eliot Bernstein is
mentioned in paragraph 5 as one of the five
surviving children of Simon Bernstein.

A. That is —-- that is correct.

Q. Okay. And how did the decision come about
that the action instead was filed in Chicago -- in
Illinois state court, rather than in the county
where the decedent resided, in Palm Beach County;
if you know?

A. I don't know.

Q. And who would be most knowledgeable about
that?

MR. ROSE: Objection. Relevance.
Materiality. 1It's 4:42. You're trying the wrong
case. The judge has already determined that Mr.
Stansbury, at his own expense, can pursue the
litigation in Illinois. And you're not supposed to
use this deposition for discovery in that case.
And, otherwise, everything you're asking is
irrelevant and wasting the time of everyone,
including the people that haven't yet had a chance
to ask questions.

MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: Okay. This 1is Eliot
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Bernstein. I'll put back on the record that it's
very relevant to the qualifications of Mr. Tescher
to act in any capacity on this.

THE WITNESS: I'm not being asked to act
in any capacity, Mr. Bernstein.

MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: Are you objecting on
behalf of Ted or on behalf of --

Q. I mean, I'm laying a predicate here,
because my next question is, in recommending Ted
Bernstein as successor personal representative to
the estate of Simon Bernstein, what are you
recommending what action Ted Bernstein takes -- if
he's appointed by the court as successor personal
representative -- to protect the estate in trying
to obtain the assets -- excuse me -- the proceeds

of this insurance policy?

A. I'm not your lawyer anymore.

Q. Well, you were never my lawyer.

A. Well, I'm no longer Ted Bernstein's lawyer
either.

Q. And would you expect him to take action to

protect the estate?
MR. ROSE: Objection to the form in light
of Judge Colin's prior ruling.

I think you understand it's an improper
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question, Peter, which is why you keep asking it.
MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: I don't think it's
improper at all.

A. I am —-

Q. You are recommending, sir, Mr. Ted
Bernstein, the PR, you're the previous PR. And
since you're in the business of recommending, would
you recommend to Ted Bernstein as successor
personal representative to take assets -- to take
steps necessary to try to get these insurance
proceeds into the estate of Simon Bernstein, since
the PR has a fiduciary obligation to all interested
persons of an estate?

A. I think that Mr. Bernstein -- Ted
Bernstein -- should do what he should do based upon
his standing as a fiduciary; and if that means not
taking a position -- if that means taking a
position on behalf of the estate, if that means
standing silent and letting the chips fall where
they may, those are decisions that he will have to
make.

Q. And what decision did you make as personal
representative with regard to those estate assets?

A. We felt that they belonged to the '95

trust; that there was enough evidence around that
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the trust, in fact, existed; and that it ought to

be reestablished if it could be.

That was our determination. The family --
Q. Were you aware of the 2000 trust?
A. Yes, we were.

Q. Okay. And is that trust -- can that trust
be found?
A. I think so, if I'm not mistaken.

I'm not 100 percent certain about that,

Peter.
Q. And is that also a life insurance trust?
A. I believe it is, in the sense that it was

going to be the owner and beneficiary of the
policy, I believe.

Q. And the --

A. The reason why -- let me just tell you.

The reason why Si never wanted to put the

ownership out of his control was for the very
reason that he wanted to be able to control where
that policy was ultimately going.

Q. And the two other policies that were paid

to the --
A. Yes, sir.
Q. -- estate --
A. Yes, sir.
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Q. -- were they in a trust or owned by him
personally?

A. Well, they were paid --

Q. Were they placed into a trust?

A. No. They were owned by him personally,

and they were payable to the estate.
Q. Okay. Did Eliot Bernstein ever express to
you his disagreement of -- regarding the estate --

of Simon Bernstein's noninvolvement in the Illinois

action?

A. He might have. I don't recall.

Q You don't recall? And if he might have --

A. He --

Q -- do you recall what you might have said?

MR. BLOCK: I object to the form of that

question.

A. I don't know how to respond to that
question.

Q. Did your office have disagreements with

Chicago counsel in emails about the filing of the
action in Illinois?

A. We -- we did not necessarily totally agree
with what they wanted to do.

Q. And were the -- some of the children of

Mr. Simon Bernstein fearful that the claim of Mr.
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Stansbury would consume the insurance proceeds and,
therefore, wanted to keep those insurance proceeds
that are the subject of the litigation in Illinois
out of the estate at all costs?

MR. BLOCK: Peter, what does that have to
do with the issue before the court? This is Block.
You know, I'm trying to be quiet, but I think

you're really going far afield here.

MR. FEAMAN: Okay. Fair -- fair comment.
Q. Let me ask one or two more questions: Did
Ted Bernstein express to you -- either email or

orally while you were personal representative --
his desire to keep the insurance proceeds out of
the estate of Simon Bernstein so that it would not
be subject to the claim of Mr. Stansbury as a
creditor?

A. I don't recall. I mean, obviously we all
knew that, if the proceeds were payable to the
estate —-

MR. BLOCK: Don, did you hear my objection
on privilege?

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.

MR. BLOCK: 1If you want to answer it,
that's up to you.

MR. FEAMAN: Yeah. 1I'm asking that
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question, Irwin, in his capacity as personal
representative.

MR. BLOCK: Does that mean he wasn't a
lawyer?

MR. FEAMAN: Well, when you're a personal
representative --

MR. BLOCK: Go ahead, Peter.

A. I will answer it this way: We were all
obviously aware -- everybody was aware that if the
proceeds came into the estate they would be exposed
to a successful prosecution of Mr. Stansbury's
lawsuit if he got a judgment.

Q. Did you talk to Mr. Stansbury at any time
about his claim -- or your attorney, Mr. Manceri?

A. I don't recall ever talking to Mr.
Stansbury about it.

MR. FEAMAN: Okay. All right. I think
that's all I have at this point.

THE WITNESS: Thank you, Peter.

MR. ROSE: Does anybody else wish to ask
questions of Mr. Tescher?

MR. MORRISSEY: John Morrissey. I have no
questions.

MR. ROSE: Anybody else?

MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: This is Eliot
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE
FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN
AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY,
FLORIDA.

CASE NO. 502012CP004331XXXSB
CP - Probate ’

IN RE:

ESTATE QOF SIMON L. BERNSTEIN,

/

AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD R, TESCHER
STATE OF FLORIDA )
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH | %

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared Donald R. Tescher, upon
being duly swomn, deposes and says;

I I'am over the age of eighteen years, sui juris, and have personal knowledge of the
facts set forth herein.

2. Tescher & Spallina, P.A. ("Firm") were counsel to Shirley Bernstein and Simon L.
Bernstein while they were aﬁve. They had five children borne of their long-time marriage, Ted
Bernstein, Pamela Simon, Eliot Bemstein, Lisa Friedstein and Jill Iantoni. Simon was the natural
father and Shirley was the natural mother of each of these children. Simon and Shirley also had
ten living grandchildren, each of whom was a direct and natural descendant of one of the children.
Thus, Simon and Shirley had fifteen lineal descendants.

3. After consnltations with Robert L. Spallina and myself or soley with Robert L.
Spallina, a Will and Trust was created for each of Simon and Shitley, as amended. I am aware of

the final estate plan of each, as expressed in their final testamentary documents, specifically;



a. Will of Shirley Bernstein dated May 20, 2008 (Exhibit A);

b. Shirley Bemstein Trust Agreement dated May 20, 2008 (Exhibit B),
-as Amended on November 18, 2008 (Exhibit C);

c. Will of Simon L. Bemnstein dated July 25, 2012 (Exhibit D); and

d. Simon L. Bernstein Amended and Restated Trust Agreement
dated July 25, 2013 (Exhibit E).

4. The attached five documents are the final documents signed by each of Shitley and
Simon, respectively, during their lives. The originals of the Wills were retained in our Firm's safe
deposit box (or "vault™) until the times of their deaths.

5. It is my understénding and belief that, during their lifetimes, neither Shirley nor
Simon shared copies of their testamentary documents with their children. None of the five
children were involved in'the estate planning process, nor did any of them attend any meetings
with myself as counsel.

6. When Shirley died on December 8, 2010, her testamentary documents provided
that Simon be given any tangible persanal property in her name, other then anything disposed of in
a separate written memorandum. The residue of her estate was devised to the Shirley Trust. After
her death, the beneficiary of the Shirley Trust was Simon during his life, with the assets disposed
of after his death through a limited power of appointment, empowéring Simon to transfer the assets
to or for the benefit of one of more of their lineal descendants and their spouses.!

7. Our Firm prepared the July 2012 Amended and Restated Trust Apreement and the

Will for Simon Bemstein. Those ate the final documents that our Firm prepared and the final

documents I am aware of Simon having signed prior to his death in September, 2013. Ow Firm

t There is an alternate disposition of the assets upon the death of Simon if he did not

exercise his power of appointment, but in my view that is irrelevant.



retained the originals of those documents in our safe deposit box until Simon's death. There are
no later executed testamentary documents for Simon L. Bernstein.

8. Simon exercised his limited power of appointment in Article II of the July 2012
Will, which specifically references Shirléy's Trust and the power given to him under subparagraph
E.1 of Article II of Shirley’s Trust. Pursvant to that power of appointment, Simon directed
Shirley's Trustee to divide the remaining trust assets into equal shares for his then living
grandchildren to be added to trusts established fo1j the ten grandchildren under Simon’s Trust.
Because Simon exercised his power of appointment, the assets in the Shirley Trust were
distributed according to Simon's direction, and did not pass under the Shirley Trust to Shirley's
default beneficiaries.

9. Under these testamentary documents, neither Ted, Pam, Eliot, Lisa or Jill is a
beneficiary of any of their Trusts and Estates. With the sole exception of possibly some specific
items of tangible personal property not relevant to the estate and trust administration, Shirley and
Simon effectively disinherited all five of their children, and none of them take anything from either
of their Trusts or Wills.

10.  While he was alive, Simon was the Personal Representative of the Estate of Shirley
Bernstein and was the Trustee of the Shirley Bernstein Trust. After Simon’s death, under the
terms of the Will and Trust, Ted S. Bernstein became the Successor Personal Representative and
Successor Trustee. Prior to thattime, Ted had not been involved in the administration of Shirley's
Estate or Trust. . As far as ] am aware, Ted was not aware that he would be the successor to Simon

until afier Simon's death,



11.  Upon Ted assuming kis fiduciary role as Successor Personal Representative and
Successor Trustee, Ted retained our Firm to represent him as a fiduciary. From that point in time
until our withdrawal from representing Ted, which was approved by the Coutt in February 2014,
Ted was a responsive client who listened to and followed my advice. At no time did Ted take any
action which I advised him would be improper or a breach of his fiduciary duty. In my view, atall
times Ted acted as a fiduciary based upon the facts and circumstances and information available to
' him at that time. -

12 At some point after Simon died, a significant asset of Shirley's Trust (a
condominium) was sold, and the decision was made to make a partial interim distribution to all of
the beneficiaries of the Shirley Trust. In connection with the decision to make an interim
distrdbution, I participated in consulting with Ted and his siblings (other than Eliot) as his counsel.
I engaged in a call with various members of the family (other than Eliof). Among those children
who participated in the phone call, there was a general consensus that it was appropriate to make
an interim partial distribution. I assisted in the mechanics of making these distributions,
including providing tax identification numbers and instructions to open a bank account for each of
the grandchildren’s trusts.

13.  Atnotime did I advise Ted that it would be a violation of his fiduciary duty to make
the interim distribution to the trusts for the ten living grandchildren of Simon. 1 did not advise
Ted at any time that there was any question concerning the proper beneficiaries of the Trust, nor |
was Ted awarve of any issue concerning the effectiveness of the exercise of the power of
appointment until I advised him and others of that féct in mid-January, 2014. -

14, Inmy view, during the time I was counsel for Ted as fidueiary, it is my opinion that
he fulfilled his fiduciary duties and acted in a reasonable and appropriate maﬁner. I am aware of

4



no facts that would give a court cause to be concerned about whether Ted could continue to fulfill
his fiduciary duty in those capacities, or serve as Personal Representative of Simon's Estate.

15.  Upon my resignatioﬁ as Trustee of the Simon Trust, I concluded that the
appointment of Ted as Successor Trustee would be consistent with Simon's wishes and would be
in the best interest of the family. Under the terms of Simon's Trust, he gave the power to appoint
a successor trustee to the last resigning trustee. In this case, for a variety of reasons I concluded
that Ted was the logical choice for Successot Trustee, inclnding the following: Ted's knowledge of
the facts and of these estate matters; his current service in similar capacities in Shirley's Trust and
Estate; his knowledge of the pending litigation with a creditor, William Stansbury; the fact that he
is not a beneficiary of or seekmg monies from any of the Trusts or Estates; and the fact that I
believe him to be a reasonable and competent business person capable of folfilling his fiduciary
duties. Accordingly, after Robert Spallina resigned, 1 exercised the power given to me by Simon
to appoiﬁi Ted 8. Bernstein as Successor Trustee of the Simon Bermstein Trust.

16.  The last person Simon would want to serve in any fiduciary capacity is Eliot.

Simon did not want Eliot to have any role in any of these matters,




FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

DONALD R. TESCHER \

Sworn to and subscribed before me this __L_‘\_ day of fryneh , 2014,by Donald R. Tescher,
who is personally known to me and who did take an oath,
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1, SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN, of Palm Beach County, Florida, hereby revoke all my prior Wills
and Codicils and make this Will. My spouse is SIMON L. BERNSTEIN ("SIMON"). My children are
TED 8. BERNSTEIN ("TED"), PAMELA B, SIMON, ELIOT BERNSTEIN, JILL IANTONI and LISA

S. FRIEDSTEIN.

ARTICLE L. TANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY

1 give such items of my tangible personal property to such persons as I may designate in a
separate written memorandum prepared for this purpose. I give to SIMON, if SIMON survives me, my -
petsonal effects, jewelry, collections, household furnishings and equipment, automobiles and all other
non-business tangible personal property other than cash, not effectively disposed of by such
memorandum, and if SIMON does not survive me, I give this property to my children who survive me,
divided among them as they agree, or if they fail to agree, divided among them by my Personal
Representatives in as nearly equal shares as practical, and if neither SIMON nor any child of mine
survives me, this property shall pass with the residue of my estate.

ARTICLE II. RESIDENCES

I give to SIMON, if SIMON survives me, my entire interest in any real property used by us as
apermanent or seasonal residence, subject to any mortgage or other lien. If SIMON does not survive me,
such interest shall pass with the residue of my estate,

ARTICLE III. RESIDUE OF MY ESTATE

I give all the residue of my estate to the Trustee then serving under my revocable Trust
Agreement dated today, as may be amended and restated from time to time (the "Existing Trust"), as
Trustee without bond, but I do not exercise any powers of appointment held by me except as provided

- in the later paragraph titled "Death Costs." The residue shall be added to and become a part.of the
Existing Trust, and shall be held under the provisions of said Agreement in effect at my death, or if this
is not permitted by applicable faw or the Existing Trust is not then in existence, under the provisions of
said Agreement as existing today. If necessary to give effect to this gift, but not otherwise, said
Agreement as existing today s incorporated herein by reference.
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ARTICLE IV. PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVES

1, Appointment and Bond. I appoint SIMON and TED, one at a time and successively in
that order, as my Personal Representative (the "fiduciary"). Each fiduciary shall serve without bond and
have all of the powers, privileges and immunities granted to my fiduciary by this Will or by.law,
provided, however, that my fiduciary shall exercise all powers in a fiduciary capacity.

2, Powers of Personal Representatives. My fiduciary may exercise its powers without

court approval. No one dealing with my fiduciary need inquire into its authority or its application of
property. My fiduciary shzall have the following powers:

a. Investments. To sell or exchange at public or private sale and on credit or
otherwise, with or without security, and to lease for any term or perpetually, any property, real and

- personal, at any time forming a part of my probate estate (the "estafe™); to grant and exercise options to

buy or sell; to invest or reinvest in real or personal property of every kind, description and location; and
to receive and retain any such property whether originally a part of the estate, or subsequently acquired,
even if a fiduciary is personally interested in such property, and without liability for any decline in the
value thereof: all without limitation by any statutes or judicial decisions, whenever enacted.or
announced, regulating investments or requiring diversification of investments,

b. Distributions or Divisions. To distribute directly to any beneficiary who is then
entitled to distribution under the Existing Trust; to make any division or distribution pro rata or non-pro
rata, in cash or in kind; and to allocate undivided interests in property and dissimilar property (without
regard to its tax basis) to different shares, and to make any distribution to a minor or any other
incapacitated person directly to such person, to his or her legal representative, to any person responsible
for or assuming his or her care, or in the case of a minor to an adult person or an eligible institution
(including a fiduciary) selected by my fiduciary as custodian for such minor under the Uniform Transfers
to Minors Act or similar provision of law. The receipt of such payee is a complete release to the

fiduciary.

c. Management. To manage, develop, imptove, partition or change the character
of or abandon an asset or interest in property at any time; and to make ordinary and extraordinary
repairs, replacements, alterations and improvements, structural or otherwise,

d. Borrowing, To borrow money from anyone on commercially reasonable terms,
including a fiduciary, beneficiaries and other persons who may have a direct or indirect interest in the
estate; and to mortgage, margin, encumber and pledge real and personal property of the estate as security
for the payment thereof, without incutring any personal liability thereon and to do so for a ferm within
orextending beyond the terms of the estate and to renew, modify or extend existing borrowing on similar
or different terms and with the same or different security without incurring any personal liability; and
such borrowing from my fiduciary may be with or without interest, and may be secured with a lien on
the estate assets or any beneficiary's interest in said assets,
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e. Lending. To extend, modify or waive the terms of any obligation, bond or
mortgage at any time forming a part of the estate and to foreclose any such mortgage; accept a
conveyance of encumbered property, and take title to the property securmg it by deed in lieu of
foreclosure or otherwise and to satisfy or not satisfy the indebtedness securing said property; to protect
or redeem any such property from forfeiture for nonpayment of taxes or other lien; generally, to exercise
as to such bond, obligation or mottgage all powers that an absolute owner might exercise; and to loan
funds to beneficiaries at commercially reasonable rates, terms and conditions.

f. Abandonment of Property. To abandon any property or asset when it is valueless
or so encumbered or in such condition that it is of no benefit to the estate, To abstain from the payment
of taxes, liens, rents, assessments, or repairs on such property and/or permit such property to be lost by
tax sale, foreclosure or other proceeding or by conveyance for nominal or no consideration to anyone .
including a charity or by escheat to a state; all without personal liability incurred therefor.

g Real Property Matters. To subdivide, develop or partition real estate; to dedicate
the same to public use; to make or obtain the Jocation of any p{ats to adjust boundaries; to adjust

. differences in valuations on exchange or partition by giving or receiving consideration; and, to grant

easements with or without consideration as they may determine; and to demolish any building,
structures, walls and improvements, or to erect new buildings, structures, walls and 1mprovemcnts and

to insure agamst fire and other risks.

h. Claims. To enforce, compromise, adjust, arbitrate, release or otherwise settle or
pay any claims or demands by or against the estate.

i. Business Entities. To deal with any business entity or enterprise even if a
fiduciary is or may be a fiduciary of or own interests in said business entity or enterprise, whether
operated in the form of a corporation, partnership, business trust, limited liability company, joint venture,
sole proprietorship, or other form (all of which business entities and enterprises are referred to herein
as "Business Entities"). ] vest the fiduciary with the following powers and authority in regard to

Business Entities:

. To retain and continue to operate a Business Entity for such period as the
fiducmry deems advnsable,

ii. To control, direct and manage the Business Entities. In this connection, the
fiduciary, in its sole discretion, shall determine the manner and extent of its active participation in the
operation and may delegate all or any part of its power to supervise and operate to such person or
persons as the fiduciary may select, including any associate, partner, officer or employee ofthe Business

Entity;

iti. To hire and discharge officers and empjoyees, fix their compensation and
define their duties; and similarly to employ, compensate and discharge agents, attorneys, consultants,
accountants, and such other representatives as the fiducjary may deem appropriate; including the right
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practice;

to employ any beneficiary or fiduciary in any of the foregoing capacities;

iv. To invest funds in the Business Entities, to pledge other assets of the estate
or a trust as security for loans made to the Business Entities, and to lend funds fiom my estate or a trust

to the Business Entities;

v. To organize one or more Business Entities under the laws of this or any other
state or country and to transfer thereto all or any part of the Business Entities or other property of my
estate or a trust, and to receive in exchange such stocks, bonds, partnership and member interests, and
such other securities or interests as the fiduciary may deem advisable;

vi. To treat Business Entities as separate from my estate or & trust. In a
fiduciary's accounting to any beneficiary, the fiduciary shall only be required to report the earnings and
condition of the Business Entities in accordance with standard business accounting practice;

vii, Toretain in Business Entities such net earnings t"orworking c_a’i:ital and other
purposes of the Business Entities as the fiduciary may deem advisable in conformity with sound business

viii. To sell or liquidate all or any part of the Business Entities at such time and
price and upon such terms and conditions (including credit) as the fiduciary may determine. My
fiduciary is specifically authorised and empowered to make such sale to any person, including any
partner, officer, or employee of the Business Entities, a fiduciary, or to any beneficiary; and

ix. To guaranty the obligations of the Business Entities, or pledge assets of the
estate or a trust to secure such a guaranty.

je Life Insurance. With respect to any life insurance policies constituting an asset
of the estate to pay premiums; to apply dividends in reduction of such premiums; to borrow against the
cash values thereof; to convert such policies into other forms of insurance including paid-up insurance;
to exercise any settlement options provided in any such policies; to receive the proceeds of any policy
upon its maturity and to administer such proceeds as a part of the principal of the estate or trust; and in
general, to exercise all other options, benefits, rights and privileges under such policies; provided,
however, no fiduciary other than a sole fiduciary may exercise any incidents of ownership with respect
to policies of insurance insuring the fiduciary's own life.

k. Reimbursement. To reimburse itself from the estate for all reasonable expenses
incurred in the administration thereof.

1

IR Yoting. To vote and give proxies, with power of substitution to vote, stocks,
bonds and other securities, or not to vote a secunty

m. Ancillary Administration. To appoirit or nominate, and replace with or without
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cause, any persons or corporations, including itself, as ancillary administrators to administer property
in other jurisdictions, with the same powers, privileges and immunities as my ﬁduclary and without

bond.

n. Tax Elections. To file tax returns, and to exercise all tax-related elections and
options at their discretion, without compensating adjustments or reimbursements between any accounts

or any beneficiaries.

3. Survivorship. A beneficiary is not deemed to survive me unless he or she survives me
by five days. '

4, . Death Costs. My fiduciary shall pay (a) from the residuary estate my debts which are
allowed as claims against my estate, (b) from the residuary estate my funeral expenses without regard
to legal limitations, (¢) from the residuary estate the expenses of administering my estate and (d) from
the residuary estate other than the portion of the residuary estate qualifying for the marital deduction
under the laws then in effect, without apportionment, all estate, inheritance and sur:cessmn taxes
(excluding generation-skipping taxes other than with respect to direct skips), and interest and penalties
thereon, due because of my death and attributable to all property whether passing under this Will or
otherwise and not required by the terms of the Existing Trust to be paid out of said trust. However, such
taxes, penalties and interest payable out of my residuary estate shal] not include taxes, penalties and
interest attributable to (i) property over which I have a8 power of appointment granted to me by another
person, (ii) qualified terminable interest property held in a trust of which I was the income beneficiary
at the time of my death (other than qualified terminable interest property held in a teust for which an
election was made under Code Section 2652(a)(3)), and (iii) life insurance proceeds on policies insuring
my life which proceeds are not payable to my probate estate. My fiduciary shall not be reimbursed for
any such payment from any person or property. However, my fiduciary in its discretion may direct that
part or all of said death costs shall be paid by my Trustee as provided in the Existing Trust, and shall
give such direction to the extent necessary so that the gifts made in Articles ] and 11 of this Will and the
gifts made in any codicil hereto shall not be reduced by said death costs.

5. Reimbursement for Debts and Expenses. My fiduciary shall promptly reimburse my

friends and members of my family who have disbursed their own funds for the payment of any debts,
funeral expenses or costs of administration of my estate.

6. Expenses of Handling Tangible Personal Property. All expenses incurred by my

ﬁduciary during the settlement of my estate in appraising, storing, packing, shipping, delivering or
insuring an article of tangible personal property passing under this Will shall be charged as an expense

of administering my estate.

7. Dealing with Estate. Each fiduciary may act under this Will even if interested in my
estate in an individual capacity, as a fiduciary of another estate or trust (including any trust identified
in this Will or created under the Existing Trust) or in any other capacity. Each ﬁducxary may in good
faith buy from, sell to, lend funds to or otherwise deal with my estate.
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8. Spouse. The term "spouse” herein means, as to a designated individual, the person to
whom that individual is from time to time married. ,

9. Other Beneficiary Designations. Except as otherwise explicitly and with particularity
provided herein, (2) no provision of this Will shall revoke or modify any beneficiary designation of mine
made by me and not revoked by me prior to my death under any individual retirement account, other
retirement plan or account, or annuity or insurance contract, (b) I hereby reaffirm any such beneficiary
designation such that any assets held in such account, plan, or contract shall pass in accordance with
such designation, and {(c) regardless of anything herein to the contrary, any of such assets which would
otherwise pass pursuant to this Will due to the beneficiary designation not having met the requirements
for a valid testamentary disposition under applicable law or otherwise shall be paid as a gift made
hereunder to the persons and in the manner provided in such designation which is incorporated herein

by this reference.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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I have published and signed this instrument as my Will at Boca Raton, Florida, on the 20  day of

May , 2008.

/s/ Shirley Bermstein
SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN

This instrument, consisting of this page numbered 7 and the preceding typewritten pages, was
signed, sealed, published and declared by the Testatrix to be the Testatrix's Will in our presence, and at
the Testatrix's request and in the Testatrix's presence, and in the presence of each other, we have
subscribed our names as witnesses at Boca Raton, Florida on this day of s

2008.

/s/ Robert L. Spallina residingat__ 7387 Wisteria Ave

. [Witness Sigrature] [Witness Address} £
i
Parkland, FL 33076 )
[Witness Address]
/s/ Diana Banks residing at 23415 Boca Trace Dr.
[Witness Sigraturc] {Witress Address)
Boca Raton, FL 33433
[Witnexs Address)
LASTWILL
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State Of Fiorida
38.

County Of Palm Beach
I, SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN, declare to the officer taking my acknowledgment of this instrument,
and to the subscribing witnesses, that I signed this instrument as my will.

__}g} -Shirley Bernstein
SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN, Testatrix

We, Robert L. Spallina | and__ Diana Banks
have been sworn by the officer signing below, and declare to that officer on our oaths that the Testatrlx
declared the instrument to be the Testatrix's will and signed it in our presence and that we each signed
the instrument as a witness in the presence of the Testatrix and of each other.

;

P

e/ Re A

Witness '

/s/ Diana Banks
Witness

. Acknowledged and subscribed before me, by the Testatrix, SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN, who is
personally known to me orwho has produced (state type
of identification) as identification, and sworn to and subscribed before me by the witnesses,

Robert L. Spallina , who is personally known to me or who has
produced (state fype of identification) as identification,
and _ Disna Banks , who is personally known to me or who has
produced (state type of identification) as identification,
and subscribed by me in the presence of SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN and the subscribing witnesses, all on

this 20 dayof May , 2008.

Kimberly Moran
Commission # DD766470 )
EXPIIES' APR 28, 2012 /S/ K:Lmberly Moran

Signatore ~ Notary Publfc-State of Florida

[Seal with Commission Expiration Date]

Print, type or stamp naw:e of Notery Public

FAWPDAT AVIAB eemstcin, Shirlcy & Simon\2008 Estsic Flanning\WIIl of Shirley Remstcinwpd {08 15:36:41 5 1)
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SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN

TRUST AGREEMENT

This Trust Agreement is dated this~? &  day of %ﬂ "{ , 2008, and is between

SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN, of Palm Beach County, Florida referred to ijf the first person, as settlor, and
SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN, of Palm Beach County, and SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN's successors, as trustee
(referred to as the " Trustee," which term more particularly refers to all individuals and entities serving
as trustee of a trust created hereunder during the time of such service, whether alone or as co-trustees,
and whether originally serving or as a successor trustee). Said Trustee acknowledges receipt of the
property described in the Attachment to this Agreement, and agrees to hold said property and all
additions, in trust, as provided in this Agreement.

ARTICLE L DURING MY LIFE AND UPON MY DEATH

A, Rights Reserved. Ireserve the right (a) to add property to this trust during my life or on
my death, by my Will or otherwise; (b) to withdraw property held hereunder; and (c) by separate written
instrument delivered to the Trustee, to tevoke this Agreement in whole or in part and otherwise modify
or amend this Agreement, However, after my spouse’s death I may not exercise any of said rights with
respect to property added by my spouse upon my spouse's death by my spouse’s Will or otherwise.

B. Payments During My Life. If income producing property is held in the trust during my
life, the Trustee shall pay the net income of the trust to me or as I may direct. However, during any
periods while [ am Disabled, the Trustee shall pay to me or on my behalf such amounts ofthe net income
and principal of the trust as is proper for my Welfare, and also may in its discretion pay to my spouse
such amounts of said net income and principal as is proper for his Welfare. Any income not so paid shall
be added to principal. :

C. Gifts, If I am Disabled, I authotize the Trustee to make gifts from trust property during
my lifetime for estate planning purposes, or to distribute amounts to my legally appointed guardian or
to my attorney-in-fact for those purposes, subject to the following limitations:

1. Recipients, The gifts may be made only to my spouse and my lineal descendants
or to trusts primarily for their benefit, and in aggregate annual amounts to any one such recipient that
do not exceed the exclusion amount provided for under Code Section 2503(b).

2. Trustee Limited When a person eligible to receive gifis is serving as Trustee, .
the aggregate of all gifts to that person during the calendar year allowable under the preceding
subparagraph 1. shall thereafter not exceed the greater of Five Thousand Dollats ($5,000), or five petcent

SHIRLEY HERNSTEIN
TRUST AGREEMENT
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(5%) of the aggregate value of the trust estate. However, gifts completed prior to a recipient's
commencing to serve as Trustee shall not be affected by this limitation.

3. Charitable Pledges, The Trustee may pay any charitable pledges I made while
I was not Disabled (even if not yet due).

D. Upon My Death. Upon my death the Trustee shall collect and add to the trust all
amounts due to the trust under any insurance policy on my life or under any death benefit plan and all
property added to the trust by my Will or otherwise. After paying or providing for the payment from the
augmented trust of all current charges and any amounts payable under the later paragraph captioned
"Death Costs," the Trustee shall hold the trust according to the following provisions.

ARTICLE I1. AFTER MY DEATH

A. Disposition_of Tangible Personal Property. If any non-business tangible personal
property other than cash (including, but not limited to, my personal effects, jewelry, collections,
household furnishings, and equipment, and automobiles) is held in the trust at the time of my death, such
items shall be promptly distributed by the Trustee of the trust to such person or persons, including my
estate, as to the item or items or proportion specified, as I may appoint, and to the extent that any such
items are not disposed of by such appointment, such items shall be disposed of by the Trustee of the trust
in exactly the same manner as such items would have been disposed of under the terms and provisions
of my Will (including any Codicil thereto, or what the Trustee in good faith believes to be such Will and
Codicil) had such items been included in my probate estate. Any such items which are not effectively
disposed of pursuant to the preceding sentence shall pass with the other trust assets.

B. Specific Cash Devise. The Trustee shall set aside in a separate trust the sum of Two
Hundred Thousand ($200,000.00) Dollars for MATTHEW LOGAN, and said separate trust shall be

administered as provided in Subparagraph ILF below, ITMATTHEW LOGAN does not survive me this
devise shall [apse.

C. Marital Deduction Gift. If my spouse survives me:

1. Family Trust. The Trustee shall hold as a separate " Family Trust" (i) all property
of the trust estate as to which a federal estate tax marital deduction would not be allowed if it were
distributed outright to my spouse, and (ji) after giving effect to (i), the largest pecuniary amount which
will not result in or increase any federal or state death tax otherwise payable by reason of my death. In
determining the pecuniary amount the Trustee shail assume that none of this Family Trust qualifies for
a federal estate tax deduction, and shall assume that all of the Marital Trust hereinafter established
(including any part thereof disclaimed by my spouse) qualifies for the federal estate tax marital
deduction. I recognize that the pecuniary amount may be reduced by certain state death taxes and
administration expenses which are not deducted for federal estate tax purposes.
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2. Marital Trust. The balance of the trust remaining after the establishment of the
Family Trust shall be held as a separate "Marital Trust."

3. Disclaimer, Any part of the Marital Trust my spouse disclaims shalf be added
to the Family Trust. My spouse shall not be deemed to have predeceased me for purposes of such
addition. I suggest that my spouse or my spouse's fiduciaries consider an appropriate partial disclaimer
to minimize the death taxes due upon both of our deaths.

If my spouse does not survive me, the entire trust shall be held as the Family Trust without regard to the
provisions of Subparagraph ILB.1 describing or limiting which assets shall be held thereunder.

D. During Spouse's Life. Commencing with the date of my death the Trustee shall,

1. Marita] Trust, Pay to my spouse from the Marital Trust, the net income, and such
amounts of principal as is proper for my spouse's Welfare; and

2. Family Trust, Pay to my spouse from the Family Trust, the net income, and such
amounts of principal as is proper for my spouse's Welfare. I request (but do not require) that no principal
be paid to my spouse from the Family Trust for my spouse's Welfare unless the Marital Trust has been
exhausted by use, consumption, distribution, or otherwise or is not reasonably available.

E. Disposition of Trusts Upon Death of Survivor of My Spouse and Me. Upon the death
of the survivor of my spouse and me,

1. Limited Power. My spouse (if my spouse survives me) may appoint the Marital
Trust and Family Trust (except any part added by disclaimer from the Marital Trust and proceeds 6f E
insurance policies on my spouse's life) to or for the benefit of one or more of iy lmeal descendants and

T 2. Disposition of Balance. Any parts of the Marital Trust and the Family Trust my
spouse does not-or cannot effectively appomt (including #ny additions upon my spouse’s death), or ail
_ofthe Famll Trusti spouse d1d not survwe me, shall be divided among and held in separate Trusts

my chilg Fort (a5 that Srimi 16 defined under this Trust), shall be distributed to the then serving Trustees
of each of their respective Family Trusts, established by my spouse as grantor on even date herewith (the

... “Family Trusts” which term includes any successor trust thereto), to' be held and administered as

“pivided under-said Trusts: The provisiofis of the Family Trusts are incorporated herein by reference,
and if any of the Family Trusts are not then in existence and it is necessary to accomplish the foregoing
dispositions, the current Trustee of this Trust is directed to take such action to establish or reconstitute
such applicable trust(s), or if the Trustee is unable to do so, said assets shall be held in separate trusts
for such lineal descendants and administered as provided in Subparagraph ILE. below. Each of my lineal
descendants for whom a separate Trust is held hereunder shall hereinafter be referred to as a
"beneficiary," with their separate trusts to be administered as provided in Subparagraph ILE, below.
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F. Trusts for Beneficiaries. The Trustee shall pay to a beneficiary the net income of such
beneficiary's trust. The Trustee shall pay to the beneficiary and the beneficiary's children, such amounts
of the principal of such beneficiary's trust as is proper for the Welfate of such individuals. After a
beneficiary has reached any one or more of the following birthdays, the beneficiary may withdraw the
principal of his or her separate trust at any time or times, not to exceed in the aggregate 1/3 in value after
the beneficiary's 25th birthday, 1/2 in value (after deducting any armount previously subject to
withdrawal but not actually withdrawn) afier the beneficiary's 30th birthday, and the balance after the
beneficiary’s 35th birthday, provided that the withdrawal powers described in this sentence shall not
apply to any child of mine as beneficiary of a separate trust. The value of each trust shall be its value as
of the first exercise of each withdrawal right, plus the value of any subsequent addition as of the date of
addition. The right of withdrawal shall be a privilege which may be exercised only voluntarily and shall
not include an involuntary exercise. If a beneficiary dies with assets remaining in his or her separate
trust, upon the beneficiary's death the beneficiary may appoint his or her trust to or for the benefit of one
or more of my lineal descendants and their spouses (excluding from said class, however, such
beneficiary and such beneficiary's creditors, estate, and creditors of such beneficiary's estate). Any part
of his or her trust such beneficiary does not effectively appoint shall upon his or her dedth be divided
among and held in separate Trusts for the following persons:

1, for his or her lineal descendants then living, per stirpes; or

2, if he or she leaves no lineal descendant then living, per stirpes for the lineal
descendants then living of his or her nearest ancestor (among me and my lineal descendants) with a
lineal descendant then living who is also a lineal descendant of my spouse.

A trust for a lineal descendant of mine shall be held under this paragraph, or if a trust is then so held,
shall be added to such trust.

G, Termination of Small Trust, If at any time after the death of the survivor of my spouse
and me in the opinion of the Trustee a separate trust holds assets of a value of less than $50,000.00 and
is too small to justify the expense of its retention, and termination of such trust is in the best interests
of its current income beneficiaty, the Trustee in its discretion may terminate such trust and pay itto said
beneficiary.

H. Contingent Gift. If at any time property of a trust held under this Agreement is not
disposed of under the other provisions of this Agreement, it shall be paid, as a gift made hereunder, to
such persons and in such shares as such property would be distributed if my spouse and I had each then
owned one-half of such property and had each then died solvent, unmarried and intestate domiciled in
the State of Florida, according to the laws of inheritance of the State of Florida then in effect.

L Protective Provision. No beneficiary of any trust herein created shall have any right or
power to anticipate, transfer, pledge, sell, alienate, assign or encumber in any way his or her interest in
the income or principal of such trust. Furthermore, no creditor shall have the right to attach, lien, seize
or levy upon the interest of a beneficiary in this trust (other than myself) and such interest shall not be
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liable for or subject to the debis, liabilities or obligations of any such beneficiary or any claims against
such beneficiary (whether voluntarily or involuntarily created), and the Trustee shall pay directly to or
for the use or benefit of such beneficiary all income and principal to which such beneficiary is entitled,
notwithstanding that such beneficiary has executed a pledge, assignment, encumbrance or in any othet
manner alienated or transferred his or her beneficial interest in the trust to another. This paragraph shall
not preclude the effective exercise of any power of appointment granted herein or the exetcise of any
disclaimer.

J. Maximum Duration. Regardless of anything in this Agreement to the contrary, no trust
interest herein created shall continue beyond three hundred sixty (360) years as provided in F.S. §
689.225(2)(a)(2), nor shall any power of appointment be exercised in such manner so as to delay vesting
of any trust beyond such period. Immediately prior to the expiration of such period, all such trusts then
in existence shall terminate, and the assets thereof shall be distributed outright and in fee to then
beneficiaries of the current income and in the proportions in which such persons are the beneficiaries,
and if such proportions cannot be ascertained, then equally among such beneficiaries,

/

K. Florida Homestead Possessory Rights. Notwithstanding anything herein to the
contrary, if any portion of any Florida improved residential real estate (excluding commercial multi-unit
rental property) is an asset of the Marital Trust, my spouse shall have the exclusive and continuous
present right to full use, ocoupancy and possession of such real estate for life. It is my intention that my
spouse's interest in such property shall constitute a "beneficial interest for life" and "equitable title to real
estate” as contemplated by Section 196.041(2) of Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time or any
corresponding provision of law,

ARTICLE III. GENERAL

A, Disability. Subject to the following Subparagraph captioned "Subchapter S Stock,," while
any beneficiary (other than my spouse as beneficiary of the Marital Trust) is Disabled, the Trustee shalt
pay to him or her only such portion of the income to which he or she is otherwise entitled as is proper
for his or her Welfare, and any income not so paid shall be added to the principal from which derived.
While any beneficiary is Disabled, income or principal payable to him ot her may, in the discretion of
the Trustee, be paid directly to him or her, without the intervention of a guardian, directly to his or her
creditors or others for his or her sole benefit or to an adult person or an eligible institution (including the
Trustee) selected by the Trustee as custodian for a minor beneficiary under the Uniform Transfers to
Minors Act or similar law. The receipt of such payee is a complete release to the Trustee.

B. Timing of Income Distributions, The Trustee shall make required payments of income
at least quarterly.

C. Substance Abuse,
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1. In General. If the Trustee reasonably beiieves that a beneficiary (other than
myseif) of any trust:

a, routinely or frequently uses or consumes any illegal substance so as to
be physically or psychologically dependent upon that substance, or

b. is clinically dependent upon the use or consumption of alcohol or any
other legal drug or chemical substance that is not prescribed by a board certified medical doctor or
psychiatrist in a current program of treatment supervised by such doctor or psychiatrist,

and if the Trustee reasonably believes that as a result the beneficiary is unable to care for himself or
herself, or is unable to manage his or her financial affairs, all mandatory distributions (including
distributions upon termination of the trust) to the beneficiary, all ofthe beneficiary's withdrawal rights,
and all of the beneficiary's rights to participate in decisions concerning the removal and appointment of
Trustees will be suspended (excluding, however, mandatory income tights under the Marital Trust). In
that event, the following provisions of this Subparagraph IIL.C will apply. ;

2. Testing. The Trustee may request the beneficiary to submit to one or more
examinations (including laboratory tests of bodily fluids) determined to be appropriate by a board
certified medical doctor and to consent to full disclosure to the Trustee of the results of all such
examinations. The Trustee shall maintain strict confidentiality of those results and shall not disclose
those results to any person other than the beneficiary without the prior written permission of the
beneficiary, The Trustee may totally or partially suspend all distributions otherwise required or permitted
to be made to that beneficiary until the beneficiary consents to the examination and disclosure to the
Trustee,

3. Treatment. If; in the opinion of the examining doctor, the examination indicates
current or recent use of a drug or substance as described above, the examining doctor will determine an
appropriate method of treatment for the beneficiary (for example, counseling or treatment on an
in-patient basis in a rehabilitation facility) that is acceptable to the Trustee. If the beneficiary consents
to the treatment, the Trustee shall pay the costs of treatment directly to the provider of those services
from the distributions suspended under this Subparagraph IL.C,

4, Resumption of Distributions. The Trustee may resume other distributions to the
beneficiary (and the beneficiary's other suspended rights will be restored) when, in the case of use or
consumption of an illegal substance, examinations indicate no such use for 12 months and, in all cases,
when the Trustee in its discretion determines that the beneficiary is able to care for himself or herself
and is able to manage his or her financial affairs.

5. Disposition of Suspended Amounts, When other distributions to the beneficiary
are resumed, the remaining balance, if any, of distributions that were suspended may be distributed to
the beneficiary at that time. If the beneficiary dies before distribution of those suspended amounts, the
Trustee shall distribute the balance of the suspended amounts to the persons who would be the alternate
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takers of that beneficiary's share (or takers through the exercise of a power of appointment) as otherwise
provided in this Trust Agreement.

6. Exoneration. No Trustee (or any doctor retained by the Trustee) will be
tesponsible or liable to anyone for a beneficiary’s actions or welfare. The Trustee has no duty to inquire
whether a beneficiary uses drugs or other substances as described in this Subparagraph [ILC. The Trustee
(and any doctor retained by the Trustee) is to be indemnified from the trust estate and held harmless
from any liability of any nature in exercising its judgment and authority under this Subparagraph III.C,
including any failure to request a beneficiary to submit to medical examination, and including a decision
to distribute suspended amounts to a beneficiary.

7. Tax Savings Provision, Despite the provisions of this Subparagraph IILC, the
Trustee cannot suspend any mandatory distributions or withdrawal rights that are required for that trust
to become or remain a Qualified Subchapter S Trust (unless the Trustee elects for the trust to be an
Electing Small Business Trust), ot to qualify for any federal transfer tax exemption, deduction, or
exclusion allowable with respect to that trust. ,

D. Income on Death of Beneficiary. Subject to the later paragraph captioned "Subchapter
S Stock,” and except as otherwise explicitly provided herein, upon the death of any beneficiary, all
accrued or yndistributed income of such deceased beneficiary's trust shall pass with the principal of his
or her trust but shall remain income for trust accounting purposes.

E. Definitions. In this Agreement,

1. Children. Lineal Descendants. The terms “ehild," "“children® and "lineal
descendant” mean only persons whose relationship to the ancestor designated is created entirely by or
through (a) legitimate births occurring during the marriage of the joint biological parents to each other,
{(b) chiidren and their lineal descendants arising from surrogate births and/or third party donors when (i)
the child is raised from or near the time of birth by a married couple (other than a same sex married
couple) through the pendency of such marriage, (ii} one of such couple is the designated ancestor, and
(it} to the best knowledge of the Trustee both members of such couple participated in the decision to
have such child, and (c) lawful adoptions of minors under the age of twelve years. No such child or lineal
descendant loses his or her status as such through adoption by another person. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, as I have adequately provided for them during my lifetime, for purposes of the dispositions
made under this Trust, my children, TED S. BERNSTEIN (“TED”) and PAMELA B. SIMON (“PAM™),
and their respective lineal descendants shall be deemed to have predeceased the survivor of my spouse
and me, provided, however, if my children, ELIOT BERNSTEIN, JILL TANTONI and LISA S,
FRIEDSTEIN, and their lineal descendants all predecease the survivor of my spouse and me, then TED
and PAM, and their respective lineal descendants shall not be deemed to have predeceased me and shall
be eligible beneficiaries for purposes of the dispositions made hereunder.
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2. Code, "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and in
- referring to any particular provision of the Code, includes a reference to any equivalent or successor
provision of a successor federal tax law,

3. Disabled. "Disabled" ot being under "Disability" means, as to any applicable
individual: (1) being under the age of 21 years, (2) having been adjudicated by a court of competent
jurisdiction as mentally or physically incompetent or unable to manage his or her own property or
personal affairs (or a substantially similar finding under applicable state or national law), or (3) being
unable to properly manage his or her personal or financial affairs, or a trust estate hereunder as to a
Trustee hereunder, because of a mental or physical impairment (whether temporary or permanent in
nature). A written certificate executed by an individual's attending physician or attending psychiatrist
confirming that person's impairment will be sufficient evidence of Disability under item (3) above, and
all persons may rely conclusively on such a certificate.

4, Education, The term "education” herein means vocational, primary, secondary,
preparatory, theological, college and professional education, including post-graduate courses of study,
at educational institutions ot elsewhere, and expenses relating directly thereto, including tuition, books
and supplies, room and board, and travel from and to home during school vacations. It is intended that
the Trustee liberally construe and interpret references to "education,” so that the beneficiaries entitled
to distributions hereunder for education obtain the best possible education commensurate with their
abilities and desires.

5. My Spouse. "My spouse” is SIMON L. BERNSTEIN (“SIMON").

6. Needs and Welfare Distributions. Payments to be made for a person's "Needs”
means payments for such person's support, health (including lifetime residential or nursing home care),
maintenance and education, Payments to be made for a person's "Welfare" means payments for such
person's Needs, and as the Trustee determines in its sole discretion also for such person's advancement
in life (including assistance in the purchase of a home or establishment or development of any business
or professional enterprise which the Trustee believes to be reasonably sound), happiness and general
well-being. Howevet, the Trustee, based upon information reasonably available to it, shall make such
payments for a person's Needs or Welfare only to the extent such person's income, and funds available
from others obligated to supply funds for such purposes (including, without limitation, pursuant to child
support ordets and agreements), are insufficient in its opinion for such purposes, and shall take into
account such person's accustomed manner of living, age, health, marital status and any other factor it
considers important. Income or principal to be paid for a person's Needs or Welfare may be paid to such
individual or applied by the Trustee directly for the benefit of such person. The Trustee may make a
distribution or application guthorized for a person's Needs or Welfare even if such distribution or
application substantially depletes or exhausts such person's trust, without any duty upon the Trustee to
retain it for future use or for other persons who might otherwise benefit from such trust.

7. Per Stirpes. In a division "per stirpes” each generation shall be represented and
counted whether or not it has a fiving member.
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8. Related or Subordinate Party. A "Related or Subordinate Party" to a trust
describes a beneficiary of the subject trust or a related or subordinate party to a beneficiary of the trust
as the terms “related or subordinate party” are defined under Code Section 672(c).

9, Spouse. A person's "speuse” includes only a spouse then married to and living
as husband and wife with him or her, or a spouse who was married to and living as husband and wife
with him or her at his or her death. The following rules apply to each person who is a beneficiary or a
petmissible appointee under this Trust Agreement and who is mattied to a descendant of mine. Such a
person will cease to be a beneficiary and will be excluded from the class of permissible appointees upon:

a. the legal termination of the marriage to my descendant (whether before
or after my death), or

b, the death of my descendant if a dissolution of marriage proceeding was
pending when he or she died.

10.  Gender. Number. Where appropriate, words of any gender include all genders
and the singular and plural are interchangeable.

F. Powers of Appointment. Property subject to a power of appointment shall be paid to,
ot retained by the Trustee ot paid to any trustee under any will or trust agreement for the benefit of, such
one or more permissible appointees, in such amounts and proportions, granting such interests, powers
and powers of appointment, and upon such conditions including spendthrift provisions as the holder of
such power (i) in the case of a power exercisable upon the death of such holder, appoints in his or her
will or in 8 trust agreement revocable by him or her until his or her death, or (ii) in the case of a power
exercisable during the life of such holder, appoints in a written instrument signed by such holder, two
witnesses and a notary public, but in either case only if such will, trust agreement, or instrument
specifically refers to such power.

G, Limitations on Powers of Trustee. Regardless of anything herein to the contrary, no
Trustee shall make or participate in making any distribution of income or principal of a trust to or for

the benefit of a beneficiary which would directly or indirectly discharge any legal obligation of such
Trustee or a donor of such trust {as an individual, and other than myself as donor) to support such
beneficiary; and no Trustee (other than myselfand other than my spouse as Trustee of the Marital Trust)
shall make or participate in making any discretionary distribution of income or principal to or for the
benefit of himself or herself other than for his or her Needs, including by reason of a determination to
terminate a trust described herein. For example, if a Trustee (other than myself and other than my spouse
as Trustee of the Marital Trust) has the power to distribute income or principal to himself or herself for
his or her own Welfare, such Trustee (the "restricted Trustee") shall only have the power to make or
participate in making a distribution of income or principal to the restricted Trustee for the restricted
Trustee's Needs, although any co-Trustee who is not also a restricted Trustee may make or participate
in making a distribution of income or principal to the restricted Trustee for such restricted Trustee’s
Welfare without the participation or consent of said restricted Trustee.

SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN
TROST AGREEMENT -9-

TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.



H, Presumption of Survivorship. If my spouse and I die under circumstances which make
it difficult or impracticable to determine which one of us survived the other, I direct that nty spouse shall
be deemed to have survived me for purposes of this Agreement (except in regard to any property passing
hereunder that became part of this trust solely by reason of passage to my probate estate or this trust from
the probate estate of or a revocable trust established by my spouse in which case the opposite
presumption shall apply), notwithstanding any provisions of law which provide for a contrary
presumption. If any person other than my spouse shall be required to survive another person in order to
take any interest under this Agreement, the former person shall be deemed to have predeceased the latter
person, if such persons die under circumstances which make it difficult or impracticable to determine
which one died first.

L Governing Law,. This Agreement is governed by the law of the State of Florida.

J. Other Beneficiary Designations. Except as otherwise explicitly and with particularity
provided herein, (a) no provision of this trust shall revoke or modify any beneficiary designation of mine
made by me and not revoked by me prior to my death under any individual retirement account, other
retirement plan or account, or annuity or insurance contract, (b) I hereby reaffirm any such beneficiary
designation such that any assets held in such account, plan, or contract shall pass in accordance with
such designation, and (¢) regardless of anything herein to the contrary, any of such assets which would
otherwise pass pursuant to this trust due to the beneficiary designation not having met the requirements
for a valid testamentary disposition under applicable law or otherwise shall be paid as a gift made
hereunder to the persons and in the manner provided in such designation which is incorporated herein
by this reference.

K Mandatory Notice Required by Florida Law. The trustee of a trust may have duties
and tesponsibilities in addition to those described in the instrument creating the trust. If you have
questions, you should obtain legal advice.

1. Release of Medical Information.

1, Disability of Beneficiary, Upon the written request of a Trustee (with or without
the concurrence of co-Trustees) issued to any current income or principal beneficiary (including
discretionary beneficiaries) for whom a determination of Disability is relevant to the administration of
a trust hereunder and for whom a Trustee (with or without the concurrence of co-Trustees) desires to
make such a determination, such beneficiary shall issue to ail Trustees (who shall be identified thereon
both by name to the extent known and by class description) a valid authorization under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and any other applicable or successor law
authorizing all health care providers and all medical sources of such requested beneﬁciary to release
protected health information of the requested beneficiary to all Trustees that is relevant to the
determination of the Disability of the requested beneﬁcmary as Disability is defined hereunder. The
period of each such valid authorization shall be for six months (or the earlier death of the requested
beneficiary). If such beneficiary {or his or her legal representative if such beneficiary is a minor or
legally disabled) refuses within thirty days of receipt of the request to provide a valid authorization, or
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at any time revokes an authorization within its term, the Trustee shall {reat such beneficiary as Disabled
hereunder unti! such valid authorization is delivered.

2. Disability of Trustee, Upon the request to a Trustee that is an individual by (a)
a co-Trustee, or if ione, (b) the person or entity next designated to serve as a successor Trustee not under
legal incapacity, or if none, (c) any aduit current income or principal beneficiary not under legal
incapacity, or in any event and at any time (d) a court of competent jurisdiction, such Trustee shall issue
to such person and all persons, courts of competent jurisdiction, and entities (who shall be identified
thereon both by name to the extent known and by class description), with authority hereunder to
determine such requested Trustee's Disability, a valid authorization under the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and any other applicable or successor law authorizing all
health care providers and all medical sources of such requested Trustee to release protected health
informaticn of the requested Trustee to such persons, courts and entities, that is relevant to the
determination of the Disability of the requested Trustee as Disability is defined hereunder. The period
of each such valid authorization shall be for six months (or the earlier death or resignation of the
requested Trustee). If such requested Trustee refuses within thirty days of receipt of the request to deliver
a valid authorization, or at any time revokes an authorization within its term, such requested Trustee
shall thereupon be treated as having resigned as Trustee hereunder.

3. Authorization to Issue Certificate. All required authotizations under this
paragraph shall include the power of a physician or psychiatrist to issue a written certificate to the
appropriate persons or entities as provided in Subparagraph JILE.3 hereof.

ARTICLE 1V. FIDUCIARIES

A. Powers of the Trustee. During my life except while 1 am Disabled, the Trustee shall
exercise all powers provided by law and the following powers, other than the power to retain assets, only
with my written approval. While I am Disabled and after my death, the Trustee shall exercise said
powers without approval, provided that the Trustee shall exercise all powers in a fiduciary capacity.

1. Investments. To sell or exchange at public or private sale and on credit or
otherwise, with or without security, and to lease for any term or perpetually, any property, real and
persenal, at any time forming a part of the trust estate (the "estaze"); to grant and exercise options to buy
or sell; to invest or reinvest in real or personal property of every kind, description and location; and to
receive and retain any such property whether originally a part of any trust herein created or subsequently

-acquired, even if the Trustee is personally interested in such property, and without liability for any
decline in the value thereof; all without limitation by any statutes or judicial decisions whenever enacted
or announced, regulating invéstments or requiring diversification of investments, it being my intention
to give the broadest investment powers and discretion to the Trustee, Any bank, trust company, or other
corporate trustee serving hereunder as Trustee is authorized to invest in its own common trust funds.
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2. Special Investments. The Trustee is expressly authorized (but not directed) to
retain, make, hold, and dispose of investments not regarded as traditional for trusts, including interests
or investments in privately beld business and investment entities and entetprises, including without
limitation stock in closely held corporations, limited partnership interests, joint venture interests, mutual
funds, business trust interests, and limited liability company membership interests, notwithstanding (a)
any applicable prudent investor rule or variation thereof, (b) common law or statutory diversification
requirements (it being my intent that no such duty to diversify shall exist) (c)a lack of current cash flow
therefrom, (d) the presence of any risk or speculative elements as compared to other available
investments (it being my intent that the Trustee have sole and absclute discretion in determining what
constitutes acceptable risk and what constitutes proper investment strategy), (¢} lack of a reasonable rate
of return, (£) risks to the preservation of principal, (g) violation of a Trustee's duty of impartiality as to
different beneficiaries (it being my intent that no such duty exists for this purpose), and (h) similar
limitations on investment under this Agreement or under law pertaining to investments that may ot
should be made by a Trustee (including without limitation the provisions of Fla.Stats. §518.11 and
successor provisions thereto that would characterize such investmentsas forbidden, imprudent, improper
or unlawful). The Trustee shall not be responsible to any trust created hereunder or the beneficiaries
thereof for any loss resulting from any such authorized investment, including without limitation loss
engendered by the higher risk element of that particular entity, investment, or enterprise, the failure fo
invest in more conservative investments, the failure to diversify frust assets, the prudent investor rule
or variant thereof, Notwithstanding any provisions for distributions to beneficiaries hereunder, if the
Trustee determines that the future potential investment return from any illiquid or closely held
investrent asset warrants the retention of that investment asset or that sufficient value could not be
obtained from the sale or other disposition of an illiquid or closely held investment asset, the Trustee is
authorized to retain that asset and if necessary reduce the distributions to beneficiaries due to lack of
sufficient liquid or marketable assets. However, the preceding provisions of this Subparagraph shall not
be exercised in a manner as to jeopardize the availability of the estate tax marital deduction for assets
passing to or held in the a trust for my surviving spouse or that would otherwise qualify for the estate
tax marita] deduction but for such provisions, shall not ovetride any express powers hereunder of my
surviving spouse to demand conversion of unproductive property to productive property, or reduce any
income distributions otherwise required hereunder for a trust held for the benefit of my surviving spouse
or a "qualified subchapter S trust" as that term is defined in Code Section 1361(d)(3).

3. Distributions. To make any division or distribution pro rata or non-pro rata, in
cash or in kind, and fo allocate undivided interests in property and dissimilar property (without regard
to its tax basis) to different shares.

4, Management, To manage, develop, improve, partition or change the character
of an asset or interest in property at any time; and to make ordinary and extraordinary repairs,
replacements, alterations and improvements, structural or otherwise.

5. Borrowing. To borrow money from anyone on commercially reasonable terms,
including entities owned in whole or in part by the trust, a Trustee, beneficiaries and other persons who
may have a direct or indirect interest in a Trust; and to mortgage, margin, encumber and pledge real and

SHIRLEY BERNSTEN

TRUST AGREBMENT ~12- Q(\
O

TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.



personal property of a trust as security for the payment thereof, without incurring any personal liability
thereon and to do so for a term within or extending beyond the terms of the trust and to renew, modify
or extend existing bortowing on similar or different terms and with the same or different security without
incurring any personal liability; and such borrowing from a Trustee may be with or without interest, and
may be secured with a lien on trust assets.

6. Lending. To extend, modify or waive the terms of any obligation, bond or
mortgage at any time forming a part of a trust and to foreclose any such mortgage; accept a conveyance
of encumbered property, and take title to the property securing it by deed in lieu of foreclosure or
otherwise and to satisfy or not satisfy the indebtedness securing said property; to protect or redeem any
such property from forfeiture for nonpayment of taxes or other lien; generally, to exercise as to such
bond, obligation or mortgage all powers that an absolute owner might exercise; and to loan funds to
beneficiaries at commercially reasonable rates, terms and conditions.

7. . Abandonment of Propetty. To abandon any property or asset when it is valueless
or so encumbered or in such condition that it is of no benefit to a trust, To abstain from the payment of
taxes, liens, rents, assessments, or repairs on such property and/or permit such property to be lost by tax
sale, foreclosure or other proceeding or by conveyance for nominal or no consideration to anyone
including a charity or by escheat to a state; all without personal liability incurred therefor. :

8. Real Property Matters. To subdivide, develop or partition real estate; to purchase
or sell real property and to enter into contracts to do the same; to dedicate the same to public use; to
make or obtain the location of any plats; to adjust boundaries; to adjust differences in valuations on
exchange or partition by giving or receiving consideration; and, to grant easements with or without
consideration as the fiduciaries may determine; and to demolish any building, structures, walls and
improvements, or to erect new buildings, structures, walls and improvements and to insure against fire
and other risks; and to protect and conserve, or to lease, or to encumber, or otherwise to manage and
dispose of real property to the extent such power is not otherwise granted herein or otherwise restricted
herein.

9, Claims. To enforce, compromise, adjust, arbitrate, release or otherwise settle or
pay any claims or demands by or against a trust.

10.  BusinessEntities. To deal with any business entity or enterprise even if a Trustee
is or may be a fiduciary of or own interests in said business entity or enterprise, whether operated in the
form of a corporation, partnership, business frust, limited liability company, joint venture, sole
proprietorship, or other form (all of which business entities and enterprises are referred to herein as
"Business Entities"). I vest the Trustee with the following powers and authority in regard to Business
Entities:

a. To retain and continue to operate a Business Entity for such period as the
Trustee deems advisable;
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b. To confrol, direct and manage the Business Entities, In this connection, the
Trustee, in its sole discretion, shall determine the manner and extent of its active patticipation in the
operation and may delegate all or any part of its power to supervise and operate to such petson or
persons as the Trustee may select, including any associate, partner, officer or employee of the Business
Entity;

c¢. To hire and discharge officers and employees, fix their compensation and
define thelr duties; and similarly to employ, compensate and discharge agents, attorneys, consultants,
accountants, and such other representatives as the Trustee may deetn appropriate; including the right to
employ any beneficiary or fiduciary in any of the foregoing capacities;

d. To invest funds in the Business Entities, to pledge other assets of a trust as
security for loans made to the Business Entities, and to lend funds from a trust to the Business Entities;

e. To organize one or more Business Entities under the laws of this or any other
state or country and to transfer thereto all or any part of the Business Entities or other property of a trust,
and to receive in exchange such stocks, bonds, partnership and member interests, and such other
securities or interests as the Trustee may deem advisable;

f. To treat Business Entities as separate from a trust. In a Trustee's accounting
to any beneficiary, the Trustee shall only be required to report the earnings and condition of the Business
Entities in accordance with standard business accounting practice;

g. To retain in Business Entities such net earnings for working capital and other
purposes of the Business Entities as the Trustee may deem advisable in conformity with sound business
practice;

h. To sell or liquidate all or any part of the Business Entities at such time and
price and upon such terms and conditions (including credit) as the Trustee may determine. My Trustee
is specifically authorised and empowered to make such sale to any person, including any partner, officer,
or employee of the Business Entities, 2 fiduciary, or to any beneficiary; and

i. To guaranty the obligations ofthe Business Entities, or pledge assets of a trust
to secure such a guaranty.

11.  Principal and Income, To allocate items of income or expense between income
and principal as permitted or provided by the laws of the State of Florida but without limiting the
availability of the estate tax marital deduction, provided that the Trustee shall not be required to provide
a rate of return on unproductive propetty unless otherwise provided in this instrument.

12.  Life Insurance. With respect to any life insurance policies constituting an asset

ofa trust, to pay premiums; to apply dividends in reduction of such premiums; to borrow against the cash
values thereof; to convert such policies into other forms of insurance, including paid-up insurance; to
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exercise any settlement options provided in any such policies; to receive the proceeds of any policy upon
its maturity and to administer such proceeds as a part of the principal of the Trust; and in general, to
exercise all other options, benefits, rights and privileges under such policies.

13. Continuing Power. To continue to have or exercise, after the termination of a
trust, in whole or in part, and until final distribution thereof, all title, power, discretions, rights and duties
conferred or imposed vpon the Trustee by law or by this Agresment or during the existence of the trust.

14, Exoneration. To provide for the exoneration of the Trustee from any personal
liability on account of any arrangement or contract entered into in a fiduciary capacity.

15, Agreements. To comply with, amend, modify or rescind any agreement made
during my lifetime, including those regarding the disposition, management or continuation of any closely
held unincorporated business, corporation, partnership or joint venture, and including the power to
complete contracts to purchase and sell real estate.

16.  Yoting. To vote and give proxies, with power of substitution to vote, stocks,
bonds and other securities, or not to vote a security.

17. Combination of Shares. To hold the several shares of a trust or several Trusts as
a common fund, dividing the income proportionately among them, to assign undivided interests to the
several shares or Trusts, and fo make joint investments of the funds belonging to them, For such
purposes and insofar as may be practicable, the Trustee, to the extent that division of the trust estate is
directed hereby, may administer the trust estate physically undivided until actual division thereof
becomes necessary to make distributions, The Trustee may hold, manage, invest and account for whole
or fractional trust shares as a single estate, making the division thereof by appropriate entries in the
books of account only, and may allocate to each whole or fracticnal trust share its proportionate part of
all receipts and expenses; provided, however, this carrying of several Trusts as a single estate shall not
defer the vesting in possession of any whole or fractional share of a trust for the beneficiaries thereof at
the times specified herein.

18.  Reimbursement. To reimburse itself from a trust for reasonable expenses incurred
in the administration thereof.

19.  Reliance Upon Communication. To rely, in acting under a trust, upon any letter,
notice, certificate, report, statement, document ot other paper, or upon any telephone, telegraph, cable,
wireless or radio message, if believed by the Trustee to be genuine, and to be signed, sealed, acknowl-
edged, presented, sent, delivered or given by or on behalf of the proper person, firm or corporation,
without incurring liability for any action or inaction based thereon,

20.  Assumptions. To assume, in the absence of written notice to the contrary from
the person or persons concerned, that a fact or an event, by reason of which an interest or estate under
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a trust shall commence or terminate, does not exist or has not occurred, without incurring liability for
any action or inaction based upon such assumption.

21. Service as Custodian. To serve as successor custodian for any beneficiary of any
gifts that I may have made under any Transfer to Minors Act, if at the time of my death no custodian is
named in the instrument creating the gift.

22,  Removal of Assets. The Trustee may remove from the domiciliary state during
the entire duration of a trust or for such lesser period as it may deem advisable, any cash, securities or
other property at any time in its hands whether principal or not, and to take and keep the same outside
the domiciliary state and at such place or places within ot outside the borders of the United States as it
may determine, without in any event being chargeable for any loss or depreciation to the trust which may
result therefrom.,

23.  Change of Situs. The situs and/or applicable law of any trust created hereunder
may be transferred to such other place as the Trustee may deem to be for the best interests of the trust
estate. In so doing, the Trustee may resign and appoint a successor Trustee, but may remove such
successor Trustee so appointed and appoint others. Each successor Trustee may delegate any and all
fiduciary powers, discretionary and ministerial, to the appointing Trustee as its agent. :

24.  Fidueiary Outside Domiciliary State. In the event the Trustee shall not be able
and willing to act as Trustee with respect fo any property located outside the domiciliary state, the
Trustee, without order of court, may appoint another individual or corporation (including any employee
or agent of any appointing Trustee) to act as Trustee with respect to such property. Such appointed
Trustee shall have all of the powers and discretions with respect to such property as are herein given to
the appointing Trustee with respect to the remaining trust assets. The appointing Trustee may remove
such appointed Trustee and appoint another upon ten (10) days notice in writing. All income from such
property, and if such property is sold, exchanged or otherwise disposed of, the proceeds thereof, shall
be remitted to the appointing Trustee, to be held and administered by it as Trustee hereunder. Such
appointed Trustee may employ the appointing Trustee as agent in the administration of such property.
No surety shall be required on the bond of the Trustee or agent acting under the provisions of this
paragraph. No periodic court accounting shall be required of such appointed Trustee, it being my
intention to excuse any statutory accounting which may ordinarily be required.

25, Selection of Assets for Matital Trust. The Trustee shall have sole discretion to
determine which assets shall be allocated to the Marital Trust; provided, if possible no assets or the
proceeds of any assets which do not qualify for the federal estate tax marital deduction shall be allocated
to the Marital Trust. To the extent that other assets qualifying for the marital deduction ate available,
the Trustee shall not allocate to the Marital Trust any assets with respect to which a credit for foreign
taxes paid is allowable under the Code, nor any policy of insurance on the life of my spouse, Any
allocation of assets among the Family Trust and the Marital Trust shall, with respect to each such trust,
be comprised of assets having an aggregate market value at the time of such allocation fairly
representative of the net appreciation or depreciation in the value of the property available for such
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allocation between the date of valuation for federal estate tax purposes and the date or dates of said
allocation and selection.

26,  Additions. To receive and accept additions to the Trusts in cash or in kind from
donors, executors, administrators, Trustee or attorneys in fact, including additions of my property by the
Trustee or others as my attorneys in fact.

27,  Title and Possession. To have title to and possession of all real or personal
property held in the Trusts, and to register or hold title to such property in its own name or in the name
of its nominee, without disclosing its fiduciary capacity, or in bearer form.

28,  Dealing with Estates. To use principal of the Trusts to make loans to my estate,
with or without interest, and to make purchases from my estate or my spouse’s estate.

29.  Agents. To employ persons, including attorneys, auditors, investment advisers,
and agents, even if they are the Trustee or associated with the Trustee, to advise or assist-the Trustee in
the performance of its adminisirative duties and to pay compensation and costs incurred in connection
with such employment from the assets of the Trust; to act without independent investigation upon their
recommendations; and, instead of acting personally, to employ one or mote agents to perform any act
of administration, whether or not discretionary.

30, Tax Flections. To file tax returns, and to exercise all tax-related efections and
options at its discretion, without compensating adjustments or reimbursements between any of the Trusts
or any of the trust accounts or any beneficiaries.

B. Resignation. A Trustee may resign with or without cause, by giving no less than 30 days
advance written notice, specifying the effective date of such resignation, to its successor Trustee and to
the persons required and in the manner provided under Fla.Stats. §§736.0705(1)(a) and 736.0109. As
to any required recipient, deficiencies in fulfilling the foregoing resignation requirements may be waived
in a writing signed by such recipient. Upon the resignation of a Trustee, such Trustee shall be entitled
to reimbursement from the trust for all reasonable expenses incurred in the settlement of accounts and
in the transfer of assets to his or her successor.

C. Appointment of Successor Trustee.

L. Appointment. Upon a Ttustee's resignation, or if a Trustee becomes Disabled or
for any reason ceases to serve as Trustee, ] may appoint any person or persons as successor Trustee, and
in default of such appointment by me, SIMON and TED, one at a time and successively in that order,
shall serve as successor Trustee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a named Trustee is not a U.S. citizen
ot resident at the time of commencement of his term as Trustee, such Trustee should give due
consideration to declining to serve to avoid potential adverse U.S, income tax consequences by reason
of the characterization of a trust hereunder as a foreign trust under the Code, but shall not be construed
to have any duty to so decline if such Trustee desires to serve.
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2. Specific Trusis. Notwithstanding the preceding provisions of this Subparagraph
IV.C, subsequent to my death I specifically appoint the following person or persons as Trustee of the
following Trusts under the following described circumstances:

a. Trustee of the Marital Trust. SIMON and TED, one at a time and
successively in that order, shall serve as Trustee of the Marital Trust. While serving as Trustee, my
spouse may designate a co-Trustee o serve with my spouse and my spouse may remove and/or replace
such co-Trustee from time to time.

b. Trustee of the Family Trust, SIMON and TED, one at a time and
successively in that order, shall serve as Trustee of the Family Trust, While serving as Trustee, my
spouse may designate a co-Trustee that is not a Related or Subordinate Party to serve with my spouse
and my spouse may remove and/or replace such co-Trustee with another that is not a Related or
Subordinate Party from time to time.

c. Trustee of Separate Trusts for My Children, Each child’of mine shall
serve as sole Trustee of his or her separate trust. While serving alone as Trustee, a child of mine may
designate a co-Trustee that is not a Related or Subordinate Party to serve with such child and such child
may remove and/or replace such co-Trustee with another that is not a Related or Subordinate Party from
time to time.

d. Trustee of Separate Trusts for My Lineal Descendants Other Than My
Children, In regard to a separate trust held for a lineal descendant of mine other than a child of mine
which lineal descendant is the sole current mandatory or discretionary income beneficiary, each such
lineal descendant shall serve as co-Trustee, or sole Trustee if the preceding described Trustees cease or
are unable to serve or to continue to serve, of his or her separate trust upon reaching age twenty-five (25)
years.

e. Trustee of Separate Trust for MATTHEW LOGAN. In regard toa
separate trust held MATTHEW LOGAN, his mother, DEBORAH BERNSTEIN (“DEBORAH”), shall
serve as Trustee until MATTHEW attains age 25 years, at which time he shall serve as a co-Trustee with
DEBORAH of such separate trust,

.3 Successor Trustees Not Provided For, Whenever a successor Trustee or co-
Trustee is required and no successor or other functioning mechanism for succession is provided for
under the terms of this Trust Agreement , the last serving Trustee or the last person or entity designated
to serve as Trustee of the applicable trust may appoint his or her successor, and if none is so appointed,
the following persons shall appoint a successor Trustee (who may be one of the persons making the
appointment):

a. The remaining Trustees, if any; otherwise,
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b. A majority of the permissible current mandatory or discretionary income
beneficiaries, including the natural or legal guardians of any beneficiaries who are Disabied.

A successor Trustee appointed under this subparagraph shall not be a Related or Subordinate Party of
the trust. The appointment will be by a written document executed by such person in the presence of two
witnesses and acknowledged before a notary public delivered to the appointed Trustee and to me if T am
living and not Disabled or in a valid last Will. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a designation under this
Subparagraph of a successor trustee to a corporate or entity trustee shall be limited to a corporate or
entity trustee authorized to serve as such under Florida law with assets under trust management of no
less than one billion dollars.

4, Power to Remove Trustee. Subsequent to my death, the age 25 or older
permissible current mandatory or discretionary ineome beneficiaries from time to time of any trust
established hereunder shall have the power to unanimously remove a Trustee of such trust at any time
with or without cause, with the successor Trustee to be detetmined in accordance with the foregoing
provisions. ¢

D. Method of Appointment of Trastee. Any such appointment of a successor Trustee by
a person shall be made in a written instrument executed by such person in the presence of two witnesses
and acknowledged before a notary public which is delivered to such appointed Trustee during the
lifetime of the person making such appointment, or any such appointment of a successor Trustee by a
person may be made under the last Will of such person.

E. Limitations on Removal and Replacement Power. Any power fo remove and/or
replace a trustee hereunder that is granted to an individual (including such power when reserved to me)
is personal fo that individual and may not be exercised by a guardian, power of attorney holder, or other
legal representative or agent.

F. Successor Fiduciaries. No Trustee is responsible for, nor has any duty to inquire into,
the administration, acts or omissions of any executor, administrator, Petrsonal Representative, or trustee
ot attorney-in-fact adding property to these Trusts, or of any predecessor Trustee. Each successor Trustee
has all the powers, privileges, immunities, rights and title (without the execution of any instrument of
transfer or any other act by any retiring Trustee) and all the duties of all predecessors.

G. Liability and Indemnification of Trustee,

1. Liability in General. No individual Trustee (that is, a Trustee that is not a
corporation or other entity) shall be liable for any of his or her actions or failures to act as Trustee, even
if the individual Trustee is found by a court to have been negligent or in breach of fiduciary duty, except
for liability caused by his ot her actions or failures to act done in bad faith or with reckless indifference
to the purposes of the trust or the interests of the beneficiaries. Each Trugstee that is a corporation or other
entity will be liable for its actions or failures to act that are negligent or that breach its fiduciary duty,
without contribution by any individual Trustee.
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2. Indemnification of Trustee. Except in regard to liabilities imposed on a Trustee
under Subparagraph IV.G.1, each Trustee shall be held harmless and indemnified from the assets of the
trust for any liability, damages, attorney's fees, expenses, and costs incurred as a result of its service as
Trustee., A Trustee who ceases to serve for any reason will be entitled to receive teasonable security from
the assets of the trust to protect it from liability, and may enforce these provisions for indemnification
against the current Trustee or against any assets held in the trust, or if the former Trustee is an individual
and not a corporation or other entity, against any beneficiary to the extent of distributions received by
that beneficiary., This indemnification right extends to the estate, personal representatives, legal
successors and assigns of a Trustee,

3. Indemnification of Trustee - Additional Provisions. I recognize that ifa
beneficiary accuses a Trustee of wrongdoing or breach of fiduciary duty, the Trustee may have a conflict
of interest that ordinarily would prevent it from paying legal fees and costs from the trust estate fo defend
itself. I do not want to put a financial burden on any individual named to serve as a Trustee. Just as
important, I do not want an individual who has been selected to serve as a Trustee to be reluctant to
accept the position, or while setving to be intimidated in the performance of the Trustee's duties becanse
of'the threats of lawsuits that might force the Trustee to pay fees and costs from the Trustee's perscnal
resources. For this reason, I deliberately and intentionally waive any such conflict of interest with respect
to any individual serving as Trustee so that he or she can hire counsel to defend himselfor herself against
allegations of wrongdoing or if sued for any reason (whether by a beneficiary or by somecne else) and
pay all fees and costs for his or her defense from the trust estate until the dispute is resolved. Tunderstand
and agree that a court may award, disallow or allocate fees and costs in whole or in part after the dispute
is resolved, as provided by law. The Trustee will account for all such fees and costs paid by it as
provided by law. This provision shall not apply to any Trustee that is a corporation or other entity,

H. Compensation, Bond. Each Trustee is entitled to be paid teasonable compensation for
services rendered in the administration of the trust, Reasonable compensation for a non-individual
Trustee will be its published fee schedule in effect when its services are rendered unless otherwise
agreed in writing, and except as follows, Any fees paid to a non-individual Trustee for making principal
distributions, for termination of the trust, and upon termination of its services must be based solely on
the value of its services rendered, not on the value of the trust principal. During my {ifetime the Trustee's
fees are to be charged wholly against income (o the extent sufficient), unless directed otherwise by me
in writing, Each Trustee shall serve without bond.

L Maintenance of Records, The Trustee shall maintain accurate accounts and records,
It shall render annual statements of the receipts and disbursements of income and principal of a trust
upon the written request of any adult vested beneficiary of such trust or the guardian of the person of any
vested beneficiary and the approval of such beneficiary shall be binding upon all persons then or
thereafter interested in such trust as to the matters and transactions shown on such statement. The
Trustee may at any time apply for a judicial settlement of any account, No Trustee shall be required to
file any statutory or other periodic accountings of the administration of a trust.
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J. Interested Trustee. The Trustee may act under this Agreement even if interested in
these Trusts in an individual capacity, as a fiduciary of another trust or estate (including my estate) or
in any other capacity. The Trustee may in good faith enter into a sale, encumbrance, or othet transaction
involving the investment or management of trust property for the Trustee's own personal account or
which is otherwise affected by a conflict between the Trustee's fiduciary and personal interests, without
liability and without being voidable by a beneficiary. The Trustee is specifically authorized to make
loans to, to receive loans from, or to sell, purchase or exchange assets in a transaction with (i) the
Trustee's spouse, (ii) the Trustee's children or grandchildren, siblings, parents, or spouses of such
persons, (iii) an officer, director, employee, agent, or atiorney of the Trustee, or (iv) a corporation,
pattnership, limited liability company, or other business entity in which the Trustee has a financial
interest, provided that in any transaction the trusts hereunder receive fair and adequate consideration in
money or money's worth. The Trustee may renounce any interest or expectancy of a trust in, or an
opportunity to participate in, specified business opportunities or specified classes or categories of
business opportunities that are presented to the Trustee. Such renunciation shall not prohibit the Trustee
from participating in the Trustee's individual capacity in such opportunity or expectancy,

K. Third Parties. No one dealing with the Trustee need inquire into its authority or its
application of property.

L. Merger_of Trusts. If the Trustee is also trustee of a trust estabiished by myself or
another person by will or trust agreement, the beneficiaries to whom income and principal may then be
paid and then operative terms of which are substantially the same as those of a trust held under this
Agreement, the Trustee in jts discretion may merge either such trust into the other trust. The Trustee,
in exercising its discretion, shall consider economy of administration, convenience to the beneficiaries,
tax consequences and any other factor it considers important. If it is later necessary to reestablish the
merged trust as separate trusts, it shall be divided proportionately to the value of each trust at the time
of merger. :

M. Multiple Trustees. If two Trustees are serving at any time, any power or discretion of
the Trustees may be exercised only by their joint agreement, Either Trustee may delegate to the other
Trustee the authority to act on behalf of both Trustees and to exercise any power held by the Trustees,
If more than two Trustees ate serving at any time, and unless unanimous agreement is specifically
required by the terms of this Trust Agreement, any power or discretion of the Trustees may be exercised
only by a majority. The Trustees may delegate to any one or more of themselves the authority to act on
behalf of all the Trustees and to exercise any power held by the Trustees. Ttustees who consent to the
delegation of authority to other Trustees will be liable for the consequences of the actions of those other
Trustees as if the consenting Trustees had joined the other Trustees in performing those actions. A
dissenting Trustee who did not consent to the delegation of authority to another Trustee and who has not
joined in the exercise of a power or discretion cannot be held liable for the consequences of the exercise.
A dissenting Trustee who joins only at the direction of the majority will not be liable for the
consequences of the exercise if the dissent is expressed in writing delivered to any of the other Trustees
before the exercise of that power or discretion.
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ARTICLE V. ADDITIONAL TAX AND RELATED MATTERS
A. GST Trusts.

1. Family Trust. T direct (a) that the Trustee shali divide any trust other than the
Marital Trust to which there is allocated any GST exemption into two separate Trusts (each subject to
the provisions of this Trust Agreement relating to the trust that is being divided) so that the generation-
skipping tax inclusion ratio of one such trust is zero.

2. Marital Trust. I direct that, if possible, (a) the Trustee shall divide the Marital
Trust into two separate Marital Trusts (each subject to the provisions heteof concerning the Marital
Trust) so that through allocation of my GST exemption remaining unallocated at my death and not
otherwise allocated to transfers occurring at or by reason of my death (including allocations to the
Family Trust), if any, the generation-skipping tax inclusion ratio of one such Marital Trust is zero (the
GST Marital Trust), (b) my Personal Representative to exercise the election provided by Code Section
2652(a)(3) as to the GST Marital Trust, and (c) that upon the death of my spouse the total amount
recoverable by my spouse's estate from the property of the Marital Trusts under Code Section 2207A
shall first be recoverable in full from the non-GST Marital Trust to the extent thereof.

3. Misc, I direct that (a) upon the death of the survivor of me and my spouse, any
property then directed to be paid or distributed which constitutes a direct skip shall be paid first from
property then exempt from generation-skipping taxation (by reason of the allocation of any GST
exemption) to the extent thereof, (b) property exempt from generation-skipping taxation (by reason of
the allocation of any GST exemption) and not ditected to be paid or distributed in a manner which
constitutes a direct skip shall be divided and distributed as otherwise provided herein and held for the
same persons designated in Trusts separate from any property then also so divided which is not exempt
from generation-skipping taxation, and (c) ifupon the death of a beneficiary a taxable termination would
otherwise occur with respect to any property held in trust for him or her with an inclusion ratio greater
than zero, such beneficiary shall have with respect only to such properly a power to appoint such
fractional share thereof which if included in such beneficiary's gross estate for federal estate tax purposes
(without allowing any deduction with respect to such share) would not be taxed at the highest federal
estate tax rate and such fractional share of such property shall be distributed to such petsons including
only such beneficiary's estate, spouse, and lineal descendants, in such estates, interests, and proportions
as such beneficiary may, by a will specifically referring to this general power appoint, and any part of
atrust such beneficiary does not effectively appoint shall be treated as otherwise provided for disposition
upon his or her death, provided, if upon his or her death two or more Trusts for his or her benefit are
directed to be divided among and held or distributed for the same persons and the generation-skipping
tax inclusion ratio of any such trust is zero, the amount of any other such trust to which there is allocated
any of such beneficiary's GST exemption shall be added to the Trusts with generation-skipping tax
inclusion ratios of zero in equal shares, I request (but do not require) that if two or more Trusts are held
hereunder for any petson, no principal be paid to such person from the Trusts with the lower inclusion
ratios for generation-skipping tax purposes unless the trust with the highest inclusion ratio has been
exhausted by use, consumption, distribution, or otherwise or is not reasonably available.
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Notwithstanding any other provision of this Trust Agreement, for purposes of funding any pecuniary
payment or trust division to which there is allocated any GST exemption, such payment or trust division
allocation shall be satisfied with cash or property which fairly represents appreciation and depreciation
(occurring between the valuation date and the date of distribution) in all of the assets from which such
distribution or allocation could be made, and any pecuniary payment made before a residual transfer of
property to which any GST exemption is allocated shall be satisfied with cash or property which fairly
represents appreciation and depreciation (occurring between the valuation date and the date of
distribution) in all of the assets from which such pecuniary payment could be satisfied and shall be
allocated a pro rata share of income earned by all such assets between the valuation date and the date
of payment, In regard to the division or severance of a trust hereunder, including the Marital Trust, such
division or severance shall be made in a manner that all resulting trusts are recognized for purposes of
Chapter 13 of the Code, including without limitation complying with the requirements of Treas.Regs.
§26.2654-1(b). Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the valuation date with respect to any
property shall be the date as of which its value is determined for federal estate tax purposes with respect
to the transferor thereof, and subject fo the foregoing, property distributed in kind in satisfaction of any
pecuniary payment shall be selected on the basis of the value of such property on the valuation date. All
terms used in this Article which are defined or explained in Chapter 13 of the Code or the regulations
thereunder shall have the same meaning when used herein. The Trustee is authorized and directed to’
comply with the provisions of the Treasury Regulations intetpreting the generation skipping tax
provisions of the Code in severing or combining any trust, creating or combining separate trust shares,
allocating GST exemption, or otherwise, as necessary to best accomplish the foregoing allocations,
inclusion ratios, combinations, and divisions, including, without limitation, the payment of “appropriate
interest” as determined by the Trustee as that term is applied and used in said Regulations,

B. Individaal Retirement Accounts. In the event that this trust or any trust created under
this Agreement is the beneficiary of an Individual retirement account established and maintained under
Code Section 408 or a qualified pension, profit sharing or stock bonus plan established and maintained
under Code Section 401 (referred to in this paragraph as “IRA”), the following provisions shall apply
to such trust:

1. 1 intend that the beneficiaries of such trust shall be beneficiaries within the
meaning of Code Section 401(2)(9) and the Treasury Regulations thereunder. All provisions of such trust
shall be construed consistent with such intent. Accordingly, the following provisions shall apply to such
trust:

a, No benefits from any IRA may be used or applied for the payment of any
debts, taxes or other claims against my estate as set forth in the later paragraph captioned "Taxes", unless
other assets of this trust are not available for such payment,

b. In the event that a beneficiary of any trust created under this Agreement
has a testamentary general power of appointment or a limited power of appointment over all or any

portion of any trust established under this Agreement, and if such trust is the beneficiary of any benefits
from any IRA, the beneficiary shall not appoint any part of sueh trust to a charitable organization or to

SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN
TRUST AGREEMENT -23- Q}\

TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A. \/J)



a lineal descendant of mine (or a spouse of a lineal descendant of mine) who is older than the beneficiary
whose life expectancy is being used to calculate distributions from such IRA,

2. The Trustee shall deliver a copy of this Agreement to the custodian of any IRA
of which this trust or any trust created under this Agreement is the named beneficiary within the time
petiod prescribed Code Section 401(a)(9) and the Treasury Regulations thereunder, along with such
additional items required thereunder, If the custodian of the IRA changes after a copy of this Agreement
has been provided pursuant to the preceding sentence, the Trustee shall immediately provide a copy of
this Agreement to the new custodian. The Trustee shall request each custodian to complete a receipt of
the Agreement and shall attach such receipt to this Agreement. The Trustee shall provide a copy of each
amendment of this Agreement to the custodian and shall obtain a receipt of such amendment.

C. Gift Transfers Made From Trust During My Lifetime, I direct that all gift transfers
made from the trust during my lifetime be treated for all purposes as if the gift property had been first
withdrawn by (or distributed to) me and then transferred by me to the donees involved. Thus, in each
instance, even where title to the gift property is transferred directly from the name of the trust (or its
nominee) into the name of the donee, such transfer shall be treated for all purposes as first a withdrawal
by (or distribution of the property to} me followed by a gift transfer of the property to the donee by me
as donor, the Trustee making the actual transfer in my behalf acting as my attorney in fact, this paragraph
being, to that extent, a power of attorney from me to the Trustee to make such transfer, which power of
attorney shall not be affected by my Disability, incompetence, or incapacity.

D. Death Costs. 1f upon my death the Trustee hold any United States bonds which may be
redeemed at par in payment of federal estate tax, the Trustee shall pay the federal estate tax due because
of my death up to the amount of the par value of such bonds and interest accrued thereon at the time of
payment. The Trustee shall also pay from the trust all of my following death costs, but if there is an
acting executor, administrator or Personal Representative of my estate my Trustee shall pay only such
amounts of such costs as such executor, administrator or Personal Representative directs:

1. my debts which are allowed as claims against my estate,

2, my funeral expenses without regard to legal limitations,

3. the expenses of administering my estate,

4, the balance of the estate, imheritance and other death taxes (excluding

generation-skipping transfer taxes unless arising from direct skips), and interest and penalties thereon,
due because of my death with respect to all property whether or not passing under my Will or this
Agreement (other than propetty over which I have a power of appointment granted to me by another
person, and qualified terminable interest property which is not held in a trust that was subject to an
election under Code Section 2652(a)(3) at or about the time of its funding) and life insurance proceeds
on policies insuring my life which proceeds are not held under this trust or my probate estate at or by
reason of my death), and
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5, any gifts made in my Will or any Codicil thereto.

The Trustee may make any such payment either to my executor, administrator or Personal
Representative or directly to the proper party. The Trustee shall not be reimbursed for any such payment,
and is not responsible for the correctness or application of the amounts so paid at the direction of my
executor, administrator, or Personal Representative, The Trustee shall not pay any of such death costs
with any asset which would not otherwise be included in my gross estate for federal or state estate or
inheritance tax purposes, or with any asset which otherwise cannot be so used, such as property received
under a limited power of appeintment which prohibits such use. Further, no payment of any such death
costs shall be charged against or paid from the property disposed of pursuant to the prior paragraphs
captioned “Disposition of Tangible Personal Property”, “Specific Cash Devise” nor from the Marital
Trust.

L. Marital Trust. I intend the maximum obtainable reduction of federal estate tax due by
treason of my death by use of the federal estate tax marital deduction, and qualification ef all property
of the Marital Tryst for the marital deduction, This Agreement shall be construed and all powers shall
be exercised consistent with such intent. For example, the Trustee shall not allocate any receipt to
principal or any disbursement to income if such allocation understates the net income of the Marital
Trust under Florida law; and upon the written demand of my spouse, the Trustee shall convert
unproductive or underpraductive propetty of said trust into productive property within a reasonable time
notwithstanding any other provision hereunder. The foregoing not withstanding, if my spouse survives
me but dies within six months after my death, the Marital Trust provided in Subparagraph [LB will be
reduced to that amount, if any, required to obtain for my estate an estate tax marital deduction resulting
in the lowest combined estate taxes in my estate and my spouse's estate, on the assumption that my
spouse died afier me on the date of my death, that my spouse's estate is valued on the same date and in
the same manner as my estate is valued for federal estate tax purposes, and that elections in my spouse's
estate were made that would be consistent with minimizing taxes. The purpose of this provision is to
equalize, insofar as possible, our estates for federal estate tax purposes, based on the above assumptions.

F. Subchapter S Stock. Regardless of anything herein to the contrary, in the event that after
my death the principal of a trust includes stock in a corporation for which there is a valid election to be
treated under the provisions of Subchapter S of the Code, the income beneficiary of such a trust is a U.S.
citizen or U.S. resident for federal income tax purposes, and such trust is not an “electing small business
trust" under Code Section 1361(e)(1) in regard to that corporation, the Trustee shall (a) hold such stock
as a substantially separate and independent share of such trust within the meaning of Code Section
663(c), which share shall otherwise be subject to all of the terms of this Agreement, (b) distribute all of
the imcome of such share to the one income beneficiary thereof in annual or more frequent installments,
(c) upon such beneficiary's death, pay all accrued or undistributed income of such share to the
beneficiary's estate, (d) distribute principal from such share during the lifetime of the income beneficiary
only to such beneficiary, notwithstanding any powers of appointment granted to any persen including
the income beneficiary, and (e) otherwise administer such share in a manner that qualifies it as a
"qualified Subchapter S trust" as that term is defined in Code Section 1361(d)(3), and shall otherwise
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manage and administer such share as provided under this Agreement to the extent not inconsistent with
the foregoing provisions of this paragraph.

G. Residence as Homestead. Regardless of anything herein to the contrary, while any
residential real property located in Florida is owned by a trust, I, or my spouse if I am not then living and
such trust is the Marital Trust, shall have the right to use, possess and occupy such residence as a
personal residence so that such right shall constitute a possessory right in such real property within the
meaning of Florida Statute Section 196.041.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Trust Agreement on the date
first above written,

SETTLOR and TRUSTEE:

SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN

This instrument was signed by SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN in our presence, and at the request of
and in the presence of SH]RLEY BERNSTEIN and each other, we subsctibe our names as witnesses on

this S© , 2008:
Print Name: . SPALLINA Print Name:_72AC! & 24TIeM .
Address: Address:_lbo46R CQIENCREST AVENIE

FE-33076 Decoy AeacH, Fr 2394
’

STATE OF FLORIDA
S8,
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this () day of M (1 u ,2008,
by SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN. '

LOTARY PUBLICSTATE Moran mdu [\M
¢ o wiin,, . com'ﬂ'lbeoﬂy DD7 66661?2 \ m m

g 2 28, 3 Signature - Notary Public-State of Florida
3 iress APR.
'u..,m‘ mnnx pm.mﬂcsoﬂnﬂ*“"“ .

[Sea‘i W1th Commission Expiration Date]

Print, type or stamp name of Notary Public

Personally Kﬁown bg / or Produced Identification

Type of Identification Produced
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ATTACHMENT
The following property has been delivered in trust under this Agreement:
One Dollar ($1.00) Cash
During my life, the Trustee has no duty to maintain, invest, review, insure, account for, or any
other responsibility with respect to trust property other than income producing property, or any duty to

pay premiums on life insurance payable to the trust, and shalljreceive no fee for its services as Trustee
based on any trust property other than income producing prop

SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN, Settlor and Trustee
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FIRST AMENDMENT TO
SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN TRUST AGREEMENT

This First Amendment is dated this day of , 2008, and is between
SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN of Palm Beach County, Florida referred to in the first person, as settlor, and
SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN of Palm Beach County, Florida as trustee (referred to as the " Trustee,” which
term more particularly refers to all individuals and entitics serving as trustee of a trust created hereunder
during the time of such setvice, whether alone or as co-trustees. and whether originally serving ot as a

successor frustee).

“WH EREAS, onMay 20,2008, | created and funded the SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN TRUST
AGREEMENT (the “Trust Agreemwent,” which reference includes any subsequeni amendments of sald
trust agreement);

. WHEREAS, Paragraph A. of Article I. of said Trusi Agreement provides, inter alia, that during
my lifetime I shall have the right at any time and from Eime 10 time by an instrument, in writing,
delivered to the Trustee to amend or revoke the said Trust Agreement, in whole or in pari.

NOW THEREFORE, by executing this insfrument, | hereby amend the Trust Agreament as
follows:

1. Thereby delete Paragraph B. of Article I1. in its entirety.

3. [ hereby ratify and reaffirm the Trust Agreement as amended by this First Amendiment.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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IN WITNESS WHERBOP the parties hereto have execn cd this First Amenchment on the date
< first above written,

SETTLOR and TRUSTER:

-~

SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN

This instrument was sig,nod by SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN in our presence, and at the request of
and in the presence of "ST EY BERNSTEIN and each other, we subscl ibe our names as vsntnesscs

on this / ,D day of S ,2008;
e T F . .
7 (o A

T PnntWé aeied itk

o T . W
Address: / THERIA AV Address: {90 Vlenz e, Cpad Sy »&fm
Banrt gﬁg gg g;ggg e 274
: %@’?ﬁﬁﬁ. Flo HoH3-

STATE OF FLORIDA

/

. 8S.
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH

The tore;,omo instrument was-acknowledged before me this ﬂ_ day of _fL Véff' ZX’/’ ,2008,

by SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN. .
DA ) A
Rt P A YN
o1

o e Wﬁ?ﬁg Mi; L MB 0N

¢ % ::E%. = ,\‘?R f{ﬁ&,s«: Siguntita - Nolury Public-Slate {T Flocds -
Seal with Commission Ex iration Date]
[ P

Peiin, lype of skmp nanb 6F Nolory Public

Personally Known __ / __or Produced Identification
Type of Identificalion Produced
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WILL OF

SIMON L. BERNSTEIN

Prepared by:

Tescher & Spallina, P.A.
4855 Technology Way, Suite 720, Boca Raton, Florida 33431
(561) 997-7008 *
-www.tescherspallina.com
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: ™ Will OF The original of this WAl is being
~OUE QﬂMED COFY held in the safe deposit box of the
COH law firm of Tescher & Spallina, PA,

SIMON L. BERINSTEIN

1, SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, of Palm Beach County, Florida, hereby revoke all my prior Wills
and Codicils and make this Will. 1 am a widower, but in the event that ] marry subsequent to the
execution of this Will, ] specifically make no provision for my spouse. My children are TED S.
BERNSTEIN, PAMELA B. SIMON, ELIOT BERNSTEIN, JILL IANTONI and LISA S. FRIEDSTEIN.

ARTICLE I, TANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY

] give such items of my tangible personal propesty to such persons as 1 may designate in a
separate written memorandum prepared for this purpose, I give to my children who stirvive me, divided
among them as they agree, or if they fail te agree, divided among them by my Personal Representatives
inasnearly equal shares as practical my personal effects, jewelry, collections, household furnishings and
equipmert, automobiles and all ather non-business tangible personal property other thao cash, not
effectively disposed of by such memorandum, and if no child of mine survives roe, this property shall
pass with the residue of my estate.

ARTICLE II. EXERCISE OF POWER OF APPOINTMENT

Under Subparagraph E.1. of Article I1. of the SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN TRUST AGREEMENT

dated May 20,2008, (the "Shirley Trust"), 1 was granted a special power of appointment upon my death

- to direct the disposition of the remaining assets of the Marital Trust and the Family Trust established

under the Shirley Trust. Pursuant to the power granted to me under the Shirley Trust, upon my. death,

I hereby direct the then serving Trustees of the Marital Trust and the Family Trust to divide the

remaining trust assets into equal shares for my then living grandchildren and distribute said shares to the

then serving Trustees of their respective trusts established under Subparagraph 11.B. of my Existing
Trust, as referenced below, and administered pursuant to Subparagraph I1.C. thereunder.

ARTICLE HI RESIDUE OF MY ESTATE

1 give all the residue of my estate, including my hoinestead, to the Trustee then serving under
my revocable Trust Agreement dated May 20, 2008, as amended and restated from time to time and on
even date herewith (the "Existing Frust"), 13 Trustee without bond, but ] do not exercise any powers of
appointment held by me except as provided in Article II., above, and in the later paragraph titled "Death
Costs." The residue shall be added to and become a part of the Existing Trust, and shall be held under
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the provisions of said Agreement in effect at-my death, or if this is not permitted by applicable law or
the Existing Trust is not then in existence, under the provisions of said Agreement as existing today. If
necessary to give effect to this gift, but not otherwise, said Agreement as existing today is incorporated
herein by reference.

ARTICLE IV. PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVES

1. Appointent and Bond. | appoint ROBERT L. SPALLINA and DONALD R.
TESCHER 1o serve together as my co-Personal Representatives, or either of them alone as Personal
Representative if either of themn is unable to serve (the "fiduciary™). Each fiduciary shal] serve without
bond and have all of the powers, privileges and inimunities granted to my fiduciary by this Will or by
law, provided, however, that my fiduciary shali exercise all powers in a fiduciary capacity.

2. Powers of Personal Representafives. My fiduciary may exercise its powers without
court approval. No one dealing with my fiduciary need inquire into its authority or'its application of
property. My fiduciary shall have the following powers: '

a. Investments. To sell or exchange at public or private sale and on credit or
otherwise, with or without security, and to lease for any term or perpetually, any property, real and
personal, at any time forming a part of my probate estate (the "esfaze"); to grant and exercise options to
buy or sell; to invest or reinvest in real or personal property of every kind, description and Jocation; and
to receive and retain any such property whether originally a part of the estate, or subsequently acquired,
even if a fiduciary is personally interested in such property, and without liability for any decline in the
value thereof;, all without limitation by any statutes or judicial decisions, whenever enacted or
announced, regulating investments or requiring diversification of investments.

b. Distributions or Divisions. To distribute directly to any beneficiary who is then
entitled to distribution under the Existing Trust; to make any division or distribution pro rata or non-pro
rata, in cash or in kind; and to allocate undivided interests in property and dissimilar property (without
regard to its tax basis) to different shares, and to make any distribution to a minor or any other
incapacitated person directly to such person, to his or her legal representative, to any person responsible
for or assuming his or her care, or in the case of 2 minor to an adult person or an eligible institution
(including a fiduciary) selected by my fiduciary as custodian for such minor under the Uniform Transfers
to Minors Act or similar provision of law. The receipt of such payee is a complete release to the
fiduciary.

c. Management. To manage, develop, improve, partition or change the character
of or abandon an asset or interest in property at any time; and to make ordinary and extraordinary
repairs, replacements, alterations and improvements, structural or otherwise.

d. Borrowing. To borrow money from anyone onn commercially reasonable terms,
including a fiduciary, beneficiaries and other persons who may have a direct or indirect interest in the
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estate; and to mortgage, margin, encumber and pledge real and personal property of the estate as security
for the payment thereof, without incurring any personal liability thereon and to do so for a term within
or extending beyond the terms of the estate and tcrenew, modify or extend existing borrowing on similar
or different terms and with the same or different security without incurring any personal Hability; and
such borrowing from my fiduciary may be with or without imterest, and may be secured with a lien on
the estate assets or any beneficiary's interest in sajd assets,

e. Lending. To extend, modify or waive the terms of any obligation, bond or
mortgage at any time forming a part of the estate and to foreclose any such morlgage; accept a
conveyance of encumbered property, and take title to the property securing it by dead in lieu of
foreclosure or otherwise and to satisfy or not satisfy the indebtedness securing said property; to protect
or redeem any such property from forfeiture for nonpayment oftaxes or other lien; generally, to exercise
as to such bond, obligation or mortgage al] powers that an absolute owner might exermse and to loan
funds to beneficiaries at commercially reasonable rates, terms and conditions.

f. Abandonment of Property. To abandon any property cr asset when it is valueless
or so encumbered or in such condition that it is of no benefit to the estate. To abstain from the payment
of taxes, liens, rents, assessments, or repairs on such property and/or permit such property tec be lost by
tax sale, foreclosure or other proceeding or by conveyance for nominal or no consideration to anyone
ncluding a charity or by escheat to a state; ail without persona) liability incurred therefor.

g Real Property Matters. To subdivide, develop or partition real estate; to dedicate
the same to public use; to make or obtain the location of any plats; to adjust boundaries; to adjust
differences in valuations on exchange or partition by giving or receiving consideration; and, to grant
easements with or without consideration as they may determing; and to demolish any bailding,
structures, walls and improvements, or to erect new buildings, structures, walils and improvements and
to insure against fire and other risks.

h. Claims. To enforce, compromise, adjust, arbitrate, release or otherwise séttlc or
pay any claims or demands by or against the estate.

1. Business Entities. To deal with any business entity or enterprise even if a
fiduciary is or may be a fiduciary of or own interests in said business entity or enterprise, whether
operated in the form of a corporation, partnership, business trust, limited liability company, joint venture,
sole proprietorship, or other form (all of which business entities and enterprises are referred to herein
as "Business Enfities"). 1 vest the fiduciary with the following powers and authority in regard to
Business Entities:

To retain and continue to operate a Business Entity fo1 such period as the
fiduciary deems advxsa.b]e, .

ii. To control, direct and manage the Business Entities. In this connection, the
fiduciary, in its sole discretion, shall determine the manmer and extent of its active participation in the
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operation and may delegate all or any part of its power to supervise and operate to such person or
persons as the fiduciary may select, including any associate, partner, officer or employee of the Business

Entity;

iif. To hire and discharge officers and employees, fix their compensation and
define their duties; and similat]ly to employ, compensate and discharge agents, attomeys, consultants,
accountants, and such other representatives as the fiduciary may deem appropriate; including the right
to employ any beneficiary or fiduciary in any of the foregoing capacities;

jv. To invest funds in the Business Entities, 10 'pJ edge other assets of the estate
or a trust as security for loans made to the Business Entities, and to lend funds from my estate or a trust
to the Business Entities;

v. To organize one or more Business Entities under the Jaws of this or any other
state or country and to transfer thereto all or any part of the Business Entities or other property of my
estate or a trust, and to receive in exchange such stocks, bonds, partnership and member interests, and
such other securmes or interests as the fiduciary may deem advisable;

vi. To treat Business Entities as separate from my estate or a trust. In a
fiduciary's accounting to any beneficiary, the fiduciary shall only be required to report the earnings and
condition of the Business Entities in accordance with standard business accounting practice;

vii. Toretain in Business Entities such net earnings for working capital and other
purposes of the Business Entities as the fiduciary may deem advisable in conformity with sound business
practice;

viii. To sell or liquidate all or any part of the Business Entities at such time and
price and upon such terms and conditions (including credit) as the fiduciary may determine. My
fiduciary is specifically authorised and empowered to make such sale to any persosn, including any
partner, officer, or employee of the Business Entities, a fiduciary, or to any beneficiary; and

ix. To guaranty the obligations of the Business Entities, or pledge assets of the
estate or 2 trust to secure such a guaranty,

Je Life Insurance. With respect to any life insurance policies constituting an asset
of the estate to pay premiums; to apply dividends in reduction of such premiums; to borrow against the
cash vajues thereof; to convert such policies into other forms of insurance including paid-up insurance;
1o excreise any settlement options provided in any such policies; to receive the proceeds of any policy
upon its maturity and to administer such proceeds as a part of the principal of the estate or frust; and in
general, to exercise all other options, benefits, rights and privileges under such policies; provided,
howeyer, no fiduciary other than a sole fiduciary may exercise any incidents of ownership with respect
to policies of insurance insuring the fiduciary's own life.
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k. Reimbursement. To reimburse itself from the estate for all reasonable expenses
incurred in the administration thereof.

l. Voting. Te vote and give proxies, with power of substitution to vote, stocks,
bonds and other securities, or not to vote a security.

m. Ancillary Administration. To appoint or nominate, and replace with or without
cause, any persons or corporations, including itself], as ancillary administrators to adminisler property
in other jurisdictions, with the same powers, privileges and immunities as my fiduciary and without
bond. -

n. Tax Elections. To file tax returns, and to exercise all tax-related elections and
options at their discretion, without compensating adjustments or reimbursements between any accounts
or‘any beneficiaries.

3. Survivorship. A beneficiary is not deemed to survive me unless he of she survives me
by five days. ’

4, Death Costs. My fiduciary shall pay (a) from the residuary estate my debts which are
allowed as claims against my estate, (b) from the residuary estate my funeral expenses without regard
to legal limitations, (¢) from the residuary estate the expenses of administering my estate and (d) from
the residuary estate other than the portion of the residuary estate qualifying for the marital deduction
under the laws then in effect, without apportionment, all estate, inheritance and succession taxes
(excluding generation-skipping taxes other than with respect to direct skips), and interest and penalties
thereon, due because of my death and attributable to all property whether passing under this Will or
- otherwise and not required by the terms of the Existing Trust to be paid out of said trust. However, such
taxes, penaltics and interest payable out of my residuary estate shall not include taxes, penalties and
interest attributable to (i) property over which 1 have a power of appointment granted to me by another
person, (ii) qualified terminable interest property held in a trust of which 1 was the income beneficiary
at the time of my death (other than qualified terminable interest propeity held in a trust for which an -
election was made under Code Section 2652(2)(3)), and (iii) life insurance proceeds on policies insuring
my life which proceeds are not payable to my probate estate. My fiduciary shall not be reimbursed for
any such payment from any person or property. However, my fiduciary in its discretion may direct that
part or all of said death costs shall be paid by my Trustee as provided in the Existing Trust, and shall
give such direction to the extent necessary so that the gifts made in Article | of this Will and the gifts
made in any codicil hereto shall not be reduced by said death costs. If the amount of the above-described
taxes, and interest and penalties arising by reason of my death (without regard to where payable from
under the terms of this paragraph or applicable iaw) is increased because of the power of appointment
granted to me under Subparagraph [1.E.1. of the SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN TRUST ACREEMENT dated
May 20, 2008, I hereby appoint to my probate estate from the property subject to such power (to the
extent allowable under such power) the amount of such increase (calculating such increase atthe highest
applicable marginal rates) and exercise such power to this extent only, and notwithstanding the other
provisions of this paragraph further direct mmy fiduciary to make payment of such increase in taxes,
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interest and penalties to the appropriate taxing authorities from the appointed property or the proceeds
thereof . Any trustee holding such appointive property may pay to my fiduciary the amount which my
fiduciary certifies as due under this paragraph and is not responsible for the correctness or application
of amounts so paid.

5. Reimbursement for Debts and Expenses. My fiduciary shall promptly reimburse my
friends and members of my family who have disbursed their own funds for the payment of any debts,

funeral expenses or costs of administration of my estate.

é. Expenses of Handling Tangible Personal Property. All expenses incurred by my
" fiduciary during the settlement of my estate in appraising, storing, packing, shipping, delivering or
insuring an article of tangible personal property passing under this W]]l shal! be charged as an expense
of administering my estata

7. Dealing with Estate. Each fiduciary may act under this Will even if interested in my
estate in an individual capacity, as a fiduciary of another estate or trust (incjuding any trust identified
in this Will or created under the Existing Trust) or in any other capacity. Bach fiduciary may in good
faith buy from, sel] to, lend funds to or otherwise deal with my estate.

8. Spouse. The term "spouse” herein means, as to a designated indjvidual, the person to
whom that individual is from time to time married. :

9. Other Beneficiary Designations. Except as otherwise explicitly and with particularity
provided herein, () no provision of this Will shall revoke or modify any beneficiary designation ofmine
made by me and not revoked by me prior to my death under any individual retirement accouni, other
retirement plan or account, or annuity or insurance contract, (b) I hereby reaffirm any such beneficiary
designation such that any assets held in such account, plan, or contract shall pass in accordance with
such designation, and (c) regardless of anything herein to the contrary, any of such assets which would
otherwise pass pursuant to this Will due to the beneficiary designation not having et the requirements
for a valid testarnentary disposition under applicable law or otherwise shall be paid as a gift made
hereunder to the persons and in the manner provided in such designation which is incorporated herein -
by this reference.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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1 have published and signed this instrument as my Will at Boca Raton, Florida, on the 25 ciay of

July »2012.

/s/ Simon L. Bernstein
SIMON L. BERNSTEIN

This instrument, consisting of this page numbered 7 and the preceding typewritten pages, was
signed, sealed, published and declared by the Testator to be the Testator's Will in our presence, and at
the Testator's request and in the Testator's presence, and in the presence of each other, we have

subscribed our names as witnesses at Boca Raton, Floridaonthis_35 dayof  July ,
2012, .
/s/_Robert L. Spallina residingat Robert L. Spallina
[Witess Sigaataee} 7387 Wisteria“fweide
Parkland, PL 33076 ’
(Witness Address]
/s/_Kimberlv Moran residing at Kimberly Moran
e Santire] 6362 Las Flor¥s=prive

Boca Raton, FL 33433

[Witness Addsess)
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State Of Florida

SS.
County Of Palm Beach

I, SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, declare to the officer taking my acknowledgment of this instrument,
and to the subscribing witnesses, that 1 signed this instrument as my will. '

/s/ Simon L. Bernstein
SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, Testator

We, _ Robert L. Spallina ~_and__Kimberly Moran ,
have been sworn by the officer signing below, and declare to that officer on our oaths that the Testator
declared the instrument to be the Testator's will and signed it in our presence and that we each signed
the instrument as a witness in the presence of the Testator and of each other.

;

/s/ Robert L. Spallina
Witness

/s/ Kimberly Moran
Withess

Acknowledged and subscribed before me, by the Testator, SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, who is
personally known to e or who has produced (state type

of identification) as identification, and sworn to and subscribed before me by the witnesses,
Robert L. Spallina ., who is personally known to me or who has

produced. (state type of identification) as identification,
and Kimberly Moran , ' who is personally known to me or who has
produced (state type of identification) as identification,

and subscribed by me in the presence of SIMON L. BERNSTEIN and the subscribing witnesses, all on
this_25 dayof July , 2012.

Commission No. BE092282 /s/ Lindsay Baxley
Expires May 10 : 2 015 Sipnature - Nolary Publie-State of Florids
[Seal with Commission Expiration Date])

Lindsay Baxley
- Prini, type or stamnp name of Notary Pubbe
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SIMON L. BERNSTEIN

AMENDED AND RESTATED TRUST AGREEMENT o

This Amended and Restated Trust Agreement is dated this “@/day f ,2012,
and is between SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, of Palm Beach County, Florida refer#ed to A1 the first person,
as settlor, and SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, of Palm Beach County, Florida and ON-L. BERNSTEIN's

successors, as trustee (referred to as the "Trustee,” which term more particularly refers to all individuals
and entities serving as trustee of a trust created hereunder during the time of such service, whether alone
or as co-trustees, and whether originally serving or as a successor trustee).

WHEREAS, on May 20, 2008, ] created and funded the SIMON L. BERNSTEIN TRUST
AGREEMENT (the “Trust Agreement,” which reference includes any subsequent amendmenm of said
trust agreernent);

WHEREAS, Paragraph A. of Article I. of said Trust Agreement provides, inter alia, that during
my lifetime I shall have the right at any time and from time to time by an instrument, in writing,
delivered to the Trustee to amend or revoke said Trust Agreement, in whole or in part.

NOW, THEREFORE, I hereby amend and restate the Trust Agreement in its entirety and the
Trustee accepts and agrees to perform its duties and obligations in accordance with the following
amended provisions. Notwithstanding any deficiencies in execution or other issues in regard to whether
any prior version of this Trust Agreement was a valid and binding agreement or otherwise created an
effective trust, this amended and restated agreement shall constitute a valid, binding and effective trust
agreement and shall amend and succeed all prior versions described above or othérwise predating this
amended and restated Trust Agreement.

ARTICLE 1. DURING MY LIFE AND TPON MY DEATH

A, Rights Reserved. I reserve the right (a) to add property to this trust during my life oron
my death, by my Will or otherwise; (b) to withdraw property held hereunder; and (c) by separate written
imstrument delivered fo the Trustee, to revoke this Agreement in whole or in part and otherwise modify
or amend this Agreement.

B. Payments During My Life, If income producing propetty is held in the trust during my
life, the Trustee shall pay the net income of the frust to me or as 1 may direct. However, during any
periods while ] amn Disabled, the Trustee shall pay to me or on my behalf such amounts of the net income
and principal of the trust as is proper for my Welfare. Any income not so paid shall be added to
principal. .
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B OR Upon My Death. Upon my death the Trustee shall collect and add to the trust all
amounts due to the trust under any insurance policy on my life or under any death benefit plan and all
property added to the trust by my Will or otherwise. After paying or providing for the payment from the
augmented trust of all current charges and any amounts payable under the later paragraph captioned
"Death Costs," the Trustee shall hold the trust according to the following provisions.

ARTICLE II. AFTER MY DEATH

© Al Disposition of Tangible Personal Property. If any non-business tangible personal

property other than cash (including, but not limited to, my personal effects, jewelry, collections,
household furnishings, and equipment, and automobiles) is held in the trust at the time of my death, such
items shall be promptly distributed by the Trustee of the trust to such person or persons, including my -
estate, as to the item or items or proportion specified, as | may appoint, and to the extent that any such
iterns are not disposed of by such appointment, such items shall be disposed of by the Trustee of the trust
in exactly the same manner as such items would have been disposed of under the terms,and provisions
of my Will (including any Codicil thereto, or what the Trustee in good faith believes to be such Will and
Codicil) had such items been included in my probate estate. Any such items which are not effectively
disposed of pursuant to the preceding sentence shall pass with the other trust assets.

B. Disposition of Trust Upon My Death. Upon my death, the remaining assets in this trust
shall be divided among and held in separate Trusts for my then living grandchildren. Each of my
grandchildren for whom a separate trust is held hereunder shall hereinafter be referred to as a
"beneficiary" with the separate Trusts to be administered as provided in Subparagraph JI.C.

C. Trusts for Beneficiaries. The Trustee shall pay to the beneficiary and the beneficiary's
children, such amounts of the net income and principal of such beneficiary's trust as is proper for the
Welfare of such individuals. Any income not so paid shall be added to principal each year. After a
beneficiary has reached any one or more of the following birthdays, the beneficiary may withdraw the
principal of his or her separate trust at any time or times, not to exceed in the aggregate 1/3 in value afier
the beneficiary's 25th birthday, 1/2 in value (after deducting any amount previously subject to
withdrawal but not actually withdrawn) after the beneficiary's 30th birthday, and the balance after the -
beneficiary's 35th birthday, prowded that the withdrawal powers described in this sentence shall not

. apply to any grandchild of mine as beneficiary of a separate trust, The value of each trust shall be its

valve as of the first exercise of each withdrawal right, plus the value of any subsequent addition as of
the date of addition. The right of withdrawal shall be a privilege which may be exercised only voluntarily
and shall not include an involuntary exercise, If a beneficiary dies with assets remaining in his or her
separate trust, upon the beneficiary's death the beneficiary may appoint his or her trust to or for the
benefit of one or more of any of my lineal descendants (excluding from said class, however, such
beneficiary and such beneficiary's creditors, estate, and creditors of such beneficiary's estate). Any part
of his or her trust such beneficiary does not effectively appoint shall upon his or her death be divided
among and held in separate Trusts for the following persons:
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L. for his or her lineal descendants then living, per stirpes; or

2. if he or she leaves no lineal descendant then Iivihg, per stirpes for the lineal
descendants then living of his or her nearest ancestor (among me and my lineal descendants) with a
lineal descendant then living.

A trust for a lineal descendant of mine shall be held under this paragraph, or if a trost is then so held,
shalf be added to such trust.

D, Termination of Small Trust. If af any time after my death in the opinion of the Trustee
a separate trust holds assets of a value of less than $50,000.00 and is too small to justify the expense of
its retention, and termination of such trust is in the best interests of its current mecome beneficiary, the
Trustee in its discretion may terminate such trust and pay it to said beneficiary.

E, Contingent Gift. [f at any time property of these Trusts is not disposed of under the other
provisions of this Agreement, it shall be paid, as a gift made hereunder, to such persons and in such
shares as such property would be distributed if 1 had then owned such property and had then died
solvent, unmarried and intestate domiciled in the State of Florida, according to the laws of inheritance
of the State of Florida then in effect. ;

F. Protective Provision. No beneficiary of any trust herein created shall have any right or
power to anticipate, transfer, pledge, sell, alienate, assign or encumber in any way his or her interest in
the income or principal of such trust. Furthermore, no creditor shall have the right to attach, lien, seize
or levy upon the interest of a beneficiary in this trust (other than myself) and such interest shail not be
liable for or subject to the debits, liabilities or obligations of any such beneficiary or any claims against
such beneficiary (whether voluntarily or involuntarily created), and the Trustee shall pay directly to or
for the use ot benefit of such beneficiary all income and principal to which such beneficiary is entitled,
notwithstanding that such beneficiary has executed a pledge, assignment, encumbiance or in any other
manner alienated or transferred his or her beneficial interest in the trust to another, This paragraph shall
not preclude the effective exercise of any power of appointment granted herein or the exercise of any
disclaimer.

G, Maximum Duration, Regardless of anything in this Agreement to the contrary, no trust
interest herein created shall continue beyond three hundred sixty (360) years after the date of creation
of this Apreement, not shall any power of appointment be exercised in such manner so as to delay
vesting of any trust beyond such period. Immediately prior to the expiration of such period, all such
trusts then in existence shall terminate, and the assets thereof shall be distributed outright and in fee to
then beneficiaries of the current income and in the proportions in which such persons are the
beneficiaries, and if such proportions cannot be ascertained, then equally among such beneficiaries.

ARTICLE I'l. GENERAL
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A. Disability. Subjectto the following Subparagraph captioned "Subchapter 8 Stock," while
any beneficiary is Disabled, the Trustee shall pay to him or her only such portion of the income to which
he or she is otherwise entitled as is proper for his or her Welfare, and any income not so paid shall be
added to the principal from which derived. While any beneficiary is Disabled, income or principal
payable to him or her may, in the discretion of the Trustee, be paid directly to him or her, without the
intervention of a guardian, directly to his or het creditors or others for his or her sole benefit or to an
adult person or an eligible institution (including the Trustee) selected by the Trustee as custodian for a
minor beneficiary under the Uniform Transfers to Minors Act or similar law. The receipt of such payee
is a complete release to the Trustee.

B. Timing of Income Distributions. The Trustee shall make required payments of income
at least quarterly. ‘

C. Substance Abuse.

1. In General. If the Trustee reasonably believes that a beneﬁciziiry (other than
myself)of any trust:

a. routihely or frequently uses or consumes any illegal substance so as to
be physicaliy or psychologically dependent upon that substance, or

b. is clinically dependent upon the use or consumption of aleohol or any
other legal drug or chemical substahce that is not prescribed by a board certified medical doctor or
psychiatrist in a current program of treatment supervised by such doctor or psychiatrist,

and if the Trustee reasonably believes that as a result the beneficiary is unable to care for himself or
herself, or is unable to menage his or her financial affairs, all mandatory distributions (including
distributions upon termination of the trust) to the beneficiary, all of the beneficiary's withdrawal rights,
and all of the beneficiary's rights to participate in decisions conceming the removal and appointment of
Trustees will be suspended. In that event, the following provisions of this Subparagraph ILL.Cwill apply.

2. Testing. The Trustee may request the beneficiary to submit to one or more -
examinations (including laboratory tests of bodily fluids) determined to be appropriate by a board
certified medical doctor and to consent to full disclosure to the Trustee of the results of all such
examinations. The Trustee shall maintain strict confidentiality of those results and shall not disclose
those results to any person other than the beneficiary without the prior written permission of the
beneficiary. The Trustee may totally or partially suspend all distributions otherwise required or permitted
to be made to that beneficiary until the beneficiary consents to the examination and disclosure to the
Trustee. ) ' T

3. Treatment. If, in the opinion of the examining doctor, the examination indicates
current or recent use of a drug or substance as described above, the examining doctor will detexmine an
appropriate method of freatment for the beneficiary (for example, counseling or treatment on an
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in-patient basis in a rehabilitation facility) that is acceptable to the Trustee. If the beneficiary consents
to the treatment, the Trustee shall pay the costs of treatment directly to the provider of those services
from the distributions suspended under this Subparagraph 111.C,

4, Resumption of Distributions. The Trustee may resume other distributions to the
beneficiary (and the beneficiary's other suspended rights will be restored) when, in the case of use or
consumption of an illegal substance, examinations indicate no such use for 12 months and, in all cases,
when the Trustee in its discretion determines that the beneficiary is able to care for himself or herself
and is able fo manage his or her financial affairs.

5. Disposition of Suspended Amounts. When othér distributions to the beneficiary
are resumed, the remaining balance, if any, of distributions that were suspended may be distributed to
the beneficiary at that time, If the beneficiary dies before distribution of those suspended amounts, the
Trustee shall distribute the balance ofthe suspended amounts to the persons who would be the alternate
takers of that beneficiary's share (or takers through the exercise of a power of appomtment) as otherwise
provided in this Trust Agreement. ;

6. Exoneration. No Trustee (or any doctor retained by the Trustee) will be
responsible or liable to anyone for a beneficiary's actions or welfare. The Trustee has no duty to inquire
whether a beneficiary uses drugs or other substances as described inthis Subparagraph [11.C. The Trustee
(and any doctor retained by the Trustee) is to be indemnified from the trust estate and held harmless
from any liability of any nature in exercising its judgment and authority under this Subparagraph 111.C,
including any failure o request a beneficiary to submit to medical examination, and including a decision
to distribute suspended amounts to a beneficiary.

7. Tax Savings Provision. Despite the provisions of this Subparagraph 11{.C, the
Trustee cannot suspend any mandatory distributions or withdrawal rights that are required for that frust
to become or remain a Qualified Subchapter S Trust (unless the Trustee elects for the trust to be an
Electing Small Business Trust), ot to qualify for any federal transfer tax exemptmn, deduction, or
exclusion allowable with respect to that trust.

D. Income on Death of Beneficiary. Subject to the later paragraph captioned "Subchapter
S Stock," and except as otherwise explicitly provided berein, upon the death of any beneficiary, all
accrued or undistributed income of such deceased beneficiary's trust shall pass with the principal of his
or her trust but shall remain income for trust accounting purposes.

E. Definitions, In this Agreement,

1. Children. Lineal Descendants. The terms "child," “children," “grandchild,
"erandchildren" and “lineal descendant” mean only persons whose relationship to the ancestor
designated is created entirely by or through (a) legitimate births occurring during the marriage of the
joint biological parents to each other, (b) children born of female lineal descendants, and (c) children
and their lineal descendants arising from surrogate births and/or third party donors when (i) the child is
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raised from ornear the time of birth by a married couple (other than a same sex married couple) through
the pendency of such marriage, (ii) one of such couple is the designated ancestor, and (iii) to the best
knowledge of the Trustee both members of such couple participated in the decision to have such child.
No such child or lineal descendant loses his or her status as such through adoption by another person.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, for all purposes of this Trust and the dispositions made hereunder, my
children, TED S. BERNSTEIN, PAMELA B. SIMON, ELIOT BERNSTEIN, JILL IANTONI and LISA
S,FRIEDSTEIN, shall be deemed to have predeceased me as 1 have adequately provided forthem during
my lifetime,

2. Code. "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and in
referring to any particular provision of the Code, includes a reference to any equivalent or successor
provision of a successor federal tax law.

3. Disabled " Disabled" or being under "Disability" means, as to any applicable
individual: (1) being under the age of 21 years, (2) having been adjudicated by a court of competent
jurisdiction as mentally or physically incompetent or unable to manage his or her own property or
personal affairs (or a substantially similar finding under applicable state or national law), or (3) being
unable to properly manage his or her personal or fmancial affairs, or a trust estate hereunder as to a
Trustee hereunder, because of 2 mental or physical impairment (whether temporary or permanent in
nature), A written certificate executed by an individual's attending physician or attending psychiatrist
confirming that person's impairment will be sufficient evidence of Disability under item (3) above, and
all persons may rely conclusively on such a certificate.

4, Education. The term "edwcation" herein means vocational, primary, secondary,
preparatory, theological, college and professional education, including post-graduate courses of study,
at educational institutions or elsewhere, and expenses relating directly thereto, including tuition, books
and supplies, room and board, and travel from and to home during school vacations. It is intended that
the Trustee liberally construe and interpret references to "education," so that the beneficiaries entitled
to distributions hereunder for education obtain the best possible education commensurate with their
abilities and desires,

5. Needs and Welfare Distributions. Payments to be made for a person's "Needs"
means payments necessary for such person's health (including lifetime residential or nursinghome care),
education, maintenance and support. Payments to be made for a person's " Welfare" means discretionaty
payments by the Trustee, from time to time, for such person's Needs and also for such petson's
advancetment in life (including assistance in the purchase of 2 home or establishment or development
of any business or professional enterprise which the Trustee believes to be reasonably sound), happiness
and general well-being, However, the Trustee, based upon information reasonably available o it, shall
make such payments for a person's Needs or Welfare only to the extent such person's income, and funds
available from others obligated to supply funds for such purposes (including, without limitation, pursuant
to child support orders and agreements), are insufficient in its opinion for such purposes, and shall take
into account such person's accustomed manner of living, age, health, marital status and any other factor
it considers important. Income or principal to be paid for a person's Needs or Welfare may be paid to
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such individual or applied by the Ttustee directly for the benefit of such person. The Trustee may make
a distribution or application authorized for a person's Needs or Welfare even if such distribution or
application substantially depletes or exhausts such person's trust, without any duty upon the Trustee to
retain it for future use or for other persons who might otherwise benefit from such trust.

6. Per Stirpes. In a division "per stirpes" each generation shall be represented and
counted whether or not it has a living member. : '

7. Related or Subordinate Party. A "Related or Subordinate Party" to a trust’
describes a beneficiary of the subject trust or a related or subordinate party to a beneficiary of the trust
as the terms “related or subordinate party” are defined under Code Section 672(c).

8. Sponse. A person's "spouse” includes only a spouse then married to and living
as husband and wife with him or her, or a spouse who was married to and living as husband and wife
with him or her at his or her death. The following rules apply to each person who is a beneficiary or a
permissible appointee under this Trust Agreement and who is married to a descendant ¢f mine. Such a
person will cease to be a beneficiary and will be excluded from the class of permissible appointees upon:

a. the legal termination of the martiage to my descendant (whether before
or after my death), or

b. the death of my descendant if a dissolution of marriage proceeding was
pending when he or she died. .

The trust will be administered as if that person had died upon the happening of the terminating event
described above,

9. Gender, Number. Where appropriate, words of any gender include all genders
and the singular and plural are interchangeable.

F. Powers of Appointment. Property subject to a power of appoiniment shall be paid to,
or retained by the Trustee or paid to any trustee under any will or trust agreement for the benefit of, such
one or more permissible appointees, in such amounts and proportions, granting such interests, powers
and powers of appointment, and upon such conditions including spendthrift provisions as the holder of
such power (i) in the case of a power exercisable upon the death of such holder, appoints in his or her
will or in a trust agreement revocable by him or her until his or her deatly, or (ii) in the case of a power
exercisable during the life of such holder, appoints in a written instrument signed by such holder, two_
witnesses and a notary public, but in either case only if such will, trust agreement, or instrument
specifically refers to such power. .

G. Limitations on Powers of Trustee. Regardless of anything herein to the contrary, no
Trustee shall make or participate in making any distribution ofincome or principal of a trust to or for
the benefit of a beneficiary which would directly or indirectly discharge any legal obligation of such

SivoN L. BERNSTEIN
AMENDED AND RESTATED TRUST AGREEMENT -7-

LAW OFFICES

TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.




AN

Trustee or a donor of such trust (as an individual, and other than myself as donor) to support such
beneficiary; and no Trustee (other than myself) shall make or participate in making any discretionary
distribution of income or principal to or for the benefit of himself or herself othet than for his or her
Needs, including by réason of a determination to terminate a trust described herein. For example, if a
Trustee (other than myself) has the power to distribute income or principal to himself or herself for his
ot her own Welfare, such Trustee (the "restricted Trustee") shall only have the power to make or
participate iri making a distribution of income or principal to the restricted Trustee for the restricted
Trustee's Needs, although any co-Trustee who is not also a restricted Trustee may make or participate
in making a distribution of income or principal to the restricted Trustee for such restricted Trustee's
Welfare without the participation or consent of said restricted Trustee,

H. Presumption of Survivorship. Ifany person shall be required to survive another person
in order to take any interest under this Agreement, the former person shall be deemed to have
predeceased the latter person, if such persons die under circumstances which make it difficuit or
impracticable to determine which one died first, : -

1. . Governing Law. This Agreement is governed by the law of the State of Florida.

J. Other Beneﬁciggg Designations. Except as otherwise explicitly and with parti cularity
provided herein, (&) no provision of this frust shall revoke or modify any beneficiary designation of mine
made by me and not revoked by me prxor to my death under any individual retirement account, other
retirement plan or account, or annuity or insurance contract, (b) I hereby reaffirm any such beneficiary
designation such that any assets held in such account, plan, or contract shall pass in accordance with
such designation, and (c) regardless of anything herein to the contrary, any of such assets which would
otherwise pass pursuant to this trust due to the beneficiary designation not having met the requirements
for a valid testamentary disposition under applicable law or otherwise shall be paid as a gift made
hereunder to the perscns and in the manner provided in such designation which is incorporated herein
by this reference.

K. Release of Medical Information.

1. Disability of Beneficiary. Upon the written request of a Trustee (with or without
the concurrence of co-Trustees) issued to any current income or principal beneficiary (including
discretionary beneficiaries and myselfif a beneficiary) for whom a deterinination of Disability isrelevant
to the administration of a trust hereunder and for whom a Trustee {(with or without the concurrence of
co-Trustees) desires to make such a determination, such beneficiary shall issue to all Trustees (who shall
be identified thereon both by name to the extent known and by class description) a valid authorization
under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and any other applicable or
successor law authorizing all health care providers and ali medical sources of such requested beneficiary
to release protected health information of the requested beneficiary to'all Trustees that is relevant to the
determination of the Disability of the requested beneﬁmary as Disability is defined hereunder. The
period of each such valid authorization shall be for six months (or the earlier death of the requested
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beneficiary). If such beneficiary (or his or her legal representative if such beneficiary is a minor or
legally disabled) refuses within thirty days of receipt of the request to provide a valid authorization, or
at any time revokes an authorization within its term, the Trustee shall treat such beneficiary as Disabled
hereunder until such valid authorization is delivered.

2. Disability of Trustee, Upon the request to a Trustee that is an individval by (a)
aco-Trustee, or if none, (b) the person or entity next designated to serve as a successor Trustee not under
legal incapacity, or if none, (¢) any adult current income or principal beneficiary not under legal
incapacity, or in any event and at any time (d) a court of competent jurisdiction, such Trustee shall issue
to such person and all persons, courts of competent jurisdiction, and entities (who shall be identified
thereon both by name to the extent known and by class description), with authority hereunder to
determine such requested Trustee's Disability, a valid authorization under the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and any other applicable or successor law authotizing all
health care providers and all medical sources of such requested Trustee to release protected health
information of the requested Trustee to such persons, courts and entities, that is relevant to the
determination of the Disability of the requested Trustee as Disability is defined hereunder. The period
of each such valid authorization shall be for six months (or the earlier death or resignation of the
requested Trustee). If such requested Trustee refuses within thirty days of receipt of the requestto deliver
a valid authorization, or at any time revokes an authorization within its term, such requested Trustee
shall thereupon be treated as having resigned as Trustee hereunder.

3, " Ability to Amend or Revoke. The foregoing provisions of this paragraph shall
not constifute a restriction on myself to amend or revoke the terms of this trust instrument under
paragraph LA hereof, provided ] otherwise have legal capacity to do so.

4, Authorization to Issue Certificate. All required. anthorizations under this
paragraph shall include the power of a physician or psychiatrist to issue a written certificate to the
appropriate persons or entities as provided in Subparagraph 11L.E.3 hereof.

ARTICLE IV. FIDUCIARIES

A, Powers of the Trustee. During my life except while I am Disabled, the Trustee shall
exercise all powers provided by law and the following powers, other than the powerto retain assets, only
with my written approval. While 1 am Disabled and after my death, the Trustee shall exercise said
powers without approval, provided that the Trustee shall exercise all powers in a fiduciary capacity.

1. Investments. To sell or exchange: at public or private sale and on credit or
otherwise, with or without security, and to Jease for any term or perpetually, any property, real and
personal, at any time forming a part of the trust estate (the "estate™); to grant and exercise options to buy
or sell; to invest or reinvest in real or personal property of every kind, description and location; and to
receive and retain any such property whether originally a part of any trust herein created or subsequently
acquired, even if the Trustee is personally interested in such property, ‘and without liability for any
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decline in the value thereof; all without limitation by any statutes or judicial decisions whenever enacted
or announced, regulating investments or requiting diversification of investments, it being my intention
to give the broadest investment powers and discretion fo the Trustee, Any bank, trust company, or other
corporate trustee serving hereunder as Trustee is authorized to invest in its own common trust funds.

2. Special Investments. The Trustee is expressly authorized (but not directed) to
retain, make, hold, and dispose of investments not regarded as traditional for trusts, including interests
or investments in privately held business and investment entities and enterprises, including without
limitation stock in closely held corporations, limited partnership interests, joint venture interests, mutual
funds, business trust interests, and limited liability company membership interests, notwithstanding (a)
any applicable prudent investor rule or variation thereof, (b) common law or statutory diversification
requirements (it being my intent that no such duty to diversify shall exist) (c) a lack of current cash flow
therefrom, (d) the presence of any risk or speculative elements as compared to other available
investmenits (it being my intent that the Trustee have sole and absolute discretion in determining what
canstitutes acceptable risk and what constitutes proper investment strategy), (e) lack of a reasonable rate
of return, (f) risks to the preservation of principal, (g) violation of a Trustee's duty of irapartiality as to
different beneficiaries (it being my intent that no such duty exists for this purpose), and () similar
limitations on investment under this Agreement or under law perfaining to investments that may or
should be made by a Trustee (including without limitation the provisions of Fla.Stats, §518.11 and
successor provisions thereto that would characterize such investmentsas forbidden, imprudent, improper
ot unlawful). The Trustee shall not be responsible to any trust created hereunder or the beneficiaries
thereof for any loss resulting from any such authorized investment, including without limitation loss
engendered by the higher risk element of that particular entity, investment, or enterprise, the failure to
invest in more conservative investments, the failure to diversify trust assets, the prudent investor rule
or variant thereof, Notwithstanding any provisions for distributions to beneficiaries hereunder, if the
Trustee determines that the future potential investment return from any illiquid or closely held
investment asset warrants the retention of that investment asset or that sufficient value could not be
obtained from the sale or other disposition of an illiquid or closely held investment asset, the Trustee is
authorized to retain that asset and if necessary reduce the distributions to beneficiaries due to lack of
sufficient liquid or marketable assets, However, the preceding provisions ofthis Subparagraph shall not
be exercised in a manner as to jeopardize the availability of the estate tax marital deduction for assets
passing to or held in the a trust for my surviving spouse or that would otherwise qualify for the estate
tax marital deduction but for such provisions, shall not override any express powers hereunder of my
surviving spouse to demand conversion of unproductive property to productive property, or reduce any
income distributions otherwise required hereunder for a trust held for the benefit of my surviving spouse
ot 2 "qualified subchapter S trust" as that term is defined in Code Section 1361(d)(3).

3, Distributions. To make any division or distribution pro rata or non-pro rata, in
cash or in kind, and to allocate undivided interests in property and dissimilar property (w1thout regard
to its tax basis) to different shares.
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) 4. \/Ianagement To manage, develop, improve, partition or change the character
of an asset or interest in property at any time; and to make ordinary and extraordmary repairs,
replacements, alterations and improvements, structural or otherwise.

5.  Borrowing. To borrow money from anyone on commercially reasonable terms,
including entities owned in whole or in part by the trust, a Trustee, beneficiaries and other persons who
may have a direct or indirect interest in a Trust; and to mortgage, margin, encumber and pledge real and
personal property of a trust as security for the payment thereof, without incurring any personal liability
thereon and to do so for a term within or extending beyond the tetms of the trust and to renew, modify
or extend existing borrowing on similar or different terms and with the same or different security without
incurring any personal liability; and such borrowing from a Trustee may be with or without interest, and
may be secured with a lien on trust assets.

6. Lendmg. To extend, modify or waive the terms of any obligation, bond or
mortgage at any time forming a part of a frust and to foreclose any such mortgage; accept a conveyance
of encumbered property, and take title to the property securing it by deed in lieu of-foreclosure or
otherwise and to satisfy or not satisfy the indebtedness securing said property; to protect or redeem any
such property from forfeiture for nonpayment of taxes or other lien; generally, to exercise as to such
bond, obligation or mortgage all powers that an absolute owner might exercise; and to loan funds to
beneficiaries at commercially reasonable rates, terms and conditions.

7. Abandonment of Property. To abandon any property or asset when it is valueless
or so encumbered or in such condition that it is of no benefit to a trust. To abstain fiom the payment of
taxes, liens, rents, assessments, or repairs on such property and/or permit such property to be lost by tax
sale, foreclosure or other proceeding or by conveyance for nominal or no consideration to anyone
including a charity or by escheat tc a state; all Without persona.l liability incurred therefor.

8. Real Property Matters, To subd1v1de develop orpartition real estate; to purchase
or sell real property and to enter into contracts to do the same; to dedicate the same to public use; to
make ot obtain the location of any plats; to adjust boundaries; to adjust differences in valuations on
exchange or partition by giving or receiving consideration; and, to grant easements with or without
consideration as the fiduciaries may determine; and to demolish any building, structures, walls and
improvements, or to erect new buildings, structures, walls and improvements and to insure against fire
and other risks; and to protect and conserve, or to lease, or to encumber, or otherwise to manage and
dispose of real property ta the extent such power is not oﬂxerwme granted herein or otherwise restricted
herein.

9. Claims. To enforce, compromise, adjust, arbltrate, release or otherwise sett]e or
pay any claims or demands by or against a trust.

10.  BusinessEntities, To deal with any business entity or enterprise even ifa Trustee
is or may be a fiduciary of or own interests in said business entity or enterprise, whether operated in the
form of a corporation, partnership, business trust, limited liability company, joint venture, sole
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proprietorship, or other form (all of which business entities and enterprises are referted to herein as
“Business Entities"). 1 vest the Trustee with the following powers and authority in regard to Business
Entities;

a. To retain.and continue to operate a Business Entity for such pericd as the
Trustee deems advisable; .

b. To control, direct and manage the Business Entities. In this connection, the
Trustee, in its sole discretion, shall determine the manner and extent of its active participation in the
operation and may delegate. all or any part of ifs power to supervise and operate to such person or
persons as the Trustee may select, including any associate, partner, efficer or employee of the Business
Entity;

c. To hire and discharge officers and employees, fix theirr compensation and
define their duties; and similarly to employ, compensate and discharge agents, attorneys, consultants,
accountants, and such other representatives as the Trustee may deem appropriate; including the right to
employ any beneficiary or fiduciary in any of the foregoing capacities;

d. To invest funds in the Business Entities, to pledge other assets of a trust as
security for loans made to the Business Entities, and to lend funds fiom a trust to the Business Entities;

e. To organize one or more Business Entities under the laws of this or any other
state or country and to transfer thereto all or any part of the Business Entities or other property of a trust,

- and to receive in exchange such stocks, bonds, partnership and member interests, and such other

securities or interests as the Trustee may deem advisable;

f. To treat Business Entities as separate from a trust. In a Trustee's accounting
to any beneficiary, the Trustee shall only be required to report the earnings and condition of the Business
Entities in accordance with standard business accounting practice;

g. To retain in Business Entities such net earnings for working capital and other
purposes of the Business Entities as the Trustee may deem advisable in conformity with sound business
practice; , :

h. To sell or liquidate all or any part of the Business Entities at such time and
price and upon such terms and conditions (including credit) as the Trustee may determine. My Trustee
is specifically authorised and empowered to make such sale to any person, including any partner, ofﬁcer,
or employee of the Business Entities, a fiduciary, or to any beneficiary; and

i. To guaranty the obligatiens of the Business Entities, or pledge assets of a trust
t secure such a guaranty.
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11, Principal and Income. To allocate items of income or expense between income
and principal as permitted or provided by the laws of the State of Florida but without limiting the
availability of the estate tax marital deduction, provided, unless otherwise provided in this instrument,
the Trustee shall establish out of income and credit to principal reasonable reserves for depreciation,
obsclescence and depletion, determined to-be equitable and fair in accordance with some recognized
reasonable and preferably uncomplicated trust accounting principle and; provided, further that the
Trustee shall not be required to provide a rate of return on unproductive propcrty unless otherwise
provided in this instrument.

12.  Life Insurance. With respect to any life insurance policies constituting an asset
of a trust, to pay premiums; to apply dividends in reduction of such premiums; to borrow against the cash
values thereof; to convert such policies into other forms of insurance, including paid-up insurance; to
exercise any seftlement options provided in any such policies; to receive the proceeds of any policy upon
its maturity and to administer such proceeds as a part of the principal of the Trust; and in general, to
exercise all other options, benefits, rights and privileges under such policies.

'3
13. Continuing Powet. To continue to have or exercise, after the termination of 2
trust, in whole or in part, and until final distribution thereof, all title, power, discretions, rights and duties
conferred or imposed upon the Trustee by law or by this Agreement or during the existence of the trust.

14.  Exoneration. To provide for the exoneration of the Trustee from any personal
liability on account of any arrangement or contract entered into in a fiduciary capacity.

15.  Agreements, To comply with, amend, modify or rescind any agreement made
during my lifetime, including those regarding the disposition, management or continuation of any closely
held unincorporated business, corporation, partnership or joint venture, and including the power to
complete contracts to purchase and sell real estate.

16, Voting, To vote and give proxies, with power of substitution to vote, stocks,
bonds and other securities, or not to vote a security.

17. Combination of Shares, To hold the several shares of'a trust or several Trusts as
a common fund, dividing the income proportionately among them, to assign undivided interests to the
several shares or Trusts, and to make joint investments of the funds belonging to them. For such
purposes and insofar as may. be practicable, the Trustee, to the extent that division of the frust estate is
directed hereby, may administer the trust estate physically undivided until actual division thereof
becomes necessary to make distributions. The Trustee may hold, manage, invest and account for whole
or fractional trust shares as a single estate, making the division thereof by appropriate entries in the
books of account only, and may allocate to each whole or fractional trust share its proportionate part of
all receipts and expenses; provided, however, this carrying of several Trusts as a single estate shall not .
defer the vesting in possessicn of any whole or fractional share of a trust for the beneficiaries thereofat
the times specified herein,
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18.  Reimbursement. To reimburse itself froma trust for reasonable expenses incurred
in the administration thereof.

19. Reliance Upon Communication. To rely, in-acting under a trust, upon any letter,
notice, certificate, report, statement, document or other paper, or upon any telephone, telegraph, cable,
wireless or radio message, if believed by the Trustee to be genuine, and to be signed, sealed, acknowl-
edged, presented, sent, delivered or given by or on behalf of the proper person, firm or corporation,
without incurring liability for any action or inaction based thereon.

20. Assumptions. To assume, in the absence of written notice to the contrary from

- the person ar persons concerned, that a fact or an event, by reason of which an interest ot estate under

a trust shall commerice or terminate, does not exist or has not occurred, without incurring liability for
any action or inaction based upon such assumption.

21.  Service as Custodian. To setve as successor custodian for any beneficiary of any
gifts that I may have made under any Transfer to Minors Act, if at the time of my death no custodian s
named jn the instrument creating the gift,

22, Removal of Assets. The Trustee may remove from the domiciliary state duting
the entire duration of a trust or for such lesser petiod as it may deem advisable, any cash, securities or
aother property at any time in its hands whether principal or not, and to take and keep the same outside
the domiciliary state and at such place or places within or outside the borders of the United States as it
may determine, without in any event being chargeable for any loss or depreciation to the trust which may
result therefrom.

23.  Change of Situs. The situs and/or applicable law of any trust created hereunder
may be transferred to such other place as the Trustee may deem to be for the best interests of the trust
estate. In so doing, the Trustee may resign and appoint a successor Trustee, byt may remove such
syccessor Trustee so appointed and appoint others. Each successor Trustee may delegate any and all
fiduciary powers, discretionary and ministerial, to the appointing Trustee as its agent.

24, Fiduciary Qutside Domiciliary State. In the event the Trustee shall not be able
and willing to act as Trustee with respect to any property located outside the domiciliary state, the

- Trustee, without order of court, may appoint another individual or corporation (including any employee

or agent of any appointing Trustee) to act as Trustee with respect to such property. Such appointed
Trustee shall have all of the powers and discretions with respect to such property as are herein given to
the appointing Trustee with respect to the remaining trust assets. The appointing Trustee may remove
such appointed Trustee and appoint another upon ten (10) days notice in writing, All income from such
property, and if such property is sold, exchanged or otherwise disposed of] the proceeds thereof, shall
be remitted to the appointing Trustee, to be held and administered by it as Trustee hereunder. Such
appointed Trustee may employ the appointing Trustee as agent in the administration of such property.
No surety shall be required on the bond of the Trustee or agent acting under the provisions of this
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paragraph. No periodic court accounting shall be required of such appointed Trustee, it being my
intention to excuse any statutory accounting which may ordinarily be required,

25.  Additions. To receive and accept additions to the Trusts in cash or in kind from
donors, executors, administrators, Trustee or attorneys in fact, including additions of my property bythe
Trustee or others as my attorneys in fact.

26.  Title and Possession. To have title to and possession of all real dr personal
property held inthe Trusts, and to register or hold title to such propetty in its own name or in the name

. of its nominee, without dlsclosmg its fiduciary capacity, or in bearer form.

27.  Dealing with Estates. To use principal of the Trusts to make loans to my estate,

‘with or without interest, and to make purchases from my estate.

- 28.  Agents. To employ persons, including attorneys, auditors, investment advisers,
and agents, even if they are the Trustee or associated with the Trustee, to advise or assistthe Trustee in
the performance of its administrative duties and to pay compensation and costs incurred in connection

" with such employment from the assets of the Trust; to act without independent investigation upon their

recommendations; and, instead of acting personally, to employ one or more agents-to perform any act
of admjnistration, whether or not discretionary.

29. Tax Elections. To file tax returns, and to exercise all tax-related-elections and
options at its discretion, without compensating adjustments or reimbursements between any ofthe Trusts
or any of the trust accounts or any beneficiaries.

B. - Resignation. A Trustee may resign with or without cause, by giving no less than 30 days
advance written notice, specifying the effective date of such resignation, to its successor Trustee and to

" the persons required and in the manner provided under Fla.Stats. §§736.0705(1)(a) and 736.0109. As

to any required recipient, deficiencies in fulfilling the foregoing resignation requirements may be waived
in a writing signed by such recipient. Upon the resignation of a Trustee, such Trustee shall be entitled
to reimbursement from the trust for all reasonable expenses incurred in the settlement of accounts and
in the transfer of assets to his or her successor. :

- C. Appointment of Suecessor Trustee,

I. Appointment. Upon a Trustee's resighation, or if a Trustee becomes Disabled or
for any reason ceases to serve as Trustee, | may appoint any person or persons as successor Trustee, and
in default of such appointment by me, ROBERT L. SPALLINA and DONALD R. TESCHER shall serve
together as successor co-Trustees, or either of them alone as Trustee if either of them is unable to serve.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a named Trustee is not a U.S. citizen or resident at the time of
commencement of his term as Trustee, such Trustee should give due consideration to declining to serve
to avoid potential adverse U.S, income tax consequences by reason of the characterization. of a trust
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hereunder as a foreign trust under the Code, but shall not be construed to have any duty to so decline if
such Trustee desires to serve.

2. Specific Trusts. Notwithstanding the preceding provisions of this Subparagraph
IV.C, subsequent to my death I specifically appoint the following person or persons as Trustee of the
following Trusts underthe following described circumstances provided that the foregoing appointments

shall apply when and to the extent that no effective appointiment is made below:-

a. “ Trustee of Separate Trusts for My Grandchildren. Each grandchild of
mine shall serve as co-Trustee with the immediate parent of such grandchild which parent is also a child
of mine as to all separate trusts under which such grandchild is the sole current mandatory or
discretionary incoime beneficiary upon attaining the age of twenty-five (25) years, and shall serve as sole
Trustee of such trusts upon attaining the age of thirty-five (35) years, While serving alone as Trustee,
a grandchild of mine may designate a co-Trustee that isnot a Related or Subordinate Party to serve with
such grandchild and such grandchild may remove and/or replace such co-Trustee with another that is
not a Related or Suberdinate Party from time to time. ;

b. Trustee of Separate Trusts for My Lineal Descendants Other Than My
Grandchildren. In regard to a separate trust held for a lineal descendant of mine other than a grandchild
of mine which lineal descendant is the sole current mandatory or discretionary income beneficiary, each
such lineal descendant shall serve as co-Trustee, or sole Trustee if the preceding described Trustees
cease or are unable to serve or to continue to serve, of his or her separate trust upon attaining age twenty-
five (25) years. While serving alone as Trustee, a lineal descendant of mine other than a grandchild of
mine may designate a co-Trustee to serve with such lineal descendant and such lineal descendant may
remove and/or replace such co-Trustee with another from time to time.

3. Successor Trustees Not Provided For. Whenever a successor Trustee or co-
Ttustee is required and no successor or other functlonmg mechanism for succession is provided for
under the terms of this Trust Agreement , the last serving Trustee or the Jast person or entlty designated
to serve as Trustee of the applicable trust may appoint his or her successor, and if none is so appointed,
the following persons shall appoint a successor Trustee (who may be one of the persons making the
appointment):

a, The remaining Trustees, if any; otherwise,

b. A majority ofthe permissible current mandatory or discretionary income
beneficiaries, including the natural or legal guardians of any beneficiaries who are Disabled.

A successor Trustee appointed under this subparagraph shall nbt be a Related or Subordinate Party of

. thetrust. The appointment will be by a written document executed by such person in the presence of two

witnesses and acknowledged before-a notary public delivered to the appointed Trustee and to me if1am
living and not Disabled or in a valid last Will. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a designation under this
Subparagraph of a successor trustee to a corporate or entity trustee shall be limited to a corporate or
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entity trustee authorized to serve as such under Florida law with assets under trust management of no
less than one billion dollars,

4. Power to Remove Trustee. Subsequent to my death, the age 35 or older
permissible current mandatory or discretionary income beneficiaries from time to time of any trust
established hereunder shall have the power to unanimously remove a Trustee of such trust at any time
with or witliout cause, other than a named Trustee or successor Trustee designated hereunder, or 2
Trustee appointed by me during my lifetime or under my Will or otherwise at the time of my death, with
the successor Trustee to be determined in accordance with the foregoing provisions.

D. Method of Appaintment of Trustee. Any such appointment of a successor Trustee by
a person shall be made in a written instrument executed by such person in the presence of two witnesses
and acknowledged before a notary public which is delivered to such appointed Trustee during the
lifetime of the person making such appointment, or any such appomtment of a successor Trustee by a
person may be made under the last Will of such person.

E. Limitations on Remo'val and Replacement Power. Any power to remove and/or
replace a trustee herennder that is granted to an individual (including such power when reserved to me)
is personal to that individual and may not be exercised by a guardian, power of attorney holdel or other
legal representative or agent. .

F. Successor Fiduciaries. No Trustee is responsible for, nor has any duty to inquire into,
the administration, acts or omissions of any executor, administrator, Personal Representative, or trustee
or attorney-in-fact adding property to these Trusts, or of any predecessor Trustee. Each successor Trustee
has all the powers, privileges, immunities, rights and title (without the execution of any instrument of
transfer or any other act by any retiring Trustee) and all the duties of all predecessors.

G, Liability and Indemnification of Trustee.

1. - Lisbility in General. No individual Trustee (that is, a Trustee that is not a
corporation or other entity) shall be liable for any ofhis or her actions or failures to act as Trustee, even
if the individua! Trustee is found by a court to have been negligent or in breach of fiduciary duty, except
for liability caused by his ot her actions or failures to act done in bad faith or with reckless indifference
to the purposes of the trust or the interests of the beneficiaries. Each Trustee that is a corporation or other
entity will be liable for its actions or failures to act that are negligent or that breach its fiduciary duty,
without contribution by any individual Trustee.

2. Indemnification of Trustee. Except in regard to liabilities imposed on a Trustee
under Subparagraph IV.G. 1, each Trustee shall be held harmless and indemnified from the assets of'the
trust for any liability, damages, attorney's fees, expenses, and costs incurred as a result of its service as
Trustee. A Trustee who ceases to serve for any reason will be entitled to receive reasonable security from
the assets of the trust to protect it from liability, and may enforce these provisions for indemnification
ageinst the current Truste or against-any assets held in the trust, ot if the former Trustee is an individual
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andnota corporation or other entity, against any beneficiary to the extent of distributions received by

that beneficiary. This indemnification right extends to the estate, personal representatives, legal
successors and assigns of a Trustee,

3. Indemnification of Trustee - Additional Provisions, I recognize that ifa
beneficiary accuses a Trustee of wrongdoing or breach of fiduciary duty, the Trustee may have a conflict
of interest that ordinarily would prevent it from paying Iegal fees and costs from the trust estate to defend
itself. T do not want to put a financial burden on any individual named to serve as a Trustee. Just as
important, I do not want an individual who has been selected to serve as a Trustee to be reluctant to
accept the position, or while serving to be intimidated in the performance of the Trustee's duties because
of the threats of lawsuits that might force the Trustee to pay fees and costs fiom the Trustee's personal
resources, For this reason, [ deliberately and intentionally waive any such conflict of interest with respect
to any individual serving as Trustee so that he or she can hire counsel to defend himself or herself against
allegations of wrongdoing or if sued for any reason (whether by a beneficiary or by someone else) and
pay all fees and costs for his or her defense from the trust estate until the dispute isresolved. 1 understand
and agree that a court may award, disallow or allocate fees and costs in whole or in part after the dispute
is resolved, as provided by law. The Trustee will account for all such fees and costs paid by it as
provided by law. This provision shall not apply to any Trustee that is a corporation or other entity.

H. Compensation, Bond. Each Trustee is entitled to be paid reasonable compensation for
services rendered in the administration of the trust. Reasonable compensation for a non-individual
Trustee will be its published fee schedule in effect when its services are rendered unless otherwise
agreed in writing, and except as follows. Any fees paid to a non-individual Trustee for making principal
distributions, for termination of the trust, and upon termination of its services must be based solely on
the value of'its services rendered, not on the value of the trust principal. During my lifetime the Trustee’s
fees are to be charged wholly against income (to the extent sufficient), unless directed otherwise by me
in writing, Each Trustee shall serve without bond.

L Maintenance of Records. The Trustee shall maintain accurate accounts and records.
It shall render annual statements of the receipts and disbursements of income and principal of a trust
upon the written request of any adult vested beneficiary of such trust or the guardian of the person of any
vested beneficiary and the approval of such beneficiary shall be binding upon all persons then or
thereafter interested in such trust as to the matiers and transactions shown on such statement, The
Trustee may at any time apply for a judicial settlement of any account. No Trustee shall be required to
file any statutory or other periodic accountings of the administration of a trust,

J. Interested Trustee. The Trustee may act under this Agreement even if interested in
these Trusts in an individual capacity, as a fiduciary of another trust or estate (including my estate) or
in any other capacity. The Trustee may in good faith enter into a sale, encumbrance, or other transaction
involving the investment or management of trust property for the Trustee's own personal account or
which is otherwise affected by a conflict between the Trustee's fiduciary and personal interests, without
liability and without being voidable by a beneficiary. The Trustee is specifically authorized to make
loans to, to receive loans from, or to sell, purchase or exchange assets in a transaction with (i) the
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Trustes's spouse, (if) the Trustee's children or grandchildren, siblings, parents, or sponses of such
persons, (iii) an officer, director, employee, agent, or attorney of the Trustee, or (iv) a corporation,
partnership, limited liability company, or other business entity in which the Trustee has a financial
interest, provided that in any transaction the trusts hereunder receive fair and adequate consideration in
money or money's worth. The Trustee may renounce any interest or expectancy of a trust in, or an
opportunity to participate in, specified business opportunities or specified classes or categories of
business opportunities that are presented to the Trustee, Such renunciation shall not prohibit the Trustee
from participating in the Trustee's individual capacity in such opportunity or expectancy.

K. Third Parties. No one dealmg with the Trustee need inquire into its authority or its
application of property.

L. Merger of Trusts. If the Trustee is also frustee of a trust established by myself or
another person by will or trust agreement, the beneficiaries to whom income and principal may then be
paid and then operative terms of which are substantially the same as those of a trust held under this
Agreement, the Trustee in its discretion may merge either such trust into the other trust, The Trustee,
in exercising its discretion, shall consider economy of administration, convenience to the beneficiaries,
tax consequences and any other factor it considers important. If it is later necessary to reestablish the
merged trust as separate trusts, it shall be divided proportionately to the value of each trust at the time
of merger.

M.  Multiple Trustees. If two Trustees are serving at any time, any power or discretion of
the Trustees may be exercised only by their joint agreement. Either Trustee may delegate to the other
Trustee the authority to act on behalf of both Trustees and to exercise any power held by the Trustees.
If more than two Trustees are serving at any time, and unless unanimous agreement is specifically
required by the terms of this Trust Agreement, any power or discretion of the Trustees may be exercised
only by a majority. The Trustees may delegate to any one or more of themselves the authority to act on
behalf of all the Trustees and to exercise any power held by the Trustees. Trustees who consent to the
delegation of authority to other Trustees will be liable for the consequences of the actions of those other
Trustees as if the consenting Trustees had joined the other Trustees in performing those actions. A
dissenting Trustee who did not consent to the delegation of authority to another Trustee and who has not
joined in the exercise of a power or discretion cannot be held liable for the consequences ofthe exercise.
A dissenting Trustee who joins only at the direction of the majority will not be liable for the
consequences of the exercise ifthe dissent is expressed in writing delivered to any ofthe other Trustees
before the exercise of that power or discretion.

ARTICLE V. ADDITIONAL TAX AND RELATED MATTERS

A.  GST Trusts.Idirect (a) thatthe Trustee shall divide any trust to which there is allocated
any GST exemption into two separate Trusts (each subject to the-provisions hereof) so that the
generation-skipping tax inclusion ratio of one.such trust is zero, (b) any property exempt from
generation-skipping taxation shall be divided as otherwise provided herein and held for the same persons
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designated in Trusts separate from any property then also so divided which is not exempt from
generation-skipping taxation, and (c) if upon the death of a beneficiary a taxable termination would
otherwise occur with respect to any property held in trust for him or her with an inclusion ratio greater
than zero, such beneficiary shall have with respect only to such property a power to appoint such
fractional share thereof which if included in such beneficiary's gross estate for federal estate tax purposes
(without allowing any deduction with respect to such share) would not be taxed at the highest federal
estate tax rate and such fractional share of such property shall be distributed to such persons including
only such beneficiary's estate, spouse, and issue, as such beneficiary may appoint, and any part of a trust
such beneficiary does not effectively appoint shall be treated as otherwise provided for disposition upon
his or her death, provided, if upon his or her death two or more Trusts for his or her benefit are directed
to be divided among and held or distributed for the same persons and the generation-skipping tax
inclusion ratio of any such trust is zero, the amount of any other such Trust to which there is allocated
any of such beneficiary's GST exemption shall be added to the Trusts with generation-skipping tax
inclusion ratios of zero in equal shares. For purposes of funding any pecuniary payment to which there
is allocated any GST exemption, such payment shall be satisfied with cash or property which fairly
represents appreciation and depreciation (occurring between the valuation date and the date of
distribution) in all of the assets from which such distribution could be made, and any pecuniary payment
made before a residual transfer of property to which any GST exemption is allocated shall be satisfied
with cash or property which fairly represents appreciation and depreciation (occurring between the
valuation date and the date of distribution) in all of the assets from which such pecuniary payment could
be satisfied and shall be allocated a pro rata share of income earned by all such assets between the
valuation date and the date of payment. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the valuation

-date with respect to any property shall be the date as of which its value is determined for federal estate

tax purposes with respect to the transferor thereof, and subject to the foregoing, property distributed in
kind in satisfaction of any pecuniary payment shall be selected on the basis of the value of such property
on the valuation date. All terms used in this paragraph which are defined or explained in Chapter 13 of
the Code or the regulations thereunder shall have the same meaning when used herein. I request (but do
not require) that if two or more Trusts are held hereunder for any person, no principal be paid to such
person from the Trusts with the lower inclusion ratios for generation-skipping tax purposes unless the -

trust with the highest inclusion ratio has been exhausted by use, consumption, distribution or otherwise

or is not reasonably available. The Trustee is authorized and directed to comply with the provisions of
the Treasury Regulations interpreting the generation skipping tax provisions of the Code in severing or
combining amy frust, creating or combining separate trust shares, allocating GST exemption, or
otherwise, as necessary to best accomplish the foregoing allocations, inclusion ratios, combinations, and
divisions, including, without limitation, the payment of “appropriate interest” as determined by the
Trustee as that term is applied and used in said Regulations.

B. Individual Retirement Accounts. In the event that this trust or any trust created under
this Agreermnent is the beneficiary of an Individual retirement account established and maintained under
Code Section 408 or a qualified pension, profit sharing or stock bonus plan established and maintained
under Code Section 401 (referred to in this paragraph as “IRA™), the following provisions shall apply
to such trust:
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1. 1 intend that the beneficiaries of such trust shall be beneficiaries within the
meaning of Code Section 401(a)(9) and the Treasury Regulations thereunder, All provisions of such trust
shall be construed consistent with such intent. Accordingly, the following provisions shall apply to such
frust: ;

a. No benefits from any IRA may be used or apphed for the payment of any
debts taxes or other claims against my estate as set forth in the later paragraph captioned "Taxes", unless
other assets of this trust are not available for such payment.

b.  Intheeventthata beneficiary of any trust created under this Agreement
has a testamentary general power of appointment or a limited power of appointment over all or any
portion of any trust established under this Agresment, and if such trust is the beneficiary of any benefits
from any IRA, the beneficiary shall not appoint any part of such trust to a charitable organization or to
a lineal descendant of mine (or a spouse of a lineal descendant of mine) who is older than the beneficiary
whose life expectancy is being used to calculate distributions from such IRA.

2. The Trustee shall deliver a copy of this Agreement to the custodian of any IRA’
of which this trust or any trust created under this Agreement is the named beneficiary within the time
period prescribed Code Section 401(a)(9) and the Treasury Regulations thereunder, along with such
additional items required thereunder. If the custodian of the IR A changes after a copy of this Agreement
has been provided pursuant to the preceding sentence, the Trustee shail immediately provide a copy of
this Agreement to the new custodian. The Trustee shall request each custodian to complete a receipt of
the Agreement and shall attach such receipt to this Agreement. The Trustee shall provide a copy of each
amendment of this Agreement to the custodian and shall obtain a receipt of such amendment.

C. Gift Transfers Made From Trust During My Lifetime. I divect that all gift transfers
made from the trust during my lifetime be treated for all purposes as if the gift property had been first
withdrawn by (or distributed to) me and then transferred by me to the donees involved. Thus, in each
instance, even where title to the gift property is transferred directly from the name of the trust (or its
nominee) into the name of the donee, such transfer shall be treated for all purposes as first a withdrawal
by (or distribution of the property to) me followed by a gift transfer of the property to the donee by me
as donot, the Trustee making the actual transfer in my behalf acting as my attorney in fact, this paragraph
being, to that extent, a power of attorney from me to the Trustee to make such transfer, which power of
attorney shall not be affected by my Disability, incompetence, or incapacity.

D. Gifts. If 1 am Disabled, 1 authorize the Trustee to make gifts from trust property during
my lifetime for estate planning purposes, or to distribute amounts to my legally appointed guardlan or
to my attomcy—m-fact for those purposes, subJect to the following limitations:

1. Recipients. The gifts may be made only to my lineal descendants or to trusts
primarily fortheir benefit, and in aggregate annual amounts to any one such recipient that do not exceed
the exclusion amount provided for under Code Section 2503(b).-
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2. Trustee Limited. When a person eligible to receive gifts is serving as Trustee,
the aggregate of all gifts to that person during the calendar year allowable under the preceding
subparagraph 1. shall thereafter not exceed the greater of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000), or five percent
(5%) of the aggregate value of the frust estate. However, gifts completed prior to a recipient's
commencing to serve as Trustee shall not be affected by this limitation.

3. Charitable Pledges. The Trustee may pay any charitable pledges I made while
I was not Disabled (even if not yet due).

E. Death-Costs. If upon niy death the Trustee hold any United States bonds which may be
redeemed at par in payment of federal estate tax, the Trustee shall pay the federal estate tax due because
of my death up to the amount of the par value of such bonds and interest accrued thereon at the time of
payment. The Trustee shall also pay from the trust all of my following death costs, but if there is an
acting executor, administrator or Personal Representative of my estate my Trustee shall pay only such
amounts of such costs as such executor, administrator or Personal Representative directs:

¢

T my debts which are allowed as claims against my estate,

2. my funeral expenses without regard to legal limitations,

?; . th.c expenses of administering my estate,

4, the balance of the estate, inheritance and other death taxes (excluding

generation-skipping transfer taxes unless arising from direct skips), and interest and penalties thereon,
due because of my death with respect to all propetty whether or not passing under my Will or this
Agreement (other than property over which I have a power of appointment granted to me by another
person, and qualified terminable interest property which is not held in a trust that was subject to an
election under Code Section 2652(a)(3) at or about the time of its funding) and life insurance proceeds
on policies insuring my life which proceeds are not held under this trust or my probate estate at or by
reason of my death), and :

5. any gifts made in my Will or any Codicil thereto.

The Trustee may make any such payment either to my executor, administrator or Personal
Representative ot directly to the proper party. The Trustee shall not be reimbursed for any such payment,
and is not responsible for the correctness or application of the amounts so paid at the direction of my
executor, administrator, or Personal Representative. The Trustee shall not pay any of such death costs
with any asset which would not otherwise be included in my gross estate for federal or state estate or

- inheritance tax purposes, or with any asset which otherwise cannot be so used, such as property received

under a limited power of appointment which prohibits such use. Further, no payment of any such death
costs shall be charged against or paid from the tangible personal property disposed of pursuant to the
prior paragraph captioned "Disposition of Tangible Personal Property.”
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F. Subchapter S Stock. Regardless of anything herein to the contrary, in the event that after
my death the principal of a trust includes stock in a corporation for which there is a valid election to be
treated under the provisions of Subchapter S of the Code, the income beneficiary of such a frust is a U.S.
citizen ot U.S. resident for federal income tax purposes, and such trust is not an "electing small business
trust" under Code Section 1361(e)(1) in regard to that corporation, the Trustee shall (2) hold such stock
as a substantially separate and independent share of such trust within the meaning of Code Section
663(c), which share shall otherwise be subject to all of the terms of this Agreement, (b) distribute all of
the income of such shate to the one income beneficiary thereof in annual or more frequent instaliments,
(c) upon such beneficiary's death, pay all accrued or undistributed income of such share to the
beneficiary's estate, (d) distributé principal from such share during the lifetime of the income beneficiary
only to such beneficiary, notwithstanding any powers of appointment granted to any person including
the income beneficiary, and (e) otherwise administer such share in a manner that qualifies it as a
"qualified Subchapter S trust" as that term is defined in Code Section 1361(d)(3), and shall otherwise
manage and administer such share as provided under this Agleement to the extent not inconsistent with
the foregoing provisions of this paragraph.

G. Residence as Homestead. ] reserve the right to reside upon any real property placed in
this trust as my permanent residence during my life, it being the intent of this provision to retain for
myself the requisite beneficial interest and possessory right in and to such real property to comply with
Section 196.041 of the Florida Statutes such that said beneficial interest and possessory right constitute
in all respects "equitable title to real estate" as that term is used in Section 6, Article VII of the
Constitution of the State of Florida. Notwithstanding anything contained in this trust to the contrary, for
purposes of the homestead exemption under the laws of the State of Florida, my interest in any real
property in which I reside pursuant to the provisions of this trust shall be deemed to be an interest in real
property and not personalty and shall be deemed my homestead.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amended and Restated Trust
Agreement on the date first above written.

SIM®N L. BERNSTEIN

This instrument was signgd\by SIMON L. BERNSTEIN in our presence, and at the request of
and in the resence of 8 . BERNSTEIN and eac¢h other, we subscribe cur names as witnesses

on this /dayof 2., Uz , 2012:
bm@ﬂu“mmﬂ

Print Name:
Address: im He——  ——

\L(ARKL;A.ND, FL, 33076 —Btwm“ﬂ*‘-‘a“”—' '

STATE OF FLORIDA
8S.

COUNTY OF PALM BEACH

The foregoing instrument was acknqgwledg
by SIMON L. BERNSTEIN.

: efore methiz_f)day of JUL\\/ _ 2012,
- i

[Seal Wlth C i Xnigation Date]
" s ﬁi%](f 4 IV\(‘\’%OL\I T’DY',\X \e u

Commlssmn # EE092282 Print, type or stamp name of Kotary Public
ires: MAY 10,2015
BY) TERT ATLANTIC BGNDING CO., IRC,

"mnl‘

Personally Known ._or Produced Identification

Type of Identification Produced
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SIMON L. BERNSTEIN

AMENDED AND RESTATED TRUST AGREEMENT

This Amended and Restated Trust Agreement is dated this 7 day of ,2012,
and is between SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, of Palm Beach County, Florida referred'td in thefirst person,
as settlor, and SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, of Palm Beach County, Florida and SI L.BERNSTEIN's
SUCCESSOTS, as trustee (referred to as the " Trustee," which term more particularly refers to all individuals
and entities serving as trustee of a trust created hereunder during the time of such service, whether alone

or as co-trustees, and whether originally serving or as a successor trustee).

WHEREAS, on May 20, 2008, 1 created and funded the SIMON L. BERNSTEIN TRUST
AGREEMENT (the “Trust Agreement,” which reference includes any subsequent amendments of said
trust agreement);

WHEREAS, Paragraph A. of Article 1. of said Trust Agreement provides, inter alia, that during
my lifetime [ shall have the right at any time and from time to time by an instrument, in writing,
delivered to the Trustee to amend or revoke said Trust Agreement, in whole or in part.

NOW, THEREFORE, I hereby amend and restate the Trust Agreement in its entirety and the
Trustee accepts and agrees to perform its duties and obligations in accordance with the following
amended provisions. Notwithstanding any deficiencies in execution or other issues in regard to whether
any prior version of this Trust Agreement was a valid and binding agreement or otherwise created an
effective trust, this amended and restated agreement shall constitute 2 valid, binding and effective trust
agreement and shall amend and succeed all prior versions described above or otherwise predating this
amended and restated Frust Agreement.

ARTICLE L DURING MY LIFE AND UPON MY DEATH

A. Rights Reserved. I reserve the right (2) to add property to this trust during my life or on
miy death, by my Will or otherwise; (b) to withdraw property held hereunder; and (c) by separate written
instrument delivered to the Trustee, to revoke this Agreement in whole or in part and otherwise modify
or amend this Agreement.

B. Payments During My Life. If income producing property is held in the trust during my
life, the Trustee shall pay the net income of the trust to me or as I may direct. However, during any
periods while | am Disabled, the Trustee shall pay to me or on my behalf such amounts of the net income
and principal of the trust as is proper for my Welfare. Any income not so paid shall be added to
principal.
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C. Upon My Death. Upon my death the Trustee shall collect and add to the trust all
amounts due to the trust under any insurance policy on my Jife or under any death benefit plan and all
property added to the trust by my Will or otherwise. After paying or providing for the payment from the
augmented trust of all current charges and any amounts payable under the later paragraph captioned
“Death Costs," the Trustee shall hold the trust according to the following provisions.

ARTICLE Ii. AFTER MY DEATH

A Disposition of Tangible Personal Property. If any non-business tangibie personal

property other than cash (including, but not limited to, my personal effects, jewelry, collections,
household furnishings, and equipment, and automobiles) is held in the trust at the time of my death, such
items shall be promptly distributed by the Trustee of the trust to such person or persons, including my
estate, as to the item or items or proportion specified, as I may appoint, and to the extent that any such
items are not disposed of by such appointment, such items shall be disposed of by the Trustee of the trust
in exactly the same manner as such items would have been disposed of under the terms and provisions
of my Will (including any Codicil thereto, or what the Trustee in good fajth believes to be such Will and
~ Codicil) had such items been included in my probate estate. Any such items which are not effectively
disposed of pursuant to the preceding sentence shall pass with the other trust assets.

B. Disposition of Trust Upon My Death. Upon my death, the remaining assets in this trust
shall be divided among and held in separate Trusts for my then living grandchildren. Each of my
grandchildren for whom a separate trust is held hereunder shall hereinafter be referred to as a
"beneficiary" with the separate Trusts to be administered as provided in Subparagraph I1.C.

C. Trusts for Beneficiaries. The Trustee shall pay to the beneficiary and the beneficiary's
children, such amounts of the net income and principal of such beneficiary’s trust as is proper for the
Welfare of such individuals. Any income not so paid shall be added to principal each year. After a
beneficiary has reached any one or more of the following birthdays, the beneficiary may withdraw the
principal of his or her separate trust at any time or times, not to exceed in the aggregate 1/3 in value after
the beneficiary's 25th birthday, 1/2 in value (after deducting any amount previously subject to
withdrawal but not actually withdrawn) after the beneficiary's 30th birthday, and the balance after the
beneficiary's 35th birthday, provided that the withdrawal powers described in this sentence shall not
apply to any grandchild of mine as beneficiary of a separate trust. The value of each trust shall be its
value as of the first exercise of each withdrawal right, plus the value of any subsequent addition as of
the date of addition. The right of withdrawal shall be a privilege which may be exercised only voluntarily
and shall not include an involuntary exercise. If a beneficiary dies with assets remaining in his or her
separate trust, upon the beneficiary's death the beneficiary may appoint his or her trust to or for the
benefit of one or more of any of my lineal descendants (excluding from said class, however, such
beneficiary and such beneficiary's creditors, estate, and creditors of such beneficiary's estate). Any part
of his or her trust such beneficiary does not effectively appoint shall upon his or her death be divided
among and held in separate Trusts for the following persons:
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1. for his or her lineal descendants then living, per stirpes; or

2. if he or she leaves no lineal descendant then living, per stirpes for the lineal
descendants then living of his or her nearest ancestor (among me and my linea] descendants) with a
lineal descendant then living.

A trust for a lineal descendant of mine shall be held under this paragraph, or if a trust is then so held,
shall be added to such trust.

D. Termination of Small Trust. 1 at any time after my death in the opinion of the Trustee
a separate trust holds assets of a value of less than $50,000.00 and is too small to justify the expense of
its retention, and termination of such trust is in the best interests of its current income beneficiary, the
Trustee in its discretion may terminate such trust and pay it to said beneficiary.

E. Contingent Gift. If at any time property of these Trusts is not disposed of under the other
provisions of this Agreement, it shall be paid, as a gift made hereunder, to such persons and in such
shares as such property would be distributed if I had then owned such property and had then died
solvent, unmarried and intestate domiciled in the State of Florida, according to the laws of inheritance
of the State of Florida then in effect.

F. Protective Provision. No beneficiary of any trust herein created shall have any right or
power 1o anticipate, transfer, pledge, sell, alienate, assign or encumber in any way his or her interest in
the income or principal of such frust. Furthermore, no creditor shall have the right to attach, lien, seize
or levy upon the interest of a beneficiary in this trust (other than myself) and such interest shall not be
liable for or subject to the debits, liabilities or obligations of any such beneficiary or any claims against
such beneficiary (whether voluntarily or involuntarily created), and the Trustee shall pay directly to or
for the use or benefit of such beneficiary all income and principal to which such beneficiary is entitled,
notwithstanding that such beneficiary has executed a pledge, assignment, encumbrance or in any other
manner alienated or transferred his or her beneficial interest in the trust to another. This paragraph shall
not preciude the effective exercise of any power of appointment granted herein or the exercise of any
disclaimer.

G. Maximum Duration. Regardless of anything in this Agreementto the contrary, no trust
interest herein created shall continue beyond three hundred sixty (360) years after the date of creation
of this Agreement, nor shall any power of appointment be exercised in such manner so as fo delay
vesting of any trust beyond such period. Immediately prior o the expiration of such period, all such
trusts then in existence shall terminate, and the assets thereof shall be distributed outright and in fee to
then beneficiaries of the current income and in the proportions in which such persons are the
beneficiaries, and if such proportions cannot be ascertained, then equally-among such beneficiaries,

ARTYICLE ITI. GENERAL
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A Disability. Subject to the following Subparagraph captioned "Subchapter S Stock," while
any beneficiary is Disabled, the Trustee shall pay to him or her only such portion ofthe income to which
he or she is otherwise entitled as is proper for his or her Welfare, and any income not so paid shall be
added to the principal from which derived. While any beneficiary is Disabled, income or principal
payable to him or her may, in the discretion of the Trustee, be paid directly to him or her, without the
intervention of a guardian, directly to his or her creditors or others for his or her sole benefit or to an
adult person or an eligible institution (including the Trustee) selected by the Trustee as custodian for a
minor beneficiary under the Uniform Transfers to Minors Act or similar law. The receipt of such payee
is a complete release to the Trustee.

B. Timfng of Income Distributions. The Trustee shall make required payments of income
at least quarterly.

C. Substance Abuse.

1. In_General. If the Trustee reasonably believes that a beneficiary (other than
myself)of any trust:

) a. routinely or frequently uses or consumes any illegal substance so as to
be physically or psychologically dependent upon that substance, or

b. is clinically dependent upon the use or consumption of alcohol or any
other legal drug or chemical substance that is not prescribed by a board certified medical doctor or
psychiatrist in a current program of treatment supervised by such doctor or psychiatrist,

and if the Trustee reasonably believes that as a result the beneficiary is unable to care for himself or
herself, or is unable to manage his or her financial affairs, all mandatory distributions (including
distributions upon termination of the trust) to the beneficiary, all of the beneficiary's withdrawal rights,
and alf of the beneficiary's rights to participate in decisions concerning the removal and appointment of
Trustees will be suspended. In that event, the following provisions of this Subparagraph J11.C will apply.

2. Testing. The Trustee may request the beneficiary to submit to one or more
examinations (including laboratory tests of bodily fluids) determined to be appropriate by a board
certified medical doctor and to consent to full disclosure to the Trustee of the results of all such
examinations. The Trustee shall maintain strict confidentiality of those results and shall not disclose
those results to any person other than thc beneficiary without the prior written permission of the
beneficiary. The Trustee may totally or partially suspend all distributions otherwise required or permitted
to be made to that beneficiary until the beneficiary consents to the examination and disclosure to the
Trustee.

3. Treatment. If, in the opinion of the examining doctor, the examination indicates
current or recent use of 2 drug or substance as described above, the examining doctor will determine an
appropriate method of treatment for the beneficiary (for example, counseling or treatment on an
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in-patient basis in a rehabilitation facility) that is acceptable to the Trustee. If the beneficiary consents
to the treatment, the Trustee shall pay the costs of treatiment directly to the provider of those services
from the distributions suspended under this Subparagraph I1L.C.

4, Resumption of Distributions. The Trustee may resume other distributions to the
beneficiary (and the beneficiary's other suspended rights will be restored) when, in the case of use or
consumption of an illegal substance, examinations indicate no such use for 12 months and, in all cases,
when the Trustee in its discretion determines that the beneficiary is able to care for himself or herself
and is able to manage his or her financial affairs.

5. Disposition of Suspended Amounts. When other distributions to the beneficiary
are resumed, the remaining balance, if any, of distributions that were suspended may be distributed to
the beneficiary at that time. If the beneficiary dies before distribution of those suspended amounts, the
Trustee shall distribute the balance of the suspended amounts to the persons who would be the alternate
takers of that beneficiary's share (or takers through the exercise of a power of appointment) as otherwise
provided in this Trust Agreement.

6. Exoneration. No Trustee (or any doctor retained by the Trustee) will be
responsible or liable to anyone for a beneficiary's actions or welfare. The Trustee has no duty to inquire
whether a beneficiary uses drugs or other substances as described in this Subparagraph 111.C. The Trustee
(and any doctor retained by the Trustee) is 1o be indemnified from the trust estate and held harmless
from any liability of any nature in exercising its judgment and authority under this Subparagraph [I.C,
including any failure to request a beneficiary to submit to medical examination, and including a decision
to distribute suspended amounts to a beneficiary.

7. Tax Savings Provision. Despite the provisions of this Subparagraph [11.C, the
Trustee cannof suspend any mandaiory distributions or withdrawal rights that are required for that trust
to become or remain a Qualified Subchapter S Trust (unless the Trustee elects for the trust to be an
Electing Small Business Trust), or to qualify for any federal transfer tax exemption, deduction, or
exclusion allowable with respect to that trust.

D. Income on Death of Beneficiary. Subject to the later paragraph captioned "Subchapter
S Stock," and except as otherwise explicitly provided herein, upon the death of any beneficiary, all
accrued or undistributed income of such deceased beneficiary's trust shall pass with the principal of his
or her trust but shall remain income for trust accounting purposes.

E. Definitions. In this Agreement,

I. Children, Lineal Descendants. The terms "ckild," “children," “grandchild,”
"grandchildren'’ and “lineal descendant” mean only persons whose relationship 1o the ancestor
designated is created entirely by or through (a) legitimate births occurring during the marriage of the
Jjoint biological parents to each other, (b) children born of female lineal descendants, and (¢) children
and their lineal descendants arising from surrogate births and/or third party donors when (i) the child is
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raised from or near the time of birth by a married couple (other than a same sex married couple) through
the pendency of such marriage, (ii) one of such couple is the designated ancestor, and (iii) to the best
knowledge of the Trustee both members of such couple pacticipated in the decision to have such child.
No such child or lineal descendant Joses his or her status as such through adoption by another person.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, for all purposes of this Trust and the dispositions made hereundez, my
children, TED S. BERNSTEIN, PAMELA B. SIMON, ELIOT BERNSTEIN, JILL JANTONI and LISA
S.FRIEDSTEIN, shall be deemed to have predeceased me as ] have adequately provided forthem during
my lifetime. :

2. Code. "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and in
referring to any particular provision of the Code, includes a reference to any equivalent or successor
provision of a successor federal tax law.

3. Disabled. "Disabled" or being under "Disability" means, as to any applicable
individual: (1) being under the age of 21 years, (2) having been adjudicated by a court of competent
jurisdiction as mentally or physically incompetent or unable to manage his or her own property or
personal affairs (or a substantially similar finding under applicable state or national law), or (3) being
unable to properly manage his or her personal or financial affairs, or a trust estate hereunder as to a
Trustee hereunder, because of a mental or physical impairment (whether temporary or permanent in
nature). A written cerlificate executed by an individual's attending physician or attending psychiatrist
confirming that person's impairment will be sufficient evidence of Disability under item (3) above, and
all persons may rely conclusively on such a certificate. )

4, Education. The term "education" herein means vocational, primary, secondary,
preparatory, theological, college and professional education, including post-graduate courses of study,
at educational institutions or e[sewhere, and expenses relating directly thereto, including tuition, books
and supplies, room and board, and travel from and to home during school vacations. It is intended that
the Trustee liberally construe and interpret references to "education,” so that the beneficiaries entitled
to distributions hereunder for education obtain the best possible education commensurate with their
abilities and desires.

5. Needs and Welfare Distributions. Payments to be made for a person's "Needs'’
means payments necessary for such person's health (including lifetime residential or nursing home care),
education, maintenance and support. Payments to be made for a person’s " Welfare " means discretionary
payments by the Trustee, from time to time, for such person's Needs and also for such person's
advancement in life (including assistance in the purchase of a home or establishment or development
of any business or professional enterprise which the Trustee believes to be reasonably sound), happiness
and general well-being. However, the Trustee, based upon information reasonably available to it, shall
make such payments for a person's Needs or Welfare only to the extent such person's income, and funds
available from others obligated to supply funds for such purposes (inciuding, without limitation, pursuant
to child support orders and agreements), are insufficient in its opinion for such purposes, and shall take
into account such person's accustomed manner of [iving, age, health, marital status and any other factor
it considers important. Income or principal to be paid for a person's Needs or Welfare may be paid to

SiMON L. BERNSTEIN
AMENDED AND RESTATED TRUST AGREEMENT -6-

LAW OFFICES

TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.

LA ARt e o0




such individual or applied by the Trustee directly for the benefit of such person. The Trustee may make
a distribution or application authorized for a person's Needs or Welfare even if such distribution or
application substantially depletes or exhausts such person's trust, without any duty upon the Trustee to
retain it for future use or for other persons who might otherwise benefit from such trust.

6. Per Stirpes. In a division "per stirpes" each generation shall be represented and
counted whether or not it has a living member.

7. Related or Subordinate Party. A “Related or Subordinate Party” to a trust’
describes a beneficiary of the subject trust or a related or subordinate party to a beneficiary of the trust
as the terms “related or subordinate party” are defined under Code Section 672(c).

8. Spouse. A person's "spouse" includes only a spouse then married to and living
as husband and wife with him or her, or a spouse who was married to and living as husband and wife
with him or her at his or her death. The following rules apply to each person who is a beneficiary or a
permissible appointee under this Trust Agreement and who is matried to a descendant of mine. Such a
person will cease to be a beneficiary and will be excluded from the class of permissible appointees upon:

a. the legal termination of the marriage to my descendant (whether before
or after my death), or

b. the death of my descendant if a dissolution of marriage proceeding was
pending when he or she died.

The trust will be administered as if that person had died upon the happening of the terminating event
described above,

9. Gender, Number. Where appropriate, words of any gender include all genders
and the singular and plural are interchangeable.

¥. Powers of Appointment. Property subject to a power of appointment shall be paid to,
or retained by the Trustee or paid to any trustee under any will or trust agreement for the benefit of, such
one or more permissible appointees, in such amounts and proportions, granting such interests, powers
and powers of appointment, and upon such conditions including spendthrift provisions as the holder of
such power (i) in the case of a power exercisable upon the death of such holder, appoints in his or her
will or in a trust agreement revocable by him or her until his or her death, or (ii) in the casc of a power
exercisable during the life of such holder, appoints in a written insttument signed by such holder, two
" witnesses and a notary public, but in either case only if such will, teust agreement, or instrument
specifically refers to such power.

G. Limitations on Powers of Trustee. Regardless of anything herein to the contrary, no
Trustee shall make or participate in making any distribution of income or principal of a trust to or for
the benefit of a beneficiary which would directly or indirectly discharge any legal obligation of such
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Trustee or a donor of such trust (as an individual, and other than myself as donor) to support such
beneficiary; and no Trustee {(other than myself) shall make or participate in making any discretionary
distyibution of income or principal to or {or the benefit of himself or herself other than for his or her
Needs, including by reason of a determination to terminate a trust described herein. For example, if a
Trustee (other than myself) has the power to distribute income or principal to himself or herself for his
or her own Welfare, such Trustee (the "restricted Trustee") shall only have the power to make or
participate in making a distribution of income or principal to the restricted Trustee for the restricted
Trustee's Needs, although any co-Trustee who is not also a restricted Trustee may make or participate
in making a distribution of income or principal to the restricted Trustee for such restricted Trustee's
Welfare without the participation or consent of said restricted Trustee. “

H. Presumption of Survivorship. If any person shalt be required to survive another person
in order to take any interest under this Agreement, the former person shall be deemed to have
predeceased the latter person, if such persons die under circumstances which make it difficult or
impracticable to determine which one died first.

I Govérnit_xg Law. This Agreement is governed by the law of the State of Florida.

J. Other Beneficiary Designations. Except as otherwise explicitly and with particularity
provided herein, (a) no provision of this trust shall revoke or modify any beneficiary designation of' mine
made by me and not revoked by me prior to my death under any individual retirement account, other
retirement plan or account, or annuity or insurance contract, (b) I hereby reaffirm any such beneficiary
designation such that any assets held in such account, plan, or contract shall pass in accordance with
such designation, and (c) regardless of anything herein to the contrary, any of such assets which would
otherwise pass pursuant to this trust due to the beneficiary designation not having met the requirements
for a valid testamentary disposition under applicable law or otherwise shall be paid as a gift made
hereunder to the persons and in the manner provided in such designation which is incorporated herein
by this reference. '

K Release of Medical Information.

1. Disability of Beneficiary. Upon the written request of a Trustee (with or without
the concurrence of co-Trustees) issued to any current income or principal beneficiary (including
discretionary beneficiaries and mysel{if a beneficiary) for whom a determination of Disability is relevant
to the administration of a trust hereunder and for whom a Trustee (with or without the concurrence of
co-Trustees) desires to make such a determination, such beneficiary shall issue to all Trustees (who shall
be identified thereon both by name to the extent known and by class description) a valid authorization
under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and any other applicable or
successor law authorizing all health care providers and all medical sources of such requested beneficiary
to release protected health information of the requested beneficiary to all Trustees that is relevant to the
determination of the Disability of the requested beneficiary as Disability is defined hereunder. The
period of each such valid authorization shall be for six months (or the earlier death of the requested
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beneficiary). If such beneficiary (or his or her legal representative if such beneficiary is a minor or
legally disabled) refuses within thirty days of receipt of the fequest to provide a valid authorization, or
at any time revokes an authorization within its term, the Trustee shall treat such beneficiary as Disabled
hereunder until such valid authorization is delivered.

2. Disability of Trustee. Upon the request to a Trustee that is an individual by (a)
a co-Trustee, or if none, (b) the person or entity next designated to serve as a successor Trustee not under
legal incapacity, or if none, (c) any adult current income or principal beneficiary not under legal
incapacity, or in any event and at any time (d) a court of competent jurisdiction, such Trustee shall issue
to such person and all persons, courts of competent jurisdiction, and entities (who shall be identified
thereon both by name to the extent known and by class description), with authority hereunder to
determine such requested Trustee's Disability, a valid authorization under the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and any other applicable or successor law authorizing all
health care providers and all medical sources of such requested Trustee to release protected health
information of the requested Trustee to such persons, courts and entities, that is relevant to the
determination of the Disability of the requested Trustee as Disability is defined hereunder. The period
of each such valid authorization shall be for six maonths (or the eatlier death or resignation of the
requested Trustee). If such requested Trustee refuses within thirty days of receipt of the request to deliver
a valid authorization, or at any time revokes an authorization within its term, such requested Trustee
shall thereupon be treated as having resigned as Trustee hereunder.,

3. Ability to Amend or Revoke. The foregoing provisions of this paragraph shall
not constitute a restriction on myself to amend or revoke the terms of this trust instrument under

paragraph §.A hereof, provided 1 otherwise have legal capacity to do so.

4. Authorization to Issue Certificate. All required authorizations under this
paragraph shall include the power of a physician or psychiatrist to issue a written certificate to the
appropriate persons or entities as provided in Subparagraph 1[1.E.3 hereof.

ARTICLE IV. FIDUCIARIES

A. Powers of the Trustee. During my life except while [ am Disabled, the Trustee shall
exercise all powers provided by law and the following powers, other than the power to retain assets, only
with my written approval. While I am Disabled and after my death, the Trustee shall exercise said
powers without approval, provided that the Trustee shall exercise all powers in a fiduciary capacity.

1. Investments. 1o sell or exchange at public or private sale and on credit or
otherwise, with or withoul security, and to lease for any term or perpetually, any property, real and
personal, at any time forming a part of the trust estate (the "estate"); to grant and exercise optionstobuy
or sell; to invest or reinvest in real or personal property of every kind, description and location; and to
receive and retain any such property whether originallya part of any trustherein created or subsequently
acquired, even if the Trustee is personally interested in such property, and without liability for any
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decline in the value thereof’ all without limitation by any statutes or judicial decisions whenever enacted
or announced, regulating investments or requiring diversification of investments, it being my intention
to give the broadest investment powers and discretion to the Trustee. Any bank, trust company, or other
corporate trustee serving hereunder as Trustee is authorized to invest in its own common trust funds.

2. Special. Investments. The Trustee is expressly authorized (but not directed) to
retain, make, hold, and dispose of investments not regarded as traditional for trusts, including interests
or investments in privately held business and investment entities and enterprises, including without
limitation stock in closely held corporations, limited partnership interests, joint venture interests, mutual
funds, business trust interests, and limited liability company membership interests, notwithstanding ()
any applicable prudent investor rule or variation thereof, (b) common law or statutory diversification
requirements (it being my intent that no such duty to diversify shall exist) (c)a lack of current cash flow
therefrom, (d) the presence of any risk or speculative elements as compared to other available
investments (it being my intent that the Trustee have sole and absolute discretion in determining what
constitutes acceptable risk and what constitutes proper investment strategy), (€) lack of a reasonable rate
of return, (f) risks to the preservation of principal, (g) violation of a Trustee's duty of impartiality as to
different beneficiaries (it being my intent that no such duty exists for this purpose), and ¢h) similar
limitations on investment under this Agreement or under law pertaining to investments that may or
should be made by a Trustee (including without limitation the provisions of Fla,Stais. §518.11 and
successor provisions thereto that would characterize such investmentsas forbidden, imprudent, improper
or unlawful). The Trustee shall not be responsible to any trust created hereunder or the benelficiaries
thereof for any loss resulting from any such authorized investment, including without limitation loss
engendered by the higher risk element of that particular entity, investment, or enterprise, the failure to
invest in more conservative investments, the failure to diversify trust assets, the prudent investor rule
or variant thereof. Notwithstanding any provisions for distributions 1o beneficiaries hereunder, if the
Trustee determines that the future potential investment return from any illiquid or closely held
investment asset warrants the retention of that investment asset or that sufficient value could not be
obtained from the sale or other disposition of an illiquid or closely held investment asset, the Trustee is
authorized to retain that asset and if necessary reduce the distributions to beneficiaries due to lack of
sufficient liquid or marketable assets. However, the preceding provisions of this Subparagraph shall not
be exercised in 2 manner as to jeopardize the availability of the estate tax marital deduction for assets
passing to or held in the a trust for my surviving spouse or that would otherwise qualify for the estate
tax marital deduction but for such provisions, shall not override any express powers hereunder of my
surviving spouse to demand conversion of unproductive property to productive property, or reduce any
income distributions otherwise required hereunder for a trust held for the benefit of my surviving spouse
or a "qualified subchapter S trust” as that term is defined in Code Section 1361(d)(3).

3. Distributions. To make any division or distribution pro rata or non-pro rata, in
cash or in kind, and to allocate undivided interests in property and dissimilar property (without regard
to its tax basis) to different shares.
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4. Management. To manage, develop, improve, partition or change the character
of an asset or interest in property at any time; and to make ordinary and extraordinary repairs,
replacements, alterations and improvements, structural or otherwise.

s. Borrowing. To borrow money from anyone on commercially reasonable terms,
including entities owned in whole or in pait by the trust, a Trustee, beneficiaries and other persons who
may have a direct or indirect interest in a Trust; and to mortgage, margin, encumber and pledge real and
personal property of a trust as security for the payment thereof, without incurring any personal liability
thereon and to do so for a term within or extending beyond the terms of the trust and to renew, modify
orextend existing borrowing on similar or different terms and with the same or different security without
incurring any personal liability; and such borrowing from a Trustee may be with or without interest, and
may be secured with a lien on trust assets.

6. Lending. To extend, modify or waive the terms of any obligation, bond or
mortgage at any time forming a part of a trust and to foreclose any such moitgage; accept a conveyance
of encumbered property, and take title to the property securing it by deed in lieu of foreclosure or
otherwise and to satisfy or not satisfy the indebtedness securing said property; to protect or redeem any
such property from forfeiture for nonpayment of taxes or other lien; generally, to exercise as to such
bond, obligation or mortgage all powers that an absolute owner might exercise; and to loan funds to
beneficiaries at commercially reasonable rates, terms and conditions.

7. Abandonment of Property. To abandon any property or asset when it is valueless
or s0 encumbered or in such condition that it is of no benefit to a trust. To abstain from the payment of
taxes, liens, rents, assessments, or repairs on such property and/or permit such property to be lost by tax
sale, foreclosure or other proceeding or by conveyance for nominal or no consideration to anyone
including a charity or by escheat to a state; all without personal liability incurred therefor.

8. Real Property Matters. To subdivide, develop or partition real estate; to purchase
or sell real property and to enter into contracts to do the same; to dedicate the same to public use; to
make or obtain the location of any plats; to adjust boundaries; to adjust differences in valuations on
exchange or partition by giving or receiving consideration; and, to grant easements with or without
consideration as the fiduciaries may determine; and to demolish any building, structures, walls and
improvements, or to erect new buildings, structures, walls and improvements and to insure against fire
and other risks; and to protect and conserve, or to lease, or to encumber, or otherwise to manage and
dispose of real property to the extent such power is not otherwise granted herein or otherwise restricted
herein.

S. Claims. To enforce, compromise, adjust, arbitrate, release or otherwise settle or
pay any claims or demands by or against a trust.

10.  Business Entities. To deal with any business entity or enterprise even if a Trustee
is or may be a fiduciary of or own interests in said business entity or enterprise, whether operated in the
form of a corporation, partnership, business trust, limited liability company, joint venture, sole

SIMON L. BERNSTEIN
AMENDED AND RESTATED TRUST AGREEMENT -11-

*LAW OFFICES

TESCHER & SPALLINA,PA.

A e T A )




proprietorship, or other form (all of which business entities and enterprises are referred to herein as
"Business Entities"). | vest the Trustee with the following powers and authority in regard to Business
Entities:

a. To retain and continue to operate a Business Entity for such pericd as the
Trustee decms advisable;

b. To control, direct and manage the Business Entities. In this connection, the
Trustee, in its sole discretion, shall determine the manner and extent of its active participation in the
operation and may delegaie all or any part of its power to supervise and operate to such person or
persons as the Trustee may select, including any associate, partner, officer or employee of the Business

Entity;

c. To hire and discharge officers and employees, fix their compensation and
define their duties; and similarly to employ, compensate and discharge agents, attorneys, consuitants,
accountants, and such other representatives as the Trustee may deem appropriate; including the rightto
employ any beneficiary or fiduciary in any of the foregoing capacities;

d. To invest funds in the Business Entities, to pledge other assets of a trust as
sccurity for loans made to the Business Entities, and to lend funds from a trust to the Business Entities;

e. To organize one or more Business Entities under the laws of this or any other
state or country and to transfer thereto all or any part of the Business Entities or other property of a trust,
and to receive in exchange such stocks, bonds, partnership and member interests, and such other
securities or interests as the Trustee may deem advisable;

f. To treat Business Entities as separate from a trust. In a Trustee's accounting
to any beneficiary, the Trustee shall only be required to report the earnings and condition of the Business
Entities in accordance with standard business accounting practice;

g. Toretain in Business Entities such net earnings for working capital and other
purposes of the Business Entities as the Trustee may deem advisable in conformity with sound business
practice;

h. To sell or liquidate all or any part of the Business Entities at such time and
price and upon such terms and conditions (including credit) as the Trustece may delermine. My Trustee
is specifically authorised and empowered to make such sale to any person, including any partner, officer,
or employee of the Business Entities, a fiduciary, or to any beneficiary; and

i. To guaranty the obligations of the Business Entities, or pledge assets of a trust
to secure such a guaranty.
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11.  Principal and Income. To allocate items of income or expense between income
and principal as permitted or provided by the laws of the State of Florida but without limiting the
availability of the estate tax marital deduction, provided, unless otherwise provided in this instrument,
the Trustee shall establish out of income and credit to principal reasonable reserves for depreciation,
obsolescence and depletion, determined to be equitable and fair in accordance with some recognized
reasonable and preferably uncomplicated trust accounting principle and; provided, further that the
Trustee shall not be required to provide a rate of return on unproductive property unless otherwise
provided in this instrument.

12. Life Insurance. With respect to any life insurance policies constituting an asset
of a trust, to pay premiums; to apply dividends in reduction of such premiums; to borrow against the cash
values thereof; to convert such policies into other forms of insurance, including paid-up insurance; to
exercise any settlement options provided in any such policies; to receive the proceeds of any policy upon
its maturity and to administer such proceeds as a part of the principal of the Trust; and in general, to
exercise all other options, benefits, rights and privileges under such policies.

13. Continuing Power. To continue to have or exercise, after the termination of a
trust, in whole or in part, and until final distribution thereof, all title, power, discretions, rights and duties
conferred or imposed upon the Trustee by law or by this Agreement or during the existence of the trust.

14, Exoneration. To provide for the exoneration of the Trustee from any personal
liability on account of any arrangement or coniract ehtered into in a fiduciary capacity.

15. Agreements. To comply with, amend, modify or rescind any agreement made
during my lifetime, including those regarding the disposition, management or continuation of any closely
held unincorporated business, corporation, partnership or joint venture, and including the power to
complete contracts to purchase and sell real estate.

16. Voting. To vote and give proxies, with power of substitution to vote, stocks,
bonds and other securities, or not to vote a security.

17. Combination of Shares. To hold the several shares of a trust or several Trusts as
a common fund, dividing the income proportionately among them, to assign undivided interests to the
severa] shares or Trusts, and to make joint investments of the funds belonging to them. For such
purposes and insofar as may be practicable, the Trustee, to the extent that division of the trust estate is
directed hereby, may administer the trust estate physically undivided until actual division thereof
becomes necessary to make distributions. The Trustee may hold, manage, invest and account for whole
or fractional trust shares as a single estate, making the division thereof by appropriate entries in the
books of account only, and may allocate to each whole or fractional trust share its proportionate part of
all receipts and expenses; provided, however, this carrying of several Trusts as a single estate shall not
defer the vesting in possession of any whole or fractional share of a trust for the beneficiaries thereof at
the times specified herein.
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. 18.  Reimbursement. Toreimburse itself from a trust for reasonable expenses incurred
_in the administration thereof.

19. Reliance Upon Communication. Torely, in acting under a trust, upon any letter,
notice, certificate, report, statement, document or other paper, or upon any telephone, telegraph, cable,
wireless or radio message, if believed by the Trustee to be genuine, and to be signed, sealed, acknowi-
edged, presented, sent, delivered or given by or on behalf of the proper person, firm or corporation,
without incurring liability for any action or inaction based thereon.

20. Assumptions. To assume, in the absence of written notice to the contrary from
the person or persons concerned, that a fact or an event, by reasen of which an interest or estate under
a trust shall commence or terminate, does not exist or has not occurred, without incurring liability for
any action or inaction based upon such assumption. :

21. Service as Custodian. To serve as successor custodian for any beneficiary of any
gifts that I may have made under any Transfer to Minors Act, if at the time of my death no custodian is
named in the instrument creating the gift.

22. Removal of Assets. The Trustee may remove from the domiciliary state during
the entire duration of a trust or for such lesser period as it may deem advisable, any cash, securities or
other property at any time in its hands whether principal or not, and to take and keep the same outside
the domiciliary state and at such place or places within or outside the borders of the United States as it
may determine, without in any event being chargeable for any loss or depreciation to the trust which may
result therefrom.

23.  Change of Situs. The situs and/or applicable law of any trust created hereunder
may be transferred to such other place as the Trustee may deem to be for the best interests of the trust
estate. In so doing, the Trustee may resign and appoini a successor Trustee, but may remove such
successor Trustee so appointed and appoint others. Each successor Trustee may delegate any and all
fiduciary powers, discretionary and ministerjal, to the appointing Trustee as its agent.

24, Fiduciary Qutside Domiciliary State. In the event the Trustee shall not be able
and willing to act as Trustee with respect to any property located outside the domiciliary state, the
Trustee, without order of court, may appoint another individual or corporation (including any employee
or agent of any appointing Trustee) to act as Trustee with respect to such property. Such appointed
Trustee shall have all of the powers and discretions with respect to such property as are herein given to
the appointing Trustee with respect to the remaining trust assets. The appointing Trustee may remove
such appointed Trustee and appoint another upon ten (10) days notice in writing. All income from such
property, and if such property is sold, exchanged or otherwise disposed of, the proceeds thereof, shall
be remitted to the appointing Trustee, to be held and administered by it as Trustee hereunder. Such
appointed Trustee may employ the appointing Trustee as agent in the administration of such property.
No surety shall be required on the bond of the Trustee or agent acting under the provisions of this
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paragraph. No periodic court accounting shall be required of such appointed Trustee, it being my
intention to excuse any statutory accounting which may ordinarily be required.

25.  Additions. To receive and accept additions to the Trusts in cash or in kind from
donors, executors, administrators, Trustee or attorneys in fact, including additions of my property by the
Trustee or others as my attorneys in fact.

26.  Title and Possession. To have title to and possession of all real or personal
property held in the Trusts, and to register or hold title to such property in its own name or in the name
of its nominee, without disclosing its fiduciary capacity, or in bearer form.

27. Dealing with Estates. To use principal of the Trusts to make loans to my estate,
with or without interest, and to make purchases from my estate.

28. Agents. To employ persons, including attorneys, auditors, investiment advisers,
and agents, even if they are the Trustee or associated with the Trustee, to advise or assist the Trustee in
the performance of its administrative duties and to pay compensation and costs incurred in connection
with such employment from the assets of the Trust; to act without independent investigation upon their
recommendations; and, instead of acting personally, to employ one or more agents to perform any act
of administration, whether or not discretionary.

29, Tax Elections. To file tax returns, and to exercise all tax-related elections and
options at its discretion, without compensating adjustments or reimbursements between any of'the Trusts
or any of the trust accounts or any beneficiaries.

B. Resignation. A Trustee may resign with or without cause, by giving no less than 30 days
advance written notice, specifying the effective date of such resignation, to its successor Trustee and to
the persons required and in the manner provided under Fla.Stats. §§736.0705(1)(2) and 736.0109. As
to any required recipient, deficiencies in fulfilling the foregoing resignation requirements may be waived
in a writing signed by such recipient. Upon the resignation of a Trustee, such Trustee shall be entitled
to reimbursement from the trust for all reasonable expenses incurred in the settlement of accounts and
in the transfer of assets to his or her successor.

C. Appointment of Successor Trustee.

c

1. Appointment. Upon a Trustee's resignation, or if a Trustee becomes Disabled or
for any reason ceases to serve as Trustee, | may appoint any person or persons as successor Trustee, and
in default of such appointment by me, ROBERT L. SPALLINA and DONALD R. TESCHER shall serve
together as successor co-Trustees, or either of them alone as Trustee if either of them is unable to serve.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a named Trustee is not a U.S. citizen or resident at the time of
commencement of his term as Trustee, such Trustee should give due consideration to declining to serve
to avoid potential adverse U.S. income tax consequences by reason of the characterization of a trust
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hereunder as a foreign trust under the Code, but shall not be construed to have any duty to so decline if
such Trustee desires to serve.

2. Specific Trusts. Notwithstanding the preceding provisions of this Subparagraph
1V.C, subsequent to my death I specifically appoint the following person or persons as Trustee of the
following Trusts under the following described circumstances provided that the foregoing appointments
shall apply when and to the extent that no effective appointment is made below:

- Trustee of Separate Trusts for My Grandchildren. Each grandchild of

mine shall serve as co-Trustee with the immediate parent of such grandchild which parent is also a child
of mine as to all separate trusts under which such grandchild is the sole current mandatory or
discretionary income beneficiary upcn attaining the age of twenty-five (25) years, and shall serve as sole
Trustee of such trusts upon attaining the age of thirty-five (35) years. While serving alone as Trustee,
a grandchild of mine may designate a co-Trustee that is not a Related or Subordinate Party to serve with
such grandchild and such grandchild may remove and/or replace such co-Trustee with another that is
not a Related or Subordinate Party from time to time.

b. Trustee of Separate Trusts for My Lineal Descendants Other Than My
Grandchildren. In regard to a separate trust held for a lineal descendant of mine other than a grandchild
of mine which lineal descendant is the sole current mandatory or discretionary income beneficiary, each
such lineal descendant shall serve as co-Trustee, or sole Trustee if the preceding described Trustees
cease or are unable to serve or to continue to serve, of his or her separate trust upon attaining age twenty-
five (25) years. While serving alone as Trustee, a lineal descendant of mine other than a grandchild of
mine may designate a co-Trustee to serve with such lineal descendant and such lineal descendant may
remove and/or replace such co-Trustee with another from time to time.

3. Successor Trustees Not Provided For. Whenever a successor Trustee or co-
Trustee is required and no successor or other functioning mechanism for succession is provided for
under the terms of this Trust Agreement , the last serving Trustee or the last person or entity designated
to serve as Trustee of the applicable trust may appoint his or her successot, and if none is so appointed,
the following persons shall appoint a successor Trustee (who may be one of the persons making the
appointment):

a. The remaining Trustees, if any; otherwise,

b. A majority of the permissible current mandatory or discretionary income
beneficiarics, including the natural or legal guardians of any beneficiaries who are Disabled.

A successor Trustee appointed under this subparagraph shali not be a Related or Subordinate Party of
the trust. The appointment will be by a written document executed by such person in the presence of two
witnesses and acknowledged before a notary public delivered to the appointed Trustee and to me if 1 am
living and not Disabled or in a valid last Will. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a designation under this
Subparagraph of a successor trustee to a corporate or entity trustee shall be limited to a corporate or
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entity trustee authorized to serve as such under Florida law with assets under trust management of no
. less than one billion dollars.

4, Power to Remove Trustee. Subsequent to my death, the age 35 or older
permissible current mandatory or discretionary income beneficiaries from time to time of any trust
established hereunder shall have the power to unanimously remove a Trustee of such trust at any time
with or without cause, other than a named Trustee or successor Trustee designated hereunder, or 2
Trustee appointed by me during my lifetime or under my Will or otherwise at the time of my death, with
the successor Trustee to be determined in accordance with the foregoing provisions.

D. Method of Appointment of Trustee. Any such appointment of a successor Trustee by
a person shall be made in a written instrument executed by such person in the presence of two witnesses
and acknowledged before a notary public which is delivered to such appointed Trustee during the
lifetime of the person making such appointment, or any such appo1n1ment of a successor Trustee by a
person may be made under the last Will of such person.

E. Limitations on Removal and Replacement Power. Any power to remove and/or

replace a trustee hereunder that js granted to an individual (inciuding such power when reserved to me)
is personal to that individual and may not be exercised by a guardian, power of attorney holder, or other
legal representative or agent.

F. Successor Fiduciaries. No Trustee is responsible for, nor has any duty to inquire into,
the administration, acts or omissions of any executor, administrator, Personal Representative, or trustee
orattorney-in-fact adding property to these Trusts, or of any predecessor Trustee. Each successor Trustee
has all the powers, privileges, immunities, rights and title (without the execution of any instrument of
transfer or any other act by any retiring Trustee) and all the duties of all predecessors.

G. Liability and Indemnification of Trustee.

1. Liability in General. No individual Trustee (that is, a Trustee that is not a
corporation or other entity) shall be Jiable for any of his or her actions or failures to act as Trustee, even-
if the individual Trustee is found by a court to have been negligent or in breach of fiduciaty duty, except
for liability caused by his or her actions or failures to act done in bad faith or with reckiess indifference
to the purposes of the trust or the interests of'the beneficiaries. Each Trustee that is a corporation or other
entity will be liable for its actions or failures to act that are negligent or that breach its fiduciary duty,
without contribution by any individual Trustee.

2. Indemnification of [Tustee. Except in regard to liabilities imposed on a Trustee
under Subparagraph IV.G.1, each Trustee shall be held harmless and indemnified from the assets of the
trust for any liability, damages, attorney’s fees, expenses, and costs incurred as a result of its service as
Trustee. A Trustee who ceases to serve for any reason will be entitled to receive reasonable security from
* the assets of the trust to protect it from liability, and may enforce these provisions for indemnification
against the current Trustee or against any assets held in the trust, or ifthe former Trustee is an individual
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and not a corporation or other entity, against any beneficiary to the extent of distributions received by
that beneficiary. This indemnification right extends to the estate, personal representatives, legal
successors and assigns of a Trustee,

3. Indemnification of Trustee - Additional Provisions. ! recognize that ifa
beneficiary accuses a Trustee of wrongdoing or breach of fiduciary duty, the Trustee may have a conflict
of interest that ordinarily would prevent it from paying legal fees and costs from the trust estate to defend
itself. I do not want to put a financial burden on any individual named to serve as a Trustee. Just as
important, ] do not want an individual who has been selected to serve as a Trustee to be reluctant to
accept the position, or while serving to be intimidated in the performance of the Trustee's duties because
of the threats of lawsuits that might force the Trustee to pay fees and costs from the Trustee's personal
resources. For thisreason, I deliberately and intentionally waive any such conflict of interest with respect
to any individual serving as Trustee so that he or she can hire counse] to defend himself or herself against
allegations of wrongdoing or if sued for any reason (whether by a beneficiary or by someone else) and
pay all fees and costs for his or her defense from the trust estate until the dispute is resolved. I understand
and agree that a court may award, disallow or allocate fees and costs in whole or in part after the dispute
is resoived, as provided by law. The Trustee will account for all such fees and costs paid by it'as
provided by law. This provision shall not apply to any Trustee that is a corporation or other entity.

H. Compensation. Bond. Each Trustee js entitled to be paid reasonable compensation for
services rendered in the administration of the trust. Reasonable compensation for 2 non-individual
Trustee will be its published fee schedule in effect when its services are rendered unless otherwise
agreed in writing, and except as follows. Any fees paid to a non-individual Trustee for making principal
distributions, for termination of the trust, and upon termination of its services must be based solely on
the value of its services rendered, not on the value of the trust principal, During my lifetime the Trustee's
fees are to be charged wholly against income (to the extent sufficient), unless directed otherwise by me
in writing. Each Trustee shall serve without bond.

I Maintenance of Records. The Trustee shall maintain accurate accounts and records.
It shall render annual statements of the receipts and disbursements of income and principal of a trust
upon the written request of any adult vested beneficiary of such trust or the guardian of the person of any
vested beneficiary and the approval of such beneficiary shall be binding upon all persons then or
thereafter interested in such trust as to the matters and fransactions shown on such statement. The
Trustee may at any time apply for a judicial settlement of any account. No Trustee shall be required to
file any statutory or other periodic accountings of the administration of a trust,

J. Interested Trustee. The Trustee may act under this Agreement even if interested in
these Trusts in an individual capacity, as a fiduciary of another trust or estate (including my estate) or
in any other capacity. The Trustee may in good faith enter into a sale, encumbrance, or other transaction
involving the investment or management of trust property for the Trustee’s own personal account or
which is otherwise affected by a conflict between the Trustee's fiduciary and personal interests, without
liability and without being voidable by a beneficiary. The Trustee is specifically authorized to make
loans to, to receive loans from, or to sell, purchase or exchange assets in a transaction with (i) the
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Trustee's spouse, (ii) the Trustee's children or grandchildren, siblings, parents, or spouses of such
persons, (iii) an officer, director, employee, agent, or attorney of the Trustee, or (iv) a corporation,
partnership, limited liability company, or other business entity in which the Trustee has a financial

" interest, provided that in any transaction the trusts hereunder recetve fair and adequate consideration in
money or money's worth. The Trustee may renounce any interest or expectancy of a trust in, or an
opportunity to participate in, specified business opportunities ot specified classes or categories of
business opportunities that are presented to the Trustee. Such renunciation shall not prohibit the Trustee
from participating in the Trustee's individual capacity in such opportunity or expectancy.

K. Third Parties. No one dealing with the Trustee need inquire into jts authority or its
application of property. '

L. Merger of Trusts. If the Trustee is also trustee of a trust established by myself or

another person by will or trust agreement, the beneficiaries to whom income and principal may then be

* paid and then operative terms of which are substantially the same as those of a trust held under this

Agreement, the Trustee in its discretion may merge either such trust into the other trust. The Trustee,

in exercising its discretion, shall consider ecanomy of administration, convenience to the beneficiaries,

tax consequences and any other factor it considers important. If it is later necessary to reestablish the

merged trust as separate trusts, it shall be divided proportionately to the value of each trust at the time
of merger.

M. Multiple Trustees. [f two Trustees are serving at any time, any power or discretion of
the Trustees may be exercised only by their joint agreement. Either Trustee may delegate to the other
Trustee the authority to act on behalf of both Trustees and to exercise any power held by the Trustees.
If more than two Trustees are serving at any time, and unless unanimous agreement is specifically
required by the term’s of this Trust Agreement, any power or discretion of the Trustees may be exercised
only by a majority. The Trustees may delegate to any one or more of themselves the authority to act on
behalf of all the Trustees and to exercise any power held by the Trustees. Trustees who consent to the
delegation of authority to other Trustees will be liable for the consequences of the actions of those other
Trustees as if the consenting Trustees had joined the other Trustees in performing those actions. A
dissenting Trustee who did not consent to the delegation of authority to another Trustee and who hasnot
joined in the exercise of a power or discretion cannot be held liable for the consequences of the exercise.
A dissenting Trustee who joins only at the direction of the majority will not be liable for the
consequences of the exercise if the dissent is expressed in writing delivered to any of the other Trustees
before the exercise of that power or discretion.

ARTICLE V. ADDITIONAL TAX AND RELATED MATTERS

A GST Trusts. I direct (a) that the Trustee shall divide any trust to which there is allocated
any GST exemption into two separate Trusts (each subject to the provisions hereof) so that the
generation-skipping tax inclusion ratio of one such trust is zero, (b) any property exempt from
generation-skipping taxation shall be divided as otherwise provided herein and held for the same persons
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-designated in Trusts separate from any property then also so divided which is not exempt from
generation-skipping taxation, and (c) if upon the death of a beneficiary a taxable termination would
otherwise occur with respect to any property held in trust for him or her with an inclusion ratio greater
than zero, such beneficiary shall have with respect only to such property a power to appoint such
fractional share thereof which if included in such beneficiary's gross estate for federal estate tax purposes
(without allowing any deduction with respect to such share) would nat be taxed at the highest federal
estate tax rate and such fractional share of such property shall be distributed to such persons including
only such beneficiary's estate, spouse, and issue, as such beneficiary may appoint, and any part of a trust
such beneficiary does not effectively appoint shall be treated as othierwise provided for disposition upon
his or her death, provided, if upon his or her death two or more Trusts for his or her benefit are directed
to be divided among and held or distributed for the same persons and the generation-skipping tax
inclusion ratio of any such trust is zero, the amount of any other such Trust to which there is allocated
any of such beneficiary's GST exemption shali be added to the Trusts with generation-skipping tax
inclusion ratios of zero in equal shares. For purposes of funding any pecuniary payment to which there
is allocated any GST exemption, such payment shall be satisfied with cash or property which fairly
represents appfeciation and depreciation (occurring between the valuation date and the date of
distribution) in all of the assets from which such distribution could be made, and any pecuniary payment
made before a residual transfer of property to which any GST exemption is allocated shall be satisfied
with cash or property which fairly represents appreciation and depreciation (occurring between the
valuation date and the date of distribution) in all of the assets from which such pecuniary payment could
be satisfied and shal] be allocated a pro rata share of income eamed by all such assets between the
valuation date and the date of payment. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the valuation
date with respect to any property shall be the date as of which its value is determined for federal estate
tax purposes with respect to the transferor thereof, and subject to the foregoing, property distributed in
kind in satisfaction of any pecuniary payment shal) be selected on the basis of the value of such property
on the valuation date. All terms used in this paragraph which are defined or explained in Chapter 13 of
the Code or the regulations thereunder shall have the same meaning when used herein. I request (but do
not require) that if two or more Trusts are held hereunder for any person, no principal be paid to such
person from the Trusts with the lower inclusion ratios for generation-skipping tax purposes unless the
trust with the highest inclusion ratio has been exhausted by use, consumption, distribution or otherwise
or is not reasonably available. The Trustee is authorized and directed to compiy with the provisions of
the Treasury Regulations interpreting the generation skipping tax provisions of the Code in severing or
combining any trust, creating ot combining separate trust shares, allocating GST exemption, or
otherwise, as necessary to best accomplish the foregoing allocations, inclusion ratios, combinations, and
divisions, including, without limitation, the payment of “appropriate interest™ as determined by the
Trustee as that term is applied and used in said Regulations.

B. Individual Retirement Aceounts. In the event that this trust or any trust created under
this Agreement is the beneficiary of an Individual retirement account established and maintained under
Code Section 408 or a qualified pension, profit sharing or stock bonus plan established and maintained
under Code Section 401 (referred to in this paragraph as “IRA”), the following provisions shall apply
to such trust: V
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‘ 1. I intend that the beneficiaries of such trust shall be beneficiaries within the
meaning of Code Section 401(a)(9) and the Treasury Regulations thereunder. AH provisions of such trust
shall be construed consistent with such intent. Accordingly, the following provisions shall apply to such
frust:

a. No benefits from any IRA may be used or applied for the payment of any
debts, taxes or other claims against my estate as set forth in the later paragraph captioned "Taxes", unless
other assets of this trust are not available for such payment.

b. In the event that a beneficiary of any trust created under this Agreement
has a testamentary general power of appointment or a limited power of appointment over all or any
portion of any trust established under this Agreement, and if such trust is the beneficiary of any benefits
from any IR A, the beneficiary shall not appoint any part of such trust to a charitable organization or to
a lineal descendant of mine (or a spouse of a lineal descendant of mine) who is older than the beneficiary
whosge life expectancy is being used to calculate distributions from such IRA.

2. The Trustee shall deliver a copy of this Agreement to the custodian of any IRA
of which this trust or any trust created under this Agreement is the named beneficiary within the time
period prescribed Code Section 401(a)(9) and the Treasury Regulations thereunder, along with such
additional items required thereunder. If the custodian of the IRA changes after a copy of this Agreement
has been provided pursuant to the preceding senience, the Trustee shall immediately provide a copy of
this Agreement to the new custodian. The Trustee shall request each custodian to complete a receipt of
the Agreement and shall attach such receipt to this Agreement. The Trustee shall provide a copy of each
amendment of this Agreement to the custodian and shall obtain a receipt of such amendment.

C. Gift Transfers Made From Trust During My I ifetime. | direct that all gift transfers
made from the trust during my lifetime be treated for all purposes as if the gift property had been first
withdrawn by (or distributed to) me and then transferred by me to the donees involved. Thus, in each
instance, even where fitle to the gift property is transferred directly from the name of the trust (or its
nominee) into the name of the donee, such transfer shall be treated for all purposes as first a withdrawal
by (or distribution of the property to) me followed by a gift transfer of the property to the donee by me
as donor, the Trustee making the actual transfer in my behalf acting as my attorney in fact, this paragraph
being, to that extent, a power of attorney from me to the Trustee to make such transfer, which power of
attorney shall not be affected by my Disability, incompetence, or incapacity.

D. Gifts. If 1 am Disabled, I authorize the Trustee to make gifts from trust property during
my lifetime for estate planning purposes, or to distribute amounts to my legally appointed guardian or
to my attorney-in-fact for those purposes, subject to the following limitations:

1. Recipients. The gifts may be made only to my lineal descendants or to trusts
primarily for their benefit, and in aggregate annual amounts to any one such recipient that do not exceed
the exclusion amount provided for under Code Section 2503(b).
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2. Trustee Limited. When a person eligible to receive gifts is serving as Trustee,
the aggregate of all gifts to that person during the calendar year allowable under the preceding
subparagraph 1. shall thereafter not exceed the greater of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000), or five percent
(5%) of the aggregate value of the trust estate. However, gifts completed prior to a recipient's
commencing to serve as Trustee shall not be affected by this limitation.

3. Charitable Pledges. The Trustee may pay any charitable pledges I made while
T was not Disabled (even if not yet due).

E. Death Costs. If upon my death the Trustee hold any United States bonds which may be
redeemed at par in payment of federal estate tax, the Trustee shall pay the federal estate tax due because
of my death up to the amount of the par value of such bonds and interest accrued thereon at the time of
payment. The Trustee shall also pay from the trust all of my following death costs, but if there is an
acting executor, administrator or Personal Representative of my estate my Trustee shall pay only such
amounts of such costs as such executor, administrator or Personal Representative directs:

1. my debts which are allowed as claims against my estate,

2. my funeral expenses without regard to legal limitations,

3. the expenses of administering my estate,

4. the balance of the estate, inheritance and other death taxes (excluding

generation-skipping transfer taxes unless arising from direct skips), and interest and penalties thereon,
due because of my death with respect to all property whether or not passing under my Will or this
Agreement (other than property over which 1 have a power of appointment granted to me by another
person, and qualified terminable interest property which is not held in a trust that was subject to an
election under Code Section 2652(a)(3) al or about the time of its funding) and life insurance proceeds
on policies insuring my life which proceeds are not held under this irust or my probate estate at or by
reason of my death), and

5. any gifts made in my Will or any Cedicil thereto.

The Trustee may make any such payment either to my executor, administrator or Personal
Representative or directly to the proper party. The Trustee shall not be reimbursed for any such payment,
and is not responsible for the correctness or application of the amounts so paid at the direction of my
executor, administrator, or Personal Representative. The Trustee shall not pay any of such death costs
with any assel which would not otherwise be included in my gross estate for federal or state estate or
inheritance tax purposes, or with any asset which otherwise cannot be so used, such as property received
under a limited power of appointment which prohibits such use. Further, no payment of any such death
costs shall be charged against or paid from the tangible personal property disposed of pursuant to the
prior paragraph captioned "Disposition of Tangible Personal Property."
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F. Subchapter S Stock. Regardless of anything herein to the contrary, in the event that after
my death the principal of a trust includes stock in a corporation for which there is a valid election to be
treated under the provisions of Subchapter S of the Code, the income beneficiary of such a trustisa U.S.
citizen or U.S. resident for federal income tax purposes, and such trust is not an "electing small business
trust” under Code Section 1361(e)(1) in regard to that corporation, the Trustee shall (g) hold such stock
as a substantially separate and independent share of such trust within the meaning of Code Section
663(c), which share shall otherwise be subject to all of the terms of this Agreement, (b) distribute all of
the income of such share to the one income beneficiary thereof in annual or more frequent installments,
(c) upon such beneficiary's death, pay all accrued or undistributed income of such share to the
beneficiary's estate, (d) distribute principal from such share during the lifetime of the income beneficiary
only to such beneficiary, notwithstanding any powers of appointment granted to any person including
the income beneficiary, and (e) otherwise administer such share in a matiner that qualifies it as a
*qualified Subchapter S trust" as that term is defined in Code Section 1361(d)(3), and shall otherwise
manage and administer such share as provided under this Agreement to the extent not inconsistent with

- the foregoing provisions of this paragraph.

G. Residence as Homestead. [ reserve the right to reside upon any real property placed in
this trust as my permanent residence during my life, it being the intent of this provision to retain for
myself the requisite beneficial interest and possessory right in and (o such real property to comply with
Section 196.041 of'the Florida Statutes such that said beneficial interest and possessory right constitute
in all respects "equitable title to real estate" as that term is used in Section 6, Article VII of the
Constitution of the State of Florida. Notwithstanding anything contained in this trust to the contrary, for
purposes of the homestead exemption under the laws of the State of Florida, my interest in any real
property in which I reside pursuant to the provisions of this trust shall be deemed to be an interest in real
property and not personalty and shall be deemed my homestead.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have executed this Amended and Restated Trust
Agreement on the date first above written.

SETTLOR and TRUSTEE:

SIMON L. BERNSTEIN

This instrument was signéd by SIMON L. BERNSTEIN in our presence, and at the request of

STATE OF FLORIDA
SS.
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this%]ay of \&U\\I ,2012,
f

by SIMON L. BERNSTEIN.

[Seal with Commission Expiration Date]

NOTARY PUBLIC-STATE OF FLORIDA

W', Lindsay Baxley Print, stam of Notary Publi
g"aggmmmision#mmsz " e o Samp e of owty Peble
“ ¥ss Expires; MAY 10, 2015

BCMDED THRU ATLANTICBONDING CO,, INC. _
Personally Known or Produced ldentification

Type of ldentification Produced
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TESCHER & SPALLINA, PA.

ATTORNEYS-AT-LAW

Practice Areas

Qur People

Contact Us

Directions

Disclaimer

Welcome to TBSCHER & SPALLINA, PA.

The law office of TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A. in Boca Raton, Florida is a boutique
tax practice focused on wealth transfer planning for high net-worth individuals
and families, including gift and estate tax planning, business succession
planning, charitablie planning, corporate, limited partnership and asset
protection planning, life insurance planning, post-mortem planning, probate
administration and other tax related matters.

Our practice approach is team based, allowing us to provide the highest quality,
cost efficient legal service for our clients. The selection of an attorney to plan
your estate is a decision that can last for generations. An effective, tax efficient
estate plan coordinates what will happen with the various aspects of your
financial and personal life - home, investments, business, life insurance,
retirement assets, and other issues in the event you become disabled or if you
die. Most importantly, an overall estate plan protects the members of your
family long after you are not able to care for them. Whenever possible, we like
to work with families on multi-generational planning matters.

Our attorneys have extensive expertise in these areas, take pride in their
practice and reputation, and have been recognized in national publications and
through membership in prestigious peer organizations. The firm’s managing
partner has been prominently featured in numerous ranking guides inctuding
The Best Layers in America, Robb Report and Worth Magazine’s Top 100
Attorneys, Fiorida Legal Elites, Florida Super Lawyers and Chambers USA. All of
our attorneys hold graduate law degrees in tax or estate planning and are
admitted to practice before the Florida Bar.

Members of our firm believe in giving back to their local community and their
profession. Our attorneys participate in numerous bar activities and community
organizations in Palm Beach, Broward and Miami-Dade counties. We welcome
you to contact us to learn more about our firm.

Dnwrections | Disciaimer | Privacy Policy

Mailing & Street Address:

TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.
Wells Fargo Plaza

925 South Federal Hwy
Suite 500

Boca Raton, Florida 33432

Telephone & Fax:
Phone: (561) 997-7008
Fax: (561) 997-7308

Toll Free: (888) 997-7008

Websites:
www.tescherspallina.com

DISCLAIMER

The hiring of a lawyer or law firm is an
important decision and should not be

based solely upon advertisements, this
communication or the information provided
herein. Before you decide whether to retain
a lawyer or law firm, and before you decide
which lawyer ar law firm to retain, please
call us and ask us to send you free written
information about our qualifications and
experience.

Copyright © - TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A. - All rant reserved
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TESCHER & SPALLINA, PA.

ATTORNEYS-AT-LAW

Practice Areas

Mailing & Street Address:

., . y TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.
Contact Us g : Wells Fargo Plaza

) A 925 South Federal Hwy
Suite 500
Boca Raton, Florida 33432
Distections
Telephone & Fax:
Phone: (561) 997-7008
) ] Fax: (561) 997-7308
Disclaimer : Toli Free: (888) 997-7008

Websites:
www.tescherspallina.com

Our People
Qur Attorneys

DONALD R. TESCHER holds two degrees from the
University of Florida, with a bachelor of science in
business administration (accounting) from the
University of Florida School of Business and a juris
doctor from the University of Florida College of Law.
Mr. Tescher also holds a master of laws degree in
taxation from New York University. Mr. Tescher is a
past Chairman of the Tax Section of The Florida Bar
and recipient of the Gerald T. Hart Outstanding
Florida Tax Lawyer Award. Mr. Tescher has been
recognized by The Best Lawyers in America, the
Robb Report Worth Magazine, Chambers and
Partners USA, Florida Trend Magazine - South
Florida Legal Guide, and Florida Super Lawyers. Mr.
Tescher is a Fellow of the American College of Trust
and Estate Counsel

(ACTEC) and a member of its Business Planning and Estate and Gift Tax
committees. He has served as adjunct professor at the University of Miami
School of Law Graduate Tax and Estate Planning programs. He is a member of
the Directors’ Committee of The Florida Bar Tax Section, the Executive Council
and Trust Law Committee of The Florida Bar Real Property, Probate and Trust
Law Section, and member of various Committees of the Tax and Real Property
Sections of the American Bar Association. Click here for a complete list of Mr.
Tescher’s articles, publications, recognitions and extra-curricular activities. You

can contact Mr. Tescher by email at dtescher@tescherspallina.com

More»

ROBERT L. SPALLINA holds a bachelor of science
degree in accounting with honors from the
University of Florida Fisher School of Accounting, a
juris doctor from Loyola Law School in Los Angeles,
and a master of laws degree in estate planning from
the University of Miami School of Law. Mr. Spallina
is a former Certified Public Accountant (CPA) and
Certified Financial Planner (CFP), and began his
professional career with KPMG Peat Marwick in Los
Angeles. After working as a CPA with KPMG, Mr.
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and Vice President of Finance for Sony Pictures
Entertainment and Mandalay Pictures prior to
pursuing his law degrees. Mr. Spallina began his
legal career as a Trusts and Estates attorney with
Tescher Gutter

Chaves Josepher Rubin Ruffin & Forman, P.A. in 2002, and focuses his practice
on wealth transfer planning, post-mortem planning, probate and related
matters for high net worth individuals and families. Mr. Spaliina is an active
member of the Tax and Real Property, Probate and Trust Law sections of the
Florida Bar, and co-authored an article for the June 2010 Florida Bar Journal
titled Section 2053 Regulations: Continued Uncertainty. Mr. Spallina has been a
guest lecturer for the Tax Practitioners Annual Update Course for the Tax Law
Section of the Florida Bar and is the current President of the Boca Raton Tax
Institute. Mr. Spallina is also a member of the Greater Boca Raton Estate
Planning Council and South Palm Beach County Bar Association.You can contact

Mr. Spallina by email at rspallina@tescherspallina.com

LAUREN A. GALVANI graduated from Boston
College in 2006 with a triple major, receiving her
bachelor of arts degree in English, History, and
Political Science. Ms. Galvani was also a dual degree
candidate at the University of Miami School of Law,
and simultaneously received her juris doctor and
master of laws in taxation in 2009. While at the
University of Miami, Ms. Galvani practiced
international estate planning as a summer associate
at Aballi Milne Kalil, P.A. in Miami, Florida. Ms.
Galvani joined Tescher & Spallina, P.A. in October of
2009 and focuses her practice on wills, trusts and
estates for high net worth individuals. Ms. Galvani is
# licensed to practice in Florida and Massachusetts,

j and is actively involved in the Tax and Real
Property,

Probate and Trust Law sections of the Flarida Bar and the American Bar
Association. Ms. Galvani co-authored an article that appeared in the June 2010
Florida Bar Journal Section 2053 Final Regulations: Continued Uncertainty? and
is co-authoring another articie that will appear in the June 2011 Florida Bar
Journal. Ms. Galvani is also a member of the Boca Raton Tax Institute and
South Paim Beach County Bar Association. You can contact Ms. Galvani by email

at lgalvani@tescherspallina.com

Qur Support Staff:

Kimberly Moran - kmoran@tescherspallina.com
Diane Dustin - ddustin@tescherspallina.com
SuAnn Tescher - stescher@tescherspallina.com

Diractions { Oisclaimer | Privacy Policy Cooyright € - TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A. - &l right reserved
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Boca ViLLAGE CORPORATE CENTER 1
4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720
Boca Rarow, FLorDA 33431

ATTORNEYS S — SUPPORT STAFF
DONALD R. TESCHER TEL: 561-997-7008 ’ DIANE DUSTIN
ROBERT L, Spallina Fax: 561-997-7308 KiMBERLY MORAN
LAUREN A. GALVANI ToLL FreE: 888-997-7008, SUANN TESCHER

WWW. TESCHERSPALLINA.COM
January 14, 2014

ViA U.S. MAIL AND EMAIL

Ted S. Bernstein Eliot Bernstein Lisa S. Friedstein

880 Berkeley Street 2753 NW 34" Street 2142 Churchill Lane
Boca Raton, FL 33487 Boca Raton, FL 33434 Highland Park, IL 60035
Pamela B. Simon Jill lantoni

950 North Michigan Ave. 2101 Magnolia Lane

Suite 2603 Highland Park, IL 60035

Chicagpo, IL 60606

Re: Estates and Trusts of Shirley Bernstein and Simon Bernstein
Dear Ladies and Gentlemen:

It has been brought to my attention that a document was prepared in our office that altered the
disposition of the Shirley Bernstein Trust subsequent to Simon Bernstein’s death. Information provided
to me appears to indicate that there were two versions of the First Amendment to the Shirley
Bernstein Trust Agreement, both executed on November 18, 2008. Under one version the children
of Pam Simon and Ted Bernstein would not be permissible appointees of Simon Bernstein's exercise
of the power of appointment while under the second version that restriction was removed. As you
all know, Simon Bernstein’s dispositive plan, expressed to all of you during his lifetime on a conference
call, was to distribute the Estate to all ten of his grandchildren. That was the basis upon which the
administration was moving forward.

Under the Shirley Bemnstein Trust, there is a definition of children and lineal descendants. That
definition excluded Pam Simon, Ted Bernstein and their respective children from inheriting. The
document also contained a special Power of Appointment for Simon wherein he could appoint the assets
of the Trust for Shirley’s lineal descendants. Based upon the definition of children and lineal
descendants, the Power of Appointment could not be exercised in favor of Pam Simon, Ted Bernstein
or their respective children, although we believe it was Simon Bernstein’s wish to provide equally for
all of his grandchildren.

On November 18, 2008, it does appear from the information that I have reviewed that Shirley

Bernstein executed a First Amendment to her trust agreement. The document as executed appears to
make only one relatively minor modification to her trust disposition by eliminating a specific gift to Ted
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Bernstein Family
January 14, 2014
Page 2

Bernstein’s stepson. In January of 2013 a First Amendment to the Shirley Bernstein Trust Agreement
was provided to Christine Yates, Esq. who, at that time, was representing Eliot Bernstein. The document
provided contained a paragraph number 2 which modified the definitional language in Shirley’s
document so as to permit, by deleting the words “and their respective lineal descendants™ from the
definition, an exercise of the power of appointment by Simon Bernstein over the Shirley Bernstein Trust
to pass equally to all ten grandchildren rather than only six of the grandchildren.

By virtue of The Florida Bar Rules of Professional Conduct, I am duty bound to provide this
information to you. Obviously, as a result of the issues and ramifications raised by the allegations, my
firm must resign from further representation in all matters relating to the Estates and Trusts of Simon
Bernstein and Shirley Bernstein. Furthermore, it is my intent, and I assume also the intent of Robert
Spallina, to tender our resignations as personal representatives of the Simon Bernstein Estate and as
trustees of the Simon Bernstein Trust. If the majority of the Bernstein family is in agreement, I would
propose to exercise the power to designate a successor trustee by appointing Ted Bernstein in that
capacity. With regard to the Simon Bernstein Estate, the appointment of the successor would require a
court proceeding.

T am obviously upset and distraught over this chain of events and wiil do all that I reasonably can
to correct and minimize any damages to the Bernstein fap As I believe you know, to date there has
only been a modest funding of some, but not all, of the co g trusts for the grandchildren emanating
from Shirley’s Trust assets.

DRT/km
cc: Alan Rose, Esq.
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Christine Yates [cty@TrippScott.comj

Robert Spallina
R N T

From:

Sent: Wednesday, January 30, 2013 8:17 AM

To: Robert Spallina

Cc: *Eliot van Bemstein'

Subject: RE: Bemstein - E/O Shirley Bernstein & E/O Leon Bemnstein: Heritage Policy

Roberf, after discussions with my client, he is not in agreement with the plan proposed below. A more formal ietter will

follow.

From: Robert Spallina [mailto:rspallina@tescherspallina.com]
Sent: Tuesday, January 29, 2013 11:43 AM
To: Ted Bemnstein; Lisa Friedstein; Pam Siman; Jill Iantoni; Christine Yates

Cec: Kimberly Moran
Subject: RE: Bernstein - E/O Shirley Bernstein & E/O Leon Bernstein: Heritage Policy

I amn following up on our telephone conference from last week. Ted has contacted me about circulating a draft of the
settlement agreement that would be presented to the court. Again, prior to preparing an agreement, | want to make
sure that you are ALL in agreement that the proceeds do not come to the estate. | can tell you that your father ptanned
his estate intending and believing that the ftve children would split the proceeds equally. We would like to see his
wishes carried out and not have the proceeds paid to the estate where they could be subject to creditor claims prior to
being split in equal shares among the grandchiidren. Please advise if you are in agreement to move forward te petition
the court for an order that would split the proceeds equally among the five of you.

Robert L. Spaliina, Esq.

TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.

4855 Technology Way, Suite 720
Baca Raton, Florida 33431
Tslephone; 561-B37-70D8
Facsimile: 561-997-7308

E-mail: spalline@teseharspaliing.com

{f you would like to ieam more about TESCHER & SPALLINA, F.A,, please visit our waebsite al www.lescherspallina com

The information contzined in this message is legally privileged and confidential information intended only for the use of the
individual or enfity named above. [F THE READER OF THIS MESSAGE |S NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, YOU
ARE HEREBY NOTIF{ED THAT ANY DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION OR COPYING OF THIS COMMURNICATION IS
STRICTLY PROHIBITED. If you have received this communication in error, please immediately notify us by e-mail or

telephaone. Thank you.

peT—— B . -

From: Robert Spallina
Sent: Wednesday, January 23, 2013 1:14 PM

To: Ted Bemstein
Cer Lisa Priedstein; Pam Simon; Jill Tantoni; Christine Yates; Kimberly Moran

Subject: Re: Heritage Policy

Kim will send.

Sent from my iPhone

On Jan 23,2013, at 1:11 PM, "Ted Bemstein" <tbernstein, ifeinsuranceconcepts.com> wrote:
1
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. From: Jill tantoni [jiliizntoni@gmail.com]
Sent: : Tuesday, January 29, 2013 3:39 PM
To: Robert Spallina
Subject: Re: Heritage Policy

riobert Sp

BT X 05 ortenr, 55 Iy« 7o e

atlina

Thanks

Jill Iamtoni

lantoni fill@ne.bsh.com
Recruiting Services
Booz | Allen | Hamilton

On Jan 29, 2013, at 2:03 PM, “Robert Spallina” <rspallina@tescherspallina.com> wrote:

The claim could be open for a iong time but if it is cleared up then the money would be free from
creditor claims. | do not know if there is a time frame for a pay out but if the proceeds are paid to the

estate then your father’s intent is not carried out.

From: Jill Tantoni [mailtozjilliantoni@gmail.com
Sent: Tuesday, January 29, 2013 12:45 PM
To: Robart Spaliina

Cc: Jill Iantoni

Subject: Re: Heriage Folicy

Hi Robert,

If the money stays at the insurance company until the Bill S. claim is cleared up, can we then
decide if ALL five are in agreement and if not, wouldn't that money be free from creditors at that
point? Is there a time fram that the money has to leave the insurance company and be paid out?

Thanks.
Jill

On Tue, Jan 29, 2013 at 10:42 AM, Robert Spallina <gspallina@tescherspallina.com> wrote:

| am following up en our telephone conference from Jast week. Ted has contacted me about circutating
a draft of the settlement agreement that would be presented to. the court. Again, prior to preparing an
agreement, | want to make sure that you are ALL in agreement that the proceeds do not come to the
estate. | can tell you that your father planned his estate intending and believing that the five children
would split the proceeds equally. We wouid Iike to see his wishes carried out and not have the proceeds
paid to the estate where they could be subject to creditor claims prior to being spiit in equal shares
among the grandchiidren. Please advise if you are in.agreement to move forward to petition the court
for an order that would split the proceeds equally among the five of you.

' - BTOCDO62



rrom: Jil lantoni [mailto:di’™  ni@gmail.com]
Sent: Thursday, January 2s, <013 3:12 PM

To: Robert Spallina
Cc: Jill Ianton!
Subject: Bernstein Estate 1/24/2013

Hi Robert,
thanks for todays call. Three questions.

One, if the 5 kids do NOT al] agree that we should split the insurance proceeds amongst the 5 of
us, what happens to the insurance proceeds? Can 4 out of 5 (or whatever the number is) over rule
and move forward with the court hearing requesting that the insurance proceeds get paid out to
the 5 children? If that is a NO, do the proceeds go directly to the estate? If the answer is the 10
grandchildren, will that be subject to creditors or would that money get paid out quickly (just as
it would to the S of us) and avoid any potential law suit/creditors?

Two, if any of the 5 children have personal counsel] representing them, are they allowed to have
their bills sent te yowEstate for payment? If yes, is there a provision that the others can put in
place that regulates the amount/or a provision that states it come out of their child(ren) portion of

the estate?

Can you also clarify, that based on the conversation today, there is a chance that Bill S. case will
be null and void and even if it is not, it i5 not towards Si Bernstein or his estate? Did ] understand

that correctly? .

Thanks so much,

Ji

: BTG0C066
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From: Ted Bemstein [tbernstein@iifeirsuranceconcepts.com]

Sent: Tuesday, January 22, 2013 1:34 PM

To: Robert Spallina; Lisa Friedstein; Pam Simon; Jill fantoni; Christine Yates
Ce: Kimberly Moran

Subject: RE: Heritage Policy

Robert,

We are in the midst of arranging a phone call between myself, Pam, Eliot, Christina Yates, Jill and Lisa. We were haping
to have that call today but Christine cannot make it until Thursday. | think it is imperative for this call to occur prior to
anything else being done, including your call with their legal department. This way, we can establish whether there is
going to be an agreement among the 5 of us, or not.

| completely agree with your assessment below of the options available here.
Pleasa feel free to call me to discuss.
Ted

From: Robert Spallina [mailto:rspallina@tescherspallina.com]

Sent: Tuesday, January 22, 2013 12:16 PM
To: Ted Bernstein; Lisa Friedstein; Pam Simon; Jill Iantoni; Christine Yates

Ce: Kimberly Moran
Subject: Heritage Palicy

I received a letter from the company Tequesting a court order to make the distribution of the proceeds consistent
with what we discussed. [ have traded calls with their legal department to see if I can convince them otherwise.
I am not optimistic given how long it has taken them to make a decision. Either way I would like to have a
fifteen minute call to discuss this with all of you this week. There are really only two options: spend the money
on getting a court order to have the proceeds distributed among the five of you (not guaranteed but maost likely
probable), or have the proceeds distributed to the estate and have the money added to the grandchildren’s
shares. As none of us can be sure exactly what the 1995 trust said (although an educated guess would point to
children in light of the docurment prepared by Al Gortz in 2000), [ think it is important that we discuss further
prior to spending more money to pursue this option. Hopefully I will have spoken with their legal department
by Thursday. I would propose a 10:30 call on Thursday EST. Please advise if this works for all of you.

Robert L. Spallina, Esq.

TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.

4855 Technology Way, Suite 720
Boca Raton, Florida 33431

Telephone: 561-997-7008
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WILL OF

SIMON L. BERNSTEIN

1, SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, of Palm Beach County, Florida, hereby revoke all my prior Wills
and Codiciis and make this Will. I am a widower, but in the event that I marry subsequent to the
execution of this Will, |1 specifically make no provision for my spouse. My children are TED S.
BERNSTEIN, PAMELA B. SIMON, ELIOT BERNSTEIN, JILLIANTONI and LISA S. FRIEDSTEIN.

ARTICLE 1. TANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY

| give such items of my tangible personal property to such persons as | may designate in a
separate written memorandum prepared for this purpose. | give to my children who survive me, divided
among them as they agree, or ifthey fail to agree, divided among them by my Personal Representatives
in as nearly equal shares as practical my personal effects, jeweliry, collections, household furnishings and
equipment, -automobiles and all other non-business tangible personal property other than cash, not.
effectively disposed of by such memorandum, and if no child of mine survives me, this property shall
pass with the residue of my estate.

ARTICLE II. EXERCJISE OF POWER OF APPOINTMENT

Under Subparagraph E.1. of Article [1. of the SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN TRUST AGREEMENT
dated May 20,2008, (the "Shirley Trust"), | was granted a special power of appointment upon.my death
to direct the disposition of the remaining assets of the Marital Trust and the Family Trust established
under the Shirley Trust. Pursuant to the power granted to me under the Shirley Trust, upon my death,
| hereby direct the then serving Trustees of the Marital Trust and the Family Trust to divide the
remnaining trust assets into equal shares for my then living grandchildren and distribute said shares to the
then serving Trustees of their respective trusts established under Subparagraph 11.B. of my Existing
Trust, as referenced below, and administered pursuant to Subparagraph I].C. thereunder.

ARTICLE II1. RESIDUE OF MY ESTATE

I give all the residue of my estate, including' my homestead, to the Trustee then serving under
my revocable Trust Agreement dated May 20, 2008, as amended and restated from time to time and on
even date herewith (the "Existing Trust"), as Trustee without bond, but | do not exercise any powers of
appointment held by me except as provided in Article'11., above, and inthe later paragraph titied "Death
Costs." The residue shail be added to and become a part of the Existing Trus: shall be held under
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the provisions of said Agreement in effect at my death, or if this is not permitted by applicable iaw or
the Existing Trust is not then in existence, under the provisions of said Agreement as existing today. If
necessary to give effect to this gift, but not otherwise, said Agreement as existing today is incorporated
herein by reference.

ARTICLE IV. PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVES

1. Appointment and Boand. | appoint ROBERT L. SPALLINA and DONALD R.
TESCHER to serve together as my co-Personal Represeritatives, or either of them alone as Personal
Representative if either of them is unable to serve (the "fiduciary™). Each fiduciary shall serve without
bond and have all of the powers; privileges and immunities granted to my fiduciary by this Will or by
law, provided, however, that my fiduciary shall exercise all powers in a fiduciary capacity.

2. Powers of Personal Representatives. My fiduciary may exercise its powers without
court approval. No one dealing with my fiduciary need inquire into its authority or its application of
property. My fiduciary shall have the following powers:

a. Investments. To sell or exchange at public or private sale and on credit or
otherwise, with or without security, and to lease for any term or perpetually, any property, real and
personal, at any time forming a part of my probate estate (the "estare™); to grant:and exercise options to
buy or sell; to invest or reinvest in real or personal property of every kind, description and location; and
to receive and retain any such property whether originally a part of the estate, or subsequently acquired,
even if a fiduciary is personally interested in such property. and without liability for any decline in the
value thereof. all without limitation by any statutes or judicial decisions, whenever enacted or
announced, regulating investments or requiring diversification of invesiments.

b. Distributions or Divisions. To distribute directly to any beneficiary who is then
entitled to distribution under the Existing Trust; to make any division or distribution pro rata or non-pro
rata, in cash or in kind; and to allocate undivided interests in property and dissimilar property (without
regard to its tax basis) to different shares, and to make any distribution to a minor or any other
incapacitated person directly to such person, to his or her legal representative, to any person responsible
for or assuming his or her care, or in the case of a minor to an adult person or an eligible institution
(including a fiduciary) selected by my fiduciary as custodian for such minor under the Uniform Transfers
to Minors Act or similar provision of law. The receipt of such payee is a complete reiease to the
fiduciary. ‘

c. Management. To manage, develop, improve, partition or change the character
of or abandon an-asset or interest in property at any time; and to make ordinary and extraordinary
repairs, replacements, aiterations and improvements, structural or otherwise.

d. Borrowing. To borrow money from anyone on commercially reasonable terms,
including a fiduciary, beneficiaries and other persons who may have a direct or indirect interest in the
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estate; and to mortgage, margin, encumber and pledge real and personal property of the estate as security
for the payment thereof, without incurring any personal liability thereon and to do so for a term within
or extending beyond the terms of the estate and to renew, modify or extend existing borrowing on similar
or different terms and with the same or different security without incurring any personal liability; and
such borrowing from my fiduciary may be with or without interest, and may be secured with a lien on
the estate assets or any beneficiary's interest in said assets.

e, Lending. To extend, modify or waive the terms of any obligation, bond or
mortgage at any time forming a part of the estate and to foreclose any such mortgage; accept a
conveyance of encumbered property, and take title to the property securing it by deed in lieu of
foreclosure or otherwise and to satisfy or not satisfy the indebtedness securing said property; to protect
or redeem any such property from forfeiture for nonpayment of taxes or other lien; generally, to éxercise
as to such bond, obligation or mortgage all powers that'an absolute owner might exercise; and to Joan
fundsto beneficiaries at commercially reasonable rates, terms and conditions.

f. Abandonment of Property. To abandon any property or asset when it is valueless
or so encumbeted of in'such condition that it is of no benefit to the estate. To abstain from the payment
of taxes, liens, rents, assessments, or repairs on such property and/or permit.such property to be lost by
tax sale, foreclosure or other proceeding or by conveyance for nominal or no consideration to anyone
including a charity or by escheat to a state; al] without personal liability incurred therefor.

8. Real Property Matters. To subdivide, develop or partition real estate; to dedicate
the same to public use; to make or obtain the location of any plats; to adjust boundaries; to adjust
differences in valuations on exchange or partition by giving or receiving consideration; and, to grant
easements with or without consideration as they may determine; and to demolish any building,
structures, walls and improvements, or to erect new buildings, structures, walls and improvements and
to insure against fire and other risks.

h. Clatms. To énforce, compromise, adjust, arbitrate, release or otherwise settie or
pay any claims or demands by or against the estate.

i Business Entities. To deal with any business entity or enterprise even if a
fiduciary is or may be a fiduciary of or own interests in said business entity or enterprise, whether
operated in the form of a corporation, partnership, business trust. limited liability company, joint venture:
sale proprietorship, or other form (all of which business entities and enterprises are referred to herein
as "Business Entities"). | ‘vest the fiduciary with the following powers and authority in regard to
Business Entities:

i. To retain and continue to operate a Business Entity for such period as the
fiduciary deems advisable;

it. To control, direct and manage the Business Entities. In this connection, the
fiduciary, in its sole discretion, shall determine the manner and extent of its active participation .in the
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operation and may delegate ail or any part of its power to supervise and operate to such person or
persons as the fiduciary may select, including any associate, partner, officer or employee of the Business
Entity; .

iii. To hire and discharge officers and employees, fix their compensation and
define their duties; and similarly to employ, compensate and discharge agents, attorneys, consultants,
accountants, and such other representatives as the fiduciary may deem appropriate; including the right
to employ any beneficiary or fiduciary in any of the foregoing capacities;

iv. To invest funds in the Business Entities, to pledge other assets of the estate
or a trust as security for loans made to the Business Entities, and to lend funds from my estate or a trust
to the Business Entities;

v. To organize one or more Business Entities under the laws.of this or any other
state or country and to transfer thereto all or any part of the Business Entities or other property of my
estate or a trust, and to receive in exchange such stocks, bonds, partnership and member interests, and
such other securities or interests as the fiduciary may deem advisable;

vi. To treat Business Entities as separate from my estate or a trust. In a
-fiduciary's accountmg to any beneficiary, the fiduciary shall only be required to report the earnings and
condition of the: Business Entities in accordance with standard business accounting practice;

vil. Toretain in Business Entities such net earnings for working capital and other
purposes of the Business Entities as the fiduciary may deem advisable in conformity with sound business
practice;

viii. To sell or liquidate all or any part of the Business Entities at such time and
price and upon such terms and conditions (including credit) as the fiduciary may determine. My
fiduciary is specifically authorised and empowered to make such sale to any person, including any
partner, officer, or employee of the Business Entities, a fiduciary, or to any beneficiary; and

ix. To guaranty the obligations of the Business Entities, or pledge assets of the
estate or a trust to secure such a guaranty.

J- Life Insurance. With respect to any life insurance policies constituting an asset
of the estate to pay premiums; to apply dividends in reduction of such premiums; to bofrow against the
cash values thereof; to convert such policies into other forms of insurance including paid-up insurance;
to exercise any settlement options provided in any such policies; to receive the proceeds of any policy
upon its maturity and to-administer such proceeds as a part of the principal of the estate or trust; and in
géneral, to exercise all other options, benefits, rights and privileges under such policies; provided,
however, no fiduciary other than a sole fiduciary may exercise any incidents of ownership with respect
to policies of insurance insuring the fiduciary's own life.
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k. Reimbursement. To reimburse itself from the estate for all reasonable expenses
incurred in the administration thereof.

L Voting. To vote and give proxies, with power of substitution to vote, stocks,
bonds and other securities, or not to vote a security.

m. Ancillary Administration. To appoint or nominate, and replace with or without
cause, any persons or corporations, including itself, as ancillary administrators to administer property

in other jurisdictions, with the same powers, privileges and immunities as my fiduciary and without
bond.

n. Tax Electians. To file tax returns, and to exercise all tax-related elections and
options at their discretion, without compensating adjustments or reimbursements between.any accounts
or any beneficiaries.

3. Survivorship. A beneficiary is not deemed to survive me unless he or she surviveé me
by five days.
4, Death Costs. My fiduciary shall pay (a) from the residuary estate my debts which are

allowed as claims against my estate, (b) from the residuary estate my funeral expenses without regard
to legal limitations, (c) from the residuary estate the expenses of administering my estate and (d) from
the residuary estate other than the portion of the residuary estate qualifying for the marital deduction
under the laws then in effect, without apportionment, all estate, inheritance and succession taxes
(excluding generation-skipping taxes other than with respect to direct skips), and interest and penalties
thereon. due because of my death and attributable to all property whether passing under this Will or
otherwise and not required by the terms of the Existing Trust to be paid out of said trust. However, such
taxes, penalties and interest payable out of my residuary estate shall not include taxes, penalties and
interest attributable to (i) property over which | have a power of -appointment granted to me by another
person. (ii) qualified terminable interest property held in a trust of which | was the income beneficiary
at the time of my death (other than qualified terminable interest property held in a trust for which an
election was made under Code Section 2652(a)(3)), and (iii) life-insurance proceeds on policies insuring
my life which proceeds are not payable to my probate estate. My fiduciary shall not be reimbursed for
any such payment from any person or property. However, my fiduciary in its discretion may direct that
part or all of said death costs shall be paid by my Trustee as provided in the Existing Trust, and shall
give such direction to the extent necessary so that the gifts made in Article ] of this Will and the gifts
made in any codicil hereto shall not be reduced by said death costs. 1f the amount of the above-described
taxes, and interest and penalties arising by reason of my death (without regard to where payable from
under the terms of this paragraph or applicable law) is increased because of the power of appointment
granted to me under Subparagraph 11.E.1. ofthe SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN TRUST AGREEMENT dated
May 20, 2008, | hereby appoint to my probate estate from the property subject to such power (to the
extent allowable under such power) the amount of such increase (calculating such increase at the highest
applicable marginal rates) and exercise such power to this extent only, and notwithstanding the other
provisions of this paragraph further direct my fiduciary to make payment of such increase in taxes,
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interest and penalties to the appropriate taxing authorities from the appointed property or the proceeds
thereof . Any trustee holding such appointive property may pay to my fiduciary the amount which my
fiduciary certifies as due under this paragraph and is not responsible for the correctness or application
of amounts so paid. ' '

3. Reimbursement for Debts and Expenses. My fiduciary shall promptly reimburse my
friends and members of my family who have disbursed thieir own funds for the payment of any debis,
funeral expenses or costs of administration of my estate.

6. Expenses of Handling Tangible Personal Property. All expenses incurred by my

fiduciary during the settlement of my estate in. appraising, storing, packing, shipping, delivering or
insuring an article of tangible personal property passing under this Will shall be charged as an expense
of administering my estate. ‘

7. Dealing with Estate. Each fiduciary may act under this. Will even if interested in my
estate in an individual capacity, as a fiduciary of another estate or trust (including any trust identified
in this Will or created under the Existing Trust) or in any other capacity. Each fiduciary may in good
faith buy from, sell to, lend funds to or otherwise deal with my estate.

‘ 8. Spouse. The term "spouse" herein means, as to a designated individual, the person to
whom that individual is from time to time married.

9. Other Beneficiary Designations. Except as otherwise explicitly and with particularity
provided herein, (a) no provision of this Will shall revoke or modify any beneficiary designation of mine
made by me and not revoked by me prior to my death under any individual retirement account, other
retirement plan or account, or annuity or in§urance contract, (b) | hereby reaffirm any such beneficiary
designation such that any assets held in such account, plan, or contract shall pass in accordance with
such designation, and (c) regardiess of anything:herein to the. contrary, any of such assets which would
otherwise pass pursuant to this Will due to the beneficiary designation not having met the requirements
for a valid testamentary disposition under applicable law or otherwise shall be paid as a gift made
hereunder to the persons and in the manner provided in such designation which is incorporated herein
by this reference.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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sy«! L. BERNSTEIN
This instrument. consisting of this page wumbered 7 and the preceding typewritten pages, was
signed, sealed, published and déclared by the Testator to be the Testator's Will in our presence, and at

the Testator's request agd\in the Testator's presence. and in thw&ence of eaclyo er, we have
subscribed our names 3 esses at Boca Raton, Florida on this day of , vtz ,
2012. .
RoserT L. SrALLINA
residing at 7387 WISTERIA AVENUE

WU “ParkLAND;PE33076

. [ Wiiness Address)
KLMM\EM residingat ___ \umberly Moman
[Witness Signal 53 62 Las F‘lorngrusl
Boca Raton, FL 33433

[Witness Address)
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State Of Florida

SS.
County Of Palm Beach

[, SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, declare to the officer taking
and to the subseribing witnesses. that | signéd this instrumentAs

si‘ia?N_ L. BERNSTEIN, Testator

We., ﬁeﬁf [—( ) PPl =y and /K AAPL ey 3t D

have been sworn by the officer signing below, and declare to that officer on our oaths that the Testator
declared the instrument to be the Testator's will and signed it in our presence an t we each signed
the instrument as a witness in the presence of the Testator and of eac

Witness— A
i moberan

Witness Q
Acknowledged and subscribed before me, by the Testator, SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, who is
personaily known to me or who has produced (state type
of identification) as identification, and sworn to and subscribed before me by the witnesses,
Robery L. Sonlhaa . who is personally known to me or who has
produced ] (state type of identification) as-identification,
and e oty Moran , who is personally known to me or who has
produced ) ( (statetype of identification) as identification,

and subscribed by me in the presence of SIMON L. BERNSTEIN and the subscribing witnesses, all on
this 25 day of \u\}/ .

{Seal with Commission Expiration Date]

NOTARY PUBLIC-STATE OF FLORIDA Print, type or sramp name of flotary Public l
“.\u’a.,“ Linds ay Baxley
% Commission # EE092282
1¥ Expires: MAY 10,2015
SGNDED THRU ATLANTIC BONDING €O, INC.

1y,

=
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FLoripa DeparTMENT OF STATE

Divistoy of CORPORATIONS

Detail by Entity Name

Florida Limited Liability Company
BERNSTEIN FAMILY REALTY LLC

Filing Information

Document Number L08000054043
FEI/EIN Number 26-2735064

Date Filed 06/02/2008

State FL

Status ACTIVE

Last Event REINSTATEMENT
Event Date Filed 09/29/2010

Event Effective Date NONE

Principal Address

2753 NW 34th Street
BOCA RATON, FL 33434

Changed: 04/12/2013

Mailing Address

Oppenheimer Trust Company of DE
405 Silverside Road

Suite 250

Wilmington, DE 19809

Changed: 03/19/2014
Registered Agent Name & Address

T & S REGISTERED AGENTS, LLC
4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720
BOCA RATON, FL 33431

Name Changed: 04/20/2009

Address Changed: 04/20/2009

Authorized Person(s) Detaijl
Name & Address

ﬁt‘ le MGR

tabbles*
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Oppenheimer Trust Company
Oppenheimer Trust Company of DE
405 Silverside Road

Suite 250

Wilmington, DE 19809

Annual Reports

Report Year Filed Date
2012 01/05/2012
2013 04/12/2013
2014 03/19/2014

Document Images

03/19/2014 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format {
04/12/2013 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format |
01/05/2012 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format |
04/14/2011 -- ANNUAL REPORT I View image in PDF format 7
09/29/2010 -- REINSTATEMENT View image in PDF format [
04/20/2009 -- ANNUAL REPORT | View image in PDF format |
06/02/2008 -- Florida Limited Liabitity View image in PDF format |

Copyriaht & and Privacy Policies

State of Florida, Department of State




2012 LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ANNUAL REPORT Jarﬂ)’?;Elz)mz
DOCUMENT# LO8000054043 Secretary of State

Entity Name: BERNSTEIN FAMILY REALTY LLC

Current Principal Place of Business: New Principal Place of Business:

950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE
SUITE 3010
BOCA RATON, FL 33487

Current Mailing Address: New Mailing Address:
950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE
SUITE 3010
BOCA RATON, FL 33487
FEI Number: FE] Number Applied For( ) FEIl Number Not Appficable (X) Certificate of Status Desired ( )
Name and Address of Current Registered Agent: Name and Address of New Registered Agent:
~
T & SREGISTERED AGENTS, LLC

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720
BOCA RATON, FL 33431 US

The above named entity submits this staternent for the purpose of changing its registered office or registered agent, or both,
in the State of Florida.

SIGNATURE:

Electronic Signature of Registered Agent Date
MANAGING MEMBERS/MANAGERS:

Title: MGR

Name: BERNSTEIN, SIMON

Address: 950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE STE 3010
City-St-Zip:  BOCA RATON, FL 33431US

| hereby certify that the information indicated on this report is true and accurate and that my electronic signatgre shalt have
the same legal effect as if made under oath; that | am a managing member or manager of the limited liabiiity pany or the
receiver or trustee empowered o execute this report as required by Chapter 608, Florida Statues.

SIGNATURE: SIMON BERNSTEIN MR 01/05/2012
Electronic Signature of Signing Managing Member, Manager, or Authorized Representative / Date




2013 FLORIDA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ANNUAL REPORT FILED

DOCUMENT# L08000054043 Apr 12,2013
Entity Name: BERNSTEIN FAMILY REALTY LLC Secretary of State
CC1945368356

Current Principal Place of Business:

2753 NW 34TH STREET
BOCARATON, FL 33434

Current Mailing Address:

OPPENHEIMER TRUST COMPANY
18 COLUMBIA TURNPIKE, 3RD FLOOR
FLORHAM PARK, NJ 07932 US

FEl Number: 26-2735064 Certificate of Status Desired: Yes
Name and Address of Current Registered Agent

T & S REGISTERED AGENTS, LLC
4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720
BOCARATON, FL 33431 US

The above hamed entify submics this statement for the purpose of changing iits registarsd office or regisiarsd agait. or both. in the State of Ronda.
SIGNATURE:

Electronic Signature of Registered Agent Date
Authorized Person(s) Detail :
Tite MGR
Name OPPENHEIMER TRUST COMPANY
Address OPPENHEIMER TRUST COMPANY

18 COLUMBIA TURNPICE, 3RD FLOQR
City-State-Zip: FLORHAM PARK NJ 07932

1 herely certy it ihe SRR (nvaed O DUS MRIOT O SUDDISTEIA! TEDONT &S U8 and SCourse and At ry SleCIC Sipnaiure Stalf ASve he SRR Jega atert as T marrama
SENIRgING MEMDSr O MER3REr 67 e mide NanTy comparny or he Of FUSER e 0 v IS repart 35 requlned by CASer 808 Florks SiSndes: and 2520w AN083rs abave, ar
00 37 SRR W Bl 0ir INE empowera.

SIGNATURE: OPPENHEIMER TRUST COMPANY BY: JANET CRAIG SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT  04/12/2013

Electronic Signature of Signing Authorized Person(s) Detai Date
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: : sy atl L0O8000013540
Electronic Articles of Organization FILED 8-00 AM

For '
Florida Limited Liability Company gggncu)a%r t%?ézooa

gharvey
Article I
The name of the Limited Liability Company is:

BERNSTEIN HOLDINGS, LLC

Article I1
The street address of the principal office of the Limited Liability Company is:

950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE
SUITE 3010
BOCA RATON, FL. US 33487

The mailing address of the Limited Liability Company is:

950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE
SUITE 3010
BOCA RATON, FL. US 33487

‘ Article 111
The purpose for which this Limited Liability Company is organized is:
ANY AND ALL LAWFUL BUSINESS.

Article IV

The name and Florida street address of the registered agent is:

DONALD R TESCHER

2101 CORPORATE BOULEVARD
SUITE 107  _

BOCA RATON, FL. 33431

Having been named as registered agent and to accept service of process
for the above stated limited liability company at the place designated

in this certificate, I hereby accept the appointment as registered agent
and agree to act in this capacity. I further agree to comply with the
provisions of all statutes relating to the proper and complete performance
of my duties, and I am familiar with and accept the obligations of my
position as registered agent.

Registered Agent Signature: DONALD R. TESCHER

EXHIBIT

iz




. 08000013540
Article V FILED 8:00 AM

The name and address of managing members/managers are: February 06, 2008
Title: MGR : Sec. Of State
SIMON BERNSTEIN gharvey

950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE, SUITE 3010
BOCA RATON, FL. 33487 US

Signature of member or an authorized representative of a member
Signature: ROBERT L. SPALLINA



2013 FLORIDA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ANNUAL REPORT FILED

DOCUMENT# LO8000013540 Apr 12, 2013
; Secretary of State
: BE EIN HOLDI LL
Entity Name: BERNSTEIN HOLDINGS, LLC 4926520278

Current Principal Place of Business:

950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE
SUITE 3010

BOCA RATON, FL 33487

Current Mailing Address:

950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE
SUITE 3010
BOCA RATON, FL 33487 US

FEI Number: NOT APPLICABLE Certificate of Status Desired: No
Name and Address of Current Registered Agent:

T & S REGISTERED AGENTS, LLC
4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE720
BOCA RATON

BOCA RATON FL 33431 US

The above narned entity submils this statement for the purpose of changing its registered office or registered agent, or both, in the State of Florida.

SIGNATURE:

Electronic Signature of Registered Agent Date

Authorized Person(s) Detail :

Title MGR

Name SPALLINA, ROBERT L

Address 4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY
SUITE 720

City-State-Zip: BOCA RATON FL 33431

| hereby centify that the information indicated on this repon or supplemental report is true and accurate and that my electronic signature shail have the same logal effect as if made under
oath; that { am a managing member or manager of the fimited liability company or the receiver or trustee empewered to execule this report as requirad by Chapter 608, Fiorida Statutes; and

that my name appears above, or on an attachment with all other fike empawered.

SIGNATURE: ROBERT L. SPALLINA MGR 04/12/2013

Electronic Signature of Signing Authorized Person(s) Detail Date



2012 LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ANNUAL REPORT J FIOL5E2012
n 0o,
DOCUMENT# LO8000013540 Secraetary of State

Entity Name: BERNSTEIN HOLDINGS, LLC

Current Principal Place of Business: New Principal Place of Business:

950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE
SUITE 3010
BOCARATON, FL 33487 US

Current Mailing Address: New Mailing Address:

950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE
SUITE 3010
BOCARATON, FL 33487 US

FEI Number: FE! Number Applied For ( ) FE! Number Not Applicable (X) Certificate of Status Desired ( )
Name and Address of Current Registered Agent: Name and Address of New Registered Agent:

T & SREGISTERED AGENTS, LLC

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720

BOCA RATON

BOCA RATON, FL 33431 US

The above named entity submits this statement for the purpose of changing its registered office or registered agent, or both,
in the State of Florida.

SIGNATURE:

Electronic Signature of Registered Agent Date
MANAGING MEMBERS/MANAGERS:

Title: MGR

Name: BERNSTEIN, SIMON

Address: 950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE, SUITE 3010
City-St-Zip: BOCA RATON, FL 33487 US

| hereby certify that the information indicated on this report is true and accurate and that my electronic signature shall have

the same legal effect as if made under oath; that | am a managing member or manager of the fimited liability company or the

receiver or trustee empowered to execute this report as required by Chapter 608, Florida Statues.

SIGNATURE: SIMON BERNSTEIN MR 01/05/2012
Electronic Signature of Signing Managing Member, Manager, or Authorized Representative / Date




i i izati L 08000013540
Electronic Articles of Organization FILED 8:00 &M

or
Florida Limited Liability Company  Seor§r¥ 28,2008

gharvey
Article I
The name of the Limited Liability Company is:

BERNSTEIN HOLDINGS, LLC

Article I1
The street address of the principal office of the Limited Liability Company is:

950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE
SUITE 3010
BOCA RATON, FL. US 33487

The mailing address of the Limited Liability Company is:

950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE
SUITE 3010
BOCA RATON, FL. US 33487

Article II1
The purpose for which this Limited Liability Company is organized is:
ANY AND ALL LAWFUL BUSINESS.

Article IV

The name and Florida street address of the registered agent is:

DONALD R TESCHER

2101 CORPORATE BOULEVARD
SUITE 107

BOCA RATON, FL. 33431

Having been named as registered agent and to accept service of process
for the above stated limited Lability company at the place designated

in this certificate, I hereby accept the appointment as registered agent
and agree to act in this capacity. I further agree to comply with the
provisions of all statutes relating to the proper and complete performance
of my duties, and I am familiar with and accept the obligations of my
position as registered agent.

Registered Agent Signature: DONALD R. TESCHER



LAW OFFICES

TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.

Boca VILLAGE CORPORATE CENTER 1
4855 TECHNOLOGY Way, SUITE 720
Boca Raton, FLoripa 33431

ATTORNEYS ——— SUPPORT STAFF
DONALD R. TESCHER TeL: 561-997-7008 Diane DusTiN
ROBERT L. SPALLINA Fax: 561-997-7308 KiMBERLY MORAN
LAUREN A. GALVANI ToLL Free: 888-997-7008 SUANN TESCHER

WWW. TESCHERSPALLINA.COM

October 11, 2012

ViA EMAIL

Gavin McNally, Associate Banker
J.P. Morgan Private Bank

205 Royal Palm Way

Palm Beach, FL 33480

Re:  Bermstein Holdings, LL.C
Dear Gavin:
This letter serves to state that due to the passing of Simon L. Bemstein, there is a change in

management and signers of Bernstein Holdings, LLC. The members of the LLC have designated me
as manager of the partnership umtil such time as there is a distribution of the Bemstein Estate.

RLS/km

TS004866
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Certificate of Limited Partnership éPL8£80000154

Name of Limited Partnership: gggfuoé!fl' é?,eZDDS
BERNSTEIN FAMILY INVESTMENTS, LLLP gharvey

Street Address of Limited Partnership:

950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE
SUITE 3010
BOCA RATON, FL. US 33487

Mailing Address of Limited Partnership:

950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE
SUITE 3010
BOCA RATON, FL. US 33487

The name and Florida street address of the registered agent is:

DONALD R TESCHER
2101 CORPORATE BLVD.
SUITE 107

BOCA RATON, FL. 33431

I certify that I am familiar with and accept the responsibilities of
registered agent.

Registered Agent Signature: DONALD R. TESCHER

The name and address of all general partners are:

Title: G

BERNSTEIN HOLDINGS, LLC

950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE SUITE 3010
BOCA RATON, FL. 33487 US

This Limited Partnership is a Limited Liability Limited Partnership.

Signed this Fifteenth day of February, 2008

I (we) declare the I (we) have read the foregoing and know the contents thereof
and that the facts stated herein are true and correct.

General Partner Signature: ROBERT L. SPALLINA

EXHIBIT

tabbles’
Q




Jetall by batity Name

FLoripa DEPARTMENT OF STATE
[ B LY 2 3 ry 1 1 g * g

i AR

¥ (3

Contact Us E-Filing Services

Detail by Entity Name

Florida Limited Partnership
BERNSTEIN FAMILY INVESTMENTS, LLLP

Filing Information

Document Number A08000000154
FEI/EIN Number 262124343
Date Filed 02/15/2008
State FL

Status INACTIVE
Last Event

Event Date Filed 09/27/2013
Event Effective Date NONE

Principal Address

950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE
SUITE 3010
BOCA RATON, FL 33487

Mailing Address

950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE
SUITE 3010
BOCA RATON, FL 33487

Registered Agent Name & Address

T & S REGISTERED AGENTS, LLC
4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720
BOCA RATON, FL 33431

Name Changed: 04/17/2009

Address Changed: 04/17/2009
General Partner Detail
Name & Address

Document Number LO8000013540

REVOKED FOR ANNUAL REPORT

http://search.sunbiz.org/inquiry/Lorporationsearch/SearchKesultiera..

id

Document Searches

Copyright © and Privacy Policies

State of Florida, Department of State

6/30/14 8:01 PN



Jetall by bntity Name http://search.sunbiz.org/ nquiry/Corporationyearch/searchKesultleta..

BERNSTEIN HOLDINGS, LLC
950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE SUITE 3010
BOCA RATON, FL 33487

Annual Reports

Report Year Filed Date
2010 09/30/2010
2011 04/18/2011
2012 01/03/2012

Documgnt images
01/03/2012 -- ANNUAL REPORT | View image in PDF format

!
04/18/2011 -- ANNUAL REPORT | View image in PDF format |
09/30/2010 -- REINSTATEMENT | View image in PDF format I
04/17/2009 -- ANNUAL REPORT | View image in PDF format {
02/15/2008 -- Domestic LP | View image in PDF format l

lof 3 6/30/14 8:01 PV



Jetall by kntity Name http://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/Corporatonyearch/searchresulteta..
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2012 LIMITED PARTNERSHIP ANNUAL REPORT oy FlolﬁEE2)012
n
DOCUMENT# A08000000154 Secétary’ of State

Entity Name: BERNSTEIN FAMILY INVESTMENTS, LLLP

Current Principal Place of Business: New Principal Place of Business:

950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE
SUITE 3010
BOCA RATON, FL 33487 US

Current Mailing Address: New Mailing Address:
950 PENINSULA CORPORATE GIRGLE ‘

SUITE 3010

BOCA RATON, FL 33487 US

FEI Number: 26-2124343 FEI Number Applied For ( ) FEI Number Nat Applicabie { ) Certificate of Status Desired { )
Name and Address of Current Registered Agent: Name and Address of New Registered Agent:
T & SREGISTERED AGENTS, LLC

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720
BOCA RATON, FL 33431 US

The above named entity submits this statement for the purpose of changing its registered office or registered agent, or both,
in the State of Florida.

SIGNATURE:

Electronic Signature of Registered Agent Date
GENERAL PARTNER INFORMATION: ADDRESS CHANGES ONLY:
Document #: LO8000013540
Name: BERNSTEIN HOLDINGS, LLC
Address: 950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE SUITE 2010 Address:
City-St-Zip:  BOCA RATON, FL 33487 US City-St-Zip:

| hereby certify that the information indicated on this report is true and accurate and that my electronic signature shail have

the same legal effect as if made under cath; that | am a General Partner of the limited partnership or the receiver or trustee

empowered to execute this report as required by Chapter 620, Fiorida Statutes.

SIGNATURE: SIMON BERNSTEIN MR 01/03/2012
Electronic Signature of Signing General Partner Date




JPMorgan

1.P. Mergan Account Suitability Supplement

A. Account Information (required for JPMS Brokerage and Investment Management accounts)
Title of Account: BERNSTEIN FAMILY INVESTMENT LLLP
Personal Accounts

O Individual 3 Joint (JTWROS/JAWRDOS for TX residents) O Tenants in Common O Tenants by the Entirety
[0 Community Property  [] Transfer on Death (TOD) 0 UTMA/UGMA 0O ma
Primary Account Owner: o ati
Number of Dependents _________ Name of Employer ‘b%’s’?néﬁ"’
Total Net Worth excl.
Owner Annual Income (5) Liquid Net Worth (%) primary residence ($)

Joint Account Owner:
Anpual Income ($)
Entity Accounts

O corporation O Partnership O pic/pHC (applicable tc international entities only) O sote Priprietorship

O Foundation O endowment O Limited Liability Company &l Limited Liability Partnership O other Non Profit
Annual Income ($) 300K Liguid Net Worth ($)2:0MM “Totat Net Worth (¢)_12:0MM

Trust/Estate Accounts

O trust Oestate Oendowment O Foundation [ ERISA Plan [0 Other Charitable Trust [ other
Trust/Estate Liquid Net Worth (%) Trust/Estate Totat Net Worth ($)

B. Affiliations (required for JPMS Brokerage and Investment Management accounts)

Applicable to account owners or authorized signers or trustees and executors,

I, my spouse, or immediate family member who receives material support from e or gives material support to me is, or has been, a
director, corporate officer, controt person, affiliate or an owner of 10% of a public corporation’s stock: [J Yes B No

1f yes, name of persan, Name of corporation,

If yes, is the corporation traded pubticly on a U.S. Stock exchange? O Yes [ No

1, my spouse, immediate family member who receives material support from me or gives material support to me, or an individual
controiling the account is empioyed by or associated with a Broker-Dealer: [ yes [X] No

If yes*, name of Broker-Dealer, Name of employee/assoc.

Accountholder or immediate family member or another household member is an employee of a financial institution or insurance
company: O Yes B No ’

If yes*, name of institution, Name of employee/assoc.

*1f Yes, Broker-Dealer and FINRA member financial institutions must provide written permission on corparate letterhead to open a
Brokerage, Margin, or Investment Management account. )

C. Brokerage Account Information (required for JPMS Brokerage accounts only)
Investment Profile

My objective for this account (check one): Capital Preservation [J 1ncome Generation 0O capitat Appreciation
Speculative or aggressive investments that may generate higher returns but may be riskier than other investments because 1 may
lose afl or part of my investment (check one): Are permitted in this account O Are not permitted in this account

Primary source of income: [JInvestments [ compensation [ pension [ other

Please indicate the number of years of personal trading experience for the authorized party(s) on this account:

Hedge Funds

10 /Private 10 Futures/ 10 Muwal
Markets Placements, Commodities Funds__~

Structured Emerging
ks_30 30 mx_ 19 “products_ O Options_20

Stocl Bonds,

I currently have brokerage accounts with the following firms:

Approximate value of investable assets held away from the firm? $

Those assets are invested in the following Asset Classes: I:|Ecp.|ities I:|Fixed Income & Cash DAlternative Investments O Other

Most of those assets are invested in: O Eguities O Fixed Income & Cash O Alternative Investments D other
Check only one selection for Investment Yime Horizon, Primary Liquidity Needs, and Secondary Liquidity Needs

Investment Time Horizon: O Less than 1 year O 1-5 years [ &-10 years [ Greater than 10 years
Primary Liquidity Needs: [Jshort Term [ Medium Term O Long Term O None

Secondary Liquidity Needs: [ short Term [JMedium Term O Long Term [J None

J.P. Morgan Use Only Title SPN CAS
Page 1 of 2 ’ Banker/Investor 7/12 1522

TS004877






Electronic Articles of Incorporation 'é'ﬂ_3£80000944

r January 30, 2008
Fo Sec. Of State

epeterson
SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN FAMILY FOUNDATION, INC.

The undersigned incorporator, for the purpose of forming a Florida not-for-
profit corporation, hereby adopts the following Articles of Incorporation:

Article I
The name of the corporation is:

SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN FAMILY FOUNDATION, INC.

Article IT

The principal place of business address:

7020 LIONS HEAD LANE
BOCA RATON, FL. US 33496

The mailing address of the corporation i1s:

7020 LIONS HEAD LANE
BOCA RATON, FL. US 33496

Article ITI
The specific purpose for which this corporation is organized is:

IT IS A CHARITABLE PRIVATE FOUNDATION TO SUPPORT PUBLIC
CHARITIES.

Article IV
The manner in which directors are elected or appointed is:
AS PROVIDED FOR IN THE BYLAWS.

Article V
The name and Florida street address of the registered agent 1s:

DONALD R TESCHER

2101 CORPORATE BOULEVARD
SUITE 107

BOCA RATON, FL. 33431

EXHIBIT

9

tabbles*




I certify that | am familiar with and accept the responsibilities of Pﬂ_8£80000944

istered )
registered agent January 30, 2008
Sec. Of State
Registered Agent Signature: DONALD R. TESCHER epeterson

Article VI

The name and address of the incorporator is:

DONALD R. TESCHER

2101 CORPORATE BOULEVARD
SUITE 107

BOCA RATON, FL 33431

Incorporator Signature: DONALD R. TESCHER
Article VII

The initial officer(s) and/or director(s) of the corporation is/are:
Title: P
SIMON BERNSTEIN

7020 LIONS HEAD LANE
BOCA RATON, FL. 33496 US

Title: T

SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN

7020 LIONS HEAD LANE
BOCA RATON, FL. 33496 US

Title: S

TRACI XKRATISH

950 PENINSULA CORPORATE CIRCLE, SUITE 3010
BOCA RATON, FL. 33487 US
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FroripA DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Divisioy or CORPORATIONS

Detail by Entity Name

Florida Limited Liability Company
TWO OAKS CONSULTING, LLC

Filing Information

Document Number L0O6000106492

FEI/EIN Number 205792177

Date Filed 11/01/2006

State FL

Status INACTIVE

Effective Date 10/30/2006

Last Event ADMIN DISSOLUTION FOR ANNUAL REPORT
Event Date Filed 09/28/2012

Event Effective Date NONE

Principal Address

2600 WHISPERING OAKS LANE
DELRAY BEACH, FL 33445

Mailing Address

2600 WHISPERING OAKS LANE
DELRAY BEACH, FL 33445
Registered Agent Name & Address

TESCHER, SUANN L
2600 WHISPERING OAKS LANE
DELRAY BEACH, FL 33445

Authorized Person(s) Detail
Name & Address

Title MGR

TESCHER, SUANN L
2600 WHISPERING OAKS LANE
DELRAY BEACH, FL 33445

Annual Reports

Report Year Filed Date




2009 ; , 02/11/2009
2010 " 04/05/2010
2011 03/04/2011

Document Images

03/04/2011 -- ANNUAL REPORT
04/05/2010 -- ANNUAL REPORT
02/11/2009 - ANNUAL REPORT

02/29/2008 -- ANNUAL REPORT
02/23/2007 -- ANNUAL REPORT

11/01/2006 -- Florida Limited Liability

View image in PDF format

View image in PDF format

View image in PDF format

View image in PDF format

View image in PDF format

View image in PDF format

Copwriaht & and Privacy Policies

State of Fiorida, Departmant of Stacs
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5:06 PR Arbltrage Intemahonat Management LLC
Cash - Wachovia, eriod ' .

- Type . Date Num Name . Amount Balance
Check 10/17/2006 : Larry Bishins 2500000 - ~473,970.06
Check 10172006 2010 SartaRoche 2,000.00 -475,9T0.06
Check’ 10/17/2006 2009 ADT -1, 150 00- -477,120.06

. Check 10/17/2006 2011 Ideal Tie -50064 -477.620.70
Check 10/17/2006 2007 - Tracil Kraﬁsh 3125 ~£77,991.85
Check <~ 10M7R006 - 202 SalGorge -365.75 -478,357.7D
Check _10/18/2008. - 2013 . Ramsom Jones -0,841.87 ~488.199.57
Chack 10H8/2606 2014 'HPA Salida Floori..... -825,00 48882457
Check 10162006 2017 . . Today's Businessin... . =2.8(750". -491.732.07
Check 10/18/2006 2015 P&M Treasure Coa... . +1,700,00. 493,432 07
Check 10/19/2006 2016 ¥Gnkos -~ - ; £3.77
Check 10/23/2006 EFT . - Ted Bemsteln : -17,000.00 -=510,495.84
Check 10/23/2006 2023 21st Holdings, LLC" -1,820.00. 512315.84"
Chetk 1072372006 -, 2020 Wﬁl.iam Alvarez - -1,000.,00 513,315.84
Check 10/23/20068° 2022 - Bill Stansbury “T41.42° - 514,057 26
Check 10/ZY2006 2018 Ron:Gali. . 42547 - 514,482.73
Check 1072372006 2018 - LisaBruder: ) .--35650 " 51483523
Checlc 1Q/23/2006 2021 Bill'Stansbury.. ! . 100,00 T -51499393
Check 10/24/2006 2024 ° - AlPrince - . -120;249.00 ,-635.153.2‘1 B
Check 10/24/2006 ;. 2025 Telenet Systems, Inc - -8,825.00
Check 10/24/2008 - National Service ' As:.. c-8,800.00
Check 10/24/2006  EFT . George.J Karr DDS,... | -1150.00
Check' 10/25/2006 - 2026 - - Amierican Express - . 4,559.60 -

Check 10252006 © 2028 Blue Box Deésign -260.00
Check 10/26/2006 - 202% Glenn Dattﬂe -525,00
Check 10/28/2008  ATM : .~20Z:00
Check 10/25/2006 2030 .mliana Gnldrnzn 787
Check 107262006 - ATM - Cash : 80
- Check 10/27/2006 - VISA ~ - SummitVanlines, .. -1,724:00 -
-Check 10/27/72008 273 ) Ted: aemsteln e 19463
_ Check 107272008 - VISA| ' “Target' 112575
B Check © 1072772005 - VISA. . Dunkin Domts- -14.18
Check 10282005, ATM . Cash © - ' -500.00
Check 102872006 - - VISA Duinkin Doauts, ~13.75
Check 10/25/2006  ATM Cash . - = | -202.00
Check . 1073072006 - 2035 Carls Fumiture -4,289.58
Check’ 10/30:2006 . . 2032 . PettyCash . . . -1,200.00
Check 1073002006 °'2074 = Ted Bemstein 39937
Chetk- 10/30/2006 .* “2033" . Juliana Goldman.., -88,56
Check 10/30/2006 /2034 " Olana Banks’ . 8549
- Check 10312006 20367 -SignatUS Commun:.. +2.955.00
Check 1/31/2006 - 2037  SigralUS Commun.. -1,240.00
‘Check - 11472006 2047 W Two-Oaks Consufin... ~55,000.00
GCheck - 11/1/2006 2046 _‘Tesd\eramcm., -45000,00
Chieck 1912006 2075  RansomJones . - +10,272.97
. Chack 11712006  “2045 " Banner Technologie... -8,136:60
Check 11/1/2008 2076 Ransom Jones - -333.67
Check 11/1/2006 2048 Fred Bratin . -150.00
Check 11/1/2006 2038 Woodbridge Flortst 5325
Check 11722005 . 2077 - Cash . ; -35,000.00
Bl Pmt<Check - 11/22008.. - | 2078~ - BogziAdmin Group 2,125.00
BillPmt -Check 1173/2006 - 2088 Greenbeng Travrig -25,000.00
BillPmt -Check. 11/372006 2098, - FedEx - . . -1,042.12
BH'Prmt-Check - = 11//2006 2081 . - BeliSouth I . -524.35
BM-Pmt-Check -~ 11/3/2006- . 2085 - CingularWireless - 48314
Bl Pmt-Check = 11732006~ = 2087 - Cingular Wireless ' 377.74
BilkPmt -Check 111312008 2089 uPs - : . T -328.61
Bifl Pmt -Check 117372006 204 . BeilSouth £9.12
Bill Pmt -Check | . 1173/2006 . 2083 FPL -50.00.
Bl Pmt~Check 117372006 ‘2092, CingularWireless T1A%. .
B0l Print -Check 11/3/2006 - 2080 FPL - =70.00 -
Chack - ‘ 11/3/2006 . 2100 _ Maroone Volvo 42,46
‘Check™ ~ 11/3/2006 . . ATM - - CingularWirelass -31.54
. Bill Pmt -Chack 117372006 2096 BeliSouth - TB1.76
— © . ‘Check- C11Z008 ATM - St 553"

i

Page 2
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- AZ3EPH

Type

Bsgivming Balance’ .
CtearudTramcﬁom
; ChecxsandPaymems 1z7|hurs*
AQ7/2006 - . '20T9

~BENPrit~Check -

- "Bil Pmt ~Check -

BillPritCheck
Bl Pt -Chieck”.
B Pt -Check

B Pt -Check

_ Bill Pmt-Check
Bill Pmt ~Check o

Check
Check
Check
Check
Check * -
Check:
;-Check’
_Check’
Chatk
Check -
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check

N BHlet-Ched&
© ‘Chistk. :

- Check '

 BUPmMt-Check *
Bl Pt -Check - -
Bil Prot-Check:

Bl Pmt -Check

" Bil Pt -Check -
BIFPmt Check .

Check
Bl Pt -Check
B1 Pmt-Check

Bl Pt -Chesk
. B Pmt-Check .
Bit Pt :iChock

Check
BHl Pt -Check
Check

Cheek
Check

Bil Pt Check
Check’

- Gheck,
Check
Check

" 'Home. Dcwmtms(:o

- ‘NexiStore

«Graanberngung‘ S

" FedBx. i

< BeliSouth
“Cingular Wireless
. cingularW!mies

‘Abe-‘a‘-‘Lwle's'? 5

. BaliSouth

. Clnguiar Wireless. . -

: TelenetSystemslnc L
‘Wad'mraﬂank
: N&S‘Ms
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Arbm'age lnﬁemﬁonal ManagementLLc

Date

Reconcihatlon Detail -

Cash Wachovh, Penod Endmg 01[31!2007

. Type Num Name Cir ' Amount Balance -
Check 111672007 wisA Credit One Bank X -686.77 -280.443.54
‘Check 1162007 2249 Traci Kratish X 650,11 -281,004.05
Check 11772007 EFT CFCofDelawarellC X -55,114,00 -336,208.05
171772007 VISA  Wynn'Hotel - X -3,119.84 33932769
Check 117/2007 - VISA  Hudson News X, -17.75 339,345,654
Check 1H82007 . VISA - NexiStore X -35.50 335,381.14
General Journal 1/1972007 EFT Paychex Taxpay, - X <B,290.31 -347,671.45
General Joumal 1/19/2007 EFT Paychex Dildep/RCX. X 5391421 -353,585.66
- Check 1192007 2245 Case Proféssional.. = X 2,000.00 -355,585.66
Check o 1MeR007 -1 7 I y Cash . x -1,000.00 -356,585.66
General Journal .~ 1/19/2007 EFT Paychex DIfDep/RCX X -475.90 -357,061.56
General Joumnal 111972007 EFT. Paychex Taxpay X -185.37 35722693
Check 1/19/2007 2242 Petty Cash X -125.00 -357.351.83
Check 1119/2007 VISA NexiStore X £.04 -357357.97
Check 172212007 247 Two Oaks Consulfin... X -30,000.00 387,357.57
Check Z2007 VISA Kee Grill X -186.02 367,543.99
Check 172212007~ 2246 -T-Mobile X -107.10 -387,651.09
Chack /222007, WVISA Bio . L X 7313 3BT TM22
General Joumal 1/23/2007 EFT Paychex DirDep/RCX, X 25,000.00 -412,724.22
General Journal 1/2372007 EFT PaychexTaxpay - . X -19,480.07 43221329
Check 17232007 EFT Clngular Wireless X -1,674.58 -433,887.87
. Bl Pmt Check 112352007 252 Willam Aharez . X -1,330.00 -435,217.87
Check ' 172372007 EFT Cingular Wirsless - X -2686.64 -435,504.51
Bl Pt Check 172312007 2254 . AVS Underwriting, .. X -225.00 -435,725,51
Bill Pmt -Check 17232007 2257 FedEx : X -202.75 435,932 2§
Bifl Prat Check 1/2342007 2251 Totalty Chocolate X -20.00 435,952,286
Check 112472007 © ' EFT Lamy Bishins' . X -20,000.00 45595226
Bill Pt -Check 172472007 - 2281 GoldstemLevm&... X 4,891.70 -460,B43.96
Bill Prit -Check A24/2007 2260 FedEx- ‘ CX -374.72 -461.218.,68
Check 172472007 2265  TeleOptions X - -326.82 -461,545.50.
Checi 1/25/2007 EFT . 'CFColDelawarsLC X 40,418.00 -501,963.50,
Check 1/2572007 VISA & . BefiSewth = . X -460.63 2.424,33
Check 172672007 2268 American Express =X ~14,284.85 -516,709.18.
Check A29/2007 - VISA | NeStore - X -43.50 -516,752.68
Check 1730/2007 EFT". . APS . X -1,000.00 517,75268
Check * 173172007 SWE.. Wachovia Bank X -1,076,000.00 -1,595,752.68
Check 1172007 VISA. .. Wine Course' X /417,00 -1,595,868.68 -
Check 1312007 EFT | - Paychex Taxpay X a3 -1,595917.89
Check : 1312007 © EFT Paychex Taxpay X | 4285 -1,595,960:85
Total Checks and Payments : ‘ +1,595,960.85 . -1,58586085
- Deposits and Credits - '.Hmms . . s :
Deposit 122007 . - SWE., 'Amirage Internatio.. X - 159174247 1,581,742.47 -
Deposit /52007 DEP. - Coffee Whizioom - X 2396 1,594.766:43
Bill Pmi.-Check 1M14/2007 " David Stem Designi...” - X 0.60- 1,591,766.43
Check 1118/2007 2243 Simon Bemnsteln X S 0.00 0 1,591.766.43
Deposit 1729/2007 . X. 4587.18 . 1,596,353.61
Check | 173072007 EFT- = APS - X 0.00 . 1,506.353.61
‘Bl Pmt -Check 312007 2216 PeninsulaCorp., Lid. X 0.00 1,686,353.61
Check 2112007 SWE...  .WachoviaBank X 0.00 ' 1,586,363.61
Bill Pmt Chieck 2/6/2007 2295 BlueBoxDesign | . X . . 0.00 158635361
Total Deposits and Credits : ’ -1,586,353.681 1,596,353:61
“Total Cleared Transactions 39276 38276
Cleared Balance 292,76 1,129.00 -
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FL

IN RE: SIMON BERNSTEIN PROBATE DIVISION
IRREVOCABLE INSURANCE
TRUST dated JUNE 21, 1995 FILE NO.:

/

DECLARATORY ACTION TO ESTABLISH A LOST
TRUST
AND APPOINT A SUCCESSOR TRUSTEE

COMES NOW TED BERNSTEIN, son of SIMON BERNSTEIN (“SIMON™), deceased, and
alleges the following:

Parties. Jurisdiction and Venue

1. This is an action to establish the terms of a lost trust, including the determination of a
successor trustee, pursuant to Florida Statutes 86.011, 86.041 and 736.0201(2) and
@)

2. Flarida Statutes 86.736.0201 provides, in part, for the Court to intervene in the
administration of a trust when invoked by an interested person relating to the validity,
administration or distribution of a trust, appoint or rernove a trustee and ascertain
beneficiaries.

3. Petitioner, TED S. BERNSTEIN (“TED"), is of legal age and a resident of Palm
Beach County, Floridz, and the former Personal Representative and current trustee of
the FAMILY TRUST F/B/0O SIMON BERNSTEIN under the SHIRLEY
BERNSTEIN REVOCABLE TRUST.

4. SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN is the predeceased spouse of SIMON, who upon
information and belief was the Trustee of the SIMON BERNSTEIN
IRREVOCABLE INSURANCE TRUST (the “ILIT™), an irrevocable trust
established by SIMON on June 21, 1995 .

5. SIMON died on September 13, 2012 and his estate is now being probated in the
Circuit Court for Palm Beach County, Florida. SIMON is survived by the following
adult children:

EXHIBIT
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10.

11.

TED S. BERNSTEIN, resident of Palm Beach County, Florida ;

PAME]LA BERNSTEIN, resident of Chicago, Illinois;

ELIOT BERNSTEIN, resident of Palm Beach County, Florida;

JILL IANTONI, resident of Highland Park, Illinois; and

LISA S. FRIEDSTEIN, resident of Highland Park, Illinois (hereinafter sometimes
referred to as the “Children™).

All of the Children are sui juris and have either executed and filed Consents to the
relief sought or have been served with this Petition.

Venue of this proceeding is proper in this Court pursuant ta Florida Statutes
737.0204 and Chapter 47 because the ILIT’s principal place of administration and

Trust situs was and remained in Palm Beach County, Florida.

General Allegations

Attached as Exhibit “A” is a copy of the Form §S-4, Application for Employer
Identification Nurnber, reflecting the name of the ILIT and signed by SHIRLEY as
the Trustee and dated June 21, 1995,

Diligent search for the ILIT or a copy of it has been made, including inquiry with the
insurance carrier, HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
(“HERITAGE"), scarch of SIMON’S and SHIRLEY s papers and documents, lawyer
files and accountant files, and no original or copy has been located.

Upon information and belief, the Petitioner, TED, was named as the successor
Trustee to SHIRLEY of the ILIT. (See Affidavit of David Simon, Esq., son-in-law of
SIMON and SHIRLEY, attached hereto as Exhibit “B”).

Upon information and belief, the beneficiaries of the ILIT were the children of
SIMON and SHIRLEY, in equal shares and per stirpes. (See Affidavit of Robert L.
Spallina, Esq., personal attorney to SIMON and SHIRLEY during their lifetimes,
attached hereto as Exhibit “C”).

HERITAGE has advised counsel for the Petitioner that their records reflect the owner
of the life insurance policy to be SIMON and the beneficiary to be the [LIT. (See

copy of communicatien from cardier dated attached hereto as Exhibit

-2-
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12.  HERITAGE will not settle and pay the death benefit under policy #1009208 until

receipt of a court order identifying the successor trustee of the ILIT.

13.  Inorder o avoid delays oceasioned by the need to open new banking arcangements

for the ILIT to process and distribute the insurance proceeds, TED wishes to
authorize HERITAGE to disburse the death benefit proceeds to Tescher & Spallina,

P.A. Trust Account at Sabadeli Bank.

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests this Court to derermine that
A.TED 8. BERNSTEIN is the successor trustee to SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN of the
SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE INSURANCE TRUST dated June 21, 1995;
B. The remzainder beneficiaries of the SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE
INSURANCE TRUST dated June 21, 1995 are the five (5) children of SIMON and SHIRLEY, in

equal shares, per stirpes;

C. HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY be directed to distribute the
death benefit proceeds to the Tescher & Spallina, P.A. Trust Account at Sabadell Bank.
UNDER PENALTIES OF PERJURY, [ declare that I have read the foregoing, and the facts

zlleged are true, to the best of my knowledge and belief.
Signed on , 2013

TED S. BERNSTEIN

Donald R. Tescher, Esq.
Attorney for Petitioner

Florida Bar No. 121086

Tescher & Spallina, P.A.

4855 Technology Way, Suite 720
Boca Raton, FL. 33431
Telephone: 1561} 997-7008

Fax: (561) 997-7308 NAWPDAT At sifiemensin, SirosiLie & Trun\Ded)
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WILL OF

SIMON L. BERNSTEIN

Prepared by:

Tescher & Spallina, P.A.
2101 Corporate Blvd., Suite 107, Boca Raton, Florida 33431
(561) 998-7847
www.tescherlaw.com

TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.
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WILL OF The original of this Willis b
: original of this Will is being
@@NFDRMED COPY SIMON L. BERNSTEIN held in the safe deposit box of {Jhe
taw-firnrof Fescher & Spattina, PA.

I, SIMON L, BERNSTEIN, of Palm Beach County, Florida, hereby revoke all my prior Wills
and Codicils and make this Will. My spouse is SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN ("SHIRLEY"). My children are
TED S, BERNSTEIN ("TED"), PAMELA B, SIMON, ELICT BERNSTEIN, JILL IANTONI and LISA

S. FRIEDSTEIN.

ARTICLE L. TANGIBLE FERSONAL PROPERTY

1 give such ilems of my tangible personal property to such persons as I may designate in a
separate written memorandum prepared for this purpose. I give to SHIRLEY, if SHIRLEY survives me,
my persenal effects, jewelry, collections, household furishings and equipment, auiomobiles and all
other non-business tangible personal property other than cash, not effectively disposed of by such
memorandum, and if SHIRLEY does not survive me, 1 give this property to my children who survive
me, divided among them as they agree, or if they fail 1o agree, divided among them by my Personal
Representatives in as nearly equal shares as practical, and if neither SHIRLEY nor any child of mine
survives me, this property shall pass with the residue of my estate,

ARTICLE Il. RESIDENCES

I give to SHIRLEY, if SHIRLEY survives me, my entirc interest in any real property used by us
as a permanent or seasona) residence, subject to any mortgage or other lien, If SHIRLEY does not

survive me, such interest shail pass with the residue af my estate.

ARTICLE 0L RESIDUE OF MY ESTATE

I give all the residue of my estate to the Trustee then serving under my revocable Trust
Agreement dated today, as may be amended and restated from time to time (the "Existing Trust”), as
Trustee without bond, but I do not exercise any powers of appointment held by me except as provided
in the later paragraph titled "Death Costs.” The residue shail be added 1o and become a part of the
Existing Trust, and shall be held under the provisions of said Agreement in effect at my death, or if this
is not permitted by applicable law or the Existing Trust is not then in existence, under the provisions of
said Agreement as existing today. If necessary to give effect to this gift, but not otherwise, said
Agreement as existing today is incorporated herzin by reference,

Last WiLL
OF SIMON L, BERNSTEIN

TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.
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ARTICLE V. PERSON(L REPRESENTATIVES

L. ointment and Bond. [ appoint SHIRLEY and WILLIAM E. STANSBURY, or
either of them alone if the other is unable to serve, as my Personal Representative (the "fiduclary"). Each
fiduciary shall serve without bond and have all of the powers, privileges and immunities granted to my
fiduciary by this Will or by law, provided, however, that my fiduciary shall exercise ail powers in a

fiduciary capacity.

2. Pawers of Personal Ren‘mnmtives. My fiduciary may exercise its powers without
court approval. No one dealing with my fiduciary need inquire into its authority or its application of

property. My fiduciary shall have the following powers:

a. Investments. To sell or exchange atl public or private sale and on credit or
otherwise, with or without security, and to lease for any term or perpetually, any property, real and
personal, at any time forming a part of my probate estate (the "esrare"); 1o grant and exercise options to
buy or sell; to invest ar reinvest in real or personal property of every kind, description and location; and
to receive and retain any such property whether originally a part of the estate, or subsequently acquired,
even if a fiduciary is personally interested in such property, and without liability for any decline in the
value thereoft all without limitation by any statutes or judicial decisions, whenever enacted or
announced, regulating investments or requiring diversification of investments,

b. Distributions or Divisions. To distribute directly to any beneficiary who is then
entitied to distribution under the Existing Trus(; to make any division or distribution pro rata or non-pro
rata, in cash or in kind; and to allocate undivided interests in property and dissimilar property (without
regard to its tax basis) to different shares, and io make any distribution to a minor or any other
incapacitated persan directly to sich person, to his or her legal representative, to any person responsible
for or assuming his or her care, or in the case of a minor to an adult person or an eligible iostitution
(including a fiduciary) selected by my fiduciary as custodian for such minor under the Uniform Transfers
to Minors Act or similar provision of law. The receipt of such payee is a complete release to the

fiduciary,

c. Management. To manage, develop, improve, partition or change the character
of or sbandon an asset or interest in property at any time; and to make ardinary and extraordinary
repairs, replacements, alterations and improvements, structural or otherwise.

d. Borrowing. Te borrow money from anyone on commercially reasonable terms,

_including a fiduciary, beneficiaries and other persons who may have a direct or indirect interest in the
estate; and to mortgage, margin, encumberand pledge real and personal property of the estate as security
for the payment thereof, without incurring any personal liability thereon and to do so for a ierm within
or extending beyond the terms of the estate and to renew, modify orextend existing borrowing on similar
ar different terms and with the same or different security without incurring any personal liability; and
such borrowing from my fiduciary may be with or without interest, and may be secured with a lien on

LASTWILL
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the estate assets or any beneficiary's interest in said assets,

e Lending. To extend, modify or waive the terms of any obligation, bond or
mortgage at any time forming a part of the estate and to foreclose any such mortgage; accept a
conveyance of encumbered property, and take title to the property securing it by deed in lieu of
foreclosure or otherwise and to satisfy or not satisfy the indebtedness securing said property; to protect
or redeem any such property from forfeiture for nonpayment of taxes or other lien; generally, to exercise
as 1o such bond, obligation or mortgage all powers that an absolute owner might exercise; and to loan
funds to beneficiaries at commercially reasonable rates, terms and conditions.

L. Abandonment of Property. To abandon any property or asset when itis valueless
or so encumbered or in such condition that it is of no benefit to the estate, To abstain from the payment
oftaxes, liens, rents, assessments, or repairs on such property and/or permit such property to be lost by
tax sale, foreclosure or other proceeding or by conveyance for nominal or no consideration to anyone
including a charity or by escheat to a state; all without personal Jiability incurred therefor.

g RealProperty Matters. To subdivide, develop or partition rezl estate; to dedicate
the same to public use; to make or obtain the location of any plats; to adjust boundarics; to adjust
differences in valuations on exchange or partition by giving or receiving consideration; and, to grant
easements with or without consideration as they may determine; and to demolish any building,
structures, walls and improvements, or to erect new buildings, structures, walls and improvements and

to insure against fire and other risks.

h, Claims, To enforce, compromise, adjust, arbitrate, release or otherwise settle or
pey any claims or demands by or against the estate.

i Business Entities. To deal with any business entity or enterprise even if a
(iduciary ts or may be a fiduciary of or own interests in said business entity or enterprise, whether

operated inthe form ofa corporation, partnership, business trust, limited liability company, joint venture, ’

sole proprietorship, or other form (all of which business cntitics and enterprises are referred to herein’
as "Business Entities"). ] vest the fiduciary with the following powers and authority in regard to

Business Entities:

i. To retain and continue to operate a Business Entity for such period as the
fiduciary deems advisable;

ii. To control, direct and manage the Business Entities, In this connection, the
fiduciary, in its sole discretion, shall determine the manner and extent of its active participation in the
operation and may delegate all or any part of its power 1o supervise and operate to such person or
persons as the fiduciary may select, including any associate, partner, officer or employee ofthe Business

Entity;

iii. To hire and discharge officers and employees, fix their compensation and

LAST WiLL
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define their duties; and similarly to employ, compensate and discharge agents, attorneys, consultants,
accountants, and such other representatives as the fiduciary may deem appropriate; including the right
to employ any beneficiary or fiduciary in any of the foregoing capacities;

iv. To invest funds in the Business Entities, to pledge other assets of the esiate
or a trust as secwrity for loans made to the Business Entities, and to lend funds from my estate or a trust
to the Business Entities;

v. To organize one or more Business Entities under the laws of this or any other

state or country and to transfer thereto all or any part of the Business Entities or other praperty of my
estate or a trust, and to recelve In exchange such stocks, bonds, parinership and member interests, and
such other securities or interests as the fiduciacy may deem advisable; :

vi, To trent Business Entities as separate ‘from my estate or a trust. In &
fiduciary's accounting to any beneficiary, the fiduciary shall only be required to report the earnings and
condition of the Business Entities in accordance with standard business accounting practice;

vil. To retain in Business Entities such net eamings for working capital and other
purposes of the Business Entities as the fiduciary may deem advisable in conformity with sound business

practice;

viii. To sell or liquidate all or any part of the Business Entities at such time and
price and upon such terms and conditions (including credit) as the fiduciary may determine, My
fiduciary is specifically authorised and empowered to make such sale to any person, including any
parner, officer, or employee of the Business Entities, a fiduciary, or to any beneficiary; and

ix. To guaranty the obligations of the Business Entities, or pledge assets of the
estate or a trust to secure such a guaranty,

J- Life Insurance. With respect to any life insurance policies constituting an asset
of the estate to pay premiums; to apply dividends in reduction of such premiums; to borrow against the
cash values thereof; to convert such policies into other forms of insurance including paid-up insurance;
1o exercise any settlement options provided im any such policies; o receive the proceeds of any policy
upon its maturity and to administer such proceeds as a part of the principal of the estate or trust; and in
general, to exercise all other options, benefits, rights and privileges under such pelicies; provided,
however, no fiduciary other than a sole fiduciary may exercise any incidents of ownership with respect
to policies of insurance insuring the fiduciary’s own life,

k. Reimbursement. To reimburse itself from the estate for all reasonable expenses
incurred in the administration thereof,

L Voting. Ta vote and give proxies, with power of substitution to vate, stocks,
bonds and other securities, or not to vole 2 security,

LASTWLL
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m. Ancillary Administration. To appoint or nominate, and replace with or without
cause, any persons or corporations, including itself, as ancillary administrators to administer propesty

in other jurisdictions, with the same powers, privileges and immunities as my fiduciary and without
bond.

n. Tax Elections. To file tax returns, and to exercise all tax-related elections and
options at their discretion, without compensatmg adjustments or reimbursements between any accounts

or any beneficiaries.

3 Survivorship. A beneficiary is not deemed to survive me unless he or she survives me
by five days.

4. - Death Costs. My fiduciary shall pay (a) from the residuary estate my debts which are
allowed as claims against my estate, (b) from the residuary estate my funeral expenses without regard
to legal limitations, (c) from the residuary estate the expenses of administering my estate and (d) from
the residuary estate other than the portion of the residuary estate qualifying for the marital deduction
under the laws then in effect, without apportionment, all estate, inheritance and succession taxes
(excluding generation-skipping taxes other than with respect to direct skips), and interest and penalties
thercon, due because of my death and attributable to all property whether passing under this Will or
otherwise and not required by the terms of the Existing Trust to be paid out of said trust. However, such
taxes, penalties and interest payable out of my residuary estate shall not include taxes, penalties and
interest atiributable to (i) property over which I have a power of appointment granted to me by another
person, (i) qualified terminable interest property held in a trust of which | was the income beneficiary
at the time of my death (other than qualified terminable interest property held in a trust for which an
election was made under Code Section 2652(a)(3)), and (iii) life insurance proceeds on policies insuring
my life which proceeds are not payable to my prabate estate. My fiduciary shall not be reimbursed for
any such payment from any person or property. However, my fiduciary in its discretion may direct that
panrt or all of said deeth costs shall be paid by my Trustee as provided in the Existing Trust, and shall
give such direction to the extent necessary so that the gifts made in Articles [ and [1 of this Wili and the
gifts made in any codicil hereto shall not be reduced by said death costs.

3 Reimbursement for Debts and Expenses, My fiduciary shall promptly reimburse my

friends and members of my family who have disbursed their own funds for the payment of any debts,
funeral expenses or costs of administration of my estaie.

6. Expenses of Handling Tangible Personal Property. All expenses incurred by my

fiduciary during the settlement of my estate in appraising, storing, packing, shipping, delivering or
inwuring an article of tangible personal properfy passing under this lel shall be charged as an expense
of administering my estate.

7. Dealing with Estate. Each fiduciary may act under this Will even if interested in my

estate in an individual capacity, as a fiduciary of another estate or trust (including any trust identified
in this Will or created under the Existing Trust) or in any other capacity. Each fiduciary may in good
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faith buy from, sell to, lend funds to or otherwise deal with my estate,

8. Spouse, The term "spouse” herein means, as to a designated individual, the person to
whom that individual is from time to time married,

9, QOther Benefici ignations. Except as otherwise explicitly and with particularity

provided herein, (a) no pravision of this Will shall revoke or modify any beneficiary designation of mine
made by me and not revoked by me prior to my death under any individual retirement account, other
retirement plan or account, or annuily or insurance coniract, (b) I hereby reaffirm any such beneficiary
designation such that any assets held in such account, plan, or contract shall pass in accordance with
such designation, and (c) regardiess of anything herein to the contrary, any of such assets which would
otherwise pass pursuant to this Will due to the beneficiary designation not having met the requirements
for a valid testamentary dlsposition under applicable iaw or otherwise shall be paid as o gift made
hereunder to the persons and in the manner pravided in such designation which is incorporated herein

by this reference.

fremainder of page intentionally lefi blank]
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| have published and signed this instrument as my Will at Boca Raton, Fiorida, on the _20 _ day of
May , 2008,

/s/ Simon L. Bernstein
SIMON L. BERNSTEIN

This instrament, consisting of this page numbered 7 and the preceding typewritien pages, was
signed, sealed, published and declared by the Testator to be the Testator's Will in our presence, and at
the Testator's request and in the Testator'’s presence, and in the presence of each other, we have
subscribed our names as witoesses at Boca Raton, Florida onthis_20 dayof  May s

2008,

/s/ Robert L. Spallina residing at 7387 Wisteria Ave

{Witness Sigastare] {Wilness Address)
Parkland, FL 33076
{Withess Address)
/s/ Diama Banks residing at ___ 23415 Boca Trace Dr
{Wiiness Sigoabno] [Witnexs Address)
Boca Raton, FL 33433
[Witness Addeens)
LAST WiLL
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State Of Florida
: SS.

County Of Palm Beach

I, SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, declare to the officer taking my acknowledgment af this instcument,
and to the subscribing witnesses, that § signed this instrument as my will.

—t8l Simon L. Bermstein
SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, Testalor

We, Robert Spallina . and Diazna Banks ,
have been sworn by the officer signing below, and declare to that officer on our caths that the Testator

declared the instrument to be the Testator's will and signed it in our presence and that we each signed
the instrument as a witness in the presence of the Testator and of each other,

/s/ Robert 1. Spallina
Witness

_Is/ Diana Banke
Witness

o ,_Ackpdw_lec!gcd, and subscribed before me, by the Testator, SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, who is

~personally knownto me or who has produced ' (state iype
of identification) as identification, and sworn to and subscribed before me by the witnesses,
Robert L. Spallina » who is personaily known to me or who has
produced (state fype afidentification) as identification,
and Diana_ Banks » who is personally known to me or who has
produced (state type of identification) as identification,

and subscribed by me in the presence of SIMON L. BERNSTEIN and the subscribing witnesses, ali on
this 20 dayof May , 2008,

e Lor T Bozesay

/8/ Kimberly Moran
Signature « Nolary Public-Siate of Floridp

[Seal with Commission Expiration Date]

Poi, type of stamp name o Notary Publis

FWPDAT Sbitey & S Evtaia Fansing Wil of Skmon L. Berneicinwpd {08 15:4129 8 §9)
LASTWiLL
OF S1MON L. BERNSTEN ~B~

TESCHER & SPALLINA, P.A.

TS001367




ATTORNEYS
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IE“?LHEH & SPALLINH A

Boca ViLLaGE CORPORATE (LEMTER )
4853 TR HNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720
Bow.a BATON, FLoripa 33431

STANSBURY
EXHIBIT
502012CP0043915B

e — SUPPORT STaFF
Donalp R. TESCHER FrL. 561-997-7008 DIaNE DusTIn
ROBERT L. SPALLINA Fax 561-997-7308 KIWMBERLY MORAN
LAUREN A. GALVANT TaiL Frer: 888-097-7008 SUANN TESCHER
WWW,TESCHERSPALLINA.COM
December 6. 2012

VIA FACSIMILE: 803-333-4836

Atin: Bree

Claims Department

Heritage Union Life Insurance Company
1275 Sandusky Road

Jacksonviile, IL 62651

Re: Insured: Simop L. Bernstein
Contraet Ne.: 1009208

Dear Bree:

As per our earlier telephune conversation:

1995, which we have spent much time searching (or,

We are unable to locale the Simon Bemnstein lrrevocable lnsurance | rust doted June 1.

- Mrs. Shirley Bernsiein was the initial beneficiary of the 1995 trust. but predeceased Mr.
Bernstein.
. The Bemnstein children are the secondary benef' iciaries of the 199~ s

We arz submitting the Letlers of Administration for the Estate ol Sunoun Bernstein
showing that we are the named Personal Representatives of the Bstale

s We would like to have the proceeds from the Heritage palicy released o our {inm’s trust
account so that we can make distributions amongsi the five Bernstem children

all the children.

e 1995 trust.

If necessary, we will prepare for Heritage an Agreemeni and Muuml Release amongst

We are enclosing the S84 signed by Mr. Bernstein in 1995 to obtam the | [N number for

If you have any guestions with regard 10 the foregoing, please do not hesitate i¢ cuntacl me.

Sincerely,

Qi it

ROBERT L. SPALEINA

2

RLS/km

Enciosures

3 ;T {}{-}GD
f , ;‘.‘:. ~ 83
/

tabbles*




CLAIMANT STATEMENT

DECEDENT INFORMATION . . )
I. Mamwe of Deceased (Last, Fivst Middle) 2. Last 4 digits of Deczased*s Sacial
Security Mot 5 21 }

Bernstein, Simon [ eon
2, I the Deceased was known by any other names, such as nuaiden name, hyphenated name, nicimame, derfvative
Form of first and/at middle name or an alias, please provide them below,

5. If policy Is Jost ot not available, please sxpiain:

BTLZ000 @388 QEBA

4, Policy Nurmber(
Pt 1 00 9 0% Unble o Leradty policy 1S 38 yenrs
& Deceased’s Dote of Death 7. Cause of Death 2. P Na_m‘ral |} Acclzdeptai
o4zl rature] cases ] ieide [ Homiide .

SCLAIMART INFGRMATION
9, Claimant Name {Last, Fiest, Middls). I trest, please et trost) nmcand complete Trustee Ccmﬁmmn section,

Simen @ernstein I rrevotio\e Tnsurance. Trost

10. Sweel Address 11, Ciey 12, State and Zip 13. Daytiroe
Phone Nurmber
- 4. Date of Rirth 15, Sovial Security or Tax 1D Nuwbor 16, Relationship to Deceased
17. I zmn flling this claim os: sn individus) wha is named ax 8 beneficiary wnder the policy

[ 2 Trustzs of a Trust which s named ws o beneficiary under e policy
O :nﬁ,E...cmnnr of Estate whieh is named a5 a beneficincy under the policy
Cther
18, Are you ® U8, Giten? ] Yes [ No
3o please tist country of citizenshi
18. Policies subjeet to Viatical / Life Setifernent tranzactions ~ Are you & viwtical settlemont |
provider, life settlement provider, the recaiver or conservalor of viatical or life settlement
cop@aay, 3 viatical or life fimancing catity, kustce, igenl, eccuriliss intermediary or other
representstive of 3 visied or Life scttlement provides; or au individual or entity which inveseed fn
1his policy 2s a viatical or Fife senicrmant?
CLAINANT INFORMATION (to be completed by 2™ elaimant, ifany)
20. Claimont Name (Last, First, Middle). [£tmose, please fisy trust nare and complete ’I‘mstc: Certification section.

{1 Yes
ONe

21, Street Address 22 City 23, Statcand Zip | 24, Duytime
Phane Number
25, Datz of Bisth Z6. Social Security or Tex 1D Nurnber 27, Relationship to Decsased
23. | um filing this chiim ax: L.} no individual who is named 83 o beneficiary under the policy
g a Trustee of 3 Trust which is named as a boneficiary under the poficy
[} an Execulor of Estate which is gamed os & beneficiary mndes the pelicy’
Other

75, Are you 0 LS, Gitizen? L] ¥&s LJ Mo
[FNo* e Tiat coumtry of citizenshi
30. Policies zubject to ¥iaticaf / Life Scttlement transactions - Are you a viztical settlement
provider, life setflement provider, fhe recsiver ar conservamr of vimtical ar Gfe ssttfernent | [J Yes
company, & viatical or life financing =otity, trustec, agent, seeuritics intermediary or other
tative of a viaticat or life settlement provider; or s individual or entity which invesied in | [ No

sepresen
. this poliey ag % viatieal or lifs settfoment?
YOUR SIGNATURE IS REQUIRED ON THE NEXT PAGE,
Pupel

CL GULT Life Clutman Sixtemant Mo RAA SHZIZ011
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CLATMANT STATEMENT

SETTLEMENTOPTIONS N
The policy mey costain one or mare setl tons, sueh as § P Instaiiment Fara" fed
Acount, Life Anm.aty. Life Anmuity with Perad Cmam, 2nd/or Jaint Llf: erd Survivership Amauity. Yoa may
choose to recrive » Tump sum payment ot nnotb:r septlement optien available in the poliey under which n elyim &=
mede. For more xformation, refer to the ogti liods of policy genl provision in the policy er suntast us
at the mailing addvess noted on the frant of the claim form.

If you wish to select a sertiement option, ploass indicate your sett lection by name (not l;y number) on the
tine below after you have carcfilly revicwed the options avniluble in the palicy. Awvailabifity of seitlement optians
arc subjeet 1o the serms of the policy. If you do nat choose 2 sctilement, option, we will send 2 Inmp snm settlement ro

Yo |

Name of Setttemnent Oprion from Palicy

Imnorant Information Aboucshe HSA PATR!DT Act

Tohdpﬁghnhefundmgcftmnsmmd Y ivities, the U.S, gi hos passed the USA
PATRIOT Act, which reqais hnnk, ludicg cur p ing agent bank, to cbain, verify md record infarroation

that identifics persons whe cagoge fn cectain sransactions with o throogh 3 baok, This means that we will need
verify the mme, residential or street address (oo P.O. Bexﬁ), dala of birth and social seeurity mumber ar ather tax
idnotificxion number of all sccoumt dwness.

SUBSTITUTE FOR IRS FORNT \V—9 - )

This infe ion s being collectzd on this form versns IRS form W-3 and will be nsed for :upplymgmfamhan ©
the Intenial Revenus Service (TRS). Usnder penalty of pesjury, § cenify thet T) the tax ID swmber sbove is carrest (or
1 o waiting for a aumber to be Issnad to m=2), 2) [ sm nof subject 2o backup withholding because @) { am exdmp
from backup withholding, or (b) | have not been notified by the JRS that 1 am subject to baciap withhalding as 3
result of @ failuzz bo report all interest or dividends, or (€) Lhe IRS fzs notificd me thet § am na longer subject to
backup withholding, 2nd 3) ! ztn 2 U.S. pevton (including = U.S. resident aien). Please cross through item 2 if you
have been potified by the IRS tix you are subjent o backup withhplding berguse you have faifed 1o repord ali
Frterest and dividends on your tax o

1/We do hersby make cladm 1o said | deetare that the rdzd abova are plte and true, and

aprec that the funishing of this and any supplemental foros do not itute an admission by the Company that
there was any inzumspes in force on the Jife i question, nor a waiver af iTights or defenses,

For Residents of Mew Yorle Any peron who knowingly aod with mtcm 1o defraud oy i paxy of
other person files an npphr:man for or 3t of ﬂmm 1 uy jally false & ian, or
Is for the inl any fact matedial theroto, commils 2 frmduleut

¥

nsuramee act, wluch iss cnrn!:, and slnu also be subjeu o2 civil pma!ry oot to exeeed five thousand r]alhrs and the

steted vaiuz of the claim for each such violafion
For Residents of All Othee States: Sce the Fraud [aformation seetion of this claim farm.

“The Internal 1 oes pof require your consent ¢0 auy provision of this docmonent other
uired to ayoid bndm thholding.

&ug-;t./Qbf T/MJ'IT{' Z'{//f‘ /.Z_.
Simm}‘%‘:}&mﬁ'ﬁl&c Dzie v 3

Sigeature of Secand Clsimaat, if any, and Titls Dt

CL GO12F Ui Chiram Siemeat No RAA T2/23/2011 Foeed

TT42000° 03928900
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CLAIMANT STATEMENT

TRUSTEE CERTIFICATION

TRUSTEE CERTIFICATION {to Le contploted aoly if trust 15 claiming procéeids)

COMPLETE THIS SECTION ONLY [F ATB.UST 13 CLAIMING BENEFTTS.

CTLI000 ' p39gens

Pieasc inclode o copy of the irasLag t g the 5 page{s) and amy amendments,
- /We, the undersigned brustes{s) wnd thal the copy of the tse agreement, which we will provide
you pursuant to Lh:s ucmﬁnuun, zs a e md exart copy of ssid ap -, thae said ag is in full Pores and

cffect, and that we have the suthority o make this cartifieation.
Generatiop Skipping Transfer Tax Information - THIS MUST BE COMPLETED FOR PA.YM‘E‘!T

1'We the undersigned, op oady, end states ar follows with wspect 1o the posible opplcation of the
Generation Skipping Tmﬁar(GSTJ ‘tat ta the dexth bonefit payment (Mark the sppropriate frers):

1.The OST tax does not apply becauss che death beno it & not incleded in ths decedent’s estats for federai estate
IPOSES.

e GST tax does not apply because the GST tax exemption will offset the GST tax.

3.The GST taz docs not apply because af least ane of the tmst bencficiaries Is not 2 “skipped™ persoa.

4.The GST tnx docs not apply becarse of the reassns set fogth in the stached docnsment (Piease atach document
satting forth the reasons why you believa the GST tax does not =pply.)

SThnGSmemyapply Asaumgmdmhbemﬁtpnymm:ls:ubjoam ithh 1g of the apglicabl
iz the p dule R-1 (Fevm 706) for submission Lo the Intermal Revonus
Su’vi::.
Namo of Trust . b __E - F Daie of Trust
5 N Lrevbeal nsurante rus
. Simon Zernsiein ™ le ouﬁw? Y 69
Dats of 2ll Arendments Trust Tax (D
Number
5 1891,
Frinted Name of T} 5} Signarure(s)
3 Reberd L. Spaliico,

o N

BL GO Lif Chiman Slawmens Na RAA I223201 Paged

te trn amesmmremr, g o 4 en -, TPy Zummane ce
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7/9/2014 Detail by Ertity Narme

Froripa DerARTMENT oF STATE

Divisioy or CORPORATIONS

Detail by Entity Name

Florida Limited Liability Company
T & S REGISTERED AGENTS, LLC

Filing Information

Document Number L0O8000110070
FEVEIN Number N/A

Date Filed 11/25/2008

State FL

Status ACTNVE

Last Event REINSTATEMENT
Event Date Filed 10/11/2012

Event Effective Date NONE

Principal Address

925 S. FEDERAL HIGHWAY,
SUITE 500
BOCA RATON, FL 33432

Changed: 03/06/2014

Mailing Address

925 S. FEDERAL HIGHWAY,
SUITE 500
BOCA RATON, FL 33432

Changed: 03/06/2014

Registered Agent Name & Address

TESCHER, DONALD R
4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY
SUITE 720

BOCA RATON, FL 33431

Authorized Person(s) Detail
Name & Address

EXHIBIT
/s

tabbles®

Title MGRM

TESCHER, DONALD R

http.//search.sunbiz.org/Inq uiryCorporationSearch/SearchResultD etail/EntityName/flai-108000110070-d2d66d57-e9af-467¢-afSe-c0aed91 75538/ T % 20%26%20. ..
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7/9/2014 Detail by Entity Name

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720
BOCA RATON, FL 33431

Title MGRM
SPALLINA, ROBERT L

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720
BOCA RATON, FL 33431

Annual Reports

Report Year Filed Date
2012 10/11/2012
2013 03/21/2013
2014 01/08/2014

Document Images

01/08/2014 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format ]
03/21/2013 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format ‘
10/11/2012 - REINSTATEMENT View image in PDF format %
03/04/2011 - ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format I
04/05/2010 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format l
04/01/2009 - ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format l

|

11/25/2008 - Florida Limited Liability View image in PDF format

Caopvright & and Privacy Pohcies

State of Florida, Dopaviment of State

httpv/fsearch.sunbiz.org/nq uiry/CorporationSearch/SearchResultDetail/EntityName/fial-108000110070-d2d66d57-e9af-467 c-afSe- c0aed9175538/T %6 20%26%20. ..

22



2014 FLORIDA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ANNUAL REPORT FILED

DOCUMENT# L08000110070 Jan 08, 2014

Entity Name: T & S REGISTERED AGENTS, LLC Secretary of State
y CC6039854493

Current Principal Place of Business:

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY

SUITE 720

BOCA RATON, FL 33431

Current Mailing Address:

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY
SUITE 720
BOCA RATON, FL 33431

FEI Number: NOT APPLICABLE Certificate of Status Desired: No
Name and Address of Current Registered Agent:

TESCHER, DONALD R

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY
SUITE 720

BOCA RATON, FL 33431 US

The above named entity submits this statement for the purpose of changing its registered office or registered agent, ar both, in the State of Florida.

SIGNATURE:

Electronic Signature of Registered Agent Date

Authorized Person(s) Detail :

Titie MGRM Title MGRM

Name TESCHER, DONALD R Name SPALLINA, ROBERT L

Address 4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720 ~ Address 4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720
City-State-Zip: BOCA RATON FL 33431 City-State-Zip: BOCA RATON FL 33431

| hereby certify that the information indicated on this report or supplemental report is true and accurate and that my electronic signature shall have the same fegal effect as if made under
oath; thal } am a managing member or manager of the Iimited liability company or the receiver or trustes empowered {o execule this report as required by Chapter 605, Florida Statutes; and

that my name appears above, or on an attachment with ali other iike empowered.

SIGNATURE:; ROBERT L. SPALLINA VP 01/08/2014

Electronic Signature of Signing Authorized Person(s) Detai Date




2013 FLORIDA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ANNUAL REPORT
DOCUMENT# L08000110070
Entity Name: T & S REGISTERED AGENTS, LLC

Current Principal Place of Business:

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY
SUITE 720
BOCA RATON, FL 33431

Current Mailing Address:

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY
SUITE 720
BOCA RATON, FL 33431

FEI Number: NOT APPLICABLE
Name and Address of Current Registered Agent:

TESCHER, DONALD R

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY
SUITE 720

BOCA RATON, FL 33431 Us

FILED
Mar 21, 2013
Secretary of State
CC3486156996

Certificate of Status Desired: No

The above named entity submits this statement for the purpose of changing its registered office or registered agent, or both, in the State of Florida.

SIGNATURE:

Electronic Signature of Registered Agent

Authorized Person(s) Detail :

Title MGRM Title

Name TESCHER, DONALD R Name
Address 4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720 Address
City-State-Zip: BOCA RATON FL 33431 City-State-Zip:

MGRM

Date

SPALLINA, ROBERT L
4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720

BOCA RATON FL 33431

| hereby certily that the information indicated on this report or supplemental report is true and accurate and thal my electronic signature shafl have the same legal effect as II made under
oath; that | am a managing member or manager of the limited liability company or the receiver or trustee empawered to execute this report as required by Chapter 608, Florida Statutes; and

that my name appears above, or an an attachment with sll other like empowered.

SIGNATURE: DONALD R. TESCHER

MGRM

03/21/2013

Electronic Signature of Signing Authorized Person{s) Detail

Date



2012 LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY REINSTATEMENT FILED
Oct 11, 2012

DOCUMENT# L0O8000110070 Secretary of State
Entity Name: T & S REGISTERED AGENTS, LLC

Current Principal Place of Business: New Principal Place of Business:
4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY

SUITE 720

BOCA RATON, FL 33431

Current Mailing Address: New Mailing Address:

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY

SUITE 720

BOCA RATON, FL 33431

FE! Number: FE! Number Applied For{ ) FEI Number Not Applicable (X) Centificate of Status Desired ( )

Name and Address of Current Registered Agent: Name and Address of New Registered Agent:

TESCHER, DONALD R

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY
SUITE 720

BOCA RATON, FL 33431 US

The above named entity submits this statement for the purpose of changing its registered office or registered agent, or both,
in the State of Florida.

SIGNATURE: DONALD R. TESCHER

Electronic Signature of Registered Agent Date
MANAGING MEMBERS/MANAGERS:
Title: MGRM
Name: TESCHER, DONALD R
Address: 4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720
City-St-Zip:  BOCA RATON, FL 33431
Title: MGRM
Name: SPALLINA, ROBERT L
Address: 4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720

City-St-Zip:  BOCA RATON, FL 33431

| hereby certify that the information indicated on this report is true and accurate and that my electronic signature shall have
the same legal effect as if made under oath; that | am a managing member or manager of the limited liability company or the
receiver or trustee empowered 1o execute this report as required by Chapter 608, Florida Statues.

SIGNATURE: DONALD R. TESCHER MGR 10/11/2012
Electronic Signature of Signing Managing Member, Manager, or Autherized Representative f Date




2011 LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ANNUAL REPORT FILED

Mar 04, 2011
DOCUMENT# LO8000110070 Secretary of State

Entity Name: T & S REGISTERED AGENTS, LLC

Current Principal Place of Business: New Principal Place of Business:

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY
SUITE 720
BOCA RATON, FL 33431

Current Mailing Address: New Mailing Address:
. 4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY

SUITE 720

BOCA RATON, FL 33431

FEI Number: FE! Number Applied For { ) FEI Number Not Applicable (X) Certificate of Status Desired ( )

Name and Address of Current Registered Agent: Name and Address of New Registered Agent:

TESCHER, DONALD R

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY
SUITE 720

BOCA RATON, FL 33431 US

The above named entity submits this statement for the purpose of changing its registered office or registered agent, or both,
in the State of Florida.

SIGNATURE:

Electronic Signature of Registered Agent Date
MANAGING MEMBERS/MANAGERS:

Title: MGRM

Name: TESCHER, DONALD R

Address: 4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720
City-St-Zip:  BOCA RATON, FL 33431

Title: MGRM
Name: SPALLINA, ROBERT L
Address: 4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720

City-St-Zip:  BOCA RATON, FL 33431

| hereby certify that the information indicated on this report is true and accurate and that my electronic signature shall have
the same legal effect as if made under oath; that | am a managing member or manager of the fimited liability company or the
receiver or trustee empowered to execute this report as required by Chapter 608, Florida Statues.

SIGNATURE: DONALD R. TESCHER MGR 03/04/2011
Electronic Signature of Signing Managing Member, Manager, or Authorized Representative / Date




2010 LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ANNUAL REPORT FILED

Apr 05, 2010
DOCUMENT# LO8000110070 Secretary of State

Entity Name: T & S REGISTERED AGENTS, LLC

Current Principal Place of Business: New Principal Place of Business:

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY
SUITE 720
BOCA RATON, FL 33431

Current Mailing Address: New Mailing Address:
4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY

SUITE 720

BOCA RATON, FL 33431

FEI Number: FE! Number Applied For ( ) FE! Number Not Applicable (X) Certificate of Status Desired ( )

Name and Address of Current Registered Agent: Name and Address of New Registered Agent:

TESCHER, DONALD R

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY
SUITE 720

BOCA RATON, FL 33431 US

The above named entity submits this statement for the purpose of changing its registered office or registered agent, or both,
in the State of Florida.

SIGNATURE:

Electronic Signature of Registered Agent Date
MANAGING MEMBERS/MANAGERS:

Title: MGRM

Name: TESCHER, DONALD R

Address: 4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720
City-St-Zip:  BOCA RATON, FL 33431

Title: MGRM
Name: SPALLINA, ROBERT L
Address: 4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720

City-St-Zip:  BOCA RATON, FL 33431

| hereby certify that the information indicated on this report is true and accurate and that my electronic signature shall have
the same legal effect as if made under oath; that | am a managing member or manager of the limited fiability company or the
receiver or trustee empowered to execute this report as required by Chapter 608, Florida Statues.

SIGNATURE: DONALD R. TESCHER MGRM 04/05/2010
Electronic Signature of Signing Managing Member, Manager, or Authorized Representative / Date




2009 LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ANNUAL REPORT FILED

Apr 01, 2009
DOCUMENT# L08000110070 Secrgtaw of State

Entity Name: T & S REGISTERED AGENTS, LLC

Current Principal Place of Business: New Principal Place of Business:

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY
SUITE 720
BOCA RATON, FL 33431

Current Mailing Address: New Mailing Address:

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY
SUITE 720
BOCA RATON, FL 33431

FE! Number: FE! Number Applied For (X) FE! Number Not Applicable { ) Certificate of Status Desired ( )

Name and Address of Current Registered Agent: Name and Address of New Registered Agent:

TESCHER, DONALD.R

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY
SUITE 720

BOCA RATON, FL 33431 US

The above named entity submits this statement for the purpose of changing its registered office or registered agent, or both,
in the State of Florida.

SIGNATURE:
Electronic Signature of Registered Agent Date
MANAGING MEMBERS/MANAGERS: ADDITIONS/CHANGES:
Title: MGRM { ) Delete Title: ( ) Change ( )Addition
Name: TESCHER, DONALD R Name:
Address: 4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720 Address;
City-St-Zip:  BOCA RATON, FL 33431 City-St-Zip:
Title: MGRM ( ) Delete Title: { YChange ( ) Addition
Name: SPALLINA, ROBERT L Name:
Address: 4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720 Address:
City-St-Zip:  BOCA RATON, FL 33431 City-St-Zip:

| hereby certify that the information supplied with this filing does not qualify for the exemption stated in Chapter 118, Florida
Statutes. | further certify that the information indicated on this report is true and accurate and that my electronic signature

shall have the same legal effect as if made under oath; that | am a managing member or manager of the limited liability company
or the receiver or trustee empowered to execute this report as required by Chapter 608, Florida Statutes.

SIGNATURE: DONALD R. TESCHER MGRM 04/01/2009
Electronic Signature of Signing Managing Member, Manager, or Authorized Representative / Date




] . T L080001 10070
Electronic Articles of Organization FILED 8:00 AM

. . . xor . ., ber 25, 2008
Florida Limited Liability Company ggc:::egf State’
nculligan
Article I
The name of the Limited Liability Company is:
T & S REGISTERED AGENTS, LLC

Article I1
The street address of the principal office of the Limited Liability Company is:

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY
SUITE 720
BOCA RATON, FL. 33431

The mailing address of the Limited Liability Company is:

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY
-SUITE 720
BOCA RATON, FL. 33431

Article I11
The purpose for which this Limited Liability Company is organized is:
ANY AND ALL LAWFUL BUSINESS.

Article IV

The name and Florida street address of the registered agent is:

DONALD R TESCHER
4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY
SUITE 720

BOCA RATON, FL. 33431

Having been named as registered agent and to accept service of process
for the above stated limited liability company at the place designated

in this certificate, I hereby accept the appointment as registered agent
and agree to act in this capacity. I further agree to comply with the
provisions of all statutes relating to the proper and complete performance
of my duties, and [ am familiar with and accept the obligations of my
position as registered agent.

Registered Agent Signature: DONALD R. TESCHER



Article V
The name and address of managing members/managers are:

Title: MGRM

DONALD R TESCHER

4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720
BOCA RATON, FL. 33431

Title: MGRM
ROBERT L SPALLINA
4855 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 720
BOCA RATON, FL. 33431
Signature of member or an authorized representative of a member

Signature: DONALD R. TESCHER

L08000110070
FILED 8:00 AM
November 22, 2008

Sec, Of Stat
nculligan





